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Dusiness Ooeruz'ew

Our business is based on addmg value to wealth through strategies that enable

advisors to help their clients accumulate, preserve, and transfer assets. We have a

significant presence in our chosen market, thanks to our strong mix of innovative

products and services and leadership in value-added sales and marketing tools.

OUR MARKET

Affluent and high-net-worth
individuals

Tlbe number 0/151_7£~

nel-worlh senrors 1s
expec/eo/ fo rncrease
more than seuen/rafof
in the next 15 years,
crealing many

po/ezz/ja[ opportunitres
/5{' THoenrx

Businesses and Institutions

LIFE INSURANCE: $122.6 billion of

life insurance in force’
Universal Life
Variable Universal Life
Term Life

Private Placement Life
Insurance

ANNUITIES: $7.1 billion of
annuity assets’

Variable Annuities
Immediate Annuities

Private Placement Annuities

ASSET MANAGEMENT: $42.8 billion
of third-party assets under
management!

Managed Accounts

Mutual Funds

fnstitutional Accounts
Structured Finance Products
Closed-end Funds

" As of December 31,2003

Provibe

Asset Allocation

Business Valuation and Planning
(haritable Planning
Complementary Investment Analysis™
Estate Planning

Executive Benefits

Gift Tax Analysis

Investor Education

Pension Distribution Planning

Our elite team o/
wholesalers drstributes
our /01‘0%10/3 and
servrces /frouyﬂ a
(79()6[‘51/'1;6(/ array O/F
advisors and /}'ncznciaf

serovrces /f[rms:

National and Regional
Broker-dealers

Financial Planning Firms
Independent Advisors
Insurance Companies
Banks

Institutional Investment
Management Consultants




Financial ]ﬁyéﬁyéfs

d"iﬂmillio_ns g_xcept per share amounts - 2003
Net Loss $ (6.2
Total Segment Income {Loss)? 57.3
Net Loss Per Share? (0.07)
Total Segment Income (Loss) Per Share? 0.59
Revenues 26144
Invested Assets 17,229.2
Total Assets 27,559.2
Total Stockholders' Equity 1,947.8

Third-party Assets Under Management $42,841.6

' Certain 2002 and 2001 amounts have been revised from amounts previously reported. See note 1 of our consolidated financial statements in our Annual Report on Form 10-K

for additional information.

2 |n addition to net income presented in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP), Phoenix considers total segment income in evaluating its financial
performance. A reconciliation of these measures is available in the investor Relations section on our Web site at PhognixWealthManagement.com. Total segment income is an
internal performance measure used by Phoenix in the management of its operations, including its compensation plans and planning processes. In addition, management believes

that segment income best reflects the profitability of our core operations.

Total segment income represents income from continuing operations (which is a GAAP measure) before realized investment gains and losses and certain other items.

Year Endverd/ Décember '31 ,

2002
$ (272.3)
(60.4)
(2.78)
(0.62)
2,456.3
16,812.8
25,235.9
1,826.8

$ 38,568.2

2001"
$ (2152
(74.7)
(2.06)
(0.71)
2,463.8
14,400.4
22,535.9
2,307.8

$38,604.3

* Net realized investment gains and losses are excluded from total segment income because their size and timing are frequently subject to our discretion.

« Certain other items are excluded from total segment income because we believe they are not indicative of overall operating trends and are items that management believes are

infrequent and material and which result from a business restructuring, a change in regulatory requirements, or other unusual circumstances.

Because certain of these items are excluded based on our discretion and involve judgments by management, inconsistencies in their determination may exist and total segment

income may differ from similarly titled measures of other companies.

3 For the twelve months ended December 31, 2003, the weighted average of common and equivalent shares outstanding was 96.6 million. These shares were used to calculate

diluted total segment income per share, but not for net loss per share, because they would have been anti-dilutive.



To Cur CSAareﬁofafefs

What a difference a year makes.

When I wrote to you a year ago — less than two months after becoming chief executive officer and
chairman-elect — I reported on one of the most difficult years in Phoenix’s history. That is not the kind

of report I wanted to write again.

I am pleased to tell you that last year we made meaningful progress on turning Phoenix’s
performance around. Our stock recovered by almost 60 percent and continued to rise in the early part

of 2004 because we delivered on the priorities we set for 2003 in an improving market environment.

Still, this is only the beginning. We have much more work to do to deliver consistent profitability
and growth in shareholder value. I am excited by this challenge, and I am confident that we have the

people, plans, and, above all, the will to achieve Phoenix’s potential.

2003 Financial and Business Highlights

" Phoenix earned total segment income' of
$57.3 million in 2003, compared with a loss
of $60.4 million in 2002, a reflection of broad-
based improvement in our core businesses.

We reported a net loss of $6.2 million, a
significant improvement from the 2002 net
loss of $272.3 million. Our loss in 2003 was
principally due to our decision to write
down our investment in Aberdeen Asset
Management. Excluding this, we earned
$48.8 million in 2003.

I want to point out that these net losses are Dona D. Young, Chairman, President and
different from those reported in our 2002 Chief Executive Officer
annual report and full-year 2003 earnings
release. We are committed to transparency and candor in our communications, including
our financial reporting, which is why a further explanation of this change is necessary.

We revised our net income for the last three years due to a change in accounting
methodology related to certain collateralized debt obligation pools and our adoption of a
new accounting standard, FIN 46-R, in the fourth quarter of 2003. We are now reflecting
this methodology for each of the years 2003, 2002, and 2001, instead of reporting a
cumulative effect of FIN 46-R as of December 31, 2003. The net effect improves
earnings in 2003, and reduces earnings in 2002 and 2001.

1. Total segment income is a non-GAAP measure. See footnote 2 on page 1.
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While financial reporting and the evolving
interpretation of accounting rules required us
to make this change, it is important to note
that there is no economic impact from these
revisions. Our total segment income is not
affected in any period and our year-end 2003
shareholders’ equity is also unchanged.

Now let me turn to the performance of our
major businesses.

Earnings in Life and Annuity increased by
24 percent to $99.4 million before tax. This
reflects very strong life insurance fundamentals -
a hallmark of Phoenix — and a return to
profitability in our annuity product line in the
second half of the year.

I am particularly pleased with our strong
growth in life insurance sales, which reached a
record $199.2 million of wholesaled total life
premium, a 14 percent increase over 2002, This
result reflects the strength of our life franchise
and the confidence of our distribution partners.

Philadelphia Financial Group (PFG), our
private placement organization targeting the
ultra-high-net-worth market, also had a record
year. New deposits increased 49 percent from
2002, bringing total separate account assets at
PFG to $1.5 billion. We purchased the remaining
minority interest in PFG last year to strengthen
our commitment to this growing market.

We also repositioned our annuity product line
in 2003 for profitable growth. For example, in
September, we stopped selling fixed annuities
and narrowed distribution to focus on only those
channels that present the best prospects for our
products and value-added support.

Over the past year, the variable annuity
market has seen a proliferation of product
features requiring product manufacturers to
provide long-term guarantees and assume
significant equity market and interest rate risks.

At this time, we have chosen not to compete
with these features.

Another factor contributing to our strong
results was the significant improvement in the
investment portfolio supporting our life insurance
business. Our diversified approach to managing
our portfolio has enabled us to weather the
record defaults of the most recent economic
cycle better than many other insurance
companies. By year-end, we had net realized
investment gains of $3.2 million, excluding the
write-down of Aberdeen I mentioned earlier,
compared with net realized investment losses of
$39.3 million in 2002.?

Last year we
made meaningful progress oz furning

Thoenix’s per/formance around.

A part of our investment portfolio is reported
in our venture capital segment, which also
benefited from the improved market environment.
In 2003, this segment earned $36.2 million before
tax after losing $59.3 million the prior year. Early
in 2003, we sold approximately $52 million of
this portfolio, half to an outside party and half to
our closed block. I expect venture capital to
gradually become a smaller proportion of total
earnings as we make any new commitments to
venture capital in the closed block.

Our asset management business also achieved
significant earnings improvement. This segment
had a loss in 2003 of $8.7 million before tax,
compared with a loss of $69.9 million in 2002.
These numbers, however, are affected by
intangible amortization charges. A better
measure of the underlying performance of this
business is earnings before interest, taxes,

2. Amounts exclude realized losses on debt securities pledged as collateral and are net of offsets for change in policyholder dividend obligation,
amortization of deferred policy acquisition costs and provision for federal income taxes.




depreciation, and amortization, or EBITDA.
During the first half of the year, EBITDA was
depressed by the weak markets, but improved
steadily from $4.6 million in the first quarter
to $14.6 million in the fourth quarter.

Our mission for the asset management
business is clear: to rationalize the model,
improve product performance, and bring
profitability to at least industry-average levels.
Achieving this will take time, but among the early
actions we took last year was combining Capital
West Asset Management and Duff & Phelps and
closing one of our managers, Hollister.

Commitment to Financial Strength

One of the challenges we faced last year was the
negative view of the life insurance industry held
by the rating agencies, and within that context,

of Phoenix as a recently demutualized company.

This resulted in downgrades for many life
insurers, including Phoenix. I want to share my
perspective on this.

Phoenix has delivered superior value to
policyholders for more than 150 years. We have
always taken very seriously the long-term
promises we make, and that continues as a
public company. True value occurs by running
a company for long-term performance while
simultaneously focusing on quarterly results.
This is how we operate. Our obligation to
shareholders is the same as our promise to
policyholders: to thrive as a profitable enterprise
built on a foundation of financial strength and
sound risk management.

Ratings improvement is a priority, and I am
devoting a significant amount of my own time to
ensuring that each rating agency we deal with is
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fully informed and aware of our progress. In that
context, I want to highlight a number of actions
we took in 2003 to make us a financially
stronger, more flexible company:

O We reduced annualized expenses by $59.5
million before offsets from taxes, deferred
acquisition costs, and pension expense. This
exceeded our announced target of $55 million.
These actions, along with others still to come,
will reduce our fixed costs and improve our
profitability in all market environments.

O We received and reinvested proceeds of
$238 million from the sale or exit of
illiquid, low-yielding investments in our
insurance company investment portfolios.

D We reduced the exposure in our venture
capital segment by 14 percent through the
sale and transfer of a portion of the portfolio.

O We managed the company within
conservative targets for regulatory risk-based
capital and financial leverage.

O We maintained a well-matched, liquid
investment portfolio that enables us to meet
our policyholder obligations.

0 We increased our bank credit line to
$150 million and added multi-year
borrowing capacity to support our liquidity
and financing needs.

O And, we again maintained our policyholder
dividend for 2003, thanks to the strong
performance of our closed block.

We will continue to focus on balance sheet
discipline, risk management, and efficient capital
allocation, all of which are critical to achieving

our long-term strategic objectives and to building
a performance-based culture at Phoenix.




Building a Performance Culture

The most profound changes in an organization
are not usually the first to emerge in financial
results because they involve changing how
people go about their work. We have begun to
effect cultural change at Phoenix in a way that
preserves our values while transforming us into a
highly creative, nimble, and efficient competitor.

We will devote all 0/[ owur eneryz'es

fo achreving five strategic objectives over

the next three years.

One of the most important initiatives was our
effort to embed Lean management principles
throughout Phoenix to eliminate waste and drive
for continuous improvement. Lean is not about
cutting costs, although reducing expenses is an
important by-product. Lean is about continuous
improvement and freeing up capacity for
growth. We are applying Lean in a systematic
way, concentrating first on areas that have the
greatest impact on profitability.

We also changed the way people are paid at
Phoenix. For the first time, annual bonuses were
not linked just to how the company performed,
but also differentiated by business unit and
individual performance.

Late in 2003 we conducted the first employee
survey at Phoenix in more than two decades,
which will allow us to monitor our progress. The
survey confirmed what we all know: that change
takes time and can be uncomfortable. At the same
time, the results of the survey were encouraging
because they showed our employees’
commitment to our values as well as their
understanding of our strategy.

Finally, one of our key 2003 accomplishments
was the development of a three-year strategic
plan to dramatically improve our profitability.

Strategy and Objectives

Phoenix aspires to be a best-in-class
manufacturer of insurance, annuity and asset
management products and services for affluent
and high-net-worth individuals and the advisors
that serve them, and for selected institutional
clients. We are also focused on growth. Toward
that end, we will devote all our energies to
achieving five strategic objectives over the next
three years:

[. 70 be known for product excellence, the mark
of a best-in-class manufacturer. Our
commitment to innovation, product quality
and performance is at the heart of this
objective. In 2003, we formalized the
framework and processes around new
product idea generation, product
development, and product quality monitoring.
We also formed a corporate-level Product
Strategies Committee to set company-wide
direction, provide oversight and evaluate new
ideas for today as well as for two and three
years out. These and other initiatives will
allow us to capitalize on the attractive
demographic trends in our target market,
such as the aging of the Baby Boomers.

2. To be the distribution partner of choice within
selected distribution channels. We bring our
distribution partners customized strategies to
serve the financial needs of their affluent and
high-net-worth customers, by combining
tailored products with value-added services
and deep wholesaling skills. We will continue
to seek out and secure preferred distribution
relationships that value our unique approach
and compensate us accordingly.

3. To build a mass-customization service model.
Our target market demands tailored service.
Our model is based on delivering consistent




and competitive service while continuously
reducing unit costs. We are investing in both
of these aspects through Lean as well as other
initiatives to develop more efficient processes
and make the best use of technology.

4. To instill a performance culture throughout
Phoenix. Building on the foundation we laid in
2003, we will continue to work on all aspects
of the organization so that everyone has a
personal stake in our success as an enterprise.

For 2004, a key focus is to further identify
and develop talent. Toward that end, we
recently launched “CEO Think Tanks.”
High-performing individuals are nominated
by senior managers to serve on a Think Tank
over an eight-week period, and develop
recommendations and action plans for areas
critical to our success.

In addition in 2004, we will devote even more
time and attention to formal leadership
assessment and other development programs
for all levels of employees. We will also
continue to foster our commitment to an
inclusive and diverse workplace.

S. To integrate risk management from an
enterprise perspective. Assessing and
managing risk across our business is
critical to long-term success, which is why
we established an enterprise-wide risk-
management function in 2003. This year
we will strengthen it further through a
comprehensive examination of the financial,
operational, and strategic implications of all
significant undertakings.

Strategic focus and clear objectives are
critical to long-term success, and these
objectives should enable us to realize our
strategic aspiration while delivering consistently
improving financial performance.

A Word of Thanks

Phoenix has come very far in just one year, and
I want to take this opportunity to thank the
people who made our many accomplishments
possible. I was especially thankful for this
support during my first year as Phoenix’s chief
executive officer.

I would like to acknowledge the members of
our senior management team, who were relentless
in grappling with issues, generating ideas,
developing initiatives, and making decisions in
order to fundamentally reshape Phoenix. I also
want to thank the employees of Phoenix for their
steadfastness and support during a year of
enormous change, and for their ongoing
commitment to meeting any challenge we face.

I want to express my appreciation to the
members of our Board of Directors for their
sound advice and counsel, and continued
support as we have worked through challenges
together. I would particularly like to recognize
Robert G. Wilson, who will retire from our
board when his term ends on April 29, 2004
after 28 years of exceptional service.

I am grateful, too, to our advisors and agents
and their clients for continuing to choose our
products and services.

And, finally, I thank our shareholders for their
ongoing confidence in Phoenix. We measure our
success by your success, and we thank you for
your support as we grow Phoenix and the value
of your investment.

b &) ey

Dona D. Young
Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer

March 22, 2004



2003 Corporate Accomplishments

Phoenix set four key priorities for 2003 and made significant

progress on each through focused, disciplined execution.

PRIORITY: Intensify
focus on core businesses

D> Exited non-core and unprofitable initiatives, closing
selected international operations as well as the
Hollister division of asset management, and
announcing the sale of Phoenix National Trust
Company

> Invested in core businesses such as Philadelphia
Financial Group, now a wholly owned private
placement insurance subsidiary

D> Continued to grow our life insurance franchise
while maintaining underwriting and pricing standards

D Repositioned our annuity business with a tighter
focus on only the most profitable products and
distribution channels

D> Accelerated the rationalization of our asset
management structure, bringing down expenses and
streamlining operations while initiating new product
quality controls

> Completed a strategic planning program aimed at
rapidly improving our earnings in order to provide
long-term value for our shareholders

D> Established a corporate-level product strategies
committee and a business and market
development function

> Expanded and refined our use of Lean management
principles to constantly improve productivity,
efficiency and quality of products and services in
order to free up capacity for growth

PRIORITY: Lower
expenses permanently

D> Took actions to realize annualized expense savings of
$59.5 million, before offsets, exceeding the company’s
$55 million target

D> Developed a strategic facilities plan to realize the most
efficient and effective use of our real estate. Executed
key elements of the plan ahead of schedule through
the sale of an off-site meeting facility and an
agreement to sell a home office facility in Enfield, Conn.

> Made expense discipline a continuous part of running
the business across the company

PRIORITY: Enhance
capital and resources allocation

> Improved the risk profile of our life company through
the sale of $238 million of concentrated or illiquid

investments for realized or deferred gains that totaled
$36.5 million

D> Discontinued or exited products and relationships that
did not represent the best use of capital and resources

D> Established a corporate risk management function to
prioritize and monitor all risks, enterprise-wide

PRIORITY: Build
a performance culture

D> Refined existing strong governance practices of the
Board of Directors and further reduced the number
of insiders to one

D> Implemented a formal leadership assessment program
for senior management

> Redesigned the annual incentive plan for all employees
to align and differentiate compensation with corporate,
business unit and individual performance




Form 10-K

The Phoenix Companies, Inc. is a manufacturer of insurance, annuity and
asset management products for the accumulation, preservation and transfer
of wealth. The company provides its products and services to affluent and
high-net-worth individuals through their advisors and to institutions directly
and through consultants. The company offers a broad range of life insurance,
annuity and asset management products t‘hrough a variety of distributors.

Phoenix has corporate offices in Hartford, Connecticut.

add value to wealth* ©PHOENIX
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UNITED STATES

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
Washington, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-K
(Mark one)
(X) ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15 (d) OF THE
SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
For the fiscal year ended December 31, 2003

OR

) TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE
SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the transition period from to

Commission file number 333-55268

THE PHOENIX COMPANIES, INC.

(Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter)

Delaware . . 06-1599088
(State or other jurisdiction of (LR.S. Employer Identification No.)
incorporation or organization) .
One American Row, Hartford, Connecticut © 06102-5056
(Address of principal executive offices) (Zip Code)

Registrant’s telephone number, including area code

(860) 403-5000 .

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(b) of the Act:

Title of each class Name of each exchange on which registered
Common stock, $.01 par value New York Stock Exchange
7.45% Quarterly Interest Bonds, due 2032 New York Stock Exchange

7.25% Equity Units New York Stock Exchange

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(g) of the Act: :
Stock Purchase Contracts

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange
Act of 1934 during the preceding twelve months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to file such reports), and (2) has
been subject to such filing requirements for the past ninety days. YESX NO

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquent filers pursuant to Item 405 of Regulation S-K is not contained herein, and will not be
contained, to the best of registrant’s knowledge, in definitive proxy or information statements 1ncorporated by reference in Part III of this
Form 10-K or any amendment to this Form 10-K. [X]

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is an accelerated filer (as defined I rule 12b-2 of the Act). YESX NO __

As of March 5, 2004, the aggregate market value of voting common equity held by non-affiliates of the registrant was $1,347,288,765
based on the last reported sale price of the registrant’s common stock on the New York Stock Exchange. On March 5, 2004, the reglstrant
had 94,546,580 shares of common stock outstanding; it had no non-voting common equity.

DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE
Portions of the registrant’s definitive proxy statement to be filed pursuant to Regulation 14A within 120 days after the end of the
registrant’s fiscal year are incorporated by reference in Part IIL.

L ____________——______________—_________ ]

1 L]




_ TABLE OF CONTENTS

Item No.  Description ' Page
Part ] 1 BUSINESS .o SV e eve e e eyt a ettt r e e e e e e n R e nbe s renas -3
2 PrOPEITIES . ooveieiicre ettt st et eere b e e evestasreetassses e ebe s estesbesbe s essetenseseensesnesnaas 17
3 Legal ProCEediNgS....ceiveevererriieririiriteseee it sres e reseseesbesresebesesten e benessesbeneseessasesnencsss 17
4 Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders...........iivcveneievccnceiinnennnieens 19
Part 11 5 Market of Registrant’s Common Equity and Related Stockholder Matters.................... 19
6 Selected FInancial Data..........cccoviiiiiiiiiiieine ettt et 20
7 Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results
OF OPETALIONS. ..ottt ettt st e e et se b eebebesa e e rbasestenrenatenee e 23
7A Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk .......c..cocveviiiiinicinininnns 75
8 Financial Statements and Supplementary Data ............................................................... 79
Report of Independent AUdItOTS. ..o OO URUURPUTTT F-1
Consolidated Balance Sheet as of December 31, 2003 and 2002 ........ooeeveveeieeviivennenne F-2
Consolidated Statement of Income and Comprehensive Income For the Years Ended
December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001 .....oeoeccvieroieeineeeicee e s sesevcre s F-3
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows For the Years Ended December 31, 2003, 2002
ANA 20071 ... et bbbttt en et eaen F-4
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Stockholders” Equity and Comprehensive
Income For the Years Ended December 31,2003, 2002 and 2001 .......cccoovviiiceccannn F-5
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements...........ccovivvvvmmvniiinecrnnnininna, F-6
9 Changes in and D1sagreements With Accountants on Accountmg and Fmancml
DASCLOSUTE .voovrrireeelensiesesiseseienerie st ess s b s 79
9A Controls and ProCEAUTES ...........ccccveuivirireeieiersneeiesseese s seeesessas s iensssesans e, 79
Part 111 10 Directors.and Executive Officers of the Registrant ..o , 79
11 Executive COMPENSAtioN .............ovvverveerrrsrersnerernsesnnes s et 81
12 Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management ............................. 81
13 Certain Relationships and Related Transactions.......c.cc.cooverveinecnecinincoiinnnesenneeecenenne 85
14 Principal Accountant Fees and Services ... i 85
Part IV 15 Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules, and Reports on Form 8-K................c....... S 85
SEZIALULES .....cvcviiveiere ettt ere et e ettt aese st s et et ess b e s st eteseaeasabesessssebase s et esasbabesesbebereabasesessennsesasessarsd ST : 87
EXRIDIE IIAEX ...ttt ettt et et r e e e b s be e se st e saembe st e ab et e s b e abeseaabesaesssseenbaasaenterrans E-1
2




Unless otherwise stated, at all times on and after June 25, 2001, the eﬁective date of Phoenix Home Life Mutual
Insurance Company’s demutualization, “Phoenix,” “we,” “our” or “us” means The Phoenix Companies, Inc.,
“PNX,” and its direct and indirect subsidiaries. At all times prior to June 25, 2001, “we,” “our” or “‘us” means
Phoenix Home Life Mutual Insurance Company (which has been known as Phoenix Life Insurance Company
since June 25, 2001) and its direct and indirect subsidiaries. Furthermore, “Phoenix Life” refers to Phoenix Life
Insurance Company, “Life Companies” refers to Phoenix Life and its direct and indirect subsidiaries and

. “Phoenix Investment Partners” refers to Phoemx Investment Partners Ltd. and its dzrect and indirect

subsidiaries.

PART I
Item 1. Business
Descrfption Qf Business

We are a manufacturer of insurance, annuity and asset managémént products for the accumulation, preservation
and transfer of wéalth. We provide products and services to affluent and high-net-worth individuals through their
advisors and to institutions directly and through consultants. - We offer a broad range of life insurance, annuity
and asset management products and services through a variety -of distributors. '

The affluent and high-net-worth market is a growing market with significant demand for customized products and
services. We define affluent as those households with net worths of $500,000 or greater, excluding their primary
residence. We.define high-net-worth, a subset of the affluent category, as those households that have net worth,
excluding primary residence, of over $1,000,000. Our wealth management products and services-are des1gned to
assist advisors and their clients in this target market to achieve three main goals:

¢ the accumulation of wealth, primarily dur_ing an individual’s working years;
~ e the preséfvaﬁon of income and wealth during retirement and following death; and

e the efficient transfer of wealth in a variety of situations, including through estate planning, business
continuation planning and charitable giving. '

We provide our wealth management products and services through various distribution channels, such as:

» non-affiliated financial intermediaries such as national and regional broker- dealers banks, financial
- planning firms, advisor groups and other insurance companies; and

e our affiliated retail producers, most of whom are registered representatives of our wholly-owned retail
broker-dealer WS Griffith Advisors, Inc., or WS Griffith.

Segments

We have two operating segments, Life and Annuity and Asset Management, which include three product lines:
life insurance, annuities and asset management. Both segments serve the affluent and high-net-worth market,”
which presents opportunities to leverage our capabilities and relationships. In addition to managing third-party
assets, Asset Management manages both the general accounts of the Life Companies and many of the separate
account portfolios available through variable life and annuity products.

We report our remaining results in two nOn-dperating segments — Veriture Capital and Corporate and Other.
Venture Capital includes limited partnership interests in venture capital funds, leveraged buyout funds and other
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private equity partnerships sponsored and managed by third parties. The segment does not include similar
investments that are part of the closed block. Corporate and Other includes indebtedness; unallocated assets,
liabilities and expenses; and certain businesses not of sufficient scale to report independently. These segments are
significant for financial reporting purposes, but do not contain products or services relevant to our core
manufacturing operations.

Operating Segments

SUMMARY OF OPERATING SEGMENTS

December 31, 2003
Market Presence Distribution Channels Products
| Life and Annuity )
Non-affiliated distribution: e Variable universal life insurance
e $45.5 billion of net life insurance e National and regional broker-dealers e  Universal life insurance
inforce e Financial planning firms s Term life insurance
s  $7.1 billion annuity assets under e  Advisor groups s Variable annuities
management e [nsurance companies ¢ Immediate annuities
‘ e Banks e  Private placement life insurance
Principal operating subsidiaries: * and annuities
e  Phoenix Life ' Affiliated distribution: e Executive benefits

e PHL Variable Insurance Company e WS Griffith
¢ - Main Street Management Company

. Asset Management

Ngﬁ-aﬂiliated distribution: Private client products
o $59.2 billion assets under. - National and regional broker-dealers e Managed accounts
management e  Advisor groups . »  Mutual funds
o Institutional asset management
Principal operating subsidiary: consultants ‘ Institutional products.
¢ Phoenix Investment Partners e  Financial planning firms » Institutional accounts
e Closed-end funds
Affiliated distribution: e Structured products
e  Affiliated asset managers - s  Phoenix Life general and

¢ WS Griffith Advisors, Inc. separate accounts
e  Main Street Management Company

Life and Annuity Segment

Our Life and Annuity segment offers a variety of life insurance and annuity products through affiliated and non-
affiliated distributors. We believe our competitive advantage in thiis segment consists of five main components:

our innovative products;
our diversified asset management capability;
our distribution relationships with institutions that have access to our target market and the value- added
the distributors provide those institutions;
our ability to combine products and services that distributors and their clients find attractive; and
¢ our underwriting expertise. ‘

Life and Annuity Products
Life Products
Our life insurance products include variable universal life, universal life, term life and other insurance products.

Because of our target market, we are a leading writer of second-to-die life insurance. Second-to-die products are
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typically used for estate planning purposes and insure two lives rather than one, with the policy proceeds paid
after the death of both insured individuals.

Variable Universal Life. Variable universal life products provide insurance coverage and give the policyholder
various investment choices, flexible premium payments and coverage amounts and limited guarantees. The
policyholder may direct premiums and cash value into a variety of separate investment accounts, accounts that are
maintained separately from the other assets of the Life Companies and are not part of the general accounts of the
Life Companies, or into the general account. In separate investment accounts, the policyholder bears the entire
risk of the investment results. We collect fees for the management of these various investment accounts and the
net return is credited directly to the policyholder’s accounts. With some variable universal products, by
maintaining a certain premium level the policyholder receives guarantees that protect the policy’s death benefit if,
due to adverse investment experience, the policyholder’s account balance is zero. We retain the right within
limits to adjust the fees we assess for providing administrative services. We also collect fees to cover mortality
costs; these fees may be adjusted by us but may not exceed contractual limits.

Universal Life. Universal life products provide insurance coverage on the same basis as variable universal life
products, except that premiums, and the resulting accumulated balances, are allocated only to our general account
for investment. Universal life products may allow the policyholder to increase or decrease the amount of death
benefit coverage over the term of the policy, and also may allow the policyholder to adjust the frequency and
amount of premium payments. Some universal life products provide guarantees that protect the policy’s death
benefit if specified minimum premiums are paid. We credit premiums, net of expenses, to an account maintained
for the policyholder. We credit interest to the account at rates that we determine, subject to certain minimums.
Specific charges are made against the account for expenses. We also collect fees to cover mortality costs; these
fees may be adjusted by us but may not exceed contractual limits.

Term Life. Term life insurance provides a guaranteed benefit upon the death of the insured within a specified
time period, in return for the periodic payment of premiums. Specified coverage periods range from one to thirty
years, but not longer than the period over which premiums are paid. Premiums may be level for the coverage
period or may vary. Term insurance products are sometimes referred to as pure protection products, in that there
are normally no savings or investment elements. Term contracts expire without value at the end of the coverage
period. Our term insurance policies allow policyholders to convert to permanent coverage, generally without
evidence of insurability.

Annuity Products
We offer a variety of variable annuities to meet the accumulation and preservation needs of the affluent and high-
net-worth market. Deferred annuities, in which funds accumulate for a number of years before periodic payments
begin, enable the contractholder to save for retirement and also provide options that protect against outliving
assets during retirement. Immediate annuities are purchased by means of a single lump sum payment and begin
paying periodic income immediately. We believe this product is especially attractive to those affluent and high-
net-worth retirees who are rolling over pension or retirement plan assets and seek an income stream based entirely
or partly on equity market performance.

Variable annuities are separate account products, which means that the contractholder bears the investment risk as
deposits are directed into a variety of separate investment accounts. The contractholder typically can also direct
funds to a general account option in which case we credit interest at rates we determine, subject to certain
minimums. Contractholders also may elect certain enhanced death benefit guarantees, for which they are assessed
a specific charge. Our major sources of revenues from annuities are mortality and expense fees charged to the
contractholder, generally determined as a percentage of the market value of any underlying separate account -
balances, and the excess of investment income over credited interest for funds invested in our general account.

Other Products and Services A
Life and Annuity is focused on the development of other products and distribution relationships that respond to the
affluent and high-net-worth market’s demand for wealth management solutions.
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Executive Benefits. Many of our products are also designed to be used by corporations to fund special deferred
compensation plans and benefit programs for key employees, commonly referred to as executive benefits. We
view these products as a source of growing fee-based business. :

Private Placement Life and Annuity Products. Private placement products are individually customized life and
annuity offerings that include single premium life, second-to-die life and variable annuity products. These
products have minimum deposits of over $500,000, targeting the wealthiest segment of the high-net-worth
market. The average face amount of life insurance policies sold by Philadelphia Financial Group, our private
placement distributor, in 2003 was $21.9 million and the average annuity deposit was $2.8 million.

Underwriting

Insurance underwriting is the process of examining, accepting or rejecting insurance risks, and classifying those
accepted in order to charge appropriate premiums or mortality charges. Underwriting also involves determining
the amount and type of reinsurance approprrate for a particular type of risk. :

We believe we have particular expertise in evaluatlng the underwriting risks relevant to our target market. We
believe this expertise enables us to make appropriate underwriting decisions, including, in some instances, the
issuance of policies on more competitive terms than other insurers would offer. Phoenix Life has a long tradition
of underwriting innovation. Beginning in 1955, we were among the first insurance companies to offer reduced
rates to women. We believe we were the second company to offer reduced rates to non-smokers, beginning in
1967. Our underwriting team includes doctors and other medical staff to ensure, among other things, that we are
focused on current developments in medical technology.

Our underwriting standards for life insurance are intended to result in the issuance of policies that produce ..
mortality experience consistent with the assumptions used in product pricing. The overall profitability of our life
insurance business depends, to a large extent, on the degree to which our mortality experience compares to our
pricing assumptions. Our underwriting is based on our historical mortality experience, as well as on the
experience of the insurance industry and of the general population. We continually compare our underwriting
standards to those of the industry to assist in managing our mortality risk and to stay abreast of industry trends.

Our life insurance underwriters evaluate policy applications on the basis of the information provided by the
applicant and others. We use a variety of methods to evaluate certain policy applications, such as those where the
size of the policy sought is particularly large, or where the applicant is an older individual, has a known medical
impairment or is engaged in a hazardous occupation or hobby. Consistent with industry practice, we require
medical examinations and other tests depending upon the age of the applicant and the size of the proposed policy.

In the executive benefits market, we issue life policies covering multiple lives on a guaranteed issue basis, within
specified limits per life insured, whereby the amount of insurance issued per life on a guaranteed basis is related
to the total number of lives being covered and the particular need for which the product is being purchased.
Guaranteed issue underwriting applies to employees actively at work and product pricing reflects the additional
guaranteed issue underwrmng risk. :

Reserves

We establish and report liabilities for future policy benefits on our consolidated balance sheet to reflect the
obligations under our insurance policies and contracts. Our liability for variable universal life insurance and
universal life insurance policies and contracts is equal to the cumulative account balances, plus additional reserves
we establish for policy riders. Cumulative account balances include deposits plus credited interest, less expense
and mortality charges and withdrawals. Reserves for future policy benefits for whole life policies are calculated
based on actuarial assumptions that include investment ylelds and mortality.




Reinsurance

While we have underwriting expertise and have experienced favorable mortality trends, we believe it is prudent to
spread the risks associated with our life insurance products through reinsurance. As is customary in the life
insurance industry, our reinsurance program is designed to protect us against adverse mortality experience
generally and to reduce the potential loss we might face from a death claim on any one life.

We cede rlsk to other insurers under various agreements that cover 1nd1v1dual life insurance policies. The amount
of risk ceded depends on our evaluation of the specific risk and applicable retention limits. Under the terms of
our reinsurance agreements, the reinsurer agrees to reimburse us for the ceded amount in the event a claim is
incurred. However, we remain liable to our policyholders for ceded insurance if any reinsurer fails to meet its
obligations. Since we bear the risk of nonpayment by one or more of our reinsurers, we cede business to well-

* capitalized, highly rated insurers. While our current retention limit on any one life is $10 million.($12 million on
second-to-die cases), we may cede amounts below those limits on a case-by-case basis depending on the
characteristics of a particular risk. Typically our reinsurance contracts allow us to reassume ceded risks after a
specified period. This right is valuable where our mortality experience is sufﬁc1ently favorable to.make it
financially advantageous for us to reassume the risk rather than continue paying reinsurance premiums.

We reinsure 80% of the mortality risk on a block of policies acquired from Confederation Life Insurance
Company, or Confederation Life, in 1997. We entered into two separate reinsurance agreements in 1998 and
1999 to reinsure a substantial portion of our otherwise retained individual life insurance business. In addition, we
reinsure up to 90% of the mortality risk on some new issues. As of December 31, 2003, we had ceded $77.2
billion in face amount of reinsurance, representing 62.1% of our total face amount of $122.6 b11110n of life
insurance inforce. :

On January 1, 1996, we entered into a reinsurance arrangement that covers 100% of the excess death benefits and
related reserves for most variable annuity policies issued through December 31, 1999, including subsequent
deposits.

The following table lists our five principal life reinsurers, together with the reinsurance recoverables on a
statutory basis as of December 31, 2003, the face amount of life insurance ceded as of December 31, 2003, and
the reinsurers’ A.M. Best ratings.

Reinsurance Face Amount of

Recoverable Life Insurance A.M. Best
Reinsurer Balances Ceded Rating'”
Swiss Re Life & Health America, InC.......ccoveveviviceicniicrircrennen, $ 16.8 million $ 12.6 billion A+
Allianz Life Insurance Co. of North America............c.ccooevveeennnen. $ 5.5 million § 11.6 billion At
AEGON USAD oo $ 16.7 million $ 11.4 billion A+
Employers Reassurance Corporation ............ceeeccreenicinnrenecncrnenns $ 9.0 million $ 8.6 billion A-
RGA Reinsurance COmMpPany .......ccoevvverereereninnmeonennneesirerenicnees $ 3.1 million $ 7.9 billion A+

M AM. Best ratings are as of December 31, 2003.
@ Amounts include cessions to Transamerica Financial Life Insurance Company and Transamerica, both of which are
subsidiaries of AEGON.

Life and Annuity Financial Information

See Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations in this Form 10-K
for Life and Annuity segment financial information.




Asset Management Segment

We conduct activities in Asset Management with a focus on two customer groups — private client and
institutional. Through our private client group, we provide asset management services principally on a
discretionary basis, with products consisting of open-end mutual funds and managed accounts. Managed
accounts include intermediary programs sponsored and distributed by non-affiliated broker-dealers, and direct
managed accounts which are sold and administered by us. These two types of managed accounts generally
require minimum investments of $100,000 and $1 million, respectively. Our private client business also provides
transfer agency, accounting and administrative services to most of our open-end mutual funds.

Through our institutional group, we provide discretionary and non-discretionary investment management services
primarily to corporations, multi-employer retirement funds and foundations, as well as to endowments and special
purpose funds. In addition, we manage closed-end funds and alternative financial products such as structured
finance products. Structured finance products include collateralized obligations such as collateralized debt
obligations, or CDOs, backed by portfolios of public high yield bonds, emerging markets bonds, commercial
mortgage-backed or asset-backed securities.

Affiliated Asset Managers

We offer investment management services through our affiliated asset managers. We provide our affiliated asset
managers with a consolidated platform of distribution and administrative support, thereby allowing each manager
to devote a high degree of focus to investment management activities. On an ongoing basis, we monitor the
quality of the affiliates’ products by assessing their performance, style consistency and the discipline with which
they apply their investment process.




Our affiliated managers, and their respective styles, products and assets under management, are as follows:

Assets Under

. o Management at
Affiliated Advisor/ : . December 31, 2003
Ownership/Location Investment Styles Products (in billions)
Goodwin™" Capital Advisors'), or |[Fixed Income — 'Mutual Funds '
Goodwin / 100% / Multi-Sector [nstitutional Accounts
Hartford, CT Structured Finance Products”
' Phoenix Life General Account $20.6
Seneca Capital Management LLC,|Equiries — Mutual Funds
or Seneca / 68.4% / Growth with Controlled Risk * Sponsored Managed Accounts
San Francisco, CA ﬁiamings-Driven Growth Direct Managed Accounts
Tax Sensitive Growth Enstitutional Accounts
- \Fixed Income — Structured Finance Products - ,
. Value Driven . . 3142
[Kayne Anderson Rudnick FEquities — Sponsored Managed Accounts
Investment Management, LLC, or |Quality at Reasonable Price Direct Managed Accounts
[Kayne Anderson Rudnick / 60.0% / Institutional Accounts
ILos Angeles, CA Mutual Funds $10.3
Duff & Phelps Investment quities — Mutual Funds
Management Co., or DPIM / ITs Sponsored Managed Accounts
100% / Chicago, IL ' Large Cap Value [Direct Managed Accounts
Small Cap Core Institutional Accounts
\Fixed Income — Closed-end Funds
Core $5.2
Engemann Asset Management Equities — . Mutual Funds
Inc., or Engemann / Classic Growth Sponsored Managed Accounts
100% / Pasadena, CA i Direct Managed Accounts | $4.4
OakhurstSWAsset Managers", or [Equities — Mutual Funds
Oakhurst / 100% / Systematic Value
Scotts Valley, CA $2.3
Zweig Fund Group, or Zweig / \Equities/Fixed Income — utual Funds
100% / New York, NY Tactical Asset Allocation Closed-end Funds
Market Neutral $1.4
IWalnut Asset Management LLC, |Eguities — Direct Managed Accounts
or Walnut / 79.4% / Relative Value Institutional Accounts
Philadelphia, PA Fixed Income —
__ [Quality Fixed Income $0.8
Total Assets Under Management $59.2

)
Phoenix Investment Partners.

Asset Management Products

Private Client Products

Goodwin and Oakhurst are divisions of Phoenix Investment Counsel, Inc., an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of

Managed Accounts. We provide investment management services through participation in 52 intermediary
managed account programs sponsored by various broker-dealers such as Merrill Lynch, Morgan Stanley and
Salomon Smith Barney. These programs enable the sponsor’s client to select one or more of Phoenix Investment
Partners’ affiliated asset managers as the provider of discretionary portfolio management services, in return for an
asset-based fee paid by the client to the broker-dealer, which then pays a management fee to us. Seven of these
programs include more than one of our affiliated asset managers. As of December 31, 2003, we managed 57,655
accounts relating to such intermediary managed account programs, representing approximately $10.7 billion of
assets under management. In addition, we offer direct managed accounts, which are individual client accounts
sold and administered by us. We managed 3,615 direct managed accounts representing $4.9 billion of assets




under management.

Mutual Funds. Our affiliated asset managers are investment advisors or sub-advisors to 39 open-end mutual
funds; which had aggregate assets under management of approximately $7.6 billion as of December 31, 2003.
These mutual funds are available primarily to retail investors. Of these funds, 14 are included as investment
choices to purchasers of our variable life and variable annuity products.

Institutional Products ’
Institutional Accounts. We have over 750 institutional clients, consisting primarily of medium-sized pension and
profit sharing plans of corporations, government entities and unions, as well as endowments and foundations,
public and multi-employer retirement funds and other special purpose funds. Our institutional assets under.
management totaled $12.7 billion as of December 31, 2003. :

Closed-End Funds. We manage the assets of five closed-end funds, each of which is traded on the New York
Stock Exchange: DTF Tax-Free Income Inc.; Duff & Phelps Utility and Corporate Bond Trust Inc.; DNP Select
Income Inc.; The Zweig Fund, Inc. and The Zwelg Total Return Fund, Inc. Our closed end fund assets under
management totaled $4 2 billion as of December 31, 2003. :

Structured Finance Products: We manage nine structured finance products, and also act as a sub-advisor to a
structured finance product sponsored by a third party. These products are collateralized obligations backed by
portfolios of high yield bonds, emerging markets bonds and/or asset-backed securities. Our structured bond.
products assets under management totaled $3.6 billion as of December 31, 2003

Life Companies’ General Accounts and Related Assets. Phoenix Investment Partners manages most of the assets -
of the Life Companies’ general accounts, as well as certain assets of Phoenix-related entities such as separate
accounts and non-life subsidiaries. As of December 31, 2003, Phoenix Investment Partners managed $15 5
billion of the Life Companies’ assets
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Asset Managemént Assets under Management

T

The following table presents information regardmg the assets under management by Phoemx Investment Partners

for the years indicated:

Assets Under Management -

(in millions) : ' Lo
TOTAL

DIPOSIES 1.ttt st re etttk en e e et s e
Redemptions and withdrawals...........cccocrerricinniiiiicnicene e
Acquisitions®”® and dispositions:................. v s s sagpass e essafasaens
Performance.........tcccocvvennivi e
Other(z)(s)..........................;................; .....
Change in assets under management
Begmmng balance e, s
ENding balANCe. ... .....ccivoovvoieeereeeeoese oo eess e sessene s
INSTITUTIONAL PRODUCTS '

DepPOSItS ...t SRR
Redemptions and Withdrawals......: 5. eeeeoeeeeeiosheseeres s
Acquisitions’® and dispositions .............tceive

Change in .assets under management.......cc......c..... it RN ST
Beginning balance : . '
Ending balance......... Crerrrvenheee e e s et et reeeteenerreraes et .
PRIVATE CLIENT PRODUCTS P i
Mutual Funds

DIEPOSIES c...veeeveririrreerrree ettt sttt e st et
Redemptions and withdrawals
Acquisitions(4) ............... v o ‘
Performance................... v R et
Change in assets under management........Z....‘._L'. ................................ SO
Beginning balance e
Ending balance ... s
Intermednary Managed Account Programs R S
Deposits............ SR ROV SV s .
Redemptions and Withdrawals...........c..coveeverieininnniereniensissssssssense i,
ACQUISTHONST™ ... e
PErfOIMAaNCe .....coviuvuiesieeensmneinesnarmenscandeneenns :

Change in assets under management....

Beginning balanee ...........coccvereeenni SR regeirens e reEeeerereereens ey .

ENding DAIANCE.............oovvuevereeriiereevieeese s sses s s essassssesnens
Direct Managed. Accounts

Deposits ....cccverrierrcreircnnie e JR, e e, et .
Redemptions and w1thdrawals . ‘
Acquisitions ™ . et S
PerfOrmance..........o. vl oes e e, e, s

Change in assets under management ...............................................................
Beginning Balance ..o oeviicrienre e sesstenssssesesassesenns
Endmg balance...........cocooeirievnrcc e s

O Includes assets of $0.7 billion related to the Walnuit acquisition'in 2001,
2)

Includes assets of $0.9 billion related to the Phoenix initial public offering in 2001.

© Includes assets of $0.1 billion from Capital West, now part of DPIM, in 2001.

' Includes assets of $7.8 billion from Kayne Anderson Rudnick in 2002.
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As of December 31, ‘.

2003 2002 2001
$ 7,0325 $ 10,1344 $ 9,528.7
(8,375.5) (9,950.3) (9,069.7)
- :7,755.5 854.4°
5,788.1 (7,863.2) (7,254.5)
7508 _1,789.0 1,438.4 .
5,195.9 1,865.4 (4,502.7)
53,9555 . 52,090.1 56,592.8
$ 59,151.4 $ 53,9555 . $ 52,090.1
$ 29749 $ 43804 $ 4,989.0
(3,452.2) (4,480.0) (3,766.9)
1,507.7 1059
2,502.3 (2,773.1) (1,152.2)
(579.2) 1 1,789.0 ©1,438.4
1,445.8 © . 4240 1,614.2
o 324542 - 32,0302 . 30,416.0 -
$:33,900.0 - $ 324542 - $ 32,0302
$ 1,789.6 $ 13328 $ 1,8178
(2,266.7) (2,754.0) (2,756.4)

- 13335 -
1,748.0 (1,811.8) (2,556.5)
1,2709° (2,899.5) (3,495.1)
18,322.1 11,221.6 ©14,716.7
$  9,593.0 $ 83221 $ 11,2216
$ 2,064.2 $ 411700 $ 2,607.7
(2,362.1) - (2,317.9) 7 (2,316.0)
- 47235 10.7
.1,590.3 . (2,903.1) (2,886.9)
1,292.4 3,619.5 . (2,584.5)-
9,439.1 5819.6 . 8,404.1
$ 10,7315 $  9,439.1 $ 5,819.6
$  203.8 $. 3042 $ 1142
(294.5) . (398.4) (230.4)
o 1,190.8 737.8
(52.5) ©(375.2) (658.9)
1,330.0 -- -
1,186.8 721.4 (37.3)
3,740.1 3,018.7 3,056.0
$  4,926.9 $ 3,740 $ 3,0187




® Includes net change in the Life Companies’ general account assets.
©®  Includes reclassification of certain Seneca funds from institutional products to direct managed of $1.3 billion.

Asset Management Financial Information

See Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations in this Form 10-K
for Asset Management segment financial information.

Competition

We face significant competition from a wide variety of financial institutions, including insurance companies and
other asset management companies, as well as from proprietary products offered by our distribution sources such
as banks, broker-dealers and financial planning firms. Our competitors include larger and, in some cases, more
highly-rated insurance companies and other financial services companies. Many competitors offer similar
products, use similar distribution sources, offer less expensive products, have greater access to key distribution
channels and have greater resources than us. o

Competition in our businesses is based on several factors including ratings, investment performance, access to
distribution channels, service to advisors and their clients, product features, fees charged and commissions paid.

As we continue to focus on the development of our non-affiliated distribution system, we increasingly must
compete with other providers of life insurance, annuity and private client products to attract and maintain
relationships with productive distributors that have the ability to sell our products. In particular, our ability to
attract distributors for our products could be adversely affected if for any reason our products became less
competitive or concerns arose about our asset quality or ratings.

Distribution

We target a broad range of distribution relationships with advisors and distribution entities that we consider to
have exceptional access to our target market. We seek to build relationships with distributors who are, or who
have access to, advisors to the affluent and high-net-worth market.

Our distribution strategy is to increase sales of profitable products by increasing the number of producers selling
Phoenix products within existing relationships, by offering a greater array of products through existing
distribution sources and by developing new relationships.

During 2002 and 2003, we focused on increasing the number of producers selling Phoenix products within
existing relationships. In 2003, over 2,600 new producers wrote life insurance business with us, over 2,300 new
producers wrote annuity business with us and over 9,100 new producers placed asset management business with
us. ‘

We also engage in collaborative account development among our life insurance, annuity and asset management
wholesalers through joint marketing presentations and specialized services to advisors. We also believe having
many of the same investment choices available in each of our product lines contributes to the success of our
strategy. '

Non-affiliated Distribution
We began to use non-affiliated distribution in 1954, primarily by selling life insurance products through agents of

other insurance companies. For many years, non-affiliated distribution has represented a significant portion of
our sales and in recent years we increased our emphasis on this distribution source.
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Since late 1999, we have significantly strengthened our wholesaling teams, in order to enhance our relationships
with distributors in each of our product areas. As of December 31, 2003, we employed 69 life insurance
wholesalers, 18 variable annuity wholesalers and 20 asset management wholesalers, compared to 42, one and 25,
respectively, as of December 31, 1999.

During 2003, 2002 and 2001, 85%, 89% and 81%, respectively, of total life insurance sales, as measured by new
annualized and single premiums, were from non-affiliated distribution sources. Annuity sales through non-
affiliated distribution accounted for 84%, 87% and 80% of gross annuity deposits during 2003, 2002 and 2001,
respectively. Asset management sales through non-affiliated distribution accounted for 99% of sales in all three
years.

State Farm. In March 2001, we entered into an agreement with a subsidiary of State Farm Mutual Automobile
Insurance Company, or State Farm, to provide our life and annuity products and related services to State Farm’s
affluent and high-net-worth customers, through qualified State Farm agents. We are the only third-party provider
of life and annuity products and services at State Farm. By the end of 2003, we had trained and certified
approximately 8,950, or 87%, of State Farm’s approximately 10,300 securities licensed agents to sell Phoenix
products. Our relationship with State Farm gives us potential access to approximately 30% of the high-net-worth
households in the U.S. For 2003, State Farm ranked second among our distributors in the sale of life insurance
and third in the sale of annuity products.

National and Regional Broker-Dealers. National and regional broker-dealers are brokerage firms that engage
financial advisors as employees rather than as independent contractors. To meet the evolving wealth management
needs of their customers, national and regional broker-dealers offer products from third-party providers such as
Phoenix. Simultaneously, many of these firms are seeking to reduce the number of relationships they have with
product providers in favor of those that offer a range of products together with services designed to support
advisors’ sales efforts. We believe our ability to offer a variety of life insurance, annuity and asset management
products and services positions us to benefit from these trends. We have relationships across all product lines in
many important distribution outlets that target the high-net-worth market including UBS, A.G. Edwards and Merrill
Lynch.

Advisor Groups. The recent industry trend toward affiliations among small independent financial advisory firms
has led to advisor groups becoming a distinct class of distributors. We believe we have a particularly strong
position as a provider of life insurance products through Partners Marketing Group, Inc., or PartnersFinancial,
which, since 1999, has been an important component of the National Financial Partners, or NFP, organization.
Overall life sales with NFP grew 24% in 2002 and an additional 6% in 2003.

Insurance Companies. Insurance companies have been moving their agents into an advisor/planner role, resulting
in a need to provide their agents, particularly their top producers, with a wider selection of life insurance products
to sell. Insurance companies responded to this need, in part, by negotiating arrangements with third-party
providers, including other insurance companies. We have distribution relationships with financial services
providers such as AXA Financial Inc., or AXA, and its brokerage outlet for internal producers, AXA Network.
Life sales through AXA Network almost doubled in 2003. In addition, we continue to maintain relationships with
individual agents of other companies and independent agents.

Financial Planning Firms. Financial planning firms are brokerage firms that engage financial advisors as
independent contractors rather than as employees. Financial planning firms have begun to expand their offerings
to include wealth preservation and transfer products. To capitalize on this trend, we establish relationships with
the financial planning firm, and then build relationships with the individual advisors within the firm. This
approach permits us to maximize the number of individual registered representatives who potentially may sell our
products.

Emerging Distribution Sources. Philadelphia Financial Group offers private placement life and annuity products
through a variety of distribution sources with access to the high-net-worth market including family offices,
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financial institutions, accountants and attorneys. We also offer our life and annuity products through non-
traditional sources such as private banks, private banking groups within commercial banks and regional and
commercial banks that are focused on their high-net-worth client base. -

Affiliated Distribution

Our affiliated retail distribution channel consists primarily of Phoenix Life career producers. Substantially all of
our career producers are licensed securities representatives of our wholly-owned broker-dealer; WS Griffith. Our
career producers principally sell our Life Companies’ products, but may sell the products of other companies as
well. In 2003, our Life Companies’ products represented 64% of its total variable annuity deposits and 62% of its
total variable universal life premiums. WS Griffith has over 700 affiliated retail producers.

Our affiliated distribution capability also includes Main Street Management Company, a wholly-owned broker-
dealer with approximately 250 registered representatives and a strong focus on variable products and mutual
funds.

Institutional Products Distribution

We also have an Institutional marketing group, which markets our institutional product offering to consultants and
other institutional clients. The group also provides coordinated marketing support and services. These shared
services are complemented by experienced institutional salespeople and client service professmnals at several of
our affiliated asset managers. : -

We direct our institutional marketing efforts primarily toward consultants who are retained by institutional
investors to assist in competitive reviews of potential investment managers. These consultants recommend
investment managers to their institutional clients based on their review of investment managers’ performance
histories and investment styles.: We maintain relationships with these consultants and provide information and
materials to them in order to facilitate their review of our funds.

Support and Services

We believe we have a competitive advantage through the service and support we provide our distributors;
including:

e customized advice on estate planning, charitable giving planning, executive benefits and retirement
planning, provided by a staff of professionals with specialized expertise in the advanced application of
life insurance and variable annuity products. This staff includes five attorneys with an average of
approximately twenty years’ experience, who combine their advice with tailored presentations,
educational materials and specimen legal documents; :

e market research and education programs designed to help advisors better understand which financial
products the affluent and high-net-worth market demands. We assist advisors in marketing to specific
customer segments such as senior corporate executives, business owners and high-net-worth households;

e nationwide teams of life, annuity and asset management product specialists who provide education and
sales support to distributors and who can act as part of the advisory team for case design and technical
support; :

¢ asset management and investment allocation strategies, including our Complementary Investment

Analysis tool, which identifies investment options offered both by us and by third parties that are suitable
for an individual’s allocation needs;
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e an underwriting team with significant éxperience in evaluating the financial and medical underwriting
risks associated with high face-value policies and afftuent and high-net-worth individuals; and

e internet-accessible information that makes it easier for our distributors to do business with us, including
interactive product illustrations, educational and sales tools, and online access to forms, marketing
materials and pohcyholder account information.

Non-operating Segments

Venture Capital Segment

We have invested in the venture capital markets for over 25 years through Phoenix Life’s investment portfolio.
The Venture Capital segment represented 1% of total investments and cash and cash equivalents as of December
31,2003 and 2002. The carrying value of partnership investments in the Venture Capital segment was $196.3
million as of December 31, 2003. The segment does not include venture capital mvestments held within our
closed block. :

Our venture capital investments are limited partnership interests in venture capital funds, leveraged buyout funds
and other private equity partnerships spensored and managed by third parties. We refer to all of these types of
investments as venture capital. We currently have 74 partnership investments through 44 sponsors in our Venture
Capital segment. We believe our long- standing relationships and history of consistent participation with many
well-established venture capital sponsors gives us preferred access to attractlve venture capital opportunities.
These assets are investments of Phoenix Life.

Historically, we viewed our venture capital investments as an opportunity to enhance returns on our participating
life products. In the past, we allocated between 1% and 2% of annual investable cash flow to venture capital
investments. Since 2002, we have made new venture capital commitments only in our closed block. In addition,
in February 2003, we sold a 50% interest in certain of our venture capital partnerships to an outside party and
transferred the remaining 50% interest in those partnerships to our closed block. The carrying value of the
partnerships sold and transferred totaled $52.2 million after realizing a loss of $19.4 million ($5.1 million
recorded in 2002 and $14.3 million recorded in 2003). The unfunded commitments of the partnerships sold and
transferred totaled $27.2 million; the outside party and the closed block will each fund half of these commitments.

See Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations in this Form 10-K
for Venture Capital segment financial information.

Corporate and Other S egment

The Corporate and Other segment includes indebtedness; unallocated assets, liabilities and expenses; and certain
businesses not of sufficient scale to report independently. Corporate and Other also includes certain international
operations. As of December 31, 2003, we had a total of $139.8 million in these international holdings. Among
our international holdings is Aberdeen Asset Management PLC, or Aberdeen, a Scottish investment management
company with institutional and retail clients in the United Kingdom, as well as in continental Europe, Asia,
Australia and the U.S. At December 31, 2003, our ownership in Aberdeen stock was 16.2%. See Management’s
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations and Note 5 of the consolidated
financial statements in this Form 10-K for additional information.

See Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations in this Form 10-K
for Corporate and Other segment financial information.
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General Development of Business

PNX was incorporated in Delaware in 2000. Our principal executive offices are located at One American Row,
Hartford, Connecticut 06102-5056. Our telephone number is (860) 403-5000. Our website is located at
PhoenixWealthManagement.com. (This URL is intended to be an inactive textual reference only. It is not
intended to be an active hyperlink to our website. The information on our website is not, and is not intended to
be, part of this Form 10-K and is not incorporated into this report by reference.)

Phoenix Mutual Insurance Company was organized in Connecticut in 1851. In 1992, in connection with its
merger with Home Life Insurance Company, or Home Life, the company redomiciled to New York and changed
its name to Phoenix Home Life Mutual Insurance Company, or Phoenix Home Life.

On June 25, 2001, the effective date of its demutualization, Phoenix Home Life converted from a mutual life
insurance company to a stock life insurance company, became a wholly-owned subsidiary of PNX and changed
its name to Phoenix Life Insurance Company. All policyholder membership interests in the mutual company
were extinguished on the effective date. At the same time, Phoenix Investment Partners became an indirect

wholly-owned subsidiary of PNX.

In addition, on June 25, 2001, PNX completed its initial public offering, or IPO, in which 48.8 million shares of
common stock were issued at a price of $17.50 per share. Net proceeds from the IPO were $807.9 million, which
was contributed to Phoenix Life, as required under the plan of reorganization. On July 24, 2001, Morgan Stanley
& Co. Incorporated exercised its right to purchase 1,395,900 additional shares of the common stock of PNX at the
[PO price of $17.50 per share less underwriter’s discount. Net proceeds of $23.2 million were contributed to
Phoenix Life. Our shares outstanding were subsequently reduced through share repurchases through October

2002.

The following chart illustrates our current corporate structure as of December 31, 2003.

FTHE PHOENIX COMPANIES, INC,

[ T [ i
100% 100% 100% 100%
PHOENIX LIFE PHOENIX INVESTMENT PHOENIX PHOENIX NATIONAL
INSURANCE MANAGEMENT COMPANY, DISTRIBUTION TRUST HOLDING
COMPANY INC. HoLDING Company™) COMPANY

100%

PM HOLDINGS, INC.

f
Various %os

100%

PHOENIX INVESTMENT PARTNERS, LTD.

!
Various %s

|

OTHER DOMESTIC AND FOREIGN SUBSIDIARIES

OTHER DOMESTIC AND FOREIGN SUBSIDIARIES

)" Subsidiaries of Phoenix Distribution Holding Company include Main Street Management Company and WS Griffith

Advisors, Inc.

At December 31, 2003, we employed approximately 1,900 people. We believe our relations with our employees

are good.
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Item 2. Properties

Our executive headquarters consist of our main office building at One American Row and two other buildings in
Hartford, Connecticut. We own these buildings and occupy most of the space contained in them. In addition to
these properties, we own offices in Enfield, Connecticut and East Greenbush, New York for use in the operation
of our business. In February 2004, we announced the execution of an agreement to sell our offices in Enfield,
which sale is expected to close during the second quarter of 2004, Business functions from Enfield will be
relocated to our existing Hartford offices and, if necessary, another facility in the Hartford, Connecticut area. We
also lease office space within and out of the United States of America as needed for our operations, including use
by our sales force.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings

General

We are regularly involved in litigation, both as a defendant and as a plaintiff. The litigation naming us as a
defendant ordinarily involves our activities as an insurer, employer, investment advisor, investor or taxpayer.
Several current proceedings are discussed below. In addition, state regulatory bodies, the Securities and
Exchange Commission, or SEC, the National Association of Securities Dealers, Inc., and other regulatory bodies
regularly make inquiries of us and, from time to time, conduct examinations or investigations concerning our
compliance with, among other things, insurance laws, securities laws, and laws governing the activities of broker-
dealers. For example, during 2003 the New York State Insurance Department began its routine quinquennial
financial and market conduct examination of Phoenix Life and its New York domiciled life insurance subsidiary
and several SEC offices conducted routine reviews of certain Phoenix investment advisors, broker-dealers and
close-end funds. The New York exam and one of these SEC exams are continuing; the other SEC exams
conducted in 2003 have been completed and closed.  We continue to actively cooperate with both regulators.

Recently, there has been a significant increase in federal and state regulatory activity relating to financial services
companies, particularly mutual fund companies. These regulatory inquiries have focused on a number of mutual
fund issues, including late-trading and valuation issues. Our mutual funds, which we offer directly to retail
investors and qualified retirement plans as well as through the separate accounts associated with certain of our
variable life insurance policies and variable annuity products, entitle us to impose restrictions on frequent
exchanges and trades in the mutual funds and on transfers between sub-accounts and variable products. We, like
many others in the financial services industry, have received requests for information from the SEC and state
authorities, in each case requesting documentation and other information regarding various mutual fund
regulatory issues. We continue to cooperate fully with these regulatory agencies in responding to these requests. -
In addition, representatives from the SEC’s Office of Compliance Inspections and Examinations are conducting
compliance examinations of our mutual fund, variable annuity and mutual fund transfer agent operations.

A number of companies have announced settlements of enforcement actions with various regulatory agencies,
primarily the SEC and the New York Attorney General’s Office. While no such action has been initiated against
us, it is possible that one or more regulatory agencies may pursue an action against us in the future.

These types of lawsuits and regulatory actions may be difficult to assess or quantify, may seek recovery of
indeterminate amounts, including punitive and treble damages, and the nature and magnitude of their outcomes
may remain unknown for substantial periods of time. While it is not feasible to predict or determine the ultimate
outcome of all pending investigations and legal proceedings or to provide reasonable ranges of potential losses,
we believe that their outcomes are not likely, either individually or in the aggregate, to have a material adverse
effect on our consolidated financial condition, after consideration of available insurance and reinsurance and the
provisions made in our consolidated financial statements. However, given the large or indeterminate amounts
sought in certain of these matters and litigation’s inherent unpredictability, it is possible that an adverse outcome
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in certain matters could, from time to time, have a material adverse effect on our results of operations or cash
flows.

Discontinued Reinsurance Business

During 1999, our Life Companies placed their remaining group accident and health reinsurance business into run-
off, adopting a formal plan to terminate the related contracts as early as contractually permitted and not entering
into any new contracts. As part of the decision to discontinue these reinsurance operations, we reviewed the run-
off block and estimated the amount and timing of future net premiums, claims and expenses. We also purchased
finite aggregate excess-of-loss reinsurance, or finite reinsurance, to further protect us from unfavorable results
from this discontinued business.

We have established reserves for claims and related expenses that we expect to pay on our discontinued group
accident and health reinsurance business. These reserves are a net present value amount that is based on currently
known facts and estimates about, among other things, the amount of insured losses and expenses that we believe
we will pay, the period over which they will be paid, the amount of reinsurance we believe we will collect under
our finite reinsurance, the amounts we believe we will collect from our retrocessionaires and the likely legal and -
administrative costs of winding down the business.

Our total reserves, including coverage available from our finite reinsurance and reserves for amounts recoverable
from retrocessionaires, were $185.0 million and $155.0 million as of December 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively.
Our total amounts recoverable from retrocessionaires related to paid losses were $165.0 million and $65.0 million
as of December 31, 2003 and 2002, respectlvely We did not recognize any galns or losses during the years 2003,
2002 and 2001.

Our Life Companies are involved in disputes relating to reinsurance arrangements under which they reinsured
group accident and health risks. The first of these involves contracts for reinsurance of the life and health
carveout components of workers compensation insurance arising out of a reinsurance pool created and formerly
managed by Unicover Managers, Inc., or Unicover. In one of those, the arbitration panel issued its decision on
October 8, 2002 and confirmed the award on January 4, 2003. The financial implications of this decision are
consistent with our Life Companies’ current financial provisions. In our capacity as a retrocessionaire of the
Unicover business, our Life Companies had an extensive program of our own reinsurance in place to protect us
from financial exposure to the risks we had assumed. We are currently involved in separate arbitration
proceedings with three of our own retrocessionaires, which are seeking on various grounds to avoid paying any
amounts to us or have reserved rights. In addition, Phoenix Life is involved in arbitrations and negotiations
pending in the United Kingdom between multiple layers of reinsurers and reinsureds relating to transactions in
which it participated involving certain personal accident excess-of-loss business reinsured in the London market.
See Note 17 to our consolidated financial statements in this Form 10-K for more information.

In light of our provisions for our discontinued reinsurance operations through the establishment of reserves and
the finite reinsurance, based on currently available information, we do not expect these operations, including the
proceedings described above, to have a material adverse effect on our consolidated financial position. However,
given the large and/or indeterminate amounts involved and the inherent unpredietability of litigation, it is not
possible to predict with certainty the ultimate impact on us of all pending matters or of our discontinued
reinsurance operations.

Pollcyholder Lawsuit Challenging the Plan of Reorgamzatlon

A lawsult Andrew Kertesz v. Phoenix Home Life Mut. Ins. Co., et al., was filed on April 16, 2001, in the Supreme
Court of the State of New York for New York County challenging Phoemx Life’s reorganization and the adequacy’
of the information provided to policyholders regarding the plan of reorganization. The plaintiff sought to maintain a
class action on behalf of a putative class consisting of the eligible policyholders of Phoenix Life as of December 18,
2000, the date the plan of reorganization was adopted. Plaintiff sought-compensatory damages for losses allegedly
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sustained by the class as a result of the demutualization, punitive damages and other relief. The defendants named in
the lawsuit include Phoenix Life and PNX and their directors, as well as Morgan Stanley & Co. Incorporated,
financial advisor to Phoenix Life in connection with the plan of reorganization. A motion to dismiss the claims
asserted in this lawsuit was granted. Although the plamtlff filed a notice of appeal he farled to perfect the appeal by
the deadlme ;o 4 . : .

Item 4. Submlssmn of Matters to a Vote of SecurltLHolders

No matter was submitted to a vote of our security holders during the fourth quarter of the fiscal year covered by
this report.

: PART IT

Item S. Market of Registrant’s Common Equity and Related StoekLholder Matt‘ers‘

Market | o - | |

Shares of our common stock trade on the New York Stock Exchange under the ticker symbol “PNX”.
Unregistered Shares

We issued the following shares of common stock to eligible policyholders of Phoenix Life, effective as of June
25, 2001, in connection with Phoenix Life’s demutualization on that date: 56,174,373 shares in 2001; 4,237 shares
in 2002; and 1,853 shares (to 16 persons) in 2003. We issued these shares to policyholders in exchange for their
membership interests without registration under the Securities Act of 1933 in reliance on the exemption under
Section 3(a)(10) of the Securities Act of 1933.

In 2003, we also issued 51,855 restricted stock units, or RSUs, to 10 of our independent directors, without
registration under that act in reliance on the exemption under Regulation D for accredited investors. Each RSU is
potentially convertible into one share of our common stock.

Stock Price

The following table presents the intraday high and low prices for our common stock on the New York Stock
Exchange for the years 2003 and 2002. The closing price of our common stock at December 31, 2003 was
$12.04.

2003 2002
High Low High Low
First QUAarier.......eoveeevriiie ettt $ 9.25 $ 6.03 3 19.75 $ 16.84
Second QUATET .........ovvviviriiiceerseeree v $ 9.80 $ 6.95 $ 20.25 $ 15.50
Third QUarter.......ccccoocveviieeieeeecee e e $ 12.10 $ 8.60 $ 18.01 $ 13.30
Fourth QUarter..........coooeccveevieeeiniiiiereee e e ) 12.65 $ 10.26 $ 13.75 $ 6.50

Dividends
In 2003 and 2002, we paid a dividend of $0.16 per share to shareholders of record on June 14, 2003 and June 13,

2002, respectively. For a discussion of restrictions on our ability to pay dividends, see the Liquidity and Capital
Resources section of Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.
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Ttem 6. Selected Financial Data

Our selected historical consolidated financial data as of and for each of the five years ended December 31, 2003
follows ($ amounts in millions, except earnings per share). We derived the data for the years 2003, 2002 and 2001 .
from our consolidated financial statements in this Form 10-K. We derived the data for the years 2000 and 1999
from audited consolidated financial statements not in this Form 10-K. Also, we have restated or reclassified
certain amounts for prior years to conform with 2003 presentation as further described in Note 1 of our
consolidated financial statements in this Form 10-K. Prior to June 25, 2001, Phoenix Life was the parent
company of our consolidated group. In connection with its demutualization, Phoenix Life became a subsidiary
and PNX became the parent company of our consolidated group.

We prepared the following financial data, other than statutory data, in conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles, or GAAP. We derived the statutory data from the Annual Statements of our Life
Companies filed with insurance regulatory authorities and prepared it in accordance with statutory accounting
practices, which vary in certain respects from GAAP.

You should read the following in conjunction with Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations and our consolidated financial statements in this Form 10-K.
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Income Statement Data‘”

Premiums......ooveeveeviieeninnreciceireee e seenees
Insurance and investment product fees........
Net investment iNCOME ........coovvveerirererverivnens
Net realized investment gains (losses).........
Total revenues............ccccevvereernvvinneniinnes
Total benefits and expenses.......................

Income (loss) from continuing operations...
Loss from discontinued operations,
net of income taxes™ .........ccooovrerrvvrrninnnnn.
Income (loss) before cumulative effect of
accounting changes...........ocoeevcenrnnnns
Cumulative effect of accounting changes™.

Net income (1088)...ccoorveevriinererireenreierenenen

Basic and Diluted Earnings Per Share
Income (loss) from continuing operations

Net income (1058)........coovoverivreersiiiriinie

)

Dividends per share........c..ccoceccovvccrnnne

Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges
Ratio of earnings to fixed charges® ............
Supplemental ratio of earnings to
fixed charges — including interest credited
on policyholder contract balances®...........

Balance Sheet Data
Cash and general account investments ........
Total assets.......coeverveenennee eerrnr et
Indebtedness .....ooooovvivveieiniiceeeee e
Total Habilities...........covevvieiiveceiciiieeereenes
Minority interest in net assets of
consolidated subsidiaries .........c..ocevevennnnn
Total stockholders’ equity ........cccccoeererennnn

Third-Party Assets Under Management

Consolidated Statutory Data
Premiums and deposits .....c...ccooveriencecrennns

Net income (l0S8)..ovvevivernerereciinreeniennens

Capital and surplus™ .........cc.coooivvrirrirrranns
Asset valuation teserve (AVR)® ...
Capital, surplus and AVR ......ccoooiiiennns

M

2002 2001

2003 Restated Restated 2000 1999
$ 1,042.2 $ 1,082.0 $ 1,112.7 $ 1,147.4 $ 1,175.7
565.3 560.5 543.2 ©624.5 569.1
1,107.4 947.7 892.8 1,141.0 961.3
(100.5) (133.9) (84.9) 89.2 75.8
$ 2,614.4 $ 24563 $ 2,463.8 $ 3,002.1 $ 2,781.9
$ 2,624.6 $ 2,640.8 $ 2,709.1 $ 2,829.6 $ 2,502.0
$ (41) $ (140.7) $ (1473) $ 960 $ 1662
@1 (13 (2.5) a2.7) (77.0)
(6.2) (142.0) (149.8) 83.3 89.2

-- (130.3) (65.4) - --
§ 62y $§ (2723 8§ (2152 8§ 83.3 S 89.2
$ (004 $ (44 $  (14) $ 092 0§ 159
$ (0.07) $ (2.78) $ (2.06) $ 0.80 $ 0.85

$ 016 $  0.16 $ - $ - $ -
0.7 - - 4.3 7.0
0.9 0.5 0.2 1.8 2.6
$17,229.2 $16,812.8 $ 14,4004 - $12,767.5 $11,768.8
$ 27,559.2 $ 25,2359 $ 22,535.9 $ 20,313.5 $ 20,283.9
3 639.0 $ 644.3 $ 599.3 $ 425.1 $ 4994
$ 25,580.0 $ 23,381.0 $20,219.0 $ 18,3354 $ 18,430.9
$ 314 $ 281 $ 8.8 $ 1369 - $  100.1
$ 1,947.8 $ 1,826.8 $ 2,307.8 $ 1,840.9 $ 1,756.0
$ 42,841.6 $ 38,568.2 $ 38,604.3 $ 44,056.8 $ 52,082.1
$ 3,364.9 $ 3,919.7 $ 3,1448 $ 2,344.8 $ 2,330.2
$  (260) $ (1307 $ {66.0) $ 2661 $ 1313
$ 7624 $ 8614 $ 1,149.8 $ 1,322.8- $ 1,054.1
200.0 147.8 2234 560.4 373.2
$ 962.4 $ 1,009.2 $ 1,373.2 $ 1,883.2 $ 14273

For a summary of our significant accounting policies, refer to the notes to our consolidated financial statements in this

Form 10-K. Certain 2002 and 2001 amounts have been revised from amounts previously reported. See Note 1 to our
consolidated financial statements in this Form 10-K for additional information.

@)

During 2003, we signed a definitive purchase and sale agreement to sell Phoenix National Trust Company to a third

party. This sale is expected to close in the first quarter of 2004. The financial statement effect of this transaction is
immaterial to our consolidated financial statements.
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During 1999, Phoenix Home Life discontinued the operations of three of its businesses which in prior years were
reflected as the following reportable business segments: reinsurance operations, group life and health insurance
operations and real estate management operations.

The discontinuation of these businesses resulted from the sales of several operations and the implementation of plans to
withdraw from the remaining businesses. These transactions do not affect the comparability of the financial data. The
assets and liabilities of the discontinued operations have been excluded from the assets and liabilities of continuing
operations and separately identified in the balance sheet data. Additional information on discontinued operations is
included in Note 14 to our consolidated financial statements included in this Form 10-K.

During 2002, we recognized a cumulative effect adjustment of an accounting change for goodwill and other intangible
assets. Effective January 1, 2002, we adopted the new accounting standard for goodwill and other intangible assets,
including amounts reflected in equity method investments. This adoption resulted in a cumulative effect adjustment of
$130.3 million (after income taxes of $11.4 million). Additional information on this accounting change is-included in
Notes 1 and 4 to our consolidated financial statements in this Form 10-K.

During 2001, we recognized cumulative effect adjustments of accounting changes for venture capital partnerships,
derivative instruments and securitized financial instruments.

In 2001, we changed our method of applying the equity method of accounting for our venture capital partnerships. We
recorded a charge of $48.8 million (after income taxes of $26.3 million) representing the cumulative effect of this
accounting change on the fourth quarter of 2000. The cumulative effect was based on the actual fourth quarter 2000
financial results as reported by the partnerships. Additional information on this accounting change is included in Notes 1
and 5 to our consolidated financial statements in this Form 10-K.

Effective January 1, 2001, we adopted a new accounting pronouncement for derivative instruments. This adoption
resulted in a cumulative effect adjustment of $3.9 million (after income taxes of $2.1 million). Additional information
on this accounting change is included in Notes 1 and 9 to our consolidated financial statements in this Form 10-K.

Effective April 1, 2001, we adopted a new accounting pronouncement for recognition of interest income and impairment
on certain investments. This pronouncement requires investors in certain asset-backed securities to record changes in
their estimated yield on a prospective basis and to apply specific valuation methods to these securities for an other-than-
temporary decline in value. Upon adoption, we recorded a $20.5 million charge to net income as a cumulative effect of
accounting change, net of income taxes. Additional information on this accounting change is included in Notes 1 and 5
to our consolidated financial statements in this Form 10-K. :

We calculated earnings per share for each of the three years from 1999 through 2001 on a pro forma basis, based on
104.6 million weighted-average shares outstanding. The pro forma weighted-average shares outstanding calculation for
2001 is based on the weighted-average shares outstandlng for the period from the demutualization and IPO to the end of
the year.

Due to- our losses during 2003, 2002 and 2001, the ratio of earnings to fixed charges for those years was less than 1:1.
We would need $13.3 million, $112.3 million and $131.6 million in additional earnings for the years 2003, 2002 and

2001, respectively, to achieve a 1:1 ‘coverage ratio.

Due to our losses during 2003, 2002 and 2001, the ratio coverages, including interest credited on policyholder contract

balances, were less than 1:1. We would need $13.3 million, $112.3 million and $131.6 million in additional earnings for

the years 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively, to achieve a 1:1 coverage ratio. -

In accordance with accounting practices prescribed by the New York State Insurance Department, Phoenix Life’s capital
and surplus includes $175.0 million principal amount of surplus notes outstanding.

The AVR is a statutory reserve intended to mitigate changes to the balance sheet as a result of fluctuations in asset
values.
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Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENT

The Jollowing discussion may contain forward-looking statements within the meaning of the Private Securities
Litigation Reform Act of 1995. The company intends these forward-looking statements to be covered by the safe
harbor provisions of the federal securities laws relating to forward-looking statements. These include statements
relating to trends in, or representing management’s beliefs about, the company’s future strategies, operations and
financial results, as well as other statements including words such as “anticipate,” “believe,” “plan,”
“estimate,” “expect,” “intend,” “may,” “should” and other similar expressions. Forward-looking statements
are made based upon management’s current expectations and beliefs concerning trends and future developments
and their potential effects on the company. They are not guarantees of future performance. Actual results may
differ materially from those suggested by forward-looking statements as a result of risks and uncertainties which
include, among others: (i) changes in general economic conditions, including changes in interest and currency
exchange rates and the performance of financial markets; (ii) heightened competition, including with respect to
pricing, entry of new competitors and the development of new products and services by new and existing
competitors; (iii) the company’s primary reliance, as a holding company, on dividends and other payments from
its subsidiaries to meet debt payment obligations, particularly since the company’s insurance subsidiaries’ ability
to pay dividends is subject to regulatory restrictions; (iv) regulatory, accounting or tax changes that may affect
the cost of, or demand for, the products or services of the company’s subsidiaries, (v) downgrades in financial
strength ratings of the company’s subsidiaries or in its credit ratings, (vi) discrepancies between actual claims
experience and assumptions used in setting prices for the products of insurance subsidiaries and establishing the
liabilities of such subsidiaries for future policy benefits and claims relating to such products, (vii) movements in
the equity markets that affect our investment results, including those from venture capital, the fees we earn from
assets under management and the demand for our variable products; (viii) the company’s success in achieving
planned expense reductions; and (ix) other risks and uncertainties described in any of the company’s filings with
the SEC. The company undertakes no obligation to update or revise publicly any forward looking statement,
whether as a result of new mformatzon Sfuture events or otherwise.

e

PIANTS i

RISKS RELATED TO OUR BUSINESS

Poor performance of the equity markets could adversely affect sales and assets under management of our
asset management, variable universal life and variable annuity products, as well as the performance of our
venture capital segment and potential future pension plan funding requirements.

While in 2003 the U.S. equity markets experienced strong growth, this growth was preceded by more than two
years of substantial declines. From April 1, 2000 through December 31, 2002, the Nasdaq Composite Index and
the Standard & Poor’s 500 Index fell 70.79% and 41.29%, respectively. These market declines were
accompanied by increased volatility. ‘

There are four ways in which market declines and Volatlllty have affected, or have the potential to affect, us
negatively.

o First, significant market volatility or declines may cause potential purchasers of our products to refrain
from investing, and current investors to withdraw from the markets or reduce their level of investment.
We cannot estimate the impact of prior market declines on our sales.

¢ Second, because the revenues of our asset management and variable products businesses are, to a large
extent, based on fees related to the value of assets under our management, the poor performance of the
equity markets in 2000, 2001 and 2002 limited our fee revenues by reducing the value of the assets we
manage. Our assets under management at December 31, 2002 were 8.4% less than at December 31, 2000.
We could experience increasing surrenders and redemptions if equity markets perform poorly again. The
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possibility of declines in assets under management is heightened by the fact that, as of December 31,
2003, approximately 28% of our variable universal life insurance assets under management excluding our
private placement business, and approximately 56% of our variable annuity assets under management
excluding our private placement business, were not subject to any surrender penalties. The surrender
charges applicable to our variable universal life insurance policies and variable annuities typically decline
over a period of years and generally expire after 10 years. Moreover, surrenders of life insurance policies
and annuities require faster amortization of deferred policy acquisition costs, which would reduce our
profitability.

o Third, returns on venture capital investments are correlated with the performance of the equity markets.
During the severe market declines of 2002 and 2001, our venture capital investments decreased our
income from continuing operations by $38.5 million and $54.9 million, respectively. Conversely, in 2003
venture capital decreased the loss from continuing operations by $23.5 million. It is possible we will
again experience declines related to our venture capital investments comparable to those experienced in
2002 and 2001.

e Fourth, the funding requirements of our pension plan are dependent on the performance of the equity
markets. The portfolio funding for the company’s pension plan currently consists of 63% equities. In a
severe market decline, the value of the assets supporting the pension plan will decrease, increasing the
requirement for future funding. This funding requirement will increase expenses and decrease the
earnings of the company.

We might need to fund deficiencies in our closed block, which would result in a reduction in net income
and could result in a reduction in investments in our on-going business.

We have allocated assets to our closed block to produce cash flows that, together with additional revenues from
the closed block policies, are reasonably expected to support our obligations relating to these policies. Our
allocation of assets to the closed block was based on actuarial assumptions about our payment obligations to
closed block policyholders, the continuation of the non-guaranteed policyholder dividend scales in effect for
2000, as well as assumptions about the investment earnings the closed block assets will generate over time. Since
such assumptions are to some degree uncertain, it is possible that the cash flows generated by the closed block
assets and the anticipated revenues from the policies included in the closed block will prove insufficient to
provide for the benefits guaranteed under these policies. We would have to fund the shortfall resulting from such
an insufficiency.

Recent downgrades to PNX’s debt ratings and Phoenix Life’s financial strength ratings, as well as the
possibility of future downgrades, could increase policy surrenders and withdrawals, adversely affect
relationships with distributors, reduce new sales and earnings from our life insurance products and
increase our future borrowing costs.

Rating agencies assign Phoenix Life financial strength ratings, and assign us debt ratings, based in each case on
their opinions of the relevant company’s ability to meet its financial obligations.

Financial strength ratings indicate a rating agency’s view of an insurance company’s ability to meet its obligations

to its insureds. These ratings are therefore key factors underlying the competitive position of life insurers. The
current financial strength and debt ratings are set forth in the chart below.
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: L : Financial Strength Rating — Senior Debt Rating
Rating Agency « of Phoenix Life of PNX

A.M. Best Company, Inc. A (“Eicellen't”) ) | v ‘ ' bbb+A(“Adequate”)
Fith o AA- (“_Very 'Stfqng’;) | A- (“Strong”)
Standard & Poor’g o A (“Strong”) ,, ~ BBB (“Good”)
Moody’s ' A3 (“Good”) ’ ' . Baa3 (“Adequate”)

AM. Best, Moody’s and Standard & Poor’s each have a stable outlook for our ratings, while Fitch has a negative
outlook.

Lower ratings increase borrowing costs. Additional downgrades may increase interest costs in connection with
future borrowings. Such increased costs would decrease our earnings and could reduce our ability to finance our
future growth on a profitable basis.

The recent downgrades did not trigger any defaults or repurqhase obligations.

In addition, the downgrades could adversely affect Phoenix Life’s relationships with its existing distributors and
its ability to establish additional distributor relationships. If this were to occur, we might experience a decline in
sales of certain products and the persistency of existing customers. At this time, we cannot estimate the impact,
either past or future, on sales or persistency. If there were a significant decline in Phoenix Life’s sales or
persistency, our results of operations would be materially adversely affected.

We could have material losses in the future from our discontinued reinsurance business.

In 1999, we discontinued our reinsurance operations through a combination of sale, reinsurance and placement of
certain retained group accident and health reinsurance business into run-off.- We adopted a formal plan to stop
writing new contracts covering these risks and to end the existing contracts as soon as those contracts would
permit. However, we remain liable for claims under those contracts. We also purchased finite reinsurance to
further protect us from unfavorable results from this discontinued business.

We have established reserves for claims and related expenses that we expect to pay on our discontinued group
accident and health reinsurance business. These reserves are a net present value amount that is based on currently
known facts and estimates about, among other things, the amount of insured losses and expenses that we believe
we will pay, the period over which they will be paid, the amount of reinsurance we believe we will collect under
our finite reinsurance, the amounts we believe we will collect from our retrocessionaires and the likely legal and
administrative costs of winding down the business. Our total reserves, including coverage available from our
finite reinsurance and reserves for amounts recoverable from retrocessionaires, were $185.0 million as of A
December 31, 2003. Our total amounts recoverable from retrocessionaires related to paid losses were $165.0
million as of December 31, 2003.

We expect our reserves and reinsurance to cover the run-off of the business; however, the nature of the underlying
risks is such that the claims may take years to reach the reinsurers involved. Therefore, we expect to pay claims -
out of existing estimated reserves for up to ten years as the level of business diminishes. In addition, unfavorable
claims experience is possible and could result in additional future losses. For these reasons, we cannot know
today what our actual claims experience will be.

In addition, we are involved'in disputes relating to certain portions of our discontinued group accident and health

reinsurance business. See Note 17 to our consolidated financial statements in this Form 10-K for more
information.
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In establishing our reserves described above for the payment of insured losses and expenses on this discontinued
business, we have made assumptions about the likely outcome of the disputes referred to above, including an
assumption that substantial recoveries would be available from our reinsurers on all of our discontinued
reinsurance business. However, the inherent uncertainty of arbitrations and lawsuits, including the uncertainty of
estimating whether any settlements we may enter into in the future would be on favorable terms, makes it hard to
predlct outcomes with certainty. Given the need to use estimates in establishing loss reserves, and the difficulty
in predicting the outcome of arbitrations and lawsuits, our actual net ultimate exposure likely will differ from our
current estimate. If future facts and circumstances differ significantly from our estimates and assumptions about
future events with respect to the disputes referred to above or other portions of our discontinued reinsurance
business, our current reserves may need to be increased materially, with a resulting material adverse effect on our
results of operations and financial condition.

Legislation eliminating or modifying either the federal estate tax or the federal taxation of investment
income could adversely affect sales of and revenues from our life and annuity products. In addition, some
of the Bush Administration’s leglslatlve proposals would reduce or eliminate the benefit of deferral of
taxation for our insurance and annuity products.

Some of our life insurance products are specifically designed and marketed as policies that help a decedent’s heirs
to pay estate tax. In addition, our life insurance and annuity products generally benefit from the deferral of
federal income taxation on the accretion of their value. Legislation reducing the tax on d1v1dends and capital
gains reduces the relatlve benefits that such deferral provides.

Legislation enacted in the spring of 2001 increased the size of estates exempt from the federal estate tax, phased
in reductions in the estate tax rate between 2002 and 2009 and repealed the estate tax entirely in 2010. This
legislation, despite its reinstatement of the estate tax in 2011, could have a negative effect on our revenues from
the sale of estate planning products including in particular sales of second-to-die life insurance policies. Second-
to-die policies are often purchased by two people whose assets are largely illiquid, and whose heirs otherwise
might have to attempt to liquidate part of the estate in order to pay the tax. Second-to-die policies represented
21% and 35% of our new life insurance premiums ‘and dep031ts in 2003 and 2002, respectively. President Bush
and members of Congress have expressed a desire to modify the existing legislation, which could result in faster
or more complete reduction or repeal of the estate tax.

The attractiveness to our customers of many of our products is due, in part, to favorable tax treatment. Current
federal income tax laws generally permit the tax-deferred accumulation of earnings on the premiums paid by the
holders of annuities and life insurance products. In 2003, the tax rate on long-term capital gains and certain ..
dividend income was reduced until 2008. President Bush and members of Congress have expressed a desire to
make these rate reductions permanent. If this happens, it could have a negative impact on our sales and revenues.
In addition, President Bush’s Fiscal Year 2005 Budget proposed changes that would have created new and
expanded vehicles for tax-exempt savings. If enacted, the impact of these proposals cannot reasonably be
estimated.

Changes in interest rates could harm cash flow and proﬁtability.in our life and annuity businesses.

Our life insurance and annuity businesses are sensitive to interest rate changes In periods of increasing interest
rates, life insurance policy loans and surrenders and withdrawals may increase as policyholders seek investments
with higher perceived returns. This could require us to sell invested assets at a time when their prices are
depressed by the increase in interest rates, which could cause us to realize investment losses.

Conversely, during periods of declining interest rates, we could experience increased premium payments on
products with flexible premium features, repayment of policy loans and increased percentages of policies
remaining inforce. We would obtain lower returns on investments made with these cash flows. In addition,
borrowers may prepay or redeem mortgages and bonds in our investment portfolio so that we might have to
reinvest those proceeds in lower interest-bearing investments. As a consequence of these factors, we could
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experience a decrease in the spread between the returns on our investment portfolio and amounts credited to
policyholders and contractholders, which ‘could adversely affect our proﬁtability.

Our product sales are highly dependent on our relationships with non-affiliated dlstrlbutors If these
relatronshlps ended or diminished, our revenues would suffer accordingly..

We sell our products through our afﬁhated retall producers and non- afﬁhated advrsors broker-dealers and other
financial intermediaries. There is substantial competition in most of our non-affiliated distributors. Non-
affiliated distribution sources have contributed significantly to our sales in recent years. For example, Merrill
Lynch, with over 13,000 registered representatives, accounted for 29% of our asset management combined
inflows for sponsored managed accounts and mutual funds in 2003. The loss or diminution of our relationships
with non-affiliated distributors could materrally reduce our sales and revenues.

The independent trustees of our mutual funds and closed-end funds, as wel] as intermediary program
sponsors, managed account clients and institutional asset management clients, could terminate their
contracts with us. This would reduce our mvestment management fee revenues.and could also impair our
intangible assets. :

Each of the mutual funds-and closed-end funds for which Phoenix Investment Partners acts as investment advisor
or sub-advisor is registered under the Investment Company Act of 1940 and is governed by a board of trustees or
board of directors. SEC rules require a majority of each board’s members to be independent, and proposed
amendments would increase that requirement to 75%. Each fund’s board has the duty of deciding annually
whether to renew the contract under which Phoenix Investment Partners manages the fund. Board members have
a fiduciary duty to act in the best interests of the shareholders of their funds. Either the board members or, in
limited circumstances, the shareholders may terminate an advisory contract with Phoenix Investment Partners and
move the assets to another investment advisor. The board members also may deem it to be in the best interests of
a fund’s shareholders to make other decisions adverse to us, such as reducing the compensation paid to Phoenix
Investment Partners or imposing restrictions on Phoenix Investment Partners’ management of the fund.

Our asset management agreements with institutional clients, intermediary program sponsors (who “wrap,” or
make available, our investment products within the management agreements they have with their own clients),
direct managed account clients and institutional clients are generally terminable by these sponsors and clients
upon short notice without penalty. As a result, there would be little impediment to these sponsors or clients
terminating our agreements if they became dissatisfied with our performance. .

The termination of any of the above agreements relating to material portion of assets under management would
adversely affect our investment management fee revenues and could impair our intangible assets.

We face strong competition in our businesses from mutual fund companies, banks, asset management firms
and other insurance companies. This competition may impair our ability to retain existing customers,
attract new customers and maintain our profitability, v :

We face strong competition in each of our businesses, comprising life insurance, annuities and asset management.
We believe that our ability to compete is based on a number of factors, including product features, investment -
performance, service, price, distribution, capabilities, scale, commission structure, name recognition and financial
strength ratings. While there is no single company that we identify as a dominant competitor in our business
overall, the nature of these businesses means that our actual and potential competitors include a large number of
mutual fund companies, banks, asset management firms and other insurance companies, many of which have
advantages over us in one or more of the above competitive factors. Recent industry consolidation, including
acquisitions of insurance and other financial services companies in the United States by international companies,
has resulted in larger competitors with financial resources, marketing and distribution capabilities and brand
identities that are stronger than ours. Larger firms also may be able to offer, due to economies of scale, more
competitive pricing than we can. In addition, some of our competitors are regulated differently than we are,
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which may give them a competitive advantage; for example, many non-insurance company providers of financial
services are not subject to the costs and complexities of insurance regulation by multiple states.

Our ability to compete in the asset management business depends in particular on our investment performance.
We may not be able to accumulate and retain assets under management if our investment results underperform the
market or the competition, since such underperformance likely would result in asset withdrawals and reduced
sales. For example, from 1993 through 1999 and again in 2003, we experienced net asset withdrawals in our
private client products. We attribute this in part to underperformance in some of our mutual funds and managed
accounts.

We compete for distribution sources in our life, annuity and asset management businesses. We believe that our
success in competing for distributors depends on factors such as our financial strength and on the services we
provide to, and the relationships we develop with, these distributors. Our distributors are generally free to sell
products from a variety of providers, which makes it important for us to continually offer distributors products
and services they find attractive. If our products or services fall short of distributors’ needs, we may not be able
to establish and maintain satisfactory relationships with distributors of our life insurance, annuity and asset
management products. Accordingly, our revenues and profitability would suffer.

National banks, with their pre-existing customer bases for financial services products, may increasingly compete
with insurers as a result of the Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act of 1999, which permits mergers among commercial
banks, insurers and securities firms under one holding company. Until passage of this act, prior legislation had
limited the ability of banks to engage in securities-related businesses and had restricted banks from being
affiliated with insurance companies. The ability of banks to increase their securities-related business or to
affiliate with insurance companies may materially and adversely affect sales of all of our products by substantially
increasing the number and financial strength of our potential competitors.

Changes in insurance and securities regulation could affect our profitability by imposing further
restrictions on the conduct of our business.

Our life insurance and annuity businesses are subject to comprehensive state regulation and supervision
throughout the United States. State insurance regulators and the National Association of Insurance
Commissioners continually reexamine existing laws and regulations, and may impose changes in the future that
put further regulatory burdens on us, thereby increasing our costs of business. This could mater1ally adversely
affect our results of operations and financial condition.

The U.S. federal government does not directly regulate the insurance business. However, federal legislation and
administrative policies in areas which include employee benefit plan regulation, financial services regulation and
federal taxation and securities laws could significantly affect the insurance industry and our costs.

We and some of the policies, contracts and other products that we offer are subject to various levels of regulation
under the federal securities laws administered by the SEC as well as regulation by those states and foreign
countries in which we provide investment advisory services, offer products or conduct other securities-related
activities. We could be restricted in the conduct of our business for failure to comply with such laws and
regulations. Future laws and regulations, or the interpretation thereof, could materially adversely affect our
results of operations and financial condition by increasing our expenses in having to comply with these
regulations. :
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Management’s discussion and analysis reviews our consolidated financial condition at December 31, 2003 and
2002 restated; our consolidated results of operations for the years 2003, 2002 restated and 2001 restated; and,
where appropriate, factors that may affect our future financial performance. You should read this discussion in
conjunction with “Selected Financial Data” and our consolidated financial statements in this Form 10-K.

Overview

We are a manufacturer of insurance, annuity and asset management products for the accumulation, preservation
and transfer of wealth. We provide products and services to affluent and high-net-worth individuals through their
advisors and to institutions directly and through consultants. We offer a broad range of life insurance, annuity
and asset management products and services through a variety of distributors. These distributors include
affiliated and non-affiliated advisors and financial services firms who make our products and services available to
their clients. h

We manufacture our products through two operating segments — Life and Annuity and Asset Management —
which include three product lines — life insurance, annuities and asset management. Through Life and Annuity
we offer a variety of life insurance and annuity products, including universal, variable universal, whole and term
life insurance, and a range of variable annuity offerings. Asset Management comprises two lines of business —
private client and institutional.

Through our private client line of business, we provide investment management services principally on a
discretionary basis, with products consisting of open-end mutual funds and managed accounts. Managed
accounts include intermediary programs sponsored and distributed by non-affiliated broker-dealers and direct
managed accounts sold and administered by us. Managed accounts sponsored and distributed by non-affiliated
broker-dealers generally require minimum investments of $100,000, and direct managed accounts sold and
administered by us generally require minimum investments of $1 million. Our private client business also
provides transfer agency, accounting and administrative services to most of our open-end mutual funds.

We report our remaining activities in two non-operating segments — Venture Capital and Corporate and Other.
Venture Capital includes limited partnership interests in venture capital funds, leveraged buyout funds and other
private equity partnerships sponsored and managed by third parties: These assets are investments of the general
accounts of our Life Companies. See Business—Venture Capital Segment. Corporate and Other includes
indebtedness; unallocated assets, liabilities and expenses; and certain businesses not of sufficient scale to report
independently. See Business—Corporate and Other Segment. These non-operating segments are significant for
financial reporting purposes, but do not contain products or services relevant to our core manufacturing
operations. '

We derive our revenues principally from:

premiums on whole life insurance; _

insurance and investment product fees on variable life and annuity products and universal life products;
investment management and related fees; and

net investment income and net realized investment gains.

Under GAAP, premium and deposit collections for variable life, universal life and annuity products are not
recorded as revenues. These collections are reflected on our balance sheet as an increase in separate account
liabilities for certain investment options of variable products. Collections for fixed annuities and certain
investment options of variable annuities are reflected on our balance sheet as an increase in policyholder deposit
funds. Collections for other products are reflected on our balance sheet as an increase in policy liabilities and
accruals.
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Our expenses consist principally of:

e insurance policy benefits prov1ded to policyholders, mcludmg interest credited on pohcyholders general
account balances; :

policyholder dividends;

deferred policy acquisition costs amortization;

intangible assets amortization;

interest expense;

other operating expenses; and

income taxes.

Our profitability depends principally upon:

e the adequacy of our product pricing, which is primarily a function of our:
* ability to select underwriting risks;
* mortality experience;
* ability to generate investment earnmgs
* ability to maintain expenses in accordance with our pricing assumptions; and
* policies’ persistency (the percentage of policies remaining inforce from year to year as measured by
premiums};
e the amount and composition of assets under management;
¢ the maintenance of our target spreads between the rate of earnings on our investments and dividend and
interest ratés credited-to customers; and
e our ability to manage expenses.

Prior to Phoenix Life’s demutualization, we focused on participating life insurance products, which pay
policyholder dividends. As of December 31, 2003, 74% of our life insurance reserves were for participating
policies. As a result, a significant portion of our expenses consists, and will continue to consist, of such
policyholder dividends. Our net income is reduced by the amounts of these dividends. Policyholder dividends
expense was $418.8 million during 2003, $401.8 million during 2002 and $400.1 million during 2001.

Our sales and financial results over the last several years have been affected by demographic, industry and market
trends. The baby boom generation has begun to enter its prime savings years. Americans generally have begun to
rely less on defined benefit retirement plans, social security and other government programs to meet their post- .
retirement financial needs. Product preferences have shifted between fixed and variable options depending on
market and economic conditions. These factors have had a positive effect on sales of our balanced product
portfolio including universal life, variable life and variable annuity products, as well as a broad array of mutual
funds and managed accounts.

Discontinued Operations

During the fourth quarter of 2003, we entered into a purchase and sale agreement to sell 100% of the common
stock held by us in Phoenix National Trust Company. This sale is expected to close in the first quarter of 2004.
The financial statement effect of this transaction is immaterial to our consolidated financial statements.

During 1999, we discontinued the operations of several businesses that did not align with our business strategy
including reinsurance, group life and health and real estate management operations. 'See Note 14 to our
consolidated financial statements in this Form 10-K for detailed 1nformat10n regarding our discontinued
operations.
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Purchase of Phoenix Investment Partners Minority Interest

In 2001, we acquired the minority interest in Phoenix Investment Partners for $339.3 million. Prior to this
acquisition, Phoenix Investment Partners had been a publicly-held company listed on the New York Stock
Exchange in which we held approximately a 55.1% interest. See Note 4 to our consolidated financial statements
in this Form 10-K for detailed information regarding our acquisition of the Phoenix Investment Partners minority
interest.

Other Recent Acquisitions
Life Annuity

In May 2003, we acquired the remaining interest in PFG Holdings, Inc., or PFG, the holding company for our
private placement operation, not already owned by us for initial consideration of $16.7 million. Under the terms
of the purchase agreement, we may be obligated to pay additional consideration of up to $89.0 million to the
selling shareholders, including $13.0 million during the years 2004 through 2007 based on certain financial
performance targets being met, and the balance in 2008 based on the appraised value of PFG as of December 31,
2007. See Note 3 to our consolidated financial statements in this Form 10-K for further information regarding
PFG. ' :

In 2002, we 'acquired the variable life and variable annuity business of Valley Forge Life Insurance Company (a
subsidiary of CNA Financial Corporation). See Note 3 to our consolidated financial statements in this Form 10-K
for further information regarding the acquisition of Valley Forge Life Insurance Company. '

Asset Management

In 2002, we acquired a 60% interest in Kayne Anderson Rudnick for $102.4 million. In 2001, we acquired a 75%
interest in Walnut for $7.5 million in cash. We also paid $5.5 million in cash for a 65% interest in Capital West,
which is reported as part of DPIM. See Note 4 to our consolidated financial statements in this Form 10-K for
further information regarding Kayne Anderson Rudnick, Walnut and Capital West.

The Demutualization

Phoenix Home Life demutualized on June 25, 2001 by converting from a mutual life insurance company to a
stock life insurance company, became a wholly-owned subsidiary of PNX and changed its name to Phoenix Life
Insurance Company, or Phoenix Life. See Note 3 to our consolidated financial statements in this Form 10-K for
detailed information regarding the demutualization and closed block.

Recently Issued Accounting Standards

Variable Interest Entities. A new accounting standard was issued in January 2003 that interprets the existing
standard on consolidation. This new accounting standard was revised and reissued in December 2003 as

FIN 46-R, Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities, an Interpretation of ARB No. 51, or FIN 46-R. It clarifies
the application of standards of consolidation to certain entities in which equity investors do not have the
characteristics of a controlling financial interest or do not have sufficient equity at risk for the entity to finance its
activities without additional subordinated financial support from other parties (“variable interest entities”). As of
December 31, 2003, we adopted FIN 46-R for special purpose entities where we may hold a variable interest.
Our adoption of FIN 46-R resulted in no additional variable interest entities being consolidated by us.

In 2003, we revised our method of consolidation for the years 2003, 2002 and 2001 for three collateralized

- obligation trusts where we serve as investment advisor. Under the new method, the applicable assets, liabilities,
revenues, expenses and minority interest are presented on a disaggregated basis and investments pledged as
collateral are recorded at fair value with unrealized gains or losses recorded as a component of accumulated other
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comprehensive income, other-than-temporary impairment of investments are recorded as a charge to earnings, and
non-recourse collateralized obligations are recorded at unpaid principal balance. Prior to our revision of
previously reported 2003, 2002 and 2001 amounts, investments pledged as collateral were recorded at fair value
with asset valuation changes directly offset by changes in the corresponding liabilities in a manner similar to
separate accounts. See Note 1 and Note 8 to our consolidated financial statements in this Form 10-K for
additional information.

The effect of our change in method of consolidation for the three consolidated collateralized obligation trusts was
to increase our net loss and to reduce stockholders’ equity for the years 2003, 2002 and 2001 as follows ($
amounts in millions): ‘

2003 2002 2001
INCTEASE N NELJOSS...v.vivertieiitire e etcrre s et saeses b s e s e etaresesebsssenaseeenene $ 2.4 3 (26.3) $ (12.5)
Reduction in stockholders’ eqUity .....cccoeevveeererrimvienerreiiieereniereriesieens $ (773) § (2049 3 (87.9)

The above non-cash charges to earnings and stockholders’ equity primarily relate to realized and unrealized
investment losses within the coliateralized obligation trusts, that will ultimately be borne by third-party investors
in the non-recourse collateralized obligations. Accordingly, these losses and any future gains or losses under this
method of consolidation will ultimately reverse upon the maturity or other liquidation of the non-recourse
collateralized obligations.

GAAP requires us to consolidate all the assets and liabilities of these collateralized obligation trusts which results
in the recognition of realized and unrealized investment losses even though we have no legal obligation to fund
such losses in the settlement of the collateralized obligations.

The Financial Accounting Standards Board, or FASB, continues to evaluate, through the issuance of FASB staff
positions, the various technical implementation issues related to consolidation accounting. We will continue to
assess the impact of any new implementation guidance issued by the FASB as well as evolving interpretations
among accounting professionals. Additional guidance and interpretations may affect our application of
consolidation accounting in future periods.

See Notes 1 and 8 to our consolidated financial statements in this Form 10-K for additional information on these
revisions to our 2002 and 2001 financial statements and our consolidated collateralized obligation trusts and other
variable interest entities.

Stock-based Compensation. A new standard was issued in December 2002 which amends an existing standard on
accounting for stock-based compensation. The new standard provides methods of transition for a voluntary
change to fair value accounting for stock-based compensation. It also requires annual and quarterly disclosures
about the method of accounting for stock-based compensation and tabular information about the effect of the
method of accounting for stock-based compensation. Effective January 1, 2003 we prospectively changed our
accounting for stock options using the fair value method. See Note 11 to our consolidated financial statements in
this Form 10-K for more discussion on the requirements of the new standard as it relates to our business.

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets. At the beginning of 2002, we adopted a new accounting standard for
goodwill and other intangible assets, including amounts reflected in our carrying value of equity method
investments. Under this new standard, we discontinued recording amortization expense on goodwill and other
intangible assets with indefinite lives, but we continue recording amortization expense for those assets with
definite estimated lives. See Note 4 to our consolidated financial statements in this Form 10-K for a
comprehensive discussion of the adoption of the new standard and its effects on our consolidated financial
statements.
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Critical Accounting Estimates

The discussion and analysis of our financial condition and results of operations are based upon our consolidated
financial statements, which have been prepared in accordance with GAAP. GAAP requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of the consolidated
financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual
results could differ from those estimates.

Critical accounting estimates are reflective of significant judgments, often as a result of the need to make
estimates about the effect of matters that are inherently uncertain. The following are areas that we believe require
significant judgments, together with references to the footnote(s) in which each accounting policy is discussed in
relation to our business:

e Deferred Policy Acquisition Costs, or DAC, and Present Value of Future Profits, or PVFP
The costs of acquiring new business, principally commissions, underwriting, distribution and policy issue
expenses, all of which vary with and are primarily related to production of new business, are deferred. In
connection with our 1997 acquisition of the Confederation Life business, we recognized an asset for the
present value of future profits, or PVFP, representing the present value of estimated net cash flows
embedded in the existing contracts acquired. This asset is included in deferred acquisition costs, or DAC.

We amortize DAC and PVFP based on the related policy’s classification. For individual participating life
insurance policies, DAC and PVFP are amortized in proportion to estimated gross margins. For universal
life, variable universal life and accumulation annuities, DAC and PVFP are amortized in proportion to
estimated gross profits. Policies may be surrendered for value or exchanged for a different one of our
products (internal replacement). The DAC balance associated with the replaced or surrendered policies is
amortized to reflect these surrenders.

The amortization of DAC and PVFP requires the use of various assumptions, estimates and judgments
about the future. Significant assumptions include those concerning expenses, investment performance,
mortality and policy cancellations (i.e., lapses, withdrawals and surrenders). These assumptions are
reviewed on a regular basis and are generally based on our past experience, industry studies, regulatory
requirements and judgments about the future. Changes in estimated gross margins and gross profits based
on actual experiences are reflected as an adjustment to total amortization to date resulting in a charge or
credit to earnings. Finally, analyses are performed periodically to assess whether there are sufficient
gross margins or gross profits to amortize the remaining DAC balances.

We regularly evaluate our estimated gross profits, or EGP, to determine if actual experience or other
evidence suggests that earlier estimates should be revised. Several assumptions considered to be
significant in the development of EGP include separate account fund performance, surrender and lapse
rates, estimated interest spread and estimated mortality. The separate account fund performance
assumption is critical to the development of the EGP related to our variable annuity and variable and
interest-sensitive life insurance businesses. The average long-term rate of assumed separate account fund
performance used in estimating gross profits was 7% for the variable annuity business and 8% for the
variable life business at December 31, 2003.

See Note 3 to our consolidated financial statements and Item 7a, Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures
About Market Risk in this Form 10-K for more information.

® Policy Liabilities and Accruals

See Note 3 to our consolidated financial statements and Item 7a, Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures
About Market Risk in this Form 10-K for more information. '
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Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

At the beginning of 2002, we adopted the new accounting standard for goodwill and other intangible
assets, inchuding amounts reflected in our carrying value of equity-method investments. Under this new
standard, we discontinued recording amortization expense on goodwill and other intangible assets with
indefinite lives, but we continue recording amortization expense for those intangible assets with definite
estimated lives. For goodwill and intangible assets, we perform impairment tests at the reporting-unit
level at least annually. For purposes of the goodwill and indefinite-lived intangible assets impairment
test, the fair value of the reporting units is based on the sum of: a multiple of revenue, plus the fair value
of the units’ tangible fixed assets. Prior to 2002, we amortized goodwill principally over 40 years and
investment management contracts and employment contracts over five to 16 years and three to seven
years, respectively. All amortization expense has been and continues, for intangible assets with definite
lives, to be calculated on a straight-line basis.

See Note 4 to our consolidated financial statements in this Form 10-K for more information.

Valuation of Debt and Equity Securities

We classify our debt and equity securities held in our general account, as well as those pledged as
collateral, as available-for-sale and report them in our balance sheet at fair value. Fair value is based on
quoted market price, where available. When quoted market prices are not available, we estimate fair
value by discounting debt security cash flows to reflect interest rates currently being offered on similar
terms to borrowers of similar credit quality, by quoted market prices of comparable instruments and by
independent pricing sources or internally developed pricing models.

The following table identifies the fair value of our general account fixed maturity securities by pricing
source as of December 31, 2003 ($ amounts in millions):

Fixed

Maturities % of Total

at Fair Value Fair Value
Priced via independent market qUOTALIONS ........cooveivveeiieniee et $ 10,0245 76%
Priced VIA TNATICES .vvereeeveeeeeiieree ettt s eieeeeseeeesesaseveeeeesesebeeseseresesosanesereeseesasserenans 2,062.8 16%
Priced via broker QUOLAtIONS . .......ccviuieeiie ettt et ceve e sat e saa e ee s 725.3 5%
Priced via other methodS..........o.ocoveveeevreverreeernen ettt e ettt a e e eeevareeean 326.5 2%
Short-term INVESIMENIS® ... ....c.oe it et ebeeeteerae s ese e sveesreereas 133.9 1%
TOtaAl....coiiviiiveeieeeeceeeee e ettt ettt aree b eneie $ 13,273.0 100%

*Short-term investments are valued at amortized cost, which approximates fair value

Investments whose value, in our judgment, is considered to be other-than-temporarily impaired are
written down to fair value as a charge to realized losses included in our earnings. The cost basis of these
written-down investments is adjusted to fair value at the date the determination of impairment is made.
The new cost basis is not changed for subsequent recoveries in value. For mortgage-backed and other
asset-backed debt securities, we recognize income using a constant effective yield based on anticipated
prepayments and the estimated economic lives of the securities. When actual prepayments differ
significantly from anticipated prepayments, the effective yield is recalculated to reflect actual payments to
date and any resulting adjustment is included in net investment income. For certain asset-backed
securities, changes in estimated yield are recorded on a prospective basis and specific valuation methods
are applied to these securities to determine if there has been an other-than-temporary decline in value.
We report mortgage loans at unpaid principal balances, net of valuation reserves on impaired mortgages.
We consider a mortgage loan to be impaired if we believe it is probable that we will be unable to collect
all amounts of contractual interest and principal as scheduled in the loan agreement. We do not accrue
interest income on impaired mortgage loans when the likelihood of collection is doubtful.
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See Note S to our consolidated financial statements, the Debt and Equity Securities section of
Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations and Item 7a,
Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk in this Form 10-K for more information.

Valuation of Investments in Venture Capital Partnerships

We record our equity in-the earnings of venture capital partnerships in net investment income using the
most recent financial information received from the partnerships and estimating the earnings for any lag
in reporting. In the first quarter of 2001, we changed our accounting for venture capital partnership
earnings to eliminate the quarterly lag in information provided to us. We did this by estimating the
change in our share of partnership earnings for the quarter. This resulted in a $75.1 million charge ($48.8
million after income taxes), representing the cumulative effect of this accounting change on the fourth
quarter of 2000.

To estimate the net equity in earnings of the venture capital partnerships for each quarter, we developed a
methodology to estimate the change in value of the underlying investee companies in the venture capital
partnerships. For public investee companies, we used quoted market prices at the end of each quarter,
applying liquidity discounts to these prices in instances where such discounts were applied in the
underlying partnerships’ financial statements. For private investee companies, we applied a public
industry sector index to roll the value forward each quarter. We apply this methodology consistently each
quarter with subsequent adjustments to reflect market events reported by the partnerships (e.g., new
rounds of financing, initial public offerings and writedowns by the general partners). Our methodology
recognizes downward adjustments based on the indices, but limits upward adjustments to the amounts
previously reported by the partnerships. In addition, we annually revise the valuations we have assigned
to the investee companies to reflect the valuations in the audlted financial statements received from the
venture capital partnerships. :

See Note 5 to our consolidated financial statements in this Form 10-K for more information.

Valuation of Investments in Affiliates

We evaluate our equity method investments for an other-than-temporary impairment at each balance sheet
date considering quantitative and qualitative factors including quoted market price of underlying equity
securities, the duration the carrying value is in excess of fair value and historical and projected earnings
and cash flow capacity.

See Note 5 to our consolidated financial statements and the Aberdeen Asset Management section of
Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations in this Form
10-K for more information.

Deferred Income Taxes

We account for income taxes in accordance with SFAS No. 109, Accounting for Income Taxes. The
deferred tax assets and/or liabilities are determined by multiplying the differences between the financial
reporting and tax reporting bases for assets and liabilities by the enacted tax rates expected to be in effect
when such differences are recovered or settled. The effect on deferred taxes of a change in tax rates is
recognized in income in the period that includes the enactment date. Valuation allowances on deferred
tax assets are estimated based on the Company’s assessment of the realizability of such amounts.

We have elected to file a consolidated federal income tax return for 2003 and prior years. Within the
consolidated tax return, we are required by Internal Revenue Service regulations to segregate the entities
into two groups: life insurance companies and non-life insurance companies. We are limited as to the
amount of any operating losses from one group that can be offset against taxable income of the other
group. These limitations affect the amount of any operating loss carryforwards that we have recorded in
our deferred tax assets now or in the future.
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As of December 31, 2003, we had deferred tax assets related to net operating losses of $49.7 million for
federal income tax purposes and $24.3 million for state income tax purposes. The deferred tax assets
related to the federal net operating losses are scheduled to expire as follows: $7.7 million in 2015, $5.4
million in 2016, $19.8 million in 2017, $1.1 million in 2018 and $15.7 in 2023. The deferred tax assets
related to the state net operating losses relate to the non-life subgroup and are scheduled to expire as
follows: $12.7 million in 2020 and $11.6 million in 2021. Due to the inability to combine the life
insurance and non-life insurance subgroups for state income tax purposes, a $24.3 million and a $29.0
million valuation allowance has been established at the end of 2003 and 2002, respectively, relative to the
state net operating loss carryforwards.

We have determined, based on our earnings and future income, that it is more likely than not that the
deferred income tax assets after valuation allowance already recorded as of December 31, 2003 and 2002
will be realized. In determining the adequacy of future income, we have considered projected future
income, reversal of existing temporary differences and available tax planning strategies that could be
implemented, if necessary.

Our federal income tax returns are routinely audited by the Internal Revenue Service, or the IRS, and
estimated provisions are routinely provided in the financial statements in anticipation of the results of
these audits. The IRS has examined our consolidated group’s federal income tax returns through 1997.
The IRS is currently examining our federal income tax returns for 1998 through 2001. While it is often
difficult to predict the outcome of these audits, including the timing of any resolution of any particular tax
matter, we believe that our reserves, as recorded in other liabilities on the balance sheet, have been
adequately provided for all open tax years. Unfavorable resolution of any particular issue could result in
additional use of cash to pay liabilities that would be deemed owed to the IRS. Additionally, any
unfavorable or favorable resolution of any particular issue could result in an increase or decrease,
respectively, to our effective income tax rate to the extent that our estimates differ from the ultimate
resolution.

See Note 10 to our consolidated financial statements in this Form 10-K for more information related to
income taxes. '

Pension and other Post-employment Benefits

See Note 11 to our consolidated financial statements in this Form 10-K for more information on our
pension and other post-employment benefits.
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Consolidated Results of Operations

The following table and discussion present summary consolidated financial data for the years 2003, 2002 and
2001 ($ amounts in millions).

Changes
2002 2001
2003 Restated Restated 2003/02 2002 /01

REVENUES v
Premitums.....cccovevnveveeincoinirenenne et § 1,0422 $ 1,082.0 $ 1,112.7 § (39.8) (307
Insurance and investment product fees........ 565.3 560.5 543.2 4.8 17.3
Investment income, net of expenses ............ 1,107.4 947.7 892.8 159.7 549
Net realized investment 10SS€S......c.....oovneei (100.5) (133.9) (84.9) 33.4 (49.0)
Total revenues...........cccocoveveevevreereereecennnne 2,614.4 2,456.3 2,463.8 158.1 (.5
BENEFITS AND EXPENSES
Policy benefits, excluding

policyholder dividends ..........c..cocovennnnne 1,454.0 1,436.1 1,406.7 17.9 294
Policyholder dividends ........coovevveverinicncnnnns 4188 401.8 400.1 17.0 1.7
Policy acquisition cost amortization............ 94.1 59.2 133.0 34.9 (73.8)
Intangible asset amortization ...........c..cc.c..... 33.2 32.5 49.4 0.7 (16.9)
Intangible asset impairments ..........cccovenne - 66.3 -- (66.3) 66.3
Interest expense on indebtedness................. 39.6 314 27.3 82 4.1
Interest expense on non-recourse

collateralized obligations...........ccccoevevcncne 48.9 30.5 423 18.4 (11.8)
Demutualization eXpenses ...........ceccrveererenne -- 1.8 25.9 (1.8) (24.1)
Other operating €Xpenses.........eovveverereeerens 536.0 581.2 624.4 (45.2) (43.2)
Total benefits and expenses...................... 2,624.6 2,640.8 2,709.1 (16.2) (68.3)
Loss before income taxes

and minority interest.........ccocvvvvevererirennnas (10.2) (184.5) (245.3) 174.3 60.8
Applicable income taxes (benefit)................ (18.5) (56.2) (105.2) 37.7 49.0
Income (loss) before minority interest......... 8.3 (128.3) (140.1) 136.6 11.8
Minority interest in net income

of consolidated subsidiaries...........c.......... 12.4 12.4 72 -- 5.2
Loss from continuing operations.............. “.1) (140.7) (147.3) 136.6 6.6
Loss from discontinued operations.............. 2.1 (1.3) (2.5) 0.8) 1.2
Loss before cumulative effect of

accounting changes...........cccocoovverirenene. 6.2) (142.0) (149.8) 135.8 7.8
Cumulative effect of accounting changes.... - (130.3) (65.4) 130.3 (64.9)
Net108S ..ot $ (6.2) $ (2723) $ (215.2) $  266.1 $ (70

2003 vs. 2002

Premium revenue decreased $39.8 million, or 4%, in 2003 compared to 2002, primarily due to a continued shift in
sales from participating life to universal life and variable universal life products as well as to a continued decline
of the participating life inforce business. Compared to 2002, 2003 premium revenue for participating life policies
decreased by $40.5 million. Since our 2001 demutualization, we no longer sell participating life policies resulting
in a decline in renewal participating life premiums and related inforce.

Insurance and investment product fees increased by $4.8 million, or 1%, in 2003 compared to 2002, primarily due
to higher sales of universal life and variable life products, a growing inforce in universal life and variable
universal life products and slightly higher surrender fees for variable universal life products. These increases
were partially offset by lower fees for our Asset Management segment resulting from decreases in both private
client and institutional average assets under management.
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Net investment income increased by $159.7 million, or 17%, in 2003 compared to 2002, primarily due to
improved equity market conditions and the related effect on our earnings from our venture capital segment and to
increased general account spread-type funds under management in our life and annuity segment partially offset by
the impact of reinvesting maturities at lower interest rates. In addition, investment income from our debt
securities pledged as collateral related to our consolidated CDOs increased $21.2 million from 2002, primarily
due to investment income from the Mistic CDO which closed in the third quarter of 2002.

Net realized investment losses decreased $33.4 million, or 25%, in 2003 compared to 2002, primarily due to
lower impairments from improved credit market conditions including a $26.6 million reduction in impairment
losses related to debt securities pledged as collateral related to our consolidated CDOs and higher net transaction
related gains, partially offset by an other-than-temporary impairment ($55.0 million after income taxes) on our
ownership of Aberdeen common stock during the second quarter of 2003. See the Debt and Equity Securities
section of Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations and Note § in
this Form 10-K for more information.

Policy benefits, including policyholder dividends, increased $34.9 million, or 2%, in 2003 compared to 2002,
primarily due to higher interest credited on guaranteed interest accounts and fixed annuities from higher fund
account balances and higher mortality expense for universal life insurance. Policyholder dividend expense for
2003 was also higher compared to 2002, primarily due to growth in cash values of existing participating life
policies and the growth of our policyholder dividend obligation from favorable results, in part from the portion of
the venture capital funds transferred to the closed block in the first quarter of 2003.

Policy acquisition cost amortization increased $34.9 million, or 59%, in 2003 compared to 2002, primarily due to
higher amortization for participating life insurance and increased amortization for variable universal life and -
annuities from a growing inforce and higher margins, partially offset by a $9.0 million acceleration of
amortization annuities related to a revision of long-term market return assumptions and a $4.5 million impairment
charge in the third quarter of 2002. '

Interest expense on indebtedness increased $8.2 million, or 26%, in 2003 compared to 2002, due to a restructuring
of debt in late 2002 through the issuance of equity units to paydown borrowings from a lower cost bank credit
facility.

Interest expense on non-recourse collateralized obligations increased $18.4 million, or 60%, in 2003 compared to
2002, primarily due to interest expense from the Mistic CDO which closed in the third quarter of 2002.

Other operating expenses decreased $45.2 million, or 8%, in 2003 compared to 2002, primarily due to lower
management restructuring costs and lower overall operating expenses.

Our income tax benefit of $18.5 million applicable to income before income taxes and minority interest for 2003
differed from the statutory U.S. federal income tax benefit of $3.6 million, primarily as a result of the tax benefits
associated with low income housing tax credits, non-taxable dividend and interest income and income related to
the minority interest in various non-taxable entities. The income tax benefit of $56.2 million for 2002 also
differed from the statutory U.S. federal income tax benefit of $64.6 million, primarily as a result of tax benefits
associated with low income housing tax credits, non-taxable dividend and interest income, the recovery of non-
taxable amounts related to an IRS settlement offset by non-deductible charges for the impairment of intangible
assets and realized investment losses of $26.3 million related to debt securities pledged as collateral from our
consolidated CDOs for which there is no tax benefit.

2002 vs. 2001

Premium revenue declined $30.7 million, or 3%, in 2002, primarily as the result of a shift in sales from traditional
life products to variable universal life, universal life and annuity products. Since our 2001 demutualization, we no
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longer sell participating life policies resulting in a decline in renewal participating life premiums and the related
inforce. Insurance and investment product fees increased $17.3 million, 3%, in 2002. Variable universal life and
universal life fees increased $9.4 million and $8.6 million, respectively, due to higher funds under management
driven by strong sales of universal life and variable universal life product, particularly in 2001 and 2002. Annuity
fees declined $4.8 million as the result of lower funds under management in variable sub-accounts.

The fluctuation in both premiums and insurance and investment product fees reflect our continued emphasis on
variable universal life, universal life and annuity product sales, rather than on traditional life product sales.
Investment product fees remained constant compared to 2001. The acquisition of a.60% interest in Kayne
Anderson Rudnick in January 2002 increased investment product fees, but was offset by a corresponding decrease
resulting from reductions in other assets under management and changes to fee structures.

Net investment income increased $54.9 million, or 6%, in 2002 as compared to 2001, primarily as the result of an
increase of invested assets related to the guaranteed interest account portion of our annuity business, principally
from the late 2001 and 2002 sales of the Retirement Planners Edge, or RPE, variable annuity. Increases in net
investment income for variable universal life were offset by a modest decrease in universal life net investment
income from lower new money rates, reinvestment rates and asset defaults. Interest spread, or the excess of
interest earned on guaranteed interest accounts as compared to interest credited on guaranteed interest accounts,
increased by $8.8 million as compared to 2001. Improved interest spread on annuity guaranteed interest accounts -
is the result of a $1.2 billion increase in guaranteed interest account balances at December 31, 2002 as compared
to December 31, 2001, offset by lower new money rates and the investment of related assets in short term, more
liquid instruments. We experienced a decline in interest spread in the second half of 2002 as further described in
the General Account section of Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations. The yield on average invested assets, excluding venture capital partnerships, was 6.6% for the year
2002, compared to 7.3% for the year 2001. The increase in net investment income was also offset by lower
earnings from debt securities pledged as collateral related to our consolidated CDOs in 2002 compared to 2001.

The increase in realized investment losses was primarily due to higher credit related losses in the
telecommunications industry, primarily in the closed block, and debt securities pledged as collateral related to our
consolidated CDOs. See Debt and Equity Securities section of Management’s Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations in this Form 10-K for additional information.

The increase in policy benefits of $29.4 million, or 2%, in 2002 compared to 2001 is primarily due to a $48.2
million increase in interest credited on the guaranteed interest accounts portion of our annuity business, primarily
from late 2001 and 2002 sales of RPE (see the General Account section of Management’s Discussion and
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations). In addition, expense related to minimum death
benefit guarantees on certain of our variable annuity products increased $8.7 million during 2002 as the result of
an increase in net minimum death benefit exposure from $5.8 million at December 31, 2001 to $234.9 million at
December 31, 2002. Of this increase in exposure, $176.6 million was the result of the acquisition of a block of
annuity business from Valley Forge Life Insurance Company, with the remaining increase in exposure resulting
from the impact of the overall decline in equity markets on fund balances.

The increase in policyholder dividends was primarily due to the increase in cash values for existing participating
life policies plus growth of our policyholder dividend obligation resulting from favorable mortality and
persistency experience.

The decrease in policy acquisition cost amortization of $73.8 million, or 55%, in 2002 compared to 2001 was
primarily due to favorable mortality and persistency experience on life products, offset by a $13.5 million
acceleration of DAC amortization expense related to our annuity business in 2002. This offset resulted from a
revision of our long-term market return assumption for annuities from 8% to 7% and an impairment charge
related to the recoverability of our DAC asset related to our variable annuities business. The Valley Forge block
we acquired in 2002, which experienced significant declines in assets due to equity market declines, accounts for
$4.5 million of this acceleration. DAC for individual participating life insurance policies is amortized in
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proportion to estimated gross margins. The amortization process requires the use of various assumptions,
estimates and judgments about the future. The primary assumptions involve expenses, investment performance,
mortality and contract cancellations (i.e., lapses, withdrawals and surrenders). These assumptions are reviewed
on a regular basis and are generally based on our past experience, industry studies, regulatory requirements and
judgments about the future. In 2002, we revised the assumptions on traditional life products used in the
development of estimated gross margins to reflect favorable experience and, as a result, the amortization cost
expense decreased.

The decrease in intangible asset amortization of $16.9 million, or 34%, in 2002 compared to 2001 was due to our
adoption of a new standard on goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite lives which requires that, upon
adoption, amortization cease for goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite lives. See Note 4 to our
consolidated financial statements in this Form 10-K for more information.

As aresult of adopting the new standard on goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite lives, an impairment
charge of $66.3 million was recorded during the third quarter as discussed further in Note 4 to our consolidated
financial statements in this Form 10-K.

Interest expense on indebtedness increased $4.1 million, or 15%, in 2002 compared to 2001, due to higher levels
of average indebtedness in 2002 than in 2001. Average borrowings were higher during 2002, due to the issuance
of $300.0 million senior bonds in December 2001.

Interest expense on non-recourse collateralized obligations decreased $11.8 million, or 28%, in 2002 compared to
2001, primarily due to reduced interest income received (discussed above) resulting in lower distributions to
investment holders.

The decrease in other operating expenses of $43.2 million, or 7%, in 2002 compared to 2001 was due mostly to
lower non-recurring charges and Corporate and Other segment expenses. This decrease was partially offset by
increases in Life and Annuity and Asset Management segment expenses. Life and Annuity expenses were higher
due primarily to pension costs, slightly higher compensation and increased corporate overhead absorption. Asset
Management expenses were higher due to the expenses of an acquired company, Kayne Anderson Rudnick. We
acquired a majority interest in Kayne Anderson Rudnick in 2002, as further described in Note 4 to our
consolidated financial statements in this Form 10-K

Our 2002 effective income tax benefit rate of 30.5% differed from the statutory U.S. federal income tax benefit
rate of 35% as a result of the tax benefits associated with tax advantaged investment income (low income housing
tax credits and non-taxable dividend and interest income) and the recovery of amounts related to an IRS
settlement, offset by the tax on non-deductible goodwill impairment charges and realized losses from investments
pledged as collateral for which there is no tax benefit. In 2001, the effective income tax benefit rate of 45.2%
differed from the statutory income tax benefit rate of 35% as a result of the non-deductible demutualization
expenses and realized losses from our securities pledged as collateral related to our consolidated CDOs, for which
there is no tax benefit, offset by the tax benefits associated with tax advantaged investment income and the
elimination of the surplus tax liability.

The increase in minority interest expense was the result of our 2002 acquisition of a majority interest in Kayne
Anderson Rudnick.

In 2002, we adopted the new accounting standard related to the accounting for goodwill and other intangible

assets resulting in a $130.3 million cumulative effect of accounting change, as further described in Notes 1 and 4
to our consolidated financial statements in this Form 10-K.
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Effects of Inflation

For the years 2003, 2002 and 2001, we do not believe inflation had a material effect on our consolidated results of
operations, except to the extent inflation may have affected interest rates.

Results of Operations by Segment

We evaluate segment performance on the basis of segment income. - Realized investment gains and losses and
certain other items are excluded because we do not consider them when evaluating the financial performance of
the segments. The size and timing of realized investment gains and losses are often subject to our discretion.
Certain items are removed from segment after-tax income if, in our opinion, they are not indicative of overall
operating trends. While some of these items may be significant components of net income reported in accordance
with GAAP, we believe that segment income is an appropriate measure that represents the earnings attributable to
the ongoing operations of the business. Investment income on debt and equity securities pledged as collateral as
well as interest expense on non-recourse collateralized obligations, both related to three consolidated
collateralized obligation trusts we sponsor, are included in the Corporate and Other segment. Excess investment
income on debt and equity securities pledged as collateral represents investment advisory fees eamed by our asset
management subsidiary and are allocated to the Asset Management segment as investment product fees for
segment reporting purposes only. Also, all interest expense is included in the Corporate and Other segment, as
are several smaller subsidiaries and investment activities which do not meet the thresholds of reportable segments.
These include our remaining international operations and the run-off of our group pension and guaranteed
investment contract businesses.

The criteria used to identify an item that will be excluded from segment income include: whether the item is
infrequent and is material to the segment’s income; or whether it results from a business restructuring or a change
in the regulatory requirements, or relates to other unusual circumstances (e.g., non-routine litigation). We include
information on other items allocated to our segments in their respective notes for information only. Items
excluded from segment income may vary from period to period. Because these items are excluded based on our
discretion, inconsistencies in the application of our selection criteria may exist. Segment income is not a
substitute for net income determined in accordance with GAAP and may be different from similarly titled
measures of other companies.

The following amounts, net of applicable income taxes and other offsets, are included in income (loss) from
continuing operations for the years 2003, 2002 and 2001 but are excluded from our operating segment results
($ amounts in millions):

Changes
2002 2001 ,
2003 Restated Restated 2003/02 2002/01

Net realized investment losses.................. . 3 (542 $ (65.6) §  (553) b 114 § (101)
Management restructuring charges and

early retirement COStS......cocvrrervrecrnrrnnn ' (8.5) (28.5) (15.5) 20.0 (13.0)
Deferred policy acquisition

cost AdJUSIMENt ...c.coverirrreeicereninrccrcenene -- 15.1 -- (15.1) 15.1
Mutual life surplus taX.....cco.ooecverenreieninnnens -~ -- 21.0 -- (21.0)
Expenses of purchase of Phoenix

Investment Partners’ minority interest...... -- -~ (52.8) -- 52.8
Other INCOME ......covvivrreieiiieeercceereieins 1.3 -- 53 1.3 (5.3)
Demutualization expense.............cccovrunnee. - (1.3 (23.9) 1.3 22.6
Total. oo $ (61.4) $  (80.3) S (1214) $ 18.9 $ 41.1

Segment Allocations

We allocate capital to our Life and Annuity segment based on risk-based capital, or RBC, for our insurance
products. We used 300% RBC levels for 2003 and 2002 and 250% RBC levels prior thereto. Capital within our
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Life Companies that is unallocated is included in our Corporate and Other segment. We allocate capital to our
Asset Management segment on the basis of the historical capital within that segment. We allocate net investment
income based on the assets allocated to the segments. We allocate tax benefits related to tax-advantaged
investments to the segment that holds the investment. We allocate certain costs and expenses to the segments
based on a review of the nature of the costs, time studies and other methodologies.

Life and Annuity Segment

The fbllowing table and discussioﬁ presents summary financial data relating to Life and Annuity for 2003, 2002
and 2001 ($ amounts in millions).

Changes
2003 2002 2001 2003 /02 2002/ 01
Results of Operations .
Premiums .....cvveiiivereirrirce s $ 1,0422 $ 1,082.0 $ 11127 $ (398 $ (307
Insurance and investment product fees....... 333.0 3151 303.1 17.9 12.0
Net investment iNCOME ........ccoeevvvrerirerninneene 993.2 947.4 £90.8 45.8 56.6
Total segment revenues..................cc...... 2,368.4 2,344.5 2,306.6 23.9 37.9
~ Policy benefits, including ‘ :

policyholder dividends.......c.cccccoevvrccennenn, 1,869.9 -1,867.6 - 1,812.6 . 2.3 55.0
Policy acquisition cost amortization........... 98.2 88.6- 122.5 9.6 (33.9)
Other operating eXpenses. ........coceveeevereernnes 300.5 3074 288.3 (6.9) 19.1
Total segment benefits and expenses....... 2,268.6 2,263.6 2,223.4 5.0 40.2
Segment income before ) _

income taxes and minority interest........... 99.8 80.9 83.2 18.9 2.3)
Allocated inCome taxes........cecevvrererrrerinienes . 311 28.0 .28.8 3.1 (0.8)
Segment income before minority interest... 68.7 52.9 54.4 15.8 (1.5)
Minority interest in net income _

of consolidated subsidiaries............co.ceuun. 04 0.6 0.3 (0.2) 0.3
Segment inCome ..............oooocoivceninriinenens 68.3 52.3 54.1 16.0 (1.8)
Net realized investment losses, ’

net of income taxes and other offsets........ @.7) (15.0) (16.6) 10.3 1.6
Deferred acquisition cost adjustment,

net of INCOME tAXES ....vveecvreeerrrirreeneene C (13 14.4 - (15.7) 14.4
Other adjustments, net of income taxes...... - 0.7 L - 0.7 0.7
Segment net income...........c...cccceeirinrennnn, S 62.3 $ 52.4 $ 37.5 $ 99 $ . 149

2003 vs. 2002

Premium revenue for 2003 decreased by $39.8 million, or 4%, compared to 2002, primarily due to a continued
shift in sales from participating life to universal life and variable universal life products as well as to a continued
decline of the participating life inforce business. Compared to the prior year, the 2003 premium revenue for
participating life insurance policies decreased by $40.5 million. Since our 2001 demutualization, we no longer
sell participating life policies, resulting in a decline in renewal participating life premiums and related inforce.

Investment product fees for 2003 increased by $17.9 million, or 6%, compared to 2002, primarily due to higher
sales in universal life products, a growing inforce in universal life and variable universal life products and slightly
higher surrender fees for variable universal life products. Specifically, higher net amounts at risk in these two
lines of business; as well as higher sales of universal life products, resulted in higher fees.

Net investment income for 2003, increased by $45.8 million, or 5%, compared to 2002, due to increased general
account spread-type funds, primarily annuities, partially offset by lower rates earned on invested assets.

Policy benefits, including policyholder dividends for 2003, were relatively flat compared to 2002. This was
primarily due to a decrease in reserves for the participating life insurance driven by lower inforce and an $0.8
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million decrease in our reserves for minimum death benefit guarantees due to favorable equity markets, partially
offset by higher interest credited on guaranteed interest accounts and fixed annuities driven by higher average
fund balances and higher mortality expense for universal life insurance.

Policy écquis_ition cost amortization for 2003 increased $9.6 million, or 11%, compared to 2002, primarily due to
a growing inforce, higher margins and slightly higher surrenders, partially offset by lower amortization expense
for annuities due to the charges incurred in the third quarter of 2002, which did not recur in 2003,

Other opefating expenses decreased $6.9 million, or 2%, in 2003 compared to 2002 as a result of generally lower .
non-deferrable operating expenses, partially offset by higher employee benefit costs.

Mmorlty interest expense relates to our subsidiary, PFG. We acquired the 33% of the minority interest in PFG we
did not already own in May 2003.

Allocated income taxes for 2003 increased $3.1 million over 2002 as a result of higher segment income before
income taxes as well as a current year allocation of the tax effects of tax advantaged investments to the Life and
Annuity segment. - .

2002 vs. 2001

Premium revenue declined $30.7 million, or 3%, in 2002 compared to 2001, primarily as the result of a shift in
sales from traditional life products to variable universal life, universal life and annuity products. Insurance and
investment product fees increased $12.0 million, or 4%, in 2002 as compared to 2001. Variable universal life and
universal life fees increased $9.4 million and $8.6 million, respectively, due to higher funds under management
driven by strong sales of universal life and variable universal life products, particularly in 2001 and 2002.
Annuity fees declined $4.8 million as the result of lower funds under management in variable sub-accounts.

Net investment income increased $56.6 million, or 6%, in 2002 compared to 2001, primarily as the result of an
increase of invested assets related to the guaranteed interest account portion of our annuity business, principally
from the late 2001 and 2002 sales of the RPE variable annuity. Small increases in net investment income for
variable universal life were offset by a modest decrease in universal life net investment income resulting from
lower new money rates, reinvestment rates and asset defaults. The interest spread, or the excess of interest earned
on guaranteed interest accounts as compared to interest credited on guaranteed interest accounts, increased by
$8.8 million compared to 2001. The improved interest spread on annuity guaranteed interest accounts is the result
of'a $1.2 billion increase in guaranteed interest account balances at December 31, 2002 compared to December
31, 2001, offset by lower new money rates and the investment of related assets in short term, more liquid
instruments. We experienced a decline in interest spread in the second half of 2002 as further described in the
General Account section of Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations in this Form 10-K.

The increase in policy benefits and dividends of $55.0 million, or 3%, in 2002 compared to 2001 is primarily due
to a $48.2 million increase in interest credited on the guaranteed interest accounts portion of our annuity business,
mostly from late 2001 and 2002 sales of RPE (see the General Account section of Management’s Discussion and
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations in this Form 10-K). Our policyholder dividend
obligation decreased by $4.6 million as a result of realized losses partially offset by continuing favorable
mortality and persistency experience. In addition, expense related to minimum death benefit guarantees on
certain of our variable annuity products increased $8.7 million during 2002 as the result of an increase in net
minimum death benefit exposure from $5.8 million at December 31, 2001 to $234.9 million at December 31,
2002. Of this increase, $176.6 million was the result of the acquisition of a block of annuity business from Valley
Forge Life Insurance Company in the third quarter of 2002, with the remaining increase in exposure resulting

. from the impact of the overall decline in equity markets on fund balances.
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The decrease in policy acquisition cost amortization of $33.9 million, or 28%, in 2002 compared to 2001 was
primarily due to favorable mortality and persistency experience on life products, offset by a $13.5 million
acceleration of policy acquisition cost amortization expense related to our annuity business in the third quarter of
2002. This offset resulted from a revision of our long-term market return assumption for annuities from 8% to
7% and an impairment charge related to the recoverability of our deferred acquisition cost asset related to our
variable annuities business. The Valley Forge block we acquired at the beginning of the third quarter, which
experienced significant declines in assets due to equity market declines, accounts for $4.5 million of this
acceleration. DAC costs for individual participating life insurance policies are amortized in proportion to
estimated gross margins. The amortization process requires the use of various assumptions, estimates and
judgments about the future. The primary assumptions involve expenses, investment performance, mortality and
contract cancellations (i.e., lapses, withdrawals and surrenders). These assumptions are reviewed on a regular
basis and are generally based on our past experience, industry studies, regulatory requirements and judgments
about the future. In the first quarter of 2002, we revised the assumptions on traditional life products used in the
development of estimated gross margins to reflect favorable experience and, as a result, the amortization cost
expense decreased.

The increase in other operating expenses was primarily due to higher benefit costs, mainly pension-related costs.
The segment also experienced slightly higher compensation expense and corporate overhead absorption costs.

Minority interest expense relates to our then 67% owned subsidiary, PFG.

Life and Annuity segment revenues by product for the years 2003, 2002 and 2001 are as follows ($ amounts in
millions):

Changes
2003 2002 2001 2003/02 2002/01
Variable universal life insurance ................. $ 1148 $ 1092 $ 973 $ 5.6 3 11.9
Universal life inSurance..........c.oeeevveveccvnneann 196.9 195.8 190.8 1.1 5.0
Term life inSUrance..........coecoeveeervecveeeeevrenen, 14.6 12.2 : 8.7 24 35
Other life InSUrance ..........c.cceeoeeovveveeeevvenenen. 148.2 146.3 140.1 1.9 6.2
Total, non-participating life insurance......... 474.5 463.5 436.9 11.0 26.6
Participating life insurance ............ccoevenenee 1,690.1 1,718.9 1,760.9 (28.8) (42.0)
Total, life InSUrance.........cocoeevvivveeneeiiveeenn. 2,164.6 2,182.4 2,197.8 (17.8) (15.4)
ADNUILIES. ..ottt 203.8 162.1 108.8 41.7 53.3
Segment revenues ............c.occecervveencennenns $ 2.368.4 S 2,344.5 $ 2,306.6 $ 23.9 S 37.9

2003 vs. 2002

Variable universal life product revenues increased $5.6 million, or 5%, in 2003 compared to 2002, primarily due
to higher cost of insurance fees from a growing inforce, and higher surrender charges, partially offset by slightly
lower sales and lower interest earned.

Universal life product revenues increased $1.1 million, or less than 1%, in 2003 compared to 2002, primarily due
to higher cost of insurance and other fees from higher sales and a growing inforce, offset by lower interest earned.

Term life revenues increased $2.4 million, or 20%, in 2003 compared to 2002, due to premium growth from
higher sales.

Other life insurance revenues increased $1.9 million, or 1%, in 2003 compared to 2002, primarily due to higher
revenue in an old block of corporate-owned life insurance business and from higher investment income, partially
offset by lower revenues in non-life insurance subsidiaries.
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Participating life product revenues decreased $28.8 million, or 2%, in 2003 compared to 2002, primarily due to a
continued shift in sales from participating life to universal and variable universal life products as well as a
continued decline in participating life inforce business.

Annuity product revenues increased $41.7 million, or 26%, in 2003 compared to 2002, primarily due to higher
fees from improved equity market performance and to an increase in interest earned on higher spread based asset
products.

2002 vs. 2001

Variable universal life product revenues increased $11.9 million, or 12%, in 2002 compared to 2001, primarily
due to higher cost of insurance fees from a growing inforce, higher fees from higher sales, and higher interest
earned on the increase in funds under management.

Universal life product revenues increased $5.0 million, or 3%, in 2002 compared to 2001, primarily due to higher
cost of insurance and other fees from higher sales and a growing inforce, offset by lower interest earned.

Term life revenues increased $3.5 million, 40%, in 2002 compared to 2001, due to premium growth from higher
sales, partially offset by lower investment income.

Other life insurance revenues increased $6.2 million, or 4%, in 2002 compared to 2001, primarily due to higher
revenues in an old block of corporate-owned life insurance business and from higher investment income, offset by
lower revenues in non-life insurance subsidiaries.

Participating life product revenues decreased $42.0 million, or 2%, in 2002 compared to 2001, primarily due to a
continued shift in sales from participating life to universal and variable universal life products, a continued
decline in participating life inforce business and slightly lower investment income.

Annuity product revenues increased $53.3 million, or 49%, in 2002 compared to 2001, primarily due to higher
interest earned on higher spread based asset funds, partially offset by slightly lower fees.

Life and Annuity segment income before income taxes by product for the years 2003, 2002 and 2001 is as follows
($ amounts in millions):

Changes
2003 2002 2001 2003/02 2002/01
Variable universal life insurance ................. $ 35.0 $ 359 $ 30.2 $ (0.9) 3 5.7
Universal life insurance..........c.cooceeevvviennin, 21.7 26.3 17.4 (4.6) 8.9
Term life insurance........cooveeeneeccnisionenens 3.8 4.7 1.3 (0.9) 34
Other life insurance ...........covcveveincecrinnen 6.9 0.8 1.7 6.1 0.9)
Total, non-participating life insurance......... 67.4- 67.7 50.6 (0.3) 17.1
Participating life insurance ..............ccocenene. 36.1 33.3 214 . 2.8 11.9
Total, life INSUTance ........cceeeevecveivrncneinencans 103.5 101.0 72.0 2.5 29.0
ANNUILIES ..t 4.1 {20.7) 10.9 16.6 (31.6)
Segment income before income taxes....... $ 99.4 $ 80.3 $ 82.9 S 19.1 b (2.6)

2003 vs. 2002
Variable universal life product pre-tax income decreased $0.9 million, or 3%, in 2003 compared to 2002. The

decrease can be attributed to lower sales, higher amortization of deferred acquisition costs and higher non-
deferrable expenses, partially offset by favorable insurance margins and higher surrender charges.
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Universal life product pre-tax income decreased $4.6 million, or 17%, in 2003 compared to 2002, due to lower
insurance margins and surrender charges, partially offset by higher investment margins and lower expenses.

Term product pre-tax income decreased $0.9 million, or 19%, in 2003 compared to 2002, primarily due to slightly
higher expense levels partially offset by higher insurance margins.

Other life insurance pre-tax income increased $6.1 million in 2003 compared to 2002, due to favorable mortality
in an old block of corporate-owned life insurance business, the release of a reserve on a life contingent annuity
due to the death of the annuitant and higher income from certain non-life insurance subsidiaries.

Participating life product pre-tax income increased $2.8 million, or 8%, in 2003 compared to 2002, primarily due
to a one-time investment gain during the second quarter of 2003 and lower non-deferrable expenses, partially
offset by higher DAC amortization and the release of a policyholder tax contingency in 2002 that did not recur in
2003. ,

Annuity product pre-tax loss was $16.6 million, or 80%, less in 2003 compared to 2002. This was primarily due
to lower amortization of DAC in 2003, a decrease in minimum guaranteed death benefits expense in 2003, and
higher investment margins from higher spread type funds under management. These were partially offset by
higher non-deferrable expenses and commissions as well as further spread compression in 2003. Amortization of
DAC was lower in 2003, due to acceleration of amortization from a revision of long-term market return
assumptions and an impairment charge in 2002, neither of which recurred in 2003.

2002 vs. 2001

Variable universal life product pre-tax income increased $5.7 million, or 19%, in 2002 compared to 2001,
primarily due to favorable investment margins, slightly higher surrender charges, and lower amortization of DAC.

Universal life product pre-tax income increased $8.9, or 51%, in 2002 compared to 2001, due primarily to higher
insurance and investment margins, partially offset by higher incurred expenses.

Term product pre-tax income increased $3.4 million in 2002 compared to 2001, due primarily to higher sales.
Other life insurance pre-tax income decreased $0.9 millioh, or‘53%, n 2002 compared to 2001, primarily due to
an old block of corporate-owned life insurance business which had higher benefit costs, partially offset by higher
investment income in 2002.

Participating life product pre-tax income increaéed $11.9 million, or 56%, in 2002 compared to 2001, primarily
due to lower benefit costs and lower incurred expenses from lower amortization of DAC, partially offset by lower
revenues.

Annuity product pre-tax loss was $20.7 million in 2002, compared with pre-tax income of $10.9 million in 2001.
This $31.6 million decrease was primarily due to higher non-deferrable expenses, amortization of DAC, and

benefit costs.

See Note 3 to our consolidated financial statements in this Form 10-K for more information.
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Asset Management Segment

The following table and discussion presents summary financial data relatlng to Asset Management for the years
2003, 2002 and 2001 ($ amounts in millions).

‘ Changes
: 2003 2002 2001 2003 /02 2002/ 01

Results of Operations ,
Investment product fees.........c.ccorvrrevrrennen. § 2432 $ 2581 $ 2581 $ (149 $ --
Net investment inCOMe .......ocovevererrrrevenenns 0.7 1.0 1.6 (0.3) (0.6)
Total segment revenues ............................ 243.9 259.1 259.7 (15.2) (0.6)
Intangible asset amortization ..........c.c...c..... 332 325 49.0 0.7 (16.5)
Intangible asset impairments ............. O T 66.3 - (66.3) 66.3
Other operating expenses.............. SO 207.4 2183 212.5 (10.9) 5.8
Total segment expenses ..............c..c.cce..... ‘240.6 . 3171 - 261.5 (76.5) - 55.6
Segment income (loss) before ' ' ‘ ‘ ‘

income taxes and minority interest........... 33 (58.0) : (1.8) 61.3 (56.2)
Allocated income taxes (benefit) ........ evvers . (33 ' (6.0) . 2.6 27 . (8.6)
Segment income (loss) before :

TRINOTILY INLETESt. ... ieeeeirrerieeeerreerereeeenea 6.6 - (520) 4.4) 58.6 (47.6)
Minority interest in net income : . :

of subsidiaries........c.ocvennionnciiiniecnen, 12.0 11.9 6.9 0.1 5.0
Segment 1085 .......c..cooceivniniieniirenien B4 (63.9) (11..3) 58.5 . (52.6)
Net realized investment gains (losses)........ (0.3) -- 0.5 (0.3) (0.5)
Restructuring and other costs, net of ' )

INCOME tAXES ..vvvrerrerereeerrerrereeenserineenenes “@.0 8.4) (50.4) 4.4 42.0
Cumulative effect of accounting change..... - (119.9) - - 119.9 (119.9)
Segment net 108S.........ccccoorvievvvcnienivennnnn. $ 0.7y $§ (1922 - § (61.2) $ 1825 $ (131.0)

2003 vs. 2002 -

Investment product fees decreased $14.9 million, or 6%, in 2003 compared to 2002. This decrease was primarily
due to the decrease in average assets under management compared to the prior year. Private client and
institutional investment product fees decreased $8.9 million and $6.5 million, respectively, as a result of the
decrease in average assets under management. Approximately 56% of our management fee revenues are based on
assets as of the beginning of a quarter, which causes fee revenues to lag behind changes in 1 average assets under
management.

Assets under management were $59:2 billion and $54.0 billion, of which $15.5 billion and $14.5 billion as of
December 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively, were our Life Companies’ assets, including the general and variable
separate accounts. The increase in assets under management during 2003 is due primarily to positive investment
performance of $5.8 billion for the year. Sales of private client products in 2003 were $4.1 billion, whichisa
decrease of 29% from 2002. The majority of this decline is due to reduced sales of sponsored managed accounts
at Seneca and Kayne Anderson Rudnick. Redemptions of private client products in 2003 were $4.9 billion, which
is a decrease of 11% from 2002. This improvement was primarily a result of lower redemptions for mutual funds.
Sales of institutional accounts in 2003 were $3.0 billion, which is a 32% decrease from 2002. The decrease in
sales is due to the fact that 2002 included the issuance of a $1.0 billion CDO, which we consolidate in our
financial statements, that did not recur in 2003. Redemptions of institutional accounts in 2003 were $3.5 billion,
which is a decrease of 22% from 2002. The majority of the 1mprovement in redemptions was attributable to
Seneca.

There were no impairments of goodwill or other intangible assets in 2003. The $66.3 million charge in 2002 was
associated with the impairment of goodwill related to certain of our asset management partners.
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Other operating expenses decreased $10.9 million, or 5%, in 2003 compared to 2002, of which $5.3 million
related to compensation expense and $5.5 million related to lower non-compensation related operating expenses.
The decrease in non-compensation related operating expenses was primarily the result of lower professional, rent,
depreciation, and travel related charges offset, in part, by increased computer services charges.

Allocated income tax benefits decreased $2.7 million, or 45%, from the comparable period in 2002 as a result of
lower segment losses offset by the impact of non-deductible asset impairments in the prior year.

2002 vs. 2001

Investment product fees remained relatively constant compared to 2001. The acquisition of a 60% interest in
Kayne Anderson Rudnick in 2002 increased investment product fees by $41.2 million. A corresponding decrease
resulted from reductions in other assets under management and changes to fee structures. Excluding Kayne
Anderson Rudnick, total average assets under management decreased by $4.6 billion. Average assets under
management for the private client line of business, excluding Kayne Anderson Rudnick, decreased $5.1 billion,
decreasing investment product fees by $34.1 million. Although assets under management for the institutional line
of business increased by $0.5 billion, a change in our Life Companies general account fee structure in July 2001
was the principal cause of a $6.9 million decrease in institutional investment product fees. At December 31,
2002, Asset Management had $54.0 billion in assets under management, an increase of $1.9 billion, or 4%, from
December 31, 2001. This increase consisted of $7.7 billion from the acquisition of Kayne Anderson Rudnick,
net asset inflows of $0.2 billion, including the issuance of a $1.0 billion collateralized obligation in 2002 and $1.8
billion of increased annuity deposits in our Life Companies general accounts offset, in part, by a decrease of $7.9
billion resulting from investment performance.

Sales of private client products in 2002 were $5.8 billion, including $3.1 billion from Kayne Anderson Rudnick,
an increase of 27% from the same period in 2001 and redemptions from existing accounts were $5.5 billion,
including $0.9 billion from Kayne Anderson Rudnick, an increase of 3% from the same period in 2001. Sales of
institutional accounts in 2002 were $4.4 billion, including $0.3 billion from Kayne Anderson Rudnick, a decrease
of 12% from the same period in 2001 and lost accounts and withdrawals from existing accounts were $4.5 billion,
including $0.3 billion from Kayne Anderson Rudnick, an increase of 19% from the same period in 2001.

The decrease in intangible asset amortization of $16.5 million, or 34%, in 2002 compared to 2001 was primarily
due to the elimination of approximately $20.7 million of amortization on goodwill and indefinite-lived intangible
assets in accordance with SFAS No. 142. Additional intangible amortization of $4.2 million in 2002 compared to
2001 resulted from the acquisition of our interest in Kayne Anderson Rudnick.

Intangible asset impairments is the result of a $66.3 million impairment of goodwill taken in the third quarter of
2002.

The increase in other operating expenses of $5.8 million, or 3%, in 2002 compared to 2001 was primarily due to
$24.6 miltion from Kayne Anderson Rudnick, for the eleven months of 2002. This increase was offset, in part, by
an $8.9 million decrease in compensation expense of which $7.6 million related to incentive compensation. Other
operating expense decreased $9.9 million, primarily related to reductions in consulting, professional and travel
charges.

The increase in minority interest in net income of subsidiaries in 2002 was due primarily to our purchase of Kayne
Anderson Rudnick.

See Note 4 to our consolidated financial statements in this Form 10-K for more information.

48




Venture Capital Segment

Our venture capital investments are limited partnership interests in venture capital funds, leveraged buyout funds
and other private equity partnerships sponsored and managed by third parties. We record our investments in
venture capital partnerships in accordance with the equity method of accounting. (See Venture Capital
Partnerships in the Critical Accounting Estimates section of Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations.) Venture capital investments are investments of the general account of
Phoenix Life.

In the first quarter of 2001, we recorded a charge of $48.8 million (net of income taxes of $26.3 million)
representing the cumulative effect of our venture capital partnership accounting change on the fourth quarter of
2000. The cumulative effect was based on the actual fourth quarter 2000 financial results as reported by the
partnerships.

During the first quarter of 2003, we sold a 50% interest in certain of our venture capital partnerships to an outside
party and transferred the remaining 50% interest in those partnerships to our closed block. The carrying value of
‘the partnerships sold and transferred totaled $52.2 million after realizing a loss of $19.4 million ($5.1 million
recorded in 2002 and $14.3 million recorded in 2003). The unfunded commitments of the partnerships sold and
transferred totaled $27.2 million; the outside party and the closed block will each fund half of these commitments.
At the time of transfer, the partnerships transferred constituted less than 0.5% of the assets of the closed block.

The following table and discussion present summary financial data relating to our Venture Capital segment for the
years 2003, 2002 and 2001 ($ amounts in millions).

Changes
2003 2002 2001 12003/02 2002/01

Results of Operations

Net realized gains (losses) on . ‘
partnership cash and stock distributions.... $ 4.9 § 47 s 17.8 $ 9.6 $  (225)

Net unrealized gains (losses) on

partnership investments ..............c.c.coo...... 37.1 (47.2) (95.9) 84.3 48.7
Partnership operating expenses.................... (5.8) . (04 (6.4) 1.6 (1.0)
Segment net investment income (loss)...... 36.2 (59.3) (84.5) 95.5 25.2
Applicable income taxes (benefit)................ 12.7 (20.7) (29.6) 33.4 8.9
Segment net income (loss) ......................... $ 23.5 $ (38.6) $ (549 S 62.1 $ 16.3-

2003 vs. 2002

Net investment income increased $95.5 million in 2003 compared to 2002 due to overall improved equity market
conditions and the true-up to the partnerships’ audited fourth quarter of 2002 financial statements from estimated
amounts as of December 31, 2002.

Our accounting methodology makes downward adjustments based on public market indices, but limits upward
adjustments to the amounts previously reported by the partnerships. Accordingly, we do not record gains until
they are reported by the partnerships. As a result, the effect of our adjusting estimated partnership results to

actual results increased investment income by $33.4 million and $12.8 million for 2003 and 2002, respectively.
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2002 vs. 2001

The reduction in net investment loss of $25.2 million in 2002 compared to 2001 was primarily due to a reduced
effect of industry sector indices when applied to lower partnership holdings balances during 2002 compared to
2001. The loss in 2002 was primarily driven by stock market performance, most notably in technology and
related sectors ($ amounts in millions).

Changes
2003 2002 2001 2003/02 2002/01

Venture Capital Investments
Contributions (dollars invested) ................. $ 310 . % 422 $ 47.0 $ (112 $ (4.8
Equity in earnings of partnerships................ 36.2 (59.3) (159.6) 955 100.3
Distributions ......coveveecvrerecvceennenenes e (32.2) (41.7) (63.0) 9.5 21.3
Proceeds from sale of partnership '

interests and transfer to closed block......... (52.2) -- -- (52.2) --
Realized loss on sale of partnership '

interests and transfer to closed block........; (14.3) (5.1) -- (9.2) (5.1)
Change in venture capital investments ....... (315 (63.9) (175.6) 324 . 111.7
Venture capital segment investments, : ‘ ' :

beginning of period..........coccvecrinineinnenn. 227.8 291.7 ' 467.3 (63.9) (175.6)
Venture capital segment investments, . ‘ ! )

endof period ... $ 1963 $ 2278 $ 2917 $ (@315 $§ (63.9)

2003 vs. 2002

Venture capital investments for 2003 increased $32.4 million compared to the change for 2002, primarily due to
$36.2 million in equity in earnings in 2003 compared to equity in losses of $59.3 million in 2002. This $95.5
million improvement in equity in earnings in 2003 was partially offset by proceeds from, and realized losses on,
the sale of partnership interests and transfer to the closed block in 2003 which totaled $66.5 million.

2002 vs. 2001

Venture capital investments for 2002 increased $111.7 million compared to the change for 2001, primarily due to
lower losses from equity interests in partnerships ($59.3 million loss in 2002 compared to $159.6 million loss in
2001) and lower distributions in 2002 compared to 2001. Losses from equity interests in partnerships were higher
in' 2001 primarily due to the cumulative effect of an accounting change discussed above.
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Our investments in venture capital partierships.as of December 31, 2003 and 2002 by type of investment follow
($ amounts in millions): . ,

2003 2002
TECRNOLOZY ...eerveveereietei ettt ettt et bt ss bbbttt b e $ 368 § 250
TelECOMMUINICALIONS. .....cvveeeveiierestitecet ettt et sttt st b et sa et ereereob e st e sresaneneensesen 133 10.2
BIOtEChNOIOZY ...cuvieeteitite et e ettt et e 16.3 11.1
HEalth CATE....c.vieee et e 8.2 9.2
Consumer and business products and SEIVICES ........cocvrveerrrirnieerennierercecrarnesrereseee s sesensnsnes 29.6 45.9
FINANCIAL SEIVICES ..covivitiieiieie ettt bttt s ettt er bbb e e es et eabenenas 28.5 28.1
OMDET .ot s e e = 449 50.6
Private holdings.......... ettt ettt ee et h e e et b e b A€o E ek E e e bR e R R e e bt b s s etk et b et 177.6 180.1
PUbLic BOIAINES .veveteeeeeee ettt e st b e 11.3 23.0
Cash and cash eqUIVaAIENES ..o 5.5 21.6
Other......... ST TS OO OO ST OO OO O TUF PP TP U OPOOUTOOO 1.9 3.1
Venture capital partnerships ... $ 196.3 $ 2278
Unfunded COMMILMENLS ....cvuvuirrieeriiminriiisin ittt $ 767 $ 131.3

See Note 5 to our consolidated financial statements in this Form 10-K for more information regarding our Venture
Capital segment.

Corporate and Other Segment

The following table and discussion present sﬁmmai'y financial data relating to Corporate and Other for the years
2003, 2002 and 2001 ($ amounts in millions):

. ‘ , Changes
2003 2002 2001 2003/02 2002/01
Results of Operations - '
Corporate investment inCOME .........oceeernene. $ 43 $ 1.5 $ 72 $ 2.8 $ (5.7)
Investment income from )
collateralized obligations..........cccovevrvrnanns : 522 - - 31.0 42.8 21.2 (11.8)
Interest expense on indebtedness................. (39.6) -(31.4) (27.3) (8.2) " 4.1)
Interest expense on non-recourse : .
collateralized obligations...........cococeerenen. (48.9) (30.5) (42.3) (18.4) 11.8
COrporate EXPENSES....covevvrererrrererceeerierarenens (11.0) (10.4) (19.9) 0.6) 9.5
International..........ccccoreivveirivieicreereeeenn, (1.4) 42 7.7 (5.6) (3.5
Other.....cocvnmienrecrieionnnenns e (3.4 (4.4 2.9 : 1.0 (1.5
Segment loss, before income taxes.............. (47.8) .(40.0) (347 (7.8) (5.3)
Allocated income tax (benefit) ................... (18.8) (29.8) (20.9) 11.0 (8.9)
Segmentloss ................ SRR $  (29.9 $ (102 $ (138 $ (188 § 3.6

2003 vs. 2002

Investment income from debt and equity securities pledged as collateral related to our consolidated CDOs
increased $21.2 million, or 68%, in 2003 compared to 2002, primarily from earnings from the Mistic CDO which
closed in the third quarter of 2002.

Interest expense on indebtedness increased $8.2 million, or 26%, in 2003 compared to 2002, primarily due to a .

restructuring of debt in late 2002 through the issuance of equity units to paydown shorter term, lower cost
borrowings under our bank credit facility.
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Interest expense on non-recourse collateralized obligations increased $18.4 million, or 60%, in 2003 compared to
2002, primarily due to interest expense from the Mistic CDO which closed in the third quarter of 2002.

Corporate expenses were relatively level for 2003 compared to 2002. Expenses increased $7.2 million for costs
related to the stock purchase contracts issued in 2002, but this was offset by lower unallocated corporate
expenses.

International results decreased $5.6 million in 2003 compared to 2002, due primarily to lower equity in earnings
from Aberdeen.

Other increased $1.0 million in 2003 compared to 2002, due primarily to lower losses from non-core operations
offset by slightly higher expenses related to debt and equlty securities pledged as collateral related to our
consohdated CDOs of $2.8 million.

2002 vs. 2001

Investment income from debt and equity securities pledged as collateral related to our consolidated CDOs
decreased $11.8 million, or 28%, in 2002 compared to 2001, primarily due to a significant drop in interest rates
and higher credit defaults resulting in lower interest income received.

Interest expense on indebtedness increased due to higher levels of indebtedness in 2002 than in 2001. -

Interest expense on non-recourse collateralized obligations decreased $11.8 million, or 28%, in 2002 compared to
2001, primarily due to reduced interest income received (discussed above) resulting in lower distributions to
investment holders.

The decrease in net investment income in 2002 from 2001 is primarily due to a decrease in invested assets in
2002, including a reallocation of assets to the Life and Annuity segment, which was effective January 1, 2002.
The decrease was partially offset by our equity in increased earnings of unconsolidated affiliates, including HRH,
in 2002. :

Corporate expenses decreased $9.5 million in 2002 from 2001, due primarily to lower unallocated expenses.
Other decreased $1.5 million in 2002 from 2001, due primarily to our exit from our physician practice
management business during 2001, offset by higher losses from non-core operations.

General Account

The invested assets in the Life Companies’ general accounts are generally of high quality and broadly diversified
across asset classes, sectors and individual credits and issuers. Our asset management professionals manage these
general account assets in investment segments that support specific product liabilities. These investment
segments have distinct investment policies that are structured to support the financial characteristics of the related
liabilities within them. Segmentation of assets allows us to manage the risks and measure returns on capital for
our various businesses and products.

Separate Accounts
Separate account assets are managed in accordance with the specific investment contracts and guidelines relating
to our variable products. We generally do not bear any investment risk on assets held in separate accounts.

Rather, we receive investment management fees based on assets under management. Assets held in separate
accounts are not available to satisfy general account obligations.
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Debt and Equity Securities Pledged as Collateral and Non-recourse Collateralized Obligations

Investments pledged as collateral trusts are assets held for the benefit of those institutional clients which have
investments in structured bond products offered and managed by our asset management subsidiary.

See Note 8 to our consolidated financial statements in this Form 10-K for more information.
Asset/Liability and Risk Management

Our primary investment objective is to maximize after-tax investment return within defined risk parameters. Our
primary sources of investment risk are:

o credit risk, which relates to the uncertainty associated with the ongoing ability of an obligor to make
timely payments of principal and interest;

e interest rate risk, which relates to the market price and cash flow variability associated with changes in
market interest rates; and

e equity risk, which relates to the volatility of prices for equity and equity-like investments, such as venture
capital partnerships.

We manage credit risk through the fundamental analysis of the underlying obligors, issuers and transaction
structures. We employ a staff of experienced credit analysts who review obligors’ management, competitive
position, cash flow, coverage ratios, liquidity and other key financial and non-financial information. These
analysts recommend the investments needed to fund our liabilities while adhering to diversification and credit
rating guidelines. In addition, when investing in private debt securities, we rely upon broad access to
management information, negotiated protective covenants, call protection features and collateral protection. We
review our debt security portfolio regularly to monitor the performance of obligors and assess the stability of their
current credit ratings.

We manage interest rate risk as part of our asset/liability management process and product design procedures.
Asset/liability management strategies include the segmentation of investments by product line, and the
construction of investment portfolios designed to satisfy the projected cash needs of the underlying liabilities. We
identify potential interest rate risk in portfolio segments by modeling asset and liability durations and cash flows
under current and projected interest rate scenarios. We use these projections to assess and control interest rate
risk.

We offer a variety of variable annuities to meet the accumulation and preservation needs of the affluent and high-
net-worth market. Our major sources of revenues from separate account variable annuities are mortality and
expense fees charged to the contractholder, generally determined as a percentage of the market value of the
underlying assets under management.. Our major source of profit from fixed annuities and general account
variable annuities is from the interest rate spread, or the excess of investment income earned over interest
credited.

In 1999, we began selling RPE, a no-load variable annuity. Commissions on these sales were 1% to 1.25% per
year depending on the distribution outlet. RPE was designed to attract contributions into variable sub-accounts on
which we earn mortality and expense fees. In September 2002, we stopped accepting applications for RPE,
although existing policyholders have the right to make subsequent cumulative gross deposits up to $1 million per
contract.
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Amounts held by our policyholders in RPE and other guaranteed interest accounts, or GIAs, and fixed annuities,
as of December 31, 2003 and 2002 follow ($ amounts in millions):

2003 2002
Policyholder Deposit Funds
Retirement Planners Edge GLAS ..ottt e e $ 1,2094 $ 1,3456
Other variable annuity GLAS.....cccoivoceiiririere e ertirree e eete e saesne s e snae e esan e seassaeressseaneenes 858.0 813.7
Variable annuity GLAS ... .ottt ettt sttt s e st s e sae et sane et rnrabenes 2,067.4 2,159.3
FIXEA ANNMUILIES . ...coiiiviecie ettt et sae s e st seer e s sttt e s eassabesanesssteetesssrmnaanssestrssannesns 1,056.9 737.2
Total variable annuity GIAs and fixed annuities................c.ccocooiiiiiieniiicinie e, $ 3,1243 $ 2,896.5

We also manage interest rate risk by emphasizing the purchase of securities that feature prepayment restrictions
and call protection. Our product design and pricing strategies include the use of surrender charges or restrictions
on withdrawals in some products. In addition, we selectively apply derivative instruments, primarily interest rate
swaps, to reduce the interest rate risk inherent in our portfolios. These derivatives are transacted with highly rated
counterparties and monitored for effectiveness on an ongoing basis. We use derivatives exclusively for hedging
purposes.

We manage credit risk through industry and issuer diversification and asset allocation. Maximum exposure to an
issuer is defined by quality ratings, with higher quality issuers having larger exposure limits. We have an overall
limit on below investment-grade rated issuer exposure. ‘

For further information about qur management of interest rate risk and equity risk, see Management’s Discussion
and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations—Quantitative and Qualitative Information About
Market Risk.

Debt and Equity Securities Held in General Account

Our general account debt securities portfolio consists primarily of investment-grade publicly traded and privately
placed corporate bonds, residentia'l mortgage-backed securities, commercial mortgage-backed securities and asset-
backed securities. As of December 31, 2003, our general account debt securities with a carrying value of
$13,273.0 million represented 79% of total general account investments. Public debt securities represented 78.9%
of total debt securities, with the remaining 21.1% represented by private debt securities.

We consolidate debt and equity securities on our consolidated balance sheet that are pledged as collateral for the
settlement of collateralized obligation liabilities related to three collateralized obligation trusts we sponsor. See
Note 8 of our consolidated financial statements in this Form 10-K for additional information on these debt and
equity securities pledged as collateral.

Each year, the majority of our general account’s net cash flows are invested in investment grade debt securities.
In addition, we maintain a portfolio allocation of between 6% and 10% of debt securities in below investment
grade rated bonds. Allocations are based on-our assessment of relative value and the likelihood of enhancing risk-
adjusted portfolio returns. The size of our allocation to below investment grade bonds is also constrained by the
size of our net worth. We are subject to the risk that the issuers of the debt securities we own may default on
principal and interest payments, particularly in the event of a major economic downturn. Our investment strategy
has been to invest the majority of our below investment grade rated bond exposure in the BB rating category,
which is equivalent to a Securities Valuation Office, or SVO, securities rating of 3. The BB rating category is the
highest quality tier within the below investment grade universe, and BB rated securities historically experienced
lower defaults compared to B or CCC rated bonds. As of December 31, 2003, our total below investment grade
securities totaled $1,101.0 million, or 8.3%, of our total debt security portfolio. Of that amount, $764.9 million,
or 5.8%, of our debt security portfolio was invested in the BB category. Our debt securities having an increased
risk of default (those securities with an SVO rating of four or greater which is equivalent to B or below) totaled
$336.1 million, or 2.5%, of our total debt security portfolio.
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Our general account debt and equity securities are classified as available-for-sale and are reported at fair value
with unrealized gains or losses included in equity. Accordingly, the carrying value of such securities reflects their
fair value at the balance sheet date. Fair value is based on quoted market price, where available. When quoted
market prices are not available, we estimate fair value for debt securities by discounting projected cash flows
based on market interest rates currently being offered on similar terms t6 borrowers of similar credit quality, by
quoted market prices of comparable instruments and by independent pricing sources or internally developed
pricing models. Investments whose value, in our judgment, is considered to be other-than-temporarily impaired
are written down to fair value as a charge to realized losses included in our earnings. The cost basis of these
written-down investments is adjusted to fair value at the date the determination of impairment is made The new
cost basis is not changed for subsequent recoveries in value. :

The following table presents our general account debt security portfolio at fair value as of December 31, 2003 and
2002 ($ amounts in millions), by SVO ratings, along with an equivalent Standard & Poor’s, or S&P, rating agency
designation, and by public and private securities. The majority of our debt securities are investment grade, with
91.7% invested in Categories 1 and 2 securities as of December 31, 2003.

. Total Debt Securities Public Debt Securities Private Debt Securities
SVO S&P Equivalent (Fair Value) (Fair Value) (Fair Value)

Rating Designation 2003 2002 2003 2002 2003 2002
1 AAA/AA/A............ $ §,821.2 $ 79715 $ 7,442.1 $ 6,560.4 §1,379.1 $ 1,411.1
2 BBB....ccooovrrinn, 3,350.8 2,849.0 2,160.6 1,767.1 1,190.2 1,081.9
Total investment grade 12,172.0 10,820.5 9,602.7 8,327.5 2,569.3 2,493.0
3 BB 764.9 785.7 635.5 577.4 1294 208.3
4 B 218.9 - 1054 157.8 82.2 61.1 232
5 CcCC and lower ... 94.6 118.5 53.7 53.3 40.9 65.2
6 In or near default.... 22.6 594 19.0 254 . 3.6 34.0
Total debt securities $13,273.0 $11,889.5 $10,468.7 $ 9.,065.8 $ 2,804.3 $ 2,823.7
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The following tables present our general account debt security portfolio by investment type as of December 31,
2003 ($ amounts in millions), along with a breakout of credit quality based on equivalent S&P rating agency

designation.

Unrealized Gains (Losses)

Fair Gross Grosg
Value Cost Gains Losses Net

Debt Securities by Type -
U.S. government and agency............. $ 757.0 $ 714.5 $ 44.0 $ (1.5) $ 42.5
State and political subdivision........... 510.3 468.4 43.5 (1.6) 41.9
Foreign government.........ccccooccveenenen. 260.4 239.0 23.2 (1.8) 21.4
COrporate ........ecerrreereeeenernerceneeeennns 6,765.8 6,412.4 400.4 (47.0) 3534
Mortgage-backed........cc.coovevrinnncnn, 3,097.5 2,963.4 143.4 (9.3) 134.1
Other asset-backed.........ccccoevmeneennen. 1,882:0 1,863.6 55.6 (37.2) 18.4
Total debt securities......................... $ 13,273.0 $ 12,661.3 $ 710.1 3 (98.4) $ 611.7
Debt securities outside closed block:

Unrealized gains .........cccoeveveveveneann. $ 35,1691 $ 49468 $ 2223 $ - $ 222.3

Unrealized [08S€S ......ccovvveireeeieennnn 1,197.5 1,247.4 -- (49.9) (49.9)

Total outside the closed block ....... 6,366.6 6,194.2 2223 (49.9) 172.4
Debt securities in closed block:

Unrealized gains..........ccooveee. e 5,807.5 5,319.7 487.8 - 487.8

Unrealized [0SS€S.......covurrererernnen 1,098.9 1,147.4 - (48.5) (48.5)

Total in the closed block................ 6,906.4 6,467.1 487.8 (48.5) 439.3
Total debt securities........................ $ 13,273.0 $ 12,6613 $ 710.1 $ (98.4) $ 611.7

Investment Grade

Below Investment Grade

Fair Value Cost Fair Value Cost
Debt Securities by Type and Credit Quality
U.S. government and agency .......o.oceevevemirrirererensnanens $ 757.0 3 714.5 $ - $ -
State and political subdivision..........ceceveervevrriernerinnns 510.3 468.4 -- --
Foreign government..........c.ccocoeerrnierconrenieennsereenennns 126.8 117.7 133.6 1213
COIPOTALE ...ccvverreerere it ee ettt eaees et et nanenes 6,013.3 5,682.2 752.5 730.2
Mortgage-backed........ccoovvvieeieiiiiiei e 3,035.2 2,907.8 62.3 55.6
Other asset-backed......cooviiiiieeiiiii et 1,729.4 1,704.7 152.6 158.9
Total debt securities..............cccocoovieeiiveeiniiceeieeecn $ 12,1720 $ 11,5953 $ 1,101.0 $ 1,066.0
Percentage of total debt securities............................... 91.7% 91.6% 8.3% 8.4%

Total AAA/AA/A BBB

Investment Grade Debt Securities (Fair Value)
U.S. government and ZENCY ......ccccvovoveeeeeurmeeceiveeseeeeesesesisesasenesesesesesesens $ 757.0 $ 7570 $ -
State and political SUDAIVISION .......ccorvierviieeierrcecicecerrreee e 510.3 497.2 13.1
Foreign OVErNMEnt.....oivcrieiiiiceti ettt 126.8 24.5 102.3
COTPOTALE ...ttt ettt sttt et et sttt re s sbe s s e enees 6,013.3 3,237.2 2,776.1
Mortgage-backed . .......cceciiiiirireeiee ettt 3,035.2 2,857.3 177.9
Other asset-backed........ccoouviviieiiiiicciee ettt e 1,729.4 1,448.0 281.4
Total debt SECUTIHES..............coocoviviiiiiiie ettt $ 12,172.0 $ 8.821.2 $ 3,350.8
Percentage of total debt securities..................cccocooeeiinnncncinc 91.7% 66.5% 25.2%
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In or Near

Total BB B CC or Lower Default
Below Investment Grade
Debt Securities (Fair Value) _
Foreign government............cccoeccnreen. $ 133.6 $ 129.7 $ 3.9 $ -- $ --
COTPOTALE ...vvceeececerearere e 752.5 526.8 167.1 550 3.6
Mortgage-backed........cccccocrerrvinnennnn. 62.3 61.9 - 0.2 0.2
Other asset-backed...........cccocvevrvrnnnne. 152.6 46.5 47.9 394 18.8
Total debt securities........................ $ 1,101.0 - § 764.9 $ 218.9 $ 94.6 $ 22.6

Percentage of total debt securities.. 8.3% 5.8% 1.6% 0.7% 0.2%

We manage credit risk through industry and issuer diversification. Maximum exposure to an issuer is defined by
quality ratings, with higher quality issuers having larger exposure limits. Our investment approach has been to
create a high level of industry diversification. The top five industry holdings as of December 31, 2003 in our debt
securities portfolio are banking (4.0%), insurance (2.6%), diversified financial services (2.5%), electrical utilities
(2.3%) and broker-dealers (2.2%).

Our corporate debt security exposure to currently troubled industries, including telecommunication equipment,
telephone utilities, airlines, media, publishing and broadcasting, comprises 3.1% of our debt securities portfolio at
December 31, 2003. In addition, within the asset-backed securities sector, our exposure to securitized aircraft
receivable securities comprise approximately 1% of our debt securities portfolio, with less than one-third of that
exposure rated below investment grade at December 31, 2003.

The following table presents certain information with respect to realized investment gains and losses including
those on debt securities pledged as collateral, with losses from other-than-temporary impairment charges reported
separately in the table. These impairment charges were determined based on our assessment of factors
enumerated below, as they pertain to the individual securities determined to be other-than-temporarily impaired.
Sources and types of net realized investment gains (losses) in our general account for 2003, 2002 and 2001 follow
($ amounts in millions):

2002 2001
2003 Restated Restated

Debt and equity security impairments .............ccoeeervrvrnreeniisesevesseeennnni $ (80.4) $ (1241 $ (46.1)
Affiliate equity security Impairments .........ccoveeeeirererecenneriesecereniesenans (96.9) - --
Debt securities pledged as collateral impairments...........ccccoovvireccecenennnnn, 8.3) (34.9) (39.0)
Other investment IMPAIMENTS ......c..c.ovrerereeriirreienrere e recseeenns (25.2) 27.7) (9.8)
Impairment 10SSes..............ccocovevvicievrerniniccnnereerns et et besanas (210.8) (186.7) (94.9)
Debt and equity security transaction gains ............ccoeueeerrrerersierernsenennn, 1525 118.8 65.4
Debt and equity security transaction lOSSES ..........vccreverniiriiierrereeecirennns (40.6) (68.3) (52.5)
Other investments transaction gains (10SSES) .........ceeervererrierrreurinreeerenerinnns (1.6) 23 2.9)
Net transaction ZainS ..........ccccocovvirrenriniinereeseeneee e 110.3 52.8 10.0
Net realized investment L0SSeS .............c.ccccooeeiiviciiienicecec s (100.5) (133.9) (84.9)
Applicable closed block policyholder dividend obligation (reduction)........ (5.9) (40.3) (15.4)
Applicable deferred acquisition costs (benefit) .........ccccoceveeeerivrinenecnn 4.1 (7.2) 10.5
Applicable deferred income tax benefit........c..cccocoovvvceronieereicncnieie e, (36.3) (20.8) (24.5)
Offsets to realized INVESMENt 10SSES .....v.ervvvenrrrereeroeeerreveseeerenereans e (46.3) . (68.3) (29.4)
Net realized investment losses included in net income...............c.c........... s (54.2) $ (65.6) $ (55.5)
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Realized impairment losses on debt and equity securities pledged as collateral relating to our direct investments in
the consolidated collateralized obligation trusts are $5.9 million, $8.6 million and $26.5 million for 2003, 2002
and 2001, respectively. -

Gross and net unrealized gains and losses from our general account debt and equity securities as of De’cemb‘er 31,7
2003 follow ($ amounts in millions):

Total Outside Closed Block Closed Block
Gains . Losses Gains Losses Gains’ Losses

Debt Securities N
Number of positions ........c.ccccvveiiivvnieniiens 1,938 447 785 264 1,153 183
Unrealized gains (losses) ............................ $§ 7101 'S (984) $§ 2223 $ (499) $ 4878 § (48.5)
Applicable policyholder dividend

obligation (reduction) .......c.cocvvrrvcvenencs, . 487.8 (48.5) - - - 487.8 - (48.5)
Applicable deferred policy acquisition

costs (benefit) coc.ooovvevervieriieeecereeriee s 120.4 (22.8) 120.4 (22.8) -
Applicable deferred income taxes (benefit). 357 (10.8) 357 (10.8) -- -
Offsets to net unrealized gains (losses)........ 643.9 (82.1) 156.1 . (33.9) 487.8 (48.5)
Unrealized gains (losses) after offsets....... $ 662 $ (163) $ 662 $§ (163) § - $ -
Net unrealized gains after offsets ............. 8 499 = $ 499 $ -- '
Equity Securities
Number 0f POSItIONS .........vvveeeveererrererernene. 3200 55 164 24 156 31
Unrealized gains (10sses) ...........c.ccoenvenennn $ 914 § (1.8) $ 833 § (14) $ 81 § 0.4)
Applicable policyholder dividend o

obligation (reduction) ..............ccoeveeenennen, 8.1 0.4) -- -- 8.1 (0.4)
Applicable deferred income taxes (benefit). 29.2 (0.5) 29.2 (0.5) -- - --
Offsets to net unrealized gains (Iosses) ........ 373 - (0.9 29.2 0.5) 8.1 (0.4)
Unrealized gains (losses) after offsets....... $ 541 $ 09 3 541 $ 09 3 - $ -
Net unrealized gains after offsets ............. $ 532 $ 532 ' $ --

Total net unrealized gains on debt and equity securities were $701.3 million (unrealized gains of $801.5 less
unrealized losses of $100.2). Of that net amount, $254.3 million was outside the closed block ($103.1 million
after applicable deferred policy acquisition costs and deferred income taxes) and $447.0 million was in the closed
block ($0.0 million after applicable policyholder dividend obligation).

At the end of each reporting period, we review all securities for potential recognition of an other-than-temporary
impairment. We maintain a watch list of securities in default, near default or otherwise considered by our
investment professionals as being distressed, potentially distressed or requiring a heightened level of scrutiny.
We also identify securities whose carrying value has been below amortized cost on a continuous basis for zero to
six months, greater than six months to 12 months, greater than 12 months to 24 months and greater than 24
months. This analysis is provided for investment grade and non-investment grade securities and closed block and

-outside of closed block securities. Using this analysis, coupled with our watch list, we review all securities whose
fair value is less than 80% of amortized cost (significant unrealized loss) with emphasis on below investment
grade securities with a continuous significant unrealized loss in excess of six months. In addition, we review
securities that had experienced lesser percentage declines in value on a more selective basis to determine if a
security is other-than-temporarily impaired.
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Our assessment of whether an investment by us in a debt or equlty security is other-than-temporarily 1mpa1red
includes whether the issuer has: .

¢ e e°0.06 0 0 o o

defaulted on payment obligations;

declared that it will default at a future point outside the current reporting period;

announced that a restructuring will occur outside the current reporting period;

severe liquidity problems that cannot be resolved,;

filed for bankruptcy;

a financial condition which suggests that future payments are hlghly unlikely;

deteriorating financial condition and quality of assets;

sustained significant losses during the current year;

announced adverse changes or events such as changes or planned changes in senior management,
restructurings, or a sale of assets; and/or

been affected by any other factors that indicate that the fair value of the investment may have been
negatively impacted.

The following tables present certain information with respect to our gross unrealized losses with respect to our

investments in general account debt securities, both outside and inside the closed block, as of December 31, 2003.

In the tables, we separately present information that is applicable to unrealized losses both outside and inside the
closed block. We believe it is unlikely that there would be any effect on our net income related to the realization

of investment losses inside the closed block due to the current sufficiency of the policyholder dividend obligation

liability in the closed block. See Note 3 to our consolidated financial statements in this Form 10-K for more
information regarding the closed block. Applicable deferred policy acquisition costs and income taxes further
reduce the effect on our comprehensive income.

59




Gross unrealized losses on general account debt and equity securities outside of the closed block as of December
31, 2003 by duration of unrealized loss and by debt securities credit quality follow ($ amounts in millions):

0-6 6-12 12-24 Over 24
Total Months Months Months Months
Debt Securities Outside Closed Block _
Number of POSItIONS ...vecveververerereeenerereenians 264 205 14 21 24
Total fair value .....ccccoovveevieeiii e $1,197.5 § 943.1 $§ 740 $ 66.0 $ 1144
Total amortized COSt.......ocvvveririeerenrieecreenns 1,247.4 961.9 80.4 . 72,0 133.1
Unrealized [0SSES .....vovierrrriieeeeiiie e, $ (49.9) $ (188 $ (64 $ (6.0 $ (187
Unrealized losses after offsets...........cou.... $ (16.3) $ (7.6 $  (0.6) $§ (05 § (7.6
Unrealized losses over 20% of cost.............. $ (l6.4) $ (0.5 $ - 37 $ (3 $ (9.7
Unrealized losses over 20% of cost ‘
after offSets . ocovecivcrrcee e § (1.0 $  (02) $ (06 $ 22 $ @0
Investment grade:
Number 0f poSitions ........oeeveveeeevereennenn, 230 193 11 13 13
Unrealized 10SSES ....oevvevereeererereeierenenens L. % (387 $ (16.4) $ (593 $§ @7 $ (12.8)
Unrealized losses after offsets............ccc...... $ (124 8 (64 (0.5) $ (04 $ (5.1)
Unrealized losses over 20% of cost............. $ Qi $ -- $ €] $ (2.5) $ (4.9)
Unrealized losses over 20% of cost
after offSets.......ccccveveiveieeecee e $ (3.3) $ -- 3 (0.6) $ (0.7) $ (2.0)
Below investment grade:
Number of positions ......c.cccvccrvererrinncnenne 34 12 3 8 11
Unrealized 10SSES ......covviveeeecericiierieeieeinn § (112 £ @9 £ (0.6) $ (23 $ (5.9)
Unrealized losses after offsets ..................... $ 39 $§ (12 $ @D $ (1) $8 (29
Unrealized losses over 20% of cost............. $§ (53 $ (05 $ - $ - $ 4.9
Unrealized losses over 20% of cost ‘
after offSets ...ooiveeiiiecciee e $ (3.7 $ 02 $ - $ (1.5) $ (2.0)
Equity Securities Qutside Closed Block
Number of POSItioNS .......c.cccovvrcnnvicrarenas 24 16 3 2 3
Unrealized 10SSeS.......ovverveeivireeriveiere e $ (1.4) $ (0.6) $ (0.2) $ (0.5) $ (0.1)
Unrealized losses after offsets ..................... § 09 $ (04 § (1) § (03 $ (O
Unrealized losses over 20% of cost............. $ (04 $ (01 $ (02 $ -- $ (0.1
Unrealized losses over 20% of cost

ATtEr OTTSELS wooveereeer et 3 - $ -- $ - $ -- $ --

For debt securities outside of the closed block with gross unrealized losses, 78% of the unrealized losses after
offsets pertain to investment grade securities and 22% of the unrealized losses after offsets pertain to below
investment grade securities.

Of the 230 investment grade debt securities held outside the closed block with unrealized losses, 204 have been in
an unrealized loss position for 12 months or less at December 31, 2003 (including 203 that have unrealized losses
less than 20% of cost). Of the remaining 26 security positions, 13 have been in an unrealized loss position for 12
to 24 months (including 12 that have unrealized losses less than 20% of cost) and 13 have been in an unrealized
loss position for over 24 months (including 11 that have unrealized losses less than 20% of cost).

Of the 34 below investment grade debt security positions held outside the closed block with unrealized losses, 15
have been in an unrealized loss position for 12 months or less at December 31, 2003 (including 13 that have

60




unrealized losses less than 20% of cost). Of the remaining 19 security positions, eight have been in an unrealized
loss position for 12 to 24 months (all that have unrealized losses less than 20% of cost) and 11 have been in an
unrealized loss position for over 24 months (including seven that have unrealized losses less than 20% of cost).

Of the six below investment grade debt security positions held outside the closed block with gross unrealized
losses greater than 20% of cost at December 31, 2003, four have been in an unrealized position of greater than
20% of cost for 12 months or less at December 31, 2003. Of the remaining two positions, one has been in an

. unrealized loss position greater than 20% of cost for 12 to 24 months and one has been in an unrealized loss
position greater than 20% of cost for over 24 months with an unrealized loss of less than $(0.0) million.

Of the 24 equity securities held outside the closed block with unrealized losses, 19 have been in an unrealized loss
position for 12 months or less at December 31, 2003 (including 17 that have unrealized losses less than 20% of
cost). Of the remaining five securities, two have been in an unrealized loss position for 12 to 24 months (both
have unrealized losses less than 20% of cost) and three have been in an unrealized loss position for over 24
months (including one that has unrealized losses less than 20% of cost).
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Gross unrealized losses on general account debt and equity securities in the closed block as of December 31, 2003
by duration of unrealized loss and by debt securities credit quality follow ($ amounts in millions):

0-6 6-12 12-24 Over 24

Total Months Months .Months Months .

Debt Securities Inside Closed Block ' :
Number of poSItions ........ccoueverereerieccnninens 183 - 139 15 13 ‘ 16
Total fair value ...cvvevivveereeeceecee e $ 1,098.7 $ 916.0 $ 326 $ 563 $ 938
Total amortized COSt ......ccceevrvvieireiriiiirieinn, 1,147.2 © 9447 34.7 63.5 104.3
Unrealized 10SS€S ......cocvovevvvivirierereesenenns $ (485 $ (28.7) £ @D $§ (@72 $ (10.5)
Unrealized losses after offSets ...........co.o...... $ - $ - $ - 8 - $ -
Unrealized losses over 20% of cost.......... . 3 (13) 3 (2.5) $ (07 S (31 $ (5.0
Unrealized losses over 20% of cost 4 ‘

after OffSEts .oovvviviicviicee e $ - $ -- $ - $ - $ --
Investment grade:
Number of poSItions ......cccecoveereereeirereeneen. 155 129 12 5 9
Unrealized [0SSES ...cccocvivieverinirirrenieerineeeees § (30.4) $ (242 $§ (0.8) $ a7 $ (37
Unrealized losses after offsets .................... by -- $ - $ - $ -- $ -
Unrealized losses over 20% of cost.............. $ . $ - $ - $ - $ (1.1
Unrealized losses over 20% of cost »

After OffSELS ..vvvvirveeicriiiee et $ -- 3 - $ -- $ - $ --
Below investment grade:
Number of pOSItiONS ........cccvverveeriereenrerenne 28 10 3 8 7
Unrealized 10SS€S ........cccvvereervivercrcieeeennenan. $ (8.1 $ @43 $ (13 $ (53 $ (68
Unrealized losses after offsets ..................... $ - $ - $ - $ - 3 -
Unrealized losses over 20% of cost............. $ (10.2) $ @5 $ 0N $ @G $ (39
Unrealized losses over 20% of cost

after offSets .....ccvoeviiieeeceee e $ - $ -- $ - $ -- $ -
Equity Securities Inside Closed Block
Number of PoSItIONS .......ccovereverreveerrnnncns 31 31 0 0 0
Unrealized 10SSES ....coviveeviveiriceerirecireieraennns $§ (04 § (04 $ - $ -- $ --
Unrealized losses after offsets.................... $ -- $ - $ - $ - $ -
Unrealized losses over 20% of cost............. $ (0.1) $ 0.1) $ -- $ - $ -
Unrealized losses over 20% of cost

after OffSets ....oo.civererereriee e $ -- 3 - $ - 3 - 5 -

For debt securities in the closed block with gross unrealized losses, 63% of the unrealized losses pertain to
investment grade securities and 37% of the unrealized losses pertain to below investment grade securities.

Of the 155 investment grade debt securities held in the closed block with unrealized losses, 141 have been in an
unrealized loss position for 12 months or less at December 31, 2003 (all of which have unrealized losses less than
20% of cost). Of the remaining 14 security positions, nine have been in an unrealized loss position for over 24
months (including eight that have unrealized losses less than 20% of cost).

Of the 28 below investment grade debt security positions held in the closed block with unrealized losses, 13 have

been in an unrealized loss position for 12 months or less at December 31, 2003 (including 11 that have unrealized
losses less than 20% of cost). Of the remaining 15 positions, eight have been in an unrealized loss position for 12
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to 24 months (including seven that have unrealized losses less than 20% of cost) and seven have been in an
unrealized loss position for over 24 months (including five that have unrealized losses less than 20% of cost).

Of the five below investment grade debt security positions held in the closed block with gross unrealized losses
greater than 20% of cost at Deceniber 31, 2003, two have been in an unrealized loss position of greater than 20%
of cost for 12 months or less at December 31, 2003. Of the remaining three positions, two have been in an
unrealized position greater than 20% of cost for 12 to 24 months. None of these securities were considered to be
other-than-temporarily impaired at December 31, 2003. Each security has performed, and is expected to continue
to perform, in accordance with their original contractual terms. Two issues are collateralized airplane lease
related holdings that have declined in fair value due to airline bankruptcies, reduced travel and higher risk
premiums required for aircraft related investments: The unrealized loss on these securities at December 31, 2003
was $(5.9) million. The other issue is an energy/power generation related holding that has declined in fair value
due to downgrades, bankruptcies and weakness in the energy market. The unrealized loss on this security at
December 31, 2003 was $(1.1) million, or 22%, of its amortized cost.

Of the 31 equity securities held inside the closed block with unrealized losses, all have been in an unrealized loss
position for 6 months or less as of December 31, 2003.

In determining that the securities giving rise to the previously mentioned unrealized losses were not other-than-
temporarily impaired, we evaluated the factors cited above, which we consider when assessing whether a security
is other-than-temporarily impaired. In making these evaluations, we must exercise considerable judgment.
Accordingly, there can be no assurance that actual results will not differ from our judgments and that such
differences may require the future recognition of other-than-temporary impairment charges that could have a
material affect on our financial position and results of operations. In addition, the value of, and the realization of
any loss on, a debt security or equity security is subject to numerous risks, including; interest rate risk, market
risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The magmtude of any loss incurred by us may be affected by the relative
concentration of our investments in any one issuer or industry. We have established specific policies limiting the
concentration of our investments in.any single issuer and industry and believe our investment portfolio is
prudently diversified. -

Aberdeen Asset Ménagem,ent' PLC

As of December 31, 2003, we owned $27.5 million of Aberdeen 7.5% convertible subordinated notes. The 7.5%
convertible subordinated notes were originally issued in 1996 at 7%, with a maturity of March 29, 2003, subject
to four six-month extensions at Aberdeen’s option with increasing interest rates. In March 2003, these notes were
partially paid down by $5.0 million, with the remainder extended, subject to a rate increase to 7.5% and a maturity
of September 29, 2003. The maturity on these notes was extended again to March 29, 2004 with a partial pay
down of $5.0 million received in November 2003 at an interest rate of 7.5%. Prior to the fourth quarter of 2003,
we owned $19.0 million of 5.875% convertible bonds which were issued in 2002 and mature in 2007. During the
fourth quarter of 2003, we sold the Aberdeen 5.875% bonds and realized a gain of $0.7 million.

Prior to October 24, 2003, our ownership of Aberdeen common stock included 22% of the company’s outstanding
common shares that we purchased in between 1996 and 2001 for $109.1 million. As of June 30, 2003, we
concluded that our equity investment in Aberdeen, accounted for under the equity method of accounting, was
other-than-temporarily impaired resulting in an $89.1 million pre-tax, non-cash charge to earnings during the
three month period ended June 30, 2003.. The carrying value of our equity investment in Aberdeen was $38.3
million and $119.3 million at December 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively. The fair value, based on quoted market
price of underlying shares, of our equity investment in Aberdeen was $65.2 million, $54.4 million and $43.6
million at March 11, 2004, December 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively.

During the second half of 2002, the value of Aberdeen’s publicly traded shares experienced a significant decline
due to a general decline in valuations of U.K. asset managers as well as regulatory matters related to the U.K.
split-capital trust sector, including Aberdeen’s managed funds. In late 2002, Aberdeen announced the results of a
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strategic review, which concluded with an announcement of a decision to divest itself of a business segment that
actively manages property investments and of a conditional agreement to dispose of its rights to manage certain
retail funds.

Since the third quarter of 2002, we have evaluated the carrying value of our equity method investment in
Aberdeen for other-than-temporary impairment. This evaluation considered quantitative and qualitative factors
including quoted market price for the underlying securities, the length of time that the carrying value has been in
excess of fair value, historical and projected earnings and cash flow capacity.

As of June 30, 2003, we concluded that our equity investment in Aberdeen, accounted for under the equity
method of accounting, was other-than-temporarily impaired after consideration of the following:

s restructuring activities announced to date had not materialized as originally contemplated,;
continuing inquiry by U.K. regulatory authorities related to “mis-selling” of certain split capital trusts
funds managed by Aberdeen with no resolution anticipated in the near-term;
disputes with clients related to certain closed-end funds managed by Aberdeen; and
as at June 30, 2003, the carrying value of our equity method investment in Aberdeen had continuously
exceeded the underlying fair value as represented by its publicly traded share price for a period of nine to
12 months. ' '

The other-than-temporary impairment of our equity investment in Aberdeen resulted in an $89.1 million pre-tax
($55.0 million after income taxes), non-cash charge to earnings during the three-month period ended June 30,
2003.

On October 24, 2003, Aberdeen completed the acquisition of 100% of the outstanding common stock of
Edinburgh Fund Managers Group plc, an Edinburgh Scotland based asset manager, for £36 million through the
issuance of 58.9 million shares of Aberdeen common stock. Subsequent to this acquisition, and as of December
31, 2003 our percentage ownership in Aberdeen’s common stock was diluted from approximately 22% to 16.2%;
although our representation on Aberdeen’s Board of Directors remained at two seats out of 12 seats. Based on
our continued substantial ownership position and related board representation, we have the ability to significantly
influence the operations of Aberdeen and, therefore, we continue to account for our investment using the equity
method of accounting subsequent to October 24, 2003,

Hilb, Rogal & Hamilton Company

Our investment in HRH, a Virginia-based property and casualty insurance and employee benefit products
distributor, includes primarily common stock. See Notes 5 and 6 to our consolidated financial statements in this
Form 10-K for detailed information regarding our investment in HRH.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

In the normal course of business, we enter into transactions involving various types of financial instruments such
as debt and equity securities. These instruments have credit risk and also may be subject to risk of loss due to

interest rate and market fluctuations.

Liquidity refers to the ability of a company to generate sufficient cash flow to meet its cash requirements. The
following discussion combines liquidity and capital resources as these subjects are interrelated.
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The Phoenix Companies, Inc. (consolidated)

The following table presents summary consolidated cash flow data for 2003, 2002 and 2001 ($ amounts in
millions): :

: Changes
2003 - 2002 2001 2003/02 2002/01

Cash from continuing operations................. § 3931 $ 3161 $ 2512 § 77.0 h 64.9
Cash for discontinued operations................. (36.5) (59.1) (76.8) 22.6 17.7
Cash for continuing operations

INVEStNG ACtIVILIES .ovuevrerireeeereereeeenaenns (1,134.7) (2,498.7) (1,891.0) 1,364.0 (607.7)
Cash from discontinued operations _ ‘

INvesting activities ....ocevveeivccereerer e (4.4) 373 79.4 v 41.7) (42.1)
Cash from financing activities............cov..... 119.9 2,491.6 1,742.9 (2,371.7) 748.7

2003 vs. 2002

For 2003, cash from continuing operations increased $77.0 million compared to 2002, due primarily to higher
investment income collected and lower operating expenses paid, partially offset by lower premiums collected.

For 2003, cash for continuing operations investing activities decreased $1,364.0 million compared to 2002, due
primarily to lower cash from financing activities from lower policyholder deposit fund receipts and lower net
proceeds from collateralized obligations. Proceeds from collateralized obligations were higher in 2002 due to
proceeds from Mistic CDO which closed in 2002.

For 2003, cash from financing activities decreased $2,371.7 million compared to 2002, due primarily to lower
policyholder deposit fund receipts and lower net proceeds from collateralized obligations (discussed above),
partially offset by treasury stock purchases in 2002 that were not continued in 2003.

2002 vs. 2001

For 2002, cash from continuing operations increased $64.9 million compared to 2001, due primarily to lower benefit
payments and expenses paid, partially offset by lower prémiums collected.

For 2002, cash for investing activities increased $607.7 million compared to 2001, due primarily to higher cash from
financing (discussed below), partially offset by higher acquisition costs of subsidiary purchases in 2001.

For 2002, cash from financing activities increased $748.7 million compared to 2001, due to proceeds from the equity
units and stock purchase contract transactions, increases in policyholder deposit fund receipts and proceeds from the
Mistic CDO, partially offset by the proceeds from our [PO and debt offering in 2001.

The Phoenix Companies, Inc. (parent company only)

The following table presents cash flow data for 2003, 2002 and 2001 ($ amounts in millions):

Changes
2003 2002 2001 2003/02 2002/01
Cash from operating activities.................... $ 33.2 $ 61.3 $ 90.3 $  (281) (290
Cash for investing activities...........ecvocvvenine (25.7) (372.0) -~ (900.4) 346.3 5284
Cash (for) from financing activities............. (15.1) . 136.1 1,015.1 (151.2) (879.0)
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2003 vs. 2002

Cash from operating activities decreased $28.1 million in 2003 compared to 2002, primarily due to a decrease of
$22.5 million in the dividend from Phoenix Life and slightly higher expense payments.

Cash for investing activities decreased $346.3 million in 2003 compared to 2002, due to reduced contributions
and advances to subsidiaries and lower equity security purchases. This resulted from reduced cash from financing
as discussed below.

Cash from financing activities decreased $151.2 million in 2003 compared to 2002, due to the proceeds from the
issuance of stock purchase contracts and equity units in 2002 for an aggregate of $ 283.0 million, partially offset
by common stock repurchases of $131.1 million. Those financing activities did not recur in 2003.

2002 vs. 2001

Cash from operating activities decreased $29.0 million in 2002 compared to 2001, primarily due to a decrease of
$65.3 million in the dividend from Phoenix Life, partially offset by lower expenses paid, primarily
demutualization related, and higher investment income, primarily related to interest received on borrowing by
Phoenix Investment Partners.

Cash for investing activities decreased 528.4 millions in 2002 compared to 2001, due to purchases of subsidiaries
from Phoenix Life in 2001 for $659.8 million that did not recur in 2002. These purchases were part of the
demutualization and reorganization discussed previously and in Note 1 to our consolidated financial statements in
this Form 10-K.

Cash from financing activities decreased $879.0 million in 2002 compared to 2001, primarily proceeds from our
public offering in 2001 of $831.0, which did not recur in 2002. See Note 1 to our consolidated financial
statements in this Form 10-K for additional information.

The holding company’s primary uses of liquidity include dividend payments on its common stock, loans or
contributions to its subsidiaries, debt service and general corporate expenses.

The holding company’s primary sources of liquidity have been dividends from Phoenix Life and interest income
received from Phoenix Investment Partners. Under New York Insurance Law, Phoenix Life can pay stockholder
dividends to the holding company in any calendar year without prior approval from the New York Superintendent
of Insurance in the amount of the lesser of 10% of Phoenix Life’s surplus to policyholders as of the immediately
preceding calendar year or Phoenix Life’s statutory net gain from operations for the immediately preceding
calendar year, not including realized capital gains. Phoenix Life paid a dividend of $44.5 million in April 2003
and is able to pay a dividend of $69.7 million in 2004 under this provision. See Note 15 to our consolidated
financial statements in this Form 10-K for more information on Phoenix Life statutory financial information and
regulatory matters.

The holding company sponsors post-employment benefit plans through pension and savings plans and post-
retirement health care and life insurance for employees of Phoenix Life and Phoenix Investment Partners.
Funding of these obligations is provided by Phoenix Life and Phoenix Investment Partners on a 100% cost
reimbursement basis through administrative services agreements with the holding company. See Note 11 to our
consolidated financial statements in this Form 10-K for additional information.

Phoenix Investment Partners pays interest to the holding company on its debt from the holding company. The
holding company does not expect to receive dividends from Phoenix Investment Partners in the near term because
it will likely use a substantial portion of its cash flows from operations to pay contingent consideration for prior
acquisitions, to repay intercompany debt, including debt to the holding company and interest on debt.
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On December 22, 2003, we closed on a new $150.0 million unfunded, unsecured senior revolving credit facility to
replace our $100 million credit facility, which expired on that date. This-new facility consists of two tranches: a -
$112.5 million, 364-day revolving credit facility and a $37.5 million, 3-year revolving credit facility. Under the
364-day facility, we have the ability to extend the maturity date of any outstanding borrowings for one year from
the termination date. Potential borrowers on the new credit line are the holding company, Phoenix Life and
Phoenix Investment Partners. Financial covenants require the maintenance at all times of: consolidated
stockholders’ equity of $1,775.0 million, stepping up by 50% of quarterly positive net income and 100% of equity
issuances; a maximum consolidated debt-to-capital ratio of 30%; a minimum consolidated fixed charge coverage
ratio (as defined in the credit agreement) of 1.25:1; and, for Phoenix Life, a minimum nsk based capital ratio of
250% and a minimum A.M. Best Financial Strength Rating of A-.

See Note 18 to our consohdated financial statements in this Form 10-K for more information on the holding
company.

Life Companies

The Life Companies’ liquidity requirements principally relate to: the liabilities associated with various life
insurance and annuity products; the payment of dividends by Phoenix Life to The Phoenix Companies, Inc.;
operating expenses; contributions to subsidiaries; and payment of principal and interest by Phoenix Life on its
outstanding debt obligations. Liabilities arising from life insurance and annuity products include the payment of
benefits, as well as cash payments in connection with policy surrenders, withdrawals and loans. The Life
Companies also have liabilities arising from the runoff of the remammg group accident and health reinsurance
discontinued operations.

Historically, our Life Companies have used cash flow from operations and investment activities to fund hiquidity
requirements. Their principal cash inflows from life insurance and annuities activities come from premiums,
annuity deposits and charges on insurance policies and annuity contracts. In‘the case of Phoenix Life, cash
inflows also include dividends, distributions and other payments from subsidiaries. Principal cash inflows from
investment activities result from repayments of principal, proceeds from maturities, sales of invested assets and
investment income. The principal cash inflows from our discontinued group accident and health reinsurance
operations come from our finite reinsurance, recoveries from other retrocessionaires and investment activities. ..
See Note 17 to our consolidated financial statements in this Form 10-K for additional information.

Additional liquidity to meet cash outflows is available from our Life Companies’ portfolios of liquid assets.
These liquid assets include substantial holdings of U.S. government and agency bonds, short-term investments
and marketable debt and equity securities.

Phoenix Life’s current sources of liquidity also include a revolving credit facility under which Phoenix Life has
direct borrowing rights, subject to our unconditional guarantee. Since the demutualization, Phoenix Life’s access
to the cash flows generated by the closed block assets has been restricted to funding the closed block.

A primary liquidity concern with respect to life insurance and annuity products is the risk of early policyholder
and contractholder withdrawal. Our Life Companies closely monitor their liquidity requirements in order to
match cash inflows with expected cash outflows, and employ an asset/liability management approach tailored to
the specific requirements of each product line, based upon the return objectives, risk tolerance, liquidity, tax and
regulatory requirements of the underlying products. - In particular, our Life Companies maintain investment
programs generally intended to provide adequate funds to pay benefits without forced sales of investments.
Products having liabilities with relatively long lives, such as life insurance, are matched with assets having similar
estimated lives, such as long-term bonds, private placement bonds and mortgage loans. Shorter-term liabilities
are matched with investments with short-term and medium-term fixed maturities.
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The following table summarizes the withdrawal characteristics of our Life Companies’ annuity contract reserves
and deposit fund liabilities as of December 31, 2003 and 2002 ($ amounts in millions):

2003 2002

Amount"” Percent Amount’) Percent

Not subject to discretionary withdrawal provision.................... $ 2208 3% $§ 168.1 3%
Subject to discretionary withdrawal without adjustment........... 1,967.2 28% 2,073.3 . 35%
Subject to discretionary withdrawal with market value

AAJUSEINENE ....cvocvevrie sttt 811.6 11% 649.7 11%
Subject to discretionary withdrawal at contract value less

SUITENAET CHATZE ..vvvvve vt sae s 869.8 12% 701.5 11%
Subject to discretionary withdrawal at market value................ 3,294.0 46% 2,386.5 40%
Total annuity contract reserves and deposit fund liability.. § 7,163.4 100% $ 5,979.1 100%

" Contract reserves and deposit fund liability amounts are reported on a statutory basis, which more accurately reflects the
potential cash outflows and include variable product liabilities. Annuity contract reserves and deposit fund liabilities are
monetary amounts that an insurer must have available to provide for future obligations with respect to its annuities and
deposit funds. These are liabilities on the balance sheet of financial statements prepared in conformity with statutory
accounting practices. These amounts are at least equal to the values available to be withdrawn by policyholders.

Individual life insurance policies are less susceptible to withdrawals than annuity contracts because policyholders
may incur surrender charges and be required to undergo a new underwriting process in order to obtain a new
insurance policy. As indicated in the table above, most of our annuity contract reserves and deposit fund
liabilities are subject to withdrawals.

Individual life insurance policies, other than term life insurance policies, increase in cash values over their lives.
Policyholders have the right to borrow an amount generally up to the cash value of their policies at any time. As
of December 31, 2003, our Life Companies had approximately $11.5 billion in cash values with respect to which
policyholders had rights to take policy loans. The majority of cash values eligible for policy loans are at variable
interest rates that are reset annually on the policy anniversary. Policy loans at December 31, 2003 were

$2.2 billion.

The primary liquidity risks regarding cash inflows from the investment activities of our Life Companies are the
risks of default by debtors, interest rate and other market volatility and potential illiquidity of investments. We
closely monitor and manage these risks.

We believe that the current and anticipated sources of liquidity for our Life Companies are adequate to meet their
present and anticipated needs.

Phoenix Investment Partners

Phoenix Investment Partners’ liquidity requirements are primarily to fund operating expenses and pay its debt and
interest obligations. Phoenix Investment Partners also would require liquidity to fund the costs of any contingent
payments for previous acquisitions, as well as any potential acquisitions. Historically, Phoenix Investment
Partners’ principal source of liquidity has been cash flows from operations. We expect that cash flow from
_operations will continue to be Phoenix Investment Partners’ principal source of working capital. Phoenix
Investment Partners® current sources of liquidity also include a revolving credit facility under which Phoenix
Investment Partners has direct borrowing rights subject to the unconditional guarantee of The Phoenix
Companies, Inc. We believe that Phoenix Investment Partners’ current and anticipated sources of liquidity are
adequate to meet its present and anticipated needs. See Note 6 to our consolidated financial statements in this
Form 10-K for further details on our financing activities. It is anticipated that Phoenix Investment Partners will
draw $25.0 million against the credit facility during the first quarter of 2004 in order to fulfill an obligation
related to the Kayne Anderson Rudnick acquisition. See Commitments Related to Recent Business Combinations
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and Note 4 to our consolidated financial statements in this Form 10-K for additional information.

Consolidated Financial Condition

The following table presents the consolidated balance sheet as of December 31, 2003 and 2002 ($ amounts in

millions):
2002
. 2003 Restated Change
ASSETS
Available-for-sale debt securities, at fair value ...........ccooevveieveereiiiceecenn, $ 13,273.0 $ 11,889.5 $ 1,3835
Available-for-sale equity securities, at fair value ..o, 312.0 385.9 (73.9)
Mortgage loans, at unpaid principal balances............c.cceviicnnniiiininns 284.1 468.8 (184.7)
Venture capital partnerships, at equity in net assets ........cccovvevricrensecnes 234.9 228.6 6.3
Affiliate equity securities, at equity in net assetS.....ocvvvvciicrereccrerereneens 47.5 134.7 (87.2)
Policy loans, at unpaid principal balances..........c.ccocvveveinnccrinniecenn, 2,227.8 2,195.9 31.9
Other INVESIMENTS .......oveveieveiiiieeieiirirei e sreeten e et saes et er e seseienes 402.0 398.9 3.1
16,781.3 15,702.3 1,079.0

Available-for-sale debt and equity

securities pledged as collateral, at fair value ..o 1,350.0 1,358.7 (8.7
Total INVESEMENES..........ccoovviiriiriree et ebe e 18,131.3 17,061.0 1,070.3
Cash and cash equivalents ..........coocceonniiniccciiiincc 447.9 1,110.5 (662.6)
Accrued investment income and receivables ..........coccoccoenniennnecee, 4472 409.7 37.5
Deferred policy acquisition COStS........ouiureccormiinnceeiii e, 1,367.7 1,234.1 133.6
Deferred ifCOmME tAXES . .veirivriiriiereririeretere et stee et e srebcsbenesrene 587 414 : 17.3
Goodwill and other intangible assets.......coc.ooovveveveervrieiree e 755.0 747.7 7.3
Other general account asSets.......oovoviecriiiciiimmiinicie e 268.2 260.3 79
SEPArate ACCOUNE ASSELS...vvurrireiereririeriiretererieiete st ete st sretenberebereseebenesssenenens 6,083.2 4,371.2 1,712.0
TOLAl ASSELS .....ooviviiiiiiieeieii ettt et eae s e e e ebentesare e enees $ 27,559.2 $ 25,235.9 $ 23233
LIABILITIES ‘
Policy liabilities and 8CCruals ......c.oveveeeenvrriiicinnies et $ 13,088.6 $ 12,680.0 $ 408.6
Policyholder deposit funds .......c..cooveecviiiiiciiiiiiee, 3,642.7 3,395.7 247.0
Stock purchase contracts and indebtedness ..........coecmiicvcniiniiccniinnnn 767.8 781.9 (14.1)
Other general account labilities ... 5257 5427 (17.0)
Non-recourse collateralized obligations ..o 1,472.0 1,609.5 (137.5)
Separate account Habilities ..........covvcreiirnininciiinnerncii e 6,083.2 4,371.2 1,712.0
Total HADIHEIES ......c.ooovieiveirieee ettt 25,580.0 23,381.0 2,199.0
MINORITY INTEREST
Minority interest in net assets of consolidated subsidiaries ................... 314 28.1 3.3
STOCKHOLDERS® EQUITY ‘
Common stock and additional paid in capital............... BTSSR : 2,429.8 2,425.4 44
Deferred compensation on restricted stock Units ........cocceeevenineniincnncnan, (3.6) -- (3.6}
Accumulated defiCit........cocoirrciiniiiiiii e (352.7) (331.4) (21.3)
Accumulated other comprehensive inComMe .........oovcveveriiecvcnrersiiicnins 63.7 (71.5) 135.2
TrEaSUIY STOCK ...oeieeiriiccrcitcc e s (189.4) (195.7) 6.3
Total stockholders’ equity..............ccccoovviiniiinniii 1,947.8 1,826.8 121.0
Total liabilities, minority interest and stockholders’ equity ............... $ 27,559.2 $ 25,2359 $ 23233

69




2003 vs. 2002

Available-for-sale debt securities increased $1,383.5 million, or 12%, in 2003 compared to 2002, reflecting
significant appreciation of bond values due to lower interest rates, as well as the investment of December 31,
2002 cash in debt securities.

Equity securities decreased $73.9 million, or 19%, in 2003 compared to 2002, primarily due to the sale of equity
positions in two General Electric Company life insurance subsidiaries and PXRE Group, Ltd., and a decrease in
the fair value of HRH common stock, which we hold as collateral for our stock purchase contracts, partially offset
by appreciation in the value of other equity securities.

Affiliate equity securities decreased $87.2 million, or 65%, in 2003 compared to 2002, primarily due to an $89.1
million pre-tax, non-cash charge related to the other-than-temporary impairment of our equity investment in
Aberdeen taken in the second quarter of 2003. See Note 5 to our consolidated financial statements in this Form
10-K for additional information.

Mortgage loans decreased $184.7 million, or 39%, in 2003 compared to 2002, reflecting continued mortgage loan
paydowns, including several significant prepayments and the sale of a portfolio of loans in 2003.

Cash and cash equivalents decreased $662.6 million, or 60%, in 2003 compared to 2002, primarily due to cash
outflows for the purchase of debt securities, partially offset by policyholder deposit fund receipts, and cash
inflows from continuing operations.

Accrued investment income increased $37.5 million, or 9%, in 2003 compared to 2002, as a result of higher
invested asset balances. ' '

Amortization of policy acquisition costs increased $133.6 million, or 11%, in 2003 compared to 2002, due
primarily to business growth and the acquisition of the minority interest PFG. See Note 3 to our consolidated
financial statements in this Form 10-K for additional information. The composition of deferred acquisition costs
by product at December 31, 2003 and 2002 follows ($ amounts in millions):

2003 2002 Change
Variable universal life ....ccccoiviiiiciie et U $ 328.7 $ 3099 $ 188
Universal life.....coooveviveieeciiieeeee, e e et —— 169.3 105.2 64.1
Variable annUItIES ..........ccevereerertereririe ettt 260.3 240.0 20.3
FiXed ANNUITIES....coovevivieieieriee et e sttt eb s et s rn e 452 7.7 37.5
Participating Jife ..o 536.7 551.0 (14.3)
OHET ..ttt etttk et s etk nanebe s 27.5 20.3 7.2
Total deferred acquisition costs.................occcviviiniiinnncnecs $1,367.7 $1,234.1 $ 133.6

Policy liabilities and accruals increased $408.6 million, or 3%, in 2003 compared to 2002, primarily due to
growth in policyholder inforce, partially offset by a decrease in the policyholder dividend obligation.

Policyholder deposit funds increased $247.0 million, or 7%, in 2003 compared to 2002, primarily due to growth
in fixed and market value adjusted annuity deposits, offset by net withdrawals from variable annuity guaranteed
interest account sub-accounts. ‘

Stock purchase contracts and indebtedness decreased $14.1 million, or 2%, in 2003 compared to 2002, primarily
due to the increase in the fair value of the embedded derivative investment. We recorded a favorable change in
fair value of the embedded derivative investment of $8.8 with an offset to other comprehensive income. The
increased fair value of the embedded derivative investment was primarily due to a decrease in the quoted market
price of HRH common stock. Additionally, there was a $5.3 million decrease in the interest rate swap related to
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our senior unsecured bonds. See Note 6 to our consolidated financial statements in this Form 10-K for additional
information. :

Non-recourse collateralized obligations decreased $137 5 million, or 14%, in 2003 compared to 2002, due to
distributions to investors and decreases in the non-recourse derivative cash flow hedges.

Contractual Obligations and Commercial Commitments -

As of December 31, 2003, we had $2,074.2 million of outstanding contractual obligations, excluding derivative
instruments, and $134.0 million in commercial commitments. The following table presents our contractual
obligations and commercial commitments, including the years in which such obligations will come due and such
commercial commitments expire ($ amounts in millions).

Total 2004 2605 =2006 2007 —2008 Thereafter

Contractual Obligations Due .

1 .
TNAEDLEANESS.  wvrrerrreerreerr e Vi S 6287 - $ 1750 $ 1537 . $ 3000
Capital lease obligations...........cccocvernenens - - - - S
Operating lease obligations...........c.cceveevenes 415 114 16.7. 10.2 3.2
Other purchase liabilities™® ......... eeeeerieres 59.7 45.5 11.8 24 --
Subtotal.................... ettt e $§ 7299 §- 569 $ 2035 $ 1663 $ 3032
Non-recourse collateralized obligations(” 1,3443 . , - . - - 1,344.3
Total contractual ot_)ligations .................... $ 2,074.2 $ 56.9 $ 2035 $ 1663 $ 1,647.5
Commercial Commitments Expire . ‘

4 . . .

Standby letters of credit' - w..rvomroeerorrien $ 90 $§ 90 § - - § -
Other commercial commitments™®........... 1250 34 4.6 25.1 91.9
Total commercial commitments ............... $ 1340 $ 124 $ 4.6 $ 25.1 $ 91.9

M

' Indebtedness amounts include principal only.
@

Other purchase liabilities includes $30.0 million due in the first quarter of 2004 related to a recent business combination.
The remainder relates to open purchase orders and other contractual obligations.

Non-recourse obligations are not direct liabilities of ours as they will be repaid from investments pledged as collateral
recorded on our consolidated balance sheet. See Note 8 to our consolidated financial statements in this Form 10- K for
additional information. -

Our standby letters of credit automatically renew on an annual basis.

Other commercial commitments relate to venture capital partnerships. These commitments can be drawn down by
private equity funds as necessary to fund their portfolio investments through the end of the funding period as stated in
each agreement. The amount collectively drawn down by the private equity funds in our portfolio during 2003 was
$41.3 million.

Obhgatlons and commitments related to post-employment benefit plans and commitments related to recent business
combinations are not included in amounts presented within table. See the discussion on the following pages.

(€

)
(&)

(6)

Commitments Related to Recent Business Combinations

Under the terms of purchase agreements related to certain recent business combinations, we are subject to certain
contractual obligations and commitments related to additional purchase consideration and put/call arrangements
summarized as follows:

Kayne Anderson Rudnick

We have an earn-out arrangement effective December 31, 2003 for non-Phoenix members of Kayne Anderson
Rudnick that is in the form of a put/call. Non-Phoenix members will be entitled to a payment in the first quarter
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of 2004 equal to the excess (if any) of (a) the lesser of (i) $165 million or (ii) 2003 net investment advisory fees
times 4.5 times 60%, over (b) $100 million. The maximum payment is $65 million. As of December 31, 2003,
we have accrued approximately $30 million related to this payment.

Phoenix has an additional arrangement in which existing non-Phoenix members of Kayne Anderson Rudnick will
sell a portion of their membership interests in Kayne Anderson Rudnick, representing 15%, to Phoenix at a rate of
33%% per year at December 31, 2004, 2005 and 2006. The total purchase price will equal net investment
advisory fees for each year times 4.5 times 4.9% (the proportionate interest purchased). Such amounts are paid
during the following quarter. Under certain circumstances, the purchases may be accelerated.

There is also a put/call arrangement with respect to the remaining 25% of the total membership interests. The
purchase price will be equal to investment advisory fees for the relevant contract year multiplied by 4.5 multiplied
by the amount of membership interest purchased. The contract year is defined as the twelve months ending
December 31, 2006 and each calendar year thereafter. The pricing on the put/calls will be determined within 60
days after each such year-end and can be exercised within 60 days of the finalization of the price. All of these
membership interests acquired will be reissued to members/employees of Kayne Anderson Rudnick. The
reissuance process involves Phoenix Investment Partners contributing the interests to Kayne Anderson Rudnick
and then Kayne Anderson Rudnick selling the interests to the members/employees. The members/employees will
not pay cash for these purchases but will enter into a note payable agreement with Kayne Anderson Rudnick.
Phoenix Investment Partners will have preferential distribution rights with respect to payments of principal and
interest on these notes. Under certain circumstances, these interests can be issued without a note payable or other
consideration. In addition, in certain circumstances, the purchases may be accelerated. Once these interests are
purchased and then reissued, the amount of cash that Phoenix Investment Partners will need to pay to repurchase
them in the future will be based on the growth in Kayne Anderson Rudnick’s revenues since the reissuance dates.
There is no expiration date for the put/call agreements. There is no cap or floor on the put/call price.

In August 2003, certain members of Kayne Anderson Rudnick accelerated their put/call arrangement. The
purchase price for their interests totaled $4.5 million, which was recorded as additional purchase price by Phoenix
Investment Partners and allocated to goodwill and definite-lived intangible assets.

PFG

In May 2003, we acquired the remaining interest in PFG not already owned by us for initial consideration of
$16.7 million. Under the terms of the purchase agreement, we may be obligated to pay additional consideration
of up to $89.0 million to the selling shareholders, inciuding $13.0 million during the years 2004 through 2007,
based on certain financial performance targets being met, and the balance in 2008, based on the appraised value of
PFG as of December 31, 2007.

We have accounted for our acquisition of the remaining interest in PFG as a step-purchase acquisition.
Accordingly, we recorded a definite-lived intangible asset of $9.8 million related to the PVFP acquired and a
related deferred tax liability of $3.4 million. The PVFP intangible asset will be amortized over the remaining
estimated life of the underlying insurance inforce acquired, estimated to be 40 years. The remaining acquisition
price plus transaction costs of $7.6 million has been assigned to goodwill. We have not presented pro forma
information as if PFG had been acquired at the beginning of January 2003, as it is not material to our financial
statements. For additional information, see Note 3 to our consolidated financial statements in this Form 10-K.

Seneca

We have a put/call arrangement with respect to the membership interests in Seneca not owned by Phoenix
Investment Partners. The purchase price is equal to Seneca’s investment advisory fees for the relevant year
multiplied by 3.5 multiplied by the amount of the interest purchased. The pricing on the put/calls will be
determined within 60 days after each calendar year-end and can be exercised within 60 days of the finalization of
the price. All of these interests acquired will be reissued to members/employees of Seneca. The reissuance
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process involves Phoenix Investment Partners contributing the interests to Seneca and then Seneca selling them to
the members/employees. The members/employees do not pay cash for these purchases, but enter into a note
payable agreement with Seneca. Phoenix Investment Partners has preferential distribution rights with respect to
payments of principal and interest on these notes. Since these interests have already been purchased by Phoenix
Investment Partners and reissued at least once, the amount of cash that Phoenix Investment Partners will need to
pay to repurchase them in the future will be the amount related to the growth in Seneca’s revenues since the
various reissuance dates. There is no cap or floor on the put/call price. The put/call agreements will expire after
the year ended December 31, 2007.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

As of December 31, 2003 we did not have any significant off-balance sheet arrangements as defined by Item
303(a)(4)(ii) of SEC Regulation S-K. See Note 8 to our consolidated financial statements in this Form 10-K for
information on variable interest entities.

Reinsurance

We maintain life reinsurance programs designed to protect against large or unusual losses in our life insurance
business. Based on our review of their financial statements and reputations in the reinsurance marketplace, we
believe that these third-party reinsurers are financially sound and, therefore, that we have no material exposure to
uncollectible life reinsurance.

Statutory Capital and Surplus and Risk Based Capital

Phoenix Life’s consolidated statutory basis capital and surplus (including AVR) decreased from $1,009.2 million
at December 31, 2002 to $962.4 million at December 31, 2003. The principal factors resulting in this decrease are
a decrease in admitted deferred income tax assets of $44.8 million and a dividend of $44.5 million to the parent,
partially offset by increases in other admitted assets and unrealized investment gains.

Section 1322 of New York Insurance Law requires that New York life insurers report their RBC. RBC is based
on a formula calculated by applying factors to various asset, premium and statutory reserve items. The formula
takes into account the risk characteristics of the insurer, including asset risk, insurance risk, interest rate risk and
business risk. Section 1322 gives the New York Insurance Department explicit regulatory authority to require
various actions by, or take various actions against, insurers whose Total Adjusted Capital (capital and surplus plus
AVR plus one-half the policyholder dividend liability) does not exceed certain RBC levels. Each of our other life
insurance subsidiaries is also subject to these same RBC requirements.

The levels of regulatory action, the trigger point and the corrective actions are summarized below:

Company Action Level - results when Total Adjusted Capital falls below 100% of Company Action Level at
which point the company must file a comprehensive plan to the state insurance regulators;

Regulatory Action Level — results when Total Adjusted Capital falls below 75% of Company Action Level
where in addition to the above, insurance regulators are required to perform an examination or analysis
deemed necessary and issue a corrective order specifying corrective actions;

Authorized Control Level - results when Total Adjusted Capital falls below 50% of Company Action Level

where in addition to the above, the insurance regulators are permitted but not required to place the company
under regulatory control; and
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Mandatory Control Level — results when Total Adjusted Capital falls below 35% of Company Action Level
where insurance regulators are required to place the company under regulatory control.

At December 31, 2003, Phoenix Life’s and each of its insurance subsidiaries’ RBC levels were in excess of 300%
of Company Action Level.

See Note 15 to our consolidated financial statements in this Form 10-K regarding the Life Companies’ statutory
financial information and regulatory matters.

Net Capital Requirements

Our broker-dealer subsidiaries are each subject to the net capital requirements imposed on registered broker-
dealers by the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. Each is also required to maintain a ratio of aggregate
indebtedness to net capital that does not exceed 15:1. The largest of these subsidiaries had net capital of
approximately $6.6 million, which is $5.8 in excess of its required minimum net capital of $0.8 million. The ratio
of aggregate indebtedness to net capital for that subsidiary was 2:1. The ratios of aggregate indebtedness to net
capital for each of the other broker-dealer subsidiaries were also below the regulatory ratio at December 31, 2003
and their respective net capital each exceeded the applicable regulatory minimum.

Obligations Related to Pension and Post-Retirement Employee Benefit Plans

We provide our employees with post-employment benefits that include retirement benefits, through pension and
savings plans, and other benefits, including health care and life insurance. Employee benefit expense related to
these plans totaled $33.1 million, $24.9 million and $25.1 million for 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively.

We have two defined benefit pension plans covering our employees. The employee pension plan, covering
substantially all of our employees, provides benefits up to the amount allowed under the Internal Revenue Code. .
The supplemental plan provides benefits in excess of the primary plan. Retirement benefits under both plans are a
function of years of service and compensation. The employee pension plan is funded with assets held in a trust,
while the supplemental plan is unfunded

We expect to contribute $107.8 million to the employee pension plan through 2008, 1nclud1ng $7.2 million durmg
2004.

The funded status of the quahﬁed and non-qualified pension plans as of December 31, 2003 and 2002 follows
($ amounts in millions): .

Employee Plan Supplemental Plan
2003 2002 2003 2002
Plan assets, end of year..........cccccoevvcveeeneanen. et v $ 3689 . § 3277 $ - $ --
Projected benefit obligation, end of year..........occccecvvrvcnnnnnn. (460.6) (410.1) (124.8) (126.9)
Plan assets less than projected
benefit obligations, end of year ........c..ccccerinvinneninnnnee $ (9.7 $ (824 $ (124.8) $ (126.9)

The post-retirement plan is unfunded. The projected benefit obligation and, therefore, its funded statu‘s was
$(78.7) million and $(74.2) million as of December 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively.

See note 11 of the consolidated financial statements included in this Form 10-K for additional information.
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Related Party Transactions

State Farm currently owns of record more than 5 percent of our outstanding common stock. In 2003 and 2002,
our subsidiaries incurred total compensation costs of $25.8 million and $10.7 million, respectively, related to
entities which were either subsidiaries of State Farm or owned by State Farm employees, for the sale of our
insurance and annuity products. ‘

Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk
Market Risk Exposures and Risk Management

We must effectively manage, measure and monitor the market risk generally associated with our insurance and
annuity business and, in particular, our commitment to fund insurance liabilities. We have developed an
integrated process for managing market risk, which we conduct through our Corporate Finance Department,
Corporate Portfolio Management Department, Life and Annuity Financial Department, and additional specialists
at the business segment level. These groups confer with each other regularly. We have implemented
comprehensive policies and procedures at both the corporate and business segment level to minimize the effects
of potential market volatility.

Market risk is the risk that we will incur losses due to adverse changes in market.rates and prices. We have
exposure to market risk through both our insurance operations and our investment activities. Qur primary market
risk exposure is to changes in interest rates, although we also have exposures to changes in equity prices and
foreign currency exchange rates. We also have credit risk in connection with our derivative contracts.

Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that we will incur economic losses due to adverse changes in interest rates. Our
exposure to interest rate changes primarily results from our commitment to fund interest-sensitive insurance
liabilities, as well as from our significant holdings of fixed rate investments. Our insurance liabilities largely.
comprise dividend-paying individual whole life and universal life policies and annuity contracts. Our fixed
maturity investments include U.S. and foreign government bonds, securities issued by government agencies,
corporate bonds, asset-backed securities, mortgage-backed securities and mortgage loans, most of which are
mainly exposed to changes in medium-term and long-term U.S. Treasury rates.

We manage interest rate risk as part of our asset/liability management process and product design procedures.
Asset/liability strategies include the segmentation of investments by product line and the construction of
investment portfolios designed to specifically satisfy the projected cash needs of the underlying product liability.
We manage the interest rate risk inherent in our assets relative to the interest rate risk inherent in our insurance
products. We identify potential interest rate risk in portfolio segments by modeling asset and product liability
durations and cash flows under current and projected interest rate scenarios.

One of the key measures we use to quantify this interest rate exposure is duration. Duration is one of the most
significant measurement tools in measuring the sensitivity of the fair value of assets and liabilities to changes in
interest rates. For example, if interest rates increase by 100 basis points, or 1%, the fair value of an asset with a
duration of five years is expected to decrease by 5%. We believe that as of December 31, 2003, our asset and
liability portfolio durations were well matched, especially for the largest segments of our balance sheet (i.¢.,
participating and universal life). Since our insurance products have variable interest rates (which expose us to the
risk of interest rate fluctuations), we regularly undertake a sensitivity analysis that calculates liability durations
under various cash flow scenarios.
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The selection of a 100 basis point immediate, parallel increase or decrease in interest rates is a hypothetical rate
scenario used to demonstrate potential risk. While a 100 basis point immediate, parallel increase or decrease does
not represent our view of future market changes, it is a reasonably possible hypothetical near-term change that
illustrates the potential impact of such events. Although these fair value measurements provide a representation
of interest rate sensitivity, they are based on our portfolio exposures at a point in time and may not be
representative of future market results. These exposures will change as a result of on-going portfolio transactions
in response to new business, management’s assessment of changing market conditions and available investment
opportunities.

To calculate duration, we project asset and liability cash flows and discount them to a net present value using a
risk-free market rate adjusted for credit quality, sector attributes, liquidity and any other relevant specific risks.
Duration is calculated by revaluing these cash flows at an alternative level of interest rates and by determining the
percentage change in fair value from the base case.

We also employ product design and pricing strategies to manage interest rate risk. Product design and pricing
strategies include the use of surrender charges or restrictions on withdrawals in some products.

The tables below show the estimated interest rate sensitivity of our fixed income financial instruments measured
in terms of fair value as of December 31, 2003 ($ amounts in millions). Given that our asset and liability portfolio
durations were well matched for the periods indicated, we would expect market value gains or losses in assets to
be largely offset by corresponding changes in liabilities.

-100 Basis +100 Basis

Carrying Point Point
Value Change Fair Value Change
Cash and cash equivalents..........cccoverviierneeiicniveennnen, $ 447.9 $ 448.2 $ 4479 $ 447.6
Available-for-sale debt securities .......cooovvveeeeiviviininns 13,273.0 13,878.5 13,273.0 12,668.0
Commercial mortgages............c....... ettt 284.1 308.7 3014 294.1
SUDBLOLAL......ccoviieiiii e 14,005.0 14,635.4 14,022.3 13,409.7
Debt and equity securities pledged as collateral............ 1,350.0 1,420.8 1,350.0 1,279.2
TOALS ..o e $ 15,355.0 $ 16,056.2 $ 153723 $ 14,688.9

We use derivative financial instruments, primarily interest rate swaps, to manage our residual exposure to
fluctuations in interest rates. We enter into derivative contracts only with highly rated financial institutions to
reduce counterparty credit risks and diversify counterparty exposure.

We enter into interest rate swap agreements to reduce market risks from changes in interest rates. We do not enter
into interest rate swap agreements for trading purposes. Under interest rate swap agreements, we exchange cash
flows with another party at specified intervals for a set length of time based on a specified notional principal
amount. Typically, one of the cash flow streams is based on a fixed interest rate set at the inception of the
contract and the other is based on a variable rate that periodically resets. Generally, no premium is paid to enter
into the contract and neither party makes payment of principal. The amounts to be received or paid on these swap
agreements are accrued and recognized in net investment income.
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The tables below show the interest rate sensitivity of our general account interest rate derivatives measured in
terms of fair value as of December 31, 2003 ($ amounts in millions). These exposures will change as our
insurance liabilities are created and discharged and as a result of ongoing portfolio and risk management
activities. '

Weighted- -100 +100
Average Basis Basis
Notional - Term Point Point
Amount (Years) = Change Fair Value Change
Interest rate SWaps .....covevevevevereennennns $ 540.0 10.4 $ 313 $ 18.2 $ 5.0 -
Other...ociieceece e, 90.0 2.5 0.5 0.4 0.8
Totals — general account ................. S 630.0 $ 31.8 $ 18.6 $ 5.8
Non-recourse interest rate swaps
held in consolidated CDO trusts... § 1,211.3 7.8 $ 179.5 $ 127.8 $ 79.5

See Note 9 to our consolidated financial statements in this Form 10-K for more information on derivative
instruments.

Equity Risk

Equity risk is the risk that we will incur economic losses due to adverse changes in equity prices. Our exposure to
changes in equity prices primarily results from our commitment to fund our variable annuity and variable life
products, as well as from our holdings of common stocks, mutual funds and other equities. We manage our
insurance liability risks on an integrated basis with other risks through our liability and risk management and
capital and other asset allocation strategies. We also manage equity price risk through industry and issuer
diversification and asset allocation techniques. We held $312.0 million in equity securities on our balance sheet
as of December 31, 2003. A 10% decline or increase in the relevant equity price would have decreased or
increased, respectively, the value of these assets by approximately $31.2 million as of December 31, 2003.

Certain annuity products sold by our Life Companies contain guaranteed minimum death benefits. The
guaranteed minimum death benefit feature provides annuity contract holders with a guarantee that the benefit
received at death will be no less than a prescribed amount. This minimum amount is based on the net deposits
paid into the contract, the net deposits accumulated at a specified rate, the highest historical account value on a
contract anniversary, or more typically, the greatest of these values. To the extent that the guaranteed minimum
death benefit is higher than the current account value at the time of death, the company incurs a cost. This
typically results in an increase in annuity policy benefits in periods of declining financial markets and in periods
of stable financial markets following a decline. As of December 31, 2003 and 2002, the difference between the
guaranteed minimum death benefit and the current account value (net amount at risk) for all existing contracts
was $183.1 and $234.9 million, respectively. This is our exposure to loss should all of our contractholders die on
either December 31, 2003 or December 31, 2002 ($ amounts in millions).

2003 2002 Change
Net amount at risk on minimum guaranteed death benefits (before reinsurance) $ 616.9 $ 1,1484 $ (531.9)
Net amount at riSK TeINSUTEA.........cooviiviieerrieeerte et eeereessrrre s streesaeeesnaeresereseenes (433.8) (913.5) 479.7
Net amount at risk on minimum guaranteed death benefits (after reinsurance) .. § 183.1 $ 2349 $ (51.8)
Weighted-average age of contractholder ...........co.eovoiiiiiiiiniecee e 59 60 1)
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For the years 2003, 2002 and 2001, payments related to guaranteed minimum death benefits, net of reinsurance
recoveries, were as follows ($ amounts in millions): ~

2003 2002 2001

Death claims payments before reinSurance ..........cooveererevermniiereiennsscnnnnnenens 3 7.7 $ 8.6 5 35
REINSUIANCE TECOVETIES .vvrurveririerierirtinreeesteeeseeisteeseresesesesesesseasereasesesisnsesasseesss {(5.1) (6.4) (3.0)
Net death Claims PAYIMENS ....c..ovvverierrrsine st sese e sesens v $ 2.6 $ 22 $ 0.5

We establish a reserve for guaranteed minimum death benefits using a methodology consistent with the AICPA
SOP No. 03-01, “Accounting and Reporting by Insurance Enterprises for Certain Non-traditional Long Duration
Contracts and for Separate Accounts.” This reserve is determined using the net amount at risk taking into account
estimates for mortality, equity market returns, and voluntary terminations under a wide range of scenarios at
December 31, 2003 and 2002. Reserves related to guaranteed minimum death benefits, net of reinsurance
recoverables, were as follows ($ amounts in millions):

2003 2002
Statutory reserve (After FEINSUIANCE).. ... cooviiriiieieie et se e e e ee e ennene $ 17.3 b 15.8
GAAP reserve (After TEINSUTANCE) ...veiiireriirerteiretesretertesesteneesresaestesressestaebe st rseesmesasesinaseseeaseneen 7.6 8.7

We also provide reserves for guaranteed minimum income benefits and guaranteed payout annuity floor benefits.
The statutory reserves for these totaled $0.5 million and $0.1 million at December 31, 2003 and 2002,
respectively. No GAAP reserves were required at December 31, 2003 and 2002.

The following analysis represents an estimated sensitivity of our deferred acquisition cost asset and guaranteed
minimum death benefit liability to equity market changes, based on their December 31, 2003 carrying values
($ amounts in millions):

-10% +10%

Equity Carrying Equity

Market . Value Market
Deferred policy acquisition costs (variable annuities).........co.ceceveveeriveneniierenecns $ 2783 $ 280.1 . $§ 2815
Deferred policy acquisition costs (variable universal life) ......ooooovvveeicrvenncrnnns 318.9 319.8 320.3
Guaranteed minimum death benefit liability (variable annuities)............c..c.o.... 11.0 7.8 5.6

See Note 3 to our consolidated financial statements in this Form 10-K for more information regarding deferred
policy acquisition costs.

We sponsor defined benefit pension plans for our employees. For GAAP accounting purposes, we assumed an
8.5% long-term rate of return on plan assets in 2003 and 2002. To the extent there are deviations in actual
returns, there will be changes in our projected expense and funding requests. As of December 31, 2003, the
projected benefit obligation for our defined benefit plans were in excess of plan assets by $183.1 million. We
expect to contribute $107.8 million to the employee pension plan through 2008, including $7.2 million during
2004. See Note 11 to our consolidated financial statements in this Form 10-K for more information on our
employee benefit plans.

Foreign Currency Exchange Risks
Foreign currency exchange risk is the risk that we will incur economic losses due to adverse changes in foreign
currency exchange rates. Our functional currency is the U.S. dollar. Our exposure to fluctuations in foreign

exchange rates against the U.S. dollar results from our holdings in non-U.S. dollar-denominated debt and equity
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securities and through our investments.in foreign subsidiaries and affiliates. The principal currencies that create
foreign currency exchange rate risk for us are the British pound sterling, due to our investments in Aberdeen and
Lombard International Assurance, S.A. and the Argentine peso, due to our investment in EMCO. During the .
years 2003 and 2002, we recorded foreign currency translation adjustment gains (losses) of $10.1 million and
$17.7 million, respectively, related to changes in valuation of the British pound sterling and $2.0 million and
$(10.8) million, respectively, for the Argentine peso. The components of foreign currency exchange gains
(losses) in accumulated other comprehensive income by currency at December 31, 2003 and 2002 are as follows
($ amounts in millions): :

2003 2002 . - Change
British pound Sterling ..........:.ooooovorseeeseeseerereriver, S e $ 192 $ 91 § 101
ATZENHNE PESO ...vvvrevecertirisiirieireeessissse et besernsststebssssestessasnsssessns SR ‘ - (8.3) (10.8) .20
OHET vvre e eee e serseseresssesreeeseseese e srese s esees et e ses st (0.1) 0.1 0.2)
Total EAINS (LOSSES) ....ccvivriiiiiiiiii ettt et et e eenas $ 10.3 $ (1.6) $ 11.9

Ttem 8. Financial Statements and Supglementary Data
See Table of Contents.

Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure
None.

PART I11

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures. We have developed controls and procedures to ensure that -~
information required to be disclosed by us in reports we file or submit pursuant to the Exchange Act is recorded,
processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified in the rules and forms of the SEC. Based
on their review, our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer each concluded that our disclosure
controls and procedures, as in effect on December 31, 2003, were effective, both in design and operation, for -
achieving the foregoing purpose.

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting. During the calendar year ended on December 31, 2003,
there' were no changes in our internal control over financial reporting that have materially affected, or are
reasonably like to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting.

Item 10. Directors and Executive Officers of the Registrant

The information required by Items 401 and 405 of Regulation S-K, except for Item 401 with respect to the
executive officers as disclosed below, is incorporated herein by reference to the information set forth under
Proposal 1 of our definitive proxy statement (which will be filed pursuant to Regulation 14A under the Exchange
Act within 120 days after the close of its fiscal year) under the following headings: “The Board of Directors,”
“Audit Committee Charter and Report,” “Compensation of Executive Officers,” “Compensation Committee
Report,” and “Performance Graph.”

Set forth below is a description of the business positions held during at least the past five years by the current
executive officers of Phoenix:
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DONA D. YOUNG, age 50', has been: Chief Executive Officer of PNX and Phoenix Life since January 2003;
President and a Director of PNX since 2000; a Director of Phoenix Life since 1998; and President of Phoenix Life
since 2000. Before then, she was: Chief Operating Officer from 2001 until 2003; Executive Vice President,
Individual Insurance and General Counsel of Phoenix Life from 1994 until 2000; and Senior Vice President and
General Counsel of Phoenix Life from 1989 until 1994. Mrs. Young also serves as a director of Wachovia
Corporation and Foot Locker, Inc.

DANIEL T. GERACI, age 46, has been: Executive Vice President, Asset Management, of PNX and President and
Chief Executive Officer of Phoenix Investment Partners since May 2003. From 2001 until May 2003, he was
President and Chief Executive Officer of Pioneer Investment Management USA, Inc. From 1995 to 2001, he held
several senior executive positions with Fidelity Investments, including president of Fidelity’s Wealth
Management Group. From 1988 through 1995, he was with Midland Walwyn Capital, Inc. (later Merrill Lynch
Canada), where he held successive distribution and management positions, including founder and president of its
asset management subsidiary, Atlas Asset Management, Inc.

MICHAEL J. GILOTTI, age 56, has been: Executive Vice President of PNX and Phoenix Life since August 2002,
with responsibility for life, annuity and asset management distribution and marketing across all product lines. He
joined Phoenix Life in 1999 as a Vice President and became a Senior Vice President in 2000. From 1994 until
1999, he was the director of bank and broker/dealer operations at Aetna Financial Services. Mr. Gilotti also
serves as a director of Phoenix Edge Series Fund.

MICHAEL E. HAYLON, age 46, has been Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of PNX and
Phoenix Life since January 1, 2004. Before then, he was Executive Vice President and Chief Investment Officer
of PNX and of Phoenix Life from 2002 through 2003. He joined Phoenix Life in 1990, as a Vice President, and
became Senior Vice President in 1993. Mr. Haylon also serves as a director of Aberdeen Asset Management
PLC.

BONNIE J. MALLEY, age 42, has been Senior Vice President, Corporate Services, of PNX and of Phoenix Life
since 2002. Before then, she was Senior Vice President and chief accounting officer from 2001 to 2002 and Vice
President, Corporate Finance 1998 until 2001. She joined Phoenix Life in 1985 as a corporate auditor.

PHILIP K. POLKINGHORN, age 46, became Executive Vice President, Life and Annuity Manufacturing in
March 2004. Before then he had served since 2001 as a Vice President of Sun Life Financial Company with
responsibility for overall management of its annuity business, which it acquired from Keyport Life Insurance
Company in 2001. Mr. Polkinghorn served as President of Keyport Life from 1999 until its acquisition by Sun
Life. From 1996 to 1999, he served as Chief Marketing Officer for American General.

TRACY L. RICH, age 52, has been: Executive Vice President, General Counsel and Assistant Secretary of PNX
and Phoenix Life since 2002. Before then, he. was Senior Vice President and General Counsel of PNX and
Phoenix Life from 2000 to 2002 and Senior Vice President and Deputy General Counsel of Massachusetts Mutual
Life Insurance Company from 1996 until 2000.

JAMES D. WEHR, age 46, has been Senior Vice President and Chief Investment Officer of PNX and Phoenix
Life since January 1, 2004. Before then, he was Senior Managing Director and Portfolio manager of Phoenix
Investment Partners from 1995 through 2003. He joined Phoenix in 1981 and has held a series of increasingly
senior investment positions. ‘

" Code of Ethics

We have a code of ethics that is applicable to all of our company directors and employees, including our principal
executive officer, principal financial officer and principal accounting officer. A copy of this code (our “Code of

! All ages are as of March 1, 2004.
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Conduct””) may be reviewed on our web site at PhoenixWealthManagement.com, in the Investor Relations

- section. (This URL and the one below are intended to be inactive textual references only. They are not intended
to be active hyperlinks to our website. The information on the website, which might be accessible through a
hyperlink resulting from those URLs, is not intended to be part of this report and is not incorporated herein by
reference). The latest amendments to the Code of Conduct will be reflected, together with a description of the
nature of any amendments, other than ones that are technical, administrative or non-substantive, on the above
website. In the event we ever waive compliance with the code by any of our executive officers, we will disclose
the waiver on that website. Copies of our code may also be obtained without charge by sending a request either
by mail to: Corporate Secretary, The Phoenix Companies, Inc., One American Row, P.O. Box 5056, Hartford,
Connecticut 06102-5056, or by e-mail to: corporate.secretary@phoenixwm.com.

Item 11. Executive Compensation

The information required by Item 402 of Regulation S-K is incorporated herein by reference to the information set
forth under the sections entitled: “Compensation of Executive Officers,” “Compensation of Directors,”
“Compensation Committee Report,” and “Performance Graph” of our definitive proxy statement, which will be
filed pursuant to Regulation 14A under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, or the Exchange Act, within 120
days after the close of PNX’s fiscal year.

Ttem 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder
Matters

The information required by Item 403 of Regulation S-K is incorporated herein by reference to the information set
forth under the section entitled “Ownership of Common Stock” of our definitive proxy statement, which will be
filed pursuant to Regulation 14A under the Exchange Act within 120 days after the close of PNX’s fiscal year.

The information required by Item 201(d) of Regulation S-K follows.
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Securities Authorized for Issuance Under Equity Compensation Plans

The following table sets forth information as of the end of the Company’s 2003 fiscal year with respect to
compensation plans under which equity securities of the Company are authorized for issuance.

Plan Categdry

[GY) : ®B) » ©

: ' Number of securities
remaining available for
future issuance under
equity compensation
plans, excluding securities
reflected in column (A)

Number of securities to be
issued upon exercise of
outstanding options,
warrants and rights

Weighted-average exercise
price of outstanding
options, warrants and
rights

Equity compensation plans

approved by the Company’s

shareholders

e 2003 Restricted Stock,
Restricted Stock Unit and

Long-Term Incentive Plan'" 1,615,966 $7.99 4,384,034
Equity compensation plans not :
approved by the Company’s
shareholders
» Stock Incentive Plan® 4,422 356 $15.27 850,922
e Directors.Stock Plan® 205,500 $16.20 819,343
o Retirement and Transition

Agreement” 573,477® $13.95 --
e Executive Employment

Agreement” 394,737® $7.60 -
Total 7,212,036 $13.14 6,054,299

1)

A copy of the 2003 Restricted Stock, Restricted Stock Unit and Long-Term Incentive Plan is filed as an exhibit to the
2003 Proxy Statement filed by the Company with the SEC on March 21, 2003. The following summary of the material
features of the plan is qualified in its entirety by reference to the full text of the plan, which is hereby incorporated by
reference. '

The Compensation Committee administers this plan and selects the participants to whom restricted stock, restricted stock
units, or RSUs, and long-term performance units may be granted. The number of shares of common stock that may be
issued under the plan may not exceed 6,000,000 shares. Appropriate adjustments will be made for certain capitalization
events in the number of shares that may be issued. Where the shares underlying any grant are not issued, such shares
will again be available for inclusion in future award grants. Each RSU represents a contractual right to receive one share
of Common Stock after the satisfaction of certain vesting criteria. RSUs granted before June 25, 2006 are not
convertible and deliverable in Common Stock until after that date. Generally, RSUs and shares of restricted stock may
not be transferred, sold, assigned, pledged, hypothecated or otherwise encumbered by the participant during the restricted
period. The committee may, however, permit limited exceptions.

Holders of restricted stock will have all the rights of other shareholders including, but not limited to, the right to vote and
the right to receive dividends. Holders of RSUs, however, will not have the right to vote or to dispose of the shares of
the underlying Common Stock and thus, will not have beneficial ownership of Common Stock until the shares are
issued. Generally, if a participant terminates employment by reason of death, disability or retirement, the restricted
period will lapse and the number of shares to be issued will be prorated. Any awards as to which the restricted period
has not lapsed at the date of a participant’s termination of employment for the above reasons will automatically be
cancelled. If employment is terminated for any other reason before the end of the restricted period, all restricted stock
held by the participant will revert to the Company and all RSUs and any dividend equivalents credited to such participant
will be forfeited. In the event of a change of control of the Company (as defined in the plan), the restricted period with
respect to each award of restricted stock and RSUs will end on the date of such change of control.

Long-Term Performance Units will relate to pre-established “performance goals™ over a “performance cycle” (generally,
three years and may consist of calendar year segments.) The committee will establish the performance goals applicable
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to the units that may be earned by a participant for each performance cycle and/or segment thereof. Following the end of
each performance cycle, the committee will determine the number of units actually earned. In general, if a participant
ceases employment by reason of death; disability or retirement during a performance cycle, the participant will earn that
number of units determined by prorating:-the percentage of the target earned.according to the number of months he or she
was actively at work during the cycle. In general, if a participant ceases employment prior to the end of a cycle for any
other reason, he or she will forfeit all units. In the event of a change of control, however, the participant will earn a
prorated number of units in respect of each outstanding performance cycle.

The Board of Directors may terminate the plan at any time and, from time to time, may amend or modify the plan
(subject in certain cases to the approval of shareholders and, prior to June 26, 2006, to the prior written consent of the

~ New York State Superintendent of Insurance). No amendment, modification, or termination of the plan may in any

manner adversely affect any award previously granted under the plan, without the consent of the participant. The plan
will continue in effect, unless terminated or until no more shares of Common Stock are available for issuance under the
plan.

- This figure consists of the shares underlying 255,004 RSUs that vest over time, 1,147,338 RSUs that are subject to

performance contingencies, and 213,624 RSUs that are subject to no contingencies (but which are not currently

convemble)

A copy of the Stock Incentive Plan is filed as an eXhlblt to the Form S-1 filed by the Company with the SEC on February
9, 2001.. The following summary of the material features of the plan is quahﬁed in its entirety by reference to the full

. text of the plan, which is hereby incorporated by reference.

Under the Company’s Stock Incentive Plan, the Compensation Committee (or if the committee delegates such authority

to the CEQ, the CEO) may grant stock options to officers, employees and insurance agents of the Company and its
subsidiaries. The maximum number of shares issuable under the plan with respect to officers, employees and insurance
agents of the Company (including those who are also employees, officers or directors of Phoenix Investment Partners
and those individuals who were officers or employees of the Company on June 25, 2001) is the aggregate of 5%
(approximately 5.2 million) of the shares outstanding on June 26, 2001 {approximately 105 million shares) reduced by
the shares issuable pursuant to options granted under the Company’s Directors Stock Plan and, with respect to officers
and employees of Phoenix Investment Partners (other than those officers, employees or insurance agents described
above) 1% (approximately 1.035 million) of the shares outstanding on June 26, 2001. The maximum number of shares
which may be subject to award under the plan: prior to June 25, 2003, shall not exceed 75% of the shares available under
the plan; prior to June 25, 2004, shall not equal 85% of the shares available under the plan; and prior to June 25, 2005,
shall not exceed 100% of the shares available under the plan. During any five-year period, no participant may be granted
options in respect of more than 5% of the shares available for issuance under the plan. The Board may terminate or
amend {subject, in some cases, to the approval of its-shareholders and, prior to June 25, 2006, to the approval of the New
York Superintendent of Insurance) the plan, but such termination or amendment may not adversely affect any
outstanding stock option without the consent of the participant. The plan will continue in effect until it is terminated by
the Board or until no more shares are available for issuance.

The exercise price per share subject to an option will be not less than the fair market value of such share on the option’s
grant date. Each option will generally become exercisable in equal installments on each of the first three anniversaries of
the grant date, except that no option will become exercisable prior to June 25, 2003 nor may any option be exercised
after the tenth anniversary of the grant date. Options may not be transferred by the grantee, except in the event of death
or, if the committee permits, the transfer of non-qualified stock options by gift or domestic relations order to the
grantee’s immediate family members. Upon a grantee’s death, any outstanding options previously granted to such
grantee will be exercisable by the grantee’s designated beneficiary until the earlier of the expiration of the option or five
years following the grantee’s death. If the grantee terminates employment by reason of disability or retirement, any

- outstanding option will continue to vest as if the grantee’s service had not terminated and the grantee may exercise any

vested option until the earlier of five years following termination of employment or the expiration of the option. If the
grantee’s employment is terminated for cause, the grantee will forfeit any outstanding options. If the grantee’s
employment terminates in connection with a divestiture of a business unit or subsidiary or similar transaction, the
committee may provide that all or some outstanding options will continue to become exercisable and may be exercised at
any time prior to the earlier of the expiration of the term of the options and the third anniversary of the grantee’s
termination of service. If the grantee terminates employment for any other reason, any vested options held by the
grantee at the date of termination will remain exercisable for a period of 30 days and any then unvested options will be
forfeited.
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Generally, upon a change of control (as defined in the plan), each outstanding option will become fully exercisable.
Alternatively, the committee may: (1) require that each option be canceled in exchange for a payment in an amount equal
to the excess, if any, of the price paid in connection with the change of control over the exercise price of the option; or
(ii) if the committee determines in good faith that the option will be honored or assumed by, or an alternative award will
be. issued by, the acquirer in the change of control, require that each option remain outstanding without acceleration of
vesting or exchanged for such alternative award.

This figure consists of the shares which underlie the options issued under the Stock Incentive Plan (1,827,664 of which
are fully vested and 2,641,363 of which are subject to vesting with the passage of time).

A copy of the Directors Stock Plan is filed as an exhibit to the Form S-1 filed by the Company on February 9, 2001. The
following summary of the material features of the plan is qualified in its entirety by reference to the full text of the plan,
which is hereby incorporated by reference.

Under the Directors Stock Plan, the Board of Directors may grant options to outside directors, provided that prior to June
25, 2006: (a) such options will be in substitution for a portion of the cash fees that would otherwise have been payable to
such directors; and (b) the aggregate number of shares issuable pursuant to options will not exceed 0.5% of the total
shares outstanding on June 26, 2001, or 524,843 shares. Each option entitles the holder to acquire one share of our
Common Stock at the stated exercise price. The exercise price per share will not be less than the fair market value of a
share on the day such option is granted and the option will be exercisable from the later of June 25, 2003 or the day the
option is granted until the earlier of the tenth anniversary of such grant date or the third anniversary of the day the
outside director ceases to provide services for the Company. Under the Directors Stock Plan, the Board of Directors may
require the outside directors to receive up to one-half of their directors fees in shares instead of cash and the outside
directors may elect to receive any portion of such fees in shares instead of cash. The aggregate number of shares that
may also be issued in lieu of cash fees may not exceed 500,000 shares, bringing the total available under this plan to
1,024,843 shares.

This figure consists of the shares which underlie the options issued under the Directors Stock Plan.

A copy of the Retirement and Transition Agreement with Robert W. Fiondella, retired Chairman, is filed as an exhibit to
the Form 8-K filed by the Company on October 9, 2002. The following summary of the material features of the RSUs
subject to that agreement is qualified in its entirety by reference to the full text of the agreement, which is hereby
incorporated by reference.

The Company’s Retirement and Transition Agreement with Mr. Fiondella provided for the 1ssuance to him of
$8,000,000 worth of RSUs upon his retirement in March 2003. This equated to 573,477 RSUs, based on the closing
price of $13.95 on September 27, 2002, the date of measurement. Each unit represents the right to receive one share of
Common Stock after June 25, 2006. The agreement expressly prohibits the actual issuance of stock to Mr. Fiondella
prior to the fifth anniversary of the effective date of Phoenix Life’s demutualization (i.e., prior to June 25, 2006). The
agreement further provides that while Mr. Fiondella holds the RSUs, he will not have any right to vote or to direct the
vote of the related shares of stock. Moreover, he is expressly prohibited from disposing of the underlying shares of
stock, or of any economic interest related to the shares of stock, other than upon his death (in which case, the Company
will distribute the shares of stock to his estate after June 25, 2006). The Company will credit each RSU with an amount
equal to cash dividends on the shares of stock underlying the RSUs, or dividend equivalents, and interest thereon, both to
be distributed promptly following June 25,:2006.

This figure consists of the shares which underlie the RSUS issued or issuable pursuant to the related agreement.

A copy of the Company’s Executive Employment Agreement with Mrs. Young is filed as an exhibit to the Form 8-K
filed by the Company as of January 1, 2003. The following summary of the material features of the RSUs subject to that
agreement is qualified in its entirety by reference to the full text of the agreement.

The Company’s Executive Employment Agreement with Mrs. Young provides for the issuance to her of that number of
RSUs equal to the number resulting from dividing $3,000,000 by the closing pnce of our Common Stock on December
31, 2002 (87.60) (i.e. 394,737 RSUs).

The agreement expressly provides, assuming the RSUs have by then vested, for the issuance of stock to Mrs. Young on
the later of: (a) June 26, 2006; or (b) the 15" day after termination of her employment with the Company (the period
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from the grant date of January 1, 2003 to that date being the “Restricted Period”). The agreement further provides that
while Mrs. Young holds the RSUSs, she will not have any right to vote or to direct the vote of the underlying shares of
stock. Moreover, she is expressly prohibited from disposing of the underlying shares of stock, or of any economic
interest related to the shares of stock, other than upon her death (in which case, the Company will distribute the shares of
stock to her estate after June 25, 2006). The Company will credit each RSU with dividend equivalents and interest
thereon, both to be distributed to Mrs. Young at the end of the Restricted Period.

.Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions

The information required by Item 404 of Regulation S-K is incorporated herein by reference to the information set
forth under the section entitled “The Board of Directors” (under the caption “Certain Relationships and Related
Transactions™) of our definitive proxy statement, which will be filed pursuant to Regulation 14A under the
Exchange Act within 120 days after the close of our fiscal year.

Item 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Services

The information required by Item 9(c) of Schedule 14A is incorporated herein by reference to the information set
forth in the section entitled Fees Incurred for Services Performed by PwC, under Proposal 2 of our definitive
proxy statement, which will be filed pursuant to Regulation 14A under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934
within 120 days after the close of our fiscal year.

PART IV

Item 15. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules, and Reports on Form §-K

(a) Documents filed as part of this Form 10-K.

1. Financial Statements. The financial statements listed in Part II of the Table of Contents to this Form
10-K are filed as part of this Form 10-K.

2. Financial Statement Schedules. All financial statement schedules are omitted as they are not
applicable or the information is shown in the consolidated financial statements or notes thereto.

3. Exhibits. The exhibits filed as part of this Form 10-K are listed on the Exhibit Index immediately
preceding such exhibits and incorporated herein by reference.

(b) The following reports on Form 8-K were filed during the last quarter covered by this Form 10-K:

s dated October 17, 2003, containing a press release of that date concerning the resignation of Sue A.
Collins as Executive Vice President;

o dated November 4, 2003, containing a press release of that date announcing third quarter financial
results and the Company’s financial supplement for quarter ended September 30, 2003 (which was
also made available on the Company’s website);

e dated November 21, 2003, containing a press release dated November 20, 2003 announcing the
appointment of Michael E. Haylon as Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer and the
promotion of James D. Wehr to Senior Vice President and Chief Investment Officer; and

¢ dated December 23, 2003, concerning our closing of a new $150.0 million unfunded, unsecured
senior revolving credit facility to replace the then existing unfunded $100 million credit facility.

We make our periodic and current reports available, free of charge, on our website, at

PhoenixWealthManagement.com, in the Investor Relations section, as soon as reasonably practicable after the
material is electronically filed with, or furnished to, the SEC. (This URL is intended to be an inactive textual
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reference only. It is not intended to be an active hyperlink to our website. The information on the website, which
might be accessible through a hyperlink resulting from this URL, is not mtended to be part of this report and is
not incorporated herein by reference).
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant has
duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

THE PHOENIX COMPANIES, INC.
(Registrant)

Dated: March 15, 2004
Dated: March 15, 2004
Dated: March 15, 2004

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below, dated
March 15, 2004, by the following persons on behalf of the Registrant and in the capacities indicated.

/s/Sal H. Alfiero
Sal H. Alfiero, Director

{s/Peter C. Browning
Peter C. Browning, Director

/s/Arthur P. Byme
Arthur P. Byrne, Director

/s/Sanford Cloud, Jr.
Sanford Cloud, Jr., Director

/s/Richard N. Cooper
Richard N. Cooper, Director

/s/Gordon J. Davis
Gordon J. Davis, Director

/s/Ann M. Gray
Ann M. Gray, Director

By: /s/Dona D. Young
Dona D. Young
President and Chief Executive Officer

By: /s/Michael E. Haylon

Michael E. Haylon

Executive Vice President
and Chief Financial Officer

By: /s/Scott R, Lindquist
Scott R. Lindquist
Senior Vice President
and Chief Accounting Officer

/s/John E. Haire
John E. Haire, Director

/s/Jerry J. Jasinowski
Jerry J. Jasinowski, Director

/s/Thomas S. Johnson
Thomas S. Johnson, Director

/s/Marilyn E. LaMarche
Marilyn E. LaMarche, Director

/s/Robert G. Wilson
Robert G. Wilson, Director

/s/Dona D. Young
Dona D. Young, Chairman
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of
The Phoenix Companies, Inc.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated balance sheet and the related consolidated statements of income
and comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in stockholders’ equity present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of The Phoenix Companies, Inc. and its subsidiaries (the Company) at December 31, 2003
and 2002, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended
December 31, 2003, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.
These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management; our responsibility is to express
an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We conducted our audits of these statements in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which require that we
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of
material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management, and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

As discussed in Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements, the Company changed its method of accounting
for goodwill and other intangible assets in 2002 and for venture capital partnerships, securitized financial
instruments and derivative instruments in 2001. In addition, as discussed in Note 1, the Company has revised its
financial statements as of December 31, 2002 and for each of the two years in the period ended December 31,
2002.

W LLpP

Hartford, Connecticut
March 9, 2004
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'THE PHOENIX COMPANIES, INC.
Consolidated Balance Sheet
($ amounts in millions, except per share data)
December 31, 2003 and 2002

2002
2003 Restated

ASSETS:
Available-for-sale debt securities, at fair value .............. ettt et $ 13,2730 $ 11,8895
Available-for-sdle equity securities, at fair value .........o.ooveriere e 312.0 385.9
Mortgage loans, at unpaid principal balances. ........ccocvverrrreiiiciinc 284.1 468.8
Venture capital partnerships, at equity in net assets ..........ccovevvcveerees e [T S 2349 - 228.6
Affiliate equity securities, at eqUIty i NET ASSELS.......cvvierierinrereiiii ettt 47.5 134.7
Policy loans, at unpaid principal Dalances...........coeecririeieniniiccccrerie s 2,227.8 2,195.9°
Other INVESIMENTS ......ccoeveveriveriererecronsceerceninis et eh et bbbt e et er e n e 402.0 398.9

S . . : o 16,781.3 15,702.3,.
Available-for-sale debt and equity securities pledged as collateral, at fair value .................... - 1,350.0 1,358.7
Total investments................ [OOSR et s 18,131.3 17,061.0
Cash and cash equivalents .........c...cocoveveevennen. ettt bttt et 4479 1,110.5
Accrued investment iNCOME .........ccoveerecunnenne RS s 2223 1923
ReCeIVADIES ...ttt e s 2249 217.4
Deferred policy aCQUISIHION COSES.......cviiiririereriririr e eeseseerateseressessrene st seseetes s eossbenesenenes 1,367.7 1,234.1
Deferred INCOME tAXES .. oueeiei et ettt ettt s b e bbb b st et abese e 58.7 414
Intangible assets with definite liVes ... ‘ 261.8 291.7
Goodwill and other indefinite-lived intangible assets.........c.oveerrrirnceiiincin e . 4932 456.0
Other asSets.......cccovrvierernrcemiecrreesreerennens ettt ettt et r et ket eae bbb nn o 268.2 260.3
SEpArate aCCOUNE ASSELS.........vvererveeereeenseseeersrsneesrserneens et [T s , 6,083.2 4371.2
TOCAL ASSEES ..ooiiiiiiiireeeiee ettt ee et aee e vt ee st st eeseatsabers s e s esatasteeteesaataeetesssartar sttt seassanrerereras $ 27.559.2 $ 25,235.9
LIABILITIES: ‘
Policy liabilities and aCCIUALS .......c.cviiriivi ittt ettt st nas 3 13,088.6 $ 12,680.0
Policyholder deposit fUIAS .......coeoirriiriieiriiecc et 3,642.7 3,395.7
STOCK PUICHASE COMITATES ..o.viiiiierreitiiieiteetesteerevre st rere st e st e e e essesserseabesaesbensasneses sobanesensbesnesanas 128.8 137.6
INAEDBEEANESS -...eeveriiecrct ettt b e bbb st ekt r e reebe e et st e sb e e eueaaeae 639.0 644.3
Other general 2ccount Habiliti€s ........occevvviiiieeieireie et es s e abe e e seessaessceseeseeerees 525.7 5427
Non-recourse collateralized OBHGAtIONS ........ccccvioeivieeeiiiiiere et 1,472.0 1,609.5
Separate accoUnt HABIHTIES ......oviviei i 6,083.2 4,371.2
Total HADIHLIES .......cooiieiniiircicc et ron e 25,580.0 23,381.0
MINORITY INTEREST:
Minority interest in net assets of consolidated subsidiaries ................cccoccceininnec. 314 28.1
STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY:
Common stock, $.01 par value: 106,376,291 and 106,374,510 shares issued..........cccooveernene. 1.0 1.0
Additional paid-in CAPIAL......ccoiriieieiieii et e e e et eee 2,428.8 2,424.4
Deferred compensation on restricted STOCK UINILS ......ovrieveeerireiiriiinenieecersieeeiersveeeesenesenaenes (3.6) -=
AccuMUIAtEd AefICIt. . .oioiiieriiiii et sttt be s aeer e h e (352.7) (331.4)
Accumulated other COMPreNENSIVE IMCOMIE .. ...vvivereriiii e e 63.7 (71.5)
Treasury stock, at cost: 11,930,647 and 12,330,000 shares.........ccceevrirecreenniiineinininene. (189.4) (1957
Total stockholders’ equity..........cocoiviiiiiiiiiii s 1,947.8 '1,826.8
Total liabilities, minority interest and stockholders’ equity ...........ccccooceovineinnnnienncne. $ 27,559.2 $ 25,2359

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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THE PHOENIX COMPANIES, INC.
Consolidated Statement of Income and Comprehensive Income
($ amounts in millions, except per share data)

Years Ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001

2002 2001

2003 Restated Restated
REVENUES:
PIEIMIUINIS vooiivioticcteetieeee ettt et ettt ereentnestb et s eaesatsebeesbesteser et senssaveebsensasesernens $ 1,042.2 $ 1,082.0 $1,1127
Insurance and investment product fes...........ovoiiciciiinicinee 565.3 560.5 543.2
Investment inCOMe, NEt Of EXPENSES ... ccvivirvrrerririririere sttt sirae 1,107.4 947.7 892.8
Net realized iNVESTMENE 10SSES ....ovveveiiiiiiere ettt et ee (100.5) (133.9) (84.9)
TOtAN FRVEIIUES......c.coeviiiieieeiies ettt eti et bbbt eta s st et esae st s be st enseseene e nsbaee 2,614.4 2,456.3 2,463.8
BENEFITS AND EXPENSES:
Policy benefits, excluding policyholder dividends.........c.oooevvecninnceinnincen 1,454.0 1,436.1 1,406.7
Policyholder dividends..........ccvriiiniinic s 418.8 401.8 400.1
Policy acquisition Cost AMOTtiZAtION .........ccvvveeerirniree s 94.1 59.2 133.0
Intangible asset aMOrtiZation ..o 332 325 494
[ntangible asset IMPAITMENTS ....o..vvvvveeriei et e - 66.3 -
Interest expense on INAEbtEdNESS ......co.ovvveeiieevie e 39.6 314 27.3
Interest expense on non-recourse collateralized obligations ........c.coeirevecvrirecnens 48.9 30.5 423
Other operating expenses ............. T OSSOSO OO OO TORURRRON 536.0 583.0 650.3
Total benefits and eXPenses ............cccoociiiiiiiiiiniiiieee e 2,624.6 2,640.8 2,709.1
Loss from continuing operations before income taxes and minority interest............ (10.2) (184.5) (245.3)
Applicable income tax Benefit...........ccoroiiiiiiieiiniriee s (18.5) (56.2) (105.2)
Income (loss) from continuing operations before minority interest............oeccecevencn. 8.3 (128.3) (140.1)
Minority interest in net income of consolidated subsidiaries ........c.cccooecviiverircrnnan, 124 12.4 7.2
Loss from continuing operations.............c.c.ccoeoivieicrnnieionininiine e 4.1) (140.7) (147.3)
Loss from discontinued OPErations...........cccovcveiireeuivveiieriieenieneeresesssessessesesessesssenas (2.1) (1.3) (2.5)
Loss before cumulative effect of accounting changes.............c..cccoonvvinniinncan 6.2) (142.0) (149.8)
Cumulative effect of accounting Changes........c..o.ccoveveniiernerniecse s - (130.3) (65.4)
INEELOSS ..ottt bbbttt $ (62 $ (272.3) $ (215.2)
EARNINGS PER SHARE:
Loss from continuing operations — BasiC........o.veeevivieeeinnirenieeieieniercererese e sneessesenes $§ (004 "$ (1449 § (141
Loss from continuing operations — diluted...........ccooveovreoenrreninricicncnneinnes v $§ ©04 §$ (144 $ (141
Loss before cumulative effect of accounting change — basic ........cocoevevcevrnirviernnene, $ 07y $ (@145 § (143
Loss before cumulative effect of accounting change ~ diluted .......... RSO § (00 § (145 - § (143
INEE L0SS = DASIC...c.veeiicrieiie sttt ettt e et et b e ekt ebe e e s § (@07 $ (2.78) $ (2.06)
NEt10SS — QIUEA. ..ot e § (007 $ (278 $ (2.06)
Basic weighted-average common shares outstanding (in thousands)........................ 94,218 97,854 104,578
Diluted weighted-average common shares outstanding (in thousands)..................... 94,218 97,854 104,578
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME: ,
INEELOSS .ottt b et ettt sttt s bbb $ (62 $ (272.3) $ (215.2)
Other comprehensive income (108S) .............c.ccoovnininiiiiniiennne, [T 135.2 (74.3) (14.5)
Comprehensive income (loss) ................. ettt e ettt st eae bt $ 1290 $ (346.6) $ (229.7)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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THE PHOENIX COMPANIES, INC.
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
($ amounts in millions)
Years Ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001

2002 2001

2003 Restated Restated
OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Premitums COIECEA .......iviiiviiiiiiriiieetiie et $ 1,024.9 $ 1,068.2 $ 1,108.3
Insurance and investment product fees collected ...........ccovievviiiinviiineii 575.1 579.2 546.0
Investment inCOME COLECEU ...ovvviiiiiieriieiicr et eene 1,026.2 954.7 906.2
Policy benefits paid, excluding policyholder dividends..........cccocovevcrnvcnnnnn, (1,017.9) (1,036.2) (1,099.0)
Policyholder dividends paid...........ccocerveerereerinioinierenirin e seeens (396.1) (387.0) (387.6)
Policy acquiSition COStS PAI .......cvevveeerereriinerieierrein st senees (205.5) (217.0) (206.1)
Interest expense on indebtedness paid..........coveeeevicirririennneene s (36.5) (32.6) (32.3)
Interest expense on collateralized obligations paid...........cccvvvervvrevrcrenanene, (48.9) (30.5) (42.3)
Other operating eXpenses Paid .......cococvvvevveeevrereinionin et (534.8) (595.0) (614.0)
Income taxes refunded ............coeeevviiiiriniiiee e 6.6 12.3 72.0
Cash from cOntinuing OPETALIONS ......ccccveerereeruirinievrreareesreresesresieseseearesreseras 393.1 316.1 251.2
Discontinued 0perations, Nl .........ccccvvvivriciieiiinese e, (36.5) (59.1) (76.8)
Cash from operating activities .............c.cooooiiiiiiiiin e 356.6 2570 174.4
INVESTING ACTIVITIES: :
Investment purchases (NOTE 5) ......oviioierniire st (5,625.5) (4,969.9) (3,795.8)
Investment sales, repayments and maturities (Note 5) ......ccocvverveiincronnnnene. 4,417.2 3,418.6 2,284.1
Debt and equity securities pledged as collateral purchases .........c.occcececnenen. (56.9) (891.6). (116.4)
Debt and equity securities pledged as collateral sales .......cccovvevecnceiiecnnn, 171.5 96.0 127.4
Subsidiary purchases .......c..covviiivimiinicr e e (23.4) (136.1) (373.7)
Premises and equipment additions.........coooeeeiiniinein e (17.6) (15.7) (16.6)
Discontinued OPETations, NIEL ..........c.cevvreireereieruresirerensesesseessesessesesssesesessenes 4.4 37.3 79.4
Cash for investing activities.............c..ccoeceireii i, (1,139.1) (2,461.4) (1,811.6)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Policyholder deposit fund receipts (repayments), Nt ........ccocvcvervvrecennccnnee 247.0 1,649.6 836.8
Stock purchase contracts Proceeds.......ccceviiiriereriiireeeieeinese e -- 133.9 --
EqUItY UNits PrOCEEAS ....eovii et e et - 149.1 -
Senior unsecured bond Proceeds .........o.covvviirroieincrrne e s - -- 300.0
Other indebtedness proceeds........cveiiriireeiniiercccere e - -- 179.5
Indebtedness rEPAYINENTS. ......oveuereeeriieeee et er et s s - (125.1) (305.3)
COMMON SLOCK ISSUAIICE ...vvveveeverererererie ettt st sren e saeseen b saenesseasenes - - 831.0
Common stock purchases................... ettt ettt ns -- (131.1) (64.6)
Payment to policyholders in demutualization ...................... [ERSUR U -- -- (28.7)
Collateralized obligations proceeds (repayments), Net............covcevvercruererinnes (99.6) 841.6 --
Common stock dividends paid .........cocooeeiereriniiriiieerieeeee e (15.1) (15.8) -
Minority interest distributions........c.ccccovveicrienineircnmicicicr e (124 (10.6) (5.8)
Cash from financing activities...............ccccoocvnriniioiiciniccrre e 119.9 2,491.6 1,742.9
Change in cash and cash equivalents.............c..coccoivniiniiciii, (662.6) 287.2 105.7
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of Year........ccccoceevrerremsimsnrrsrcreernn 1,110.5 '823.3 717.6
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year...............cc..coonirreni e $ 4479 $ 1,110.5 $ 8233

Included in cash and cash equivalents above is cash pledged as collateral of $72.0 million, $57.0 million, and $11.0 million at
December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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THE PHOENIX COMPANIES, INC.

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Stockholders’ Equity

($ amounts in millions, except per share data)
Years Ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001

2003

2002

Restated

2001

Restated

COMMON STOCK AND ADDITIONAL PAID-IN CAPITAL:
Additional common shares issued in demutualization

(1,853; 4,237; and 56,174,373 shares)......c...cccocovreriviveinciinniiiienencn, 3 --
Restricted stock units awarded as compensation

(701,598; 573,477 URILS).c.c.einrirrriienrinieieicniecrsereierenserseinerenseesenencanonas 5.1
Restricted stock units awarded as payment of deferred compensation

ligbilities (161,768 UAILS).......vrreeererrrricecrnericrtseieneeeenenias e 1.5
Stock options awarded as compensation (572,504 options) ........c.c.ccrveveeee. 0.4
Excess of cost over fair value of common shares contributed to

employee SavINgs Plan.........ccovcivvireereeiviie e (2.6)
Income tax BENnefit .......c.oociriiiireeiie e e --
Present value of future contract adjustment payments on equity units........ --
Common shares issued in initial public offering (50,195,900 shares)......... --

DEFERRED COMPENSATION ON RESTRICTED STOCK UNITS:

Compensation deferred on restricted stock units awarded...............ocovvvnnen (5.0

Compensation expense recognized — restricted stock units.........cocecevvuennee - 14

RETAINED EARNINGS (ACCUMULATED DEFICIT):
NEELOSS .vvrverveietererieteittie ettt et bbbttt sbssn et e (6.2)
Common stock dividends declared ($0.16 per share; $0.16 per share)........ (15.1)
Transfer to common stock and additional paid-in capital for

common shares issued in demutualization.........ocovecvvnceneienniennicnenen, --
Policyholder cash payments and policy credits ......ccooevvrrcnviniecrnnncen --
Equity adjustment for policyholder dividend obligation, net ..................... --
Other equity adjuStMEnts ...........coeviniiiiniei e s --

ACCUMULATED OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME:
Other comprehensive INCOME (10SS) ...vovvreeveerriirieniereie e 135.2

TREASURY STOCK:
Common shares purchased (0; 7,871,500; and 4,458,500 shares)............... --
Common shares contributed to employee savings plan

(399,353 SHAIES). . cvmreriiiririireei sttt eee st st s 6.3

(272.3)
(15.8)

(74.3)

(129.7)

$

1,580.4

(215.2)

(1,580.4)
(41.5)
(30.3)

34

(14.5)

(66.0)

Change in stockholders’ equity .............c.ccccocoovinniciiiiinincn e 121.0
Stockholders’ equity, beginning of year.........ccccovicerveccieriienninceecne 1,826.8

(481.0)
2,307.8

466.9
1,840.9

Stockholders’ equity, end of year.............cccooivciiiininincec $ 1,947.8

$

1,826.8

$

2,307.8

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.




THE PHOENIX COMPANIES, INC.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
($ amounts in millions, except per share and per unit data)
Years Ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001

1. Organization and Operations

Our consolidated financial statements include the accounts of The Phoenix Companies, Inc. and its subsidiaries.
The Phoenix Companies, Inc. is a holding company and our operations are conducted through subsidiaries, the
principal ones of which are Phoenix Life Insurance Company, or Phoenix Life, and Phoenix Investment Partners,
Ltd., or Phoenix Investment Partners.. We have eliminated significant intercompany accounts and transactions in
consolidating these financial statements. We have restated certain amounts on our Consolidated Statement of
Income and Comprehensive Income and our Consolidated Balance Sheet which is further described below. Also,
we have reclassified certain amounts for 2002 and 2001 to conform with 2003 presentations.

We have prepared these financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, or
GAAP. In preparing these financial statements in conformity with GAAP, we are required to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities at reporting dates and the reported amounts
of revenues and expenses during the reporting periods. Actual results will differ from these estimates and
assumptions. We employ significant estimates and assumptions in the determination of deferred policy
acquisition costs; policyholder liabilities and accruals; the valuation of intangible assets; the valuation of
investments in debt and equity securities and venture capital partnerships; pension and other post-employment
benefits liabilities; and accruals for contingent liabilities. Significant accounting policies are presented
throughout the notes in italicized type.

In 1999, we began the process of reorganizing and demutualizing our then principal operating company, Phoenix
Home Life Mutual Insurance Company. We completed the process in June 2001, when all policyholder
membership interests in the mutual company were extinguished and eligible policyholders of the mutual company
received 56,180,463 shares of common stock (56,164,244 shares in June 2001 and 16,219 shares subsequently),
$28.8 million of cash and $12.7 million of policy credits as compensation. Our retained earnings immediately
following the demutualization (net of cash payments and policy credits that were charged directly to retained
earnings) were reclassified to common stock and additional paid-in capital in the amount of $1,580.4 million. To
protect the future dividends of these policyholders, we established a closed block for their existing policies, which
we describe in Note 3. Concurrent with the demutualization and conversion, we sold common stock of The
Phoenix Companies, Inc. to the public and received net proceeds of $831.0 million.

Accounting changes and restatement of prior periods

The cumulative effect of accounting changes for 2002 and 2001 follows ($ amounts in millions):

2002 2001
Goodwill and other intangible @SSELS........couviiiiereririiiririe et e s e e et ees $ (1303) $ --
Venture capital PArtHerShiPS......coiverieiii ettt st st st - (48.8)
Securitized financial IMSIIUMEIES .......c.c.eoiiiirlie ettt et e et et ereebe s st esbeseeneeabe s -- (20.5)
DErIVALIVE TISIIUITIEIILS ..o.eetieiiesieuieeeaseesieetaenteneeresersesesseastenresaasesssestresensansneessensassenesssenessene -- 3.9
Cumulative effect of accounting changes income (I1088) ..............cocoovvenmirrcnncnennen, $ (130.3) $  (654)

As of December 31, 2003, we adopted a new accounting standard for special purpose variable interest entities
which we describe further in Note 8. As of January 1, 2003, we prospectively adopted a new accounting standard
for stock-based compensation, which we describe further in Note 11. We recognized no cumulative effect of
accounting changes in 2003 as a result of our adoption of these new accounting standards.




As of January 1, 2002, we adopted a new accounting standard for goodwill and other intangible assets and
recorded the cumulatwe effect of the adoptlon as a charge to earmngs We describe the adoption of this standard
further in Note 4.

As of January l, 2001, we adopted a new accounting standard for derivative instruments and recorded the
cumulative effect of the adoption as a credit to both earnings and other comprehensive income. We describe the
adoption further in Note 9. Also as of January 1, 2001, we changed our accounting for venture capital
partnerships to remove the lag in reporting their operating results and recorded the effect of this change as a
charge to earnings. Additionally, in the beginning of the second quarter of 2001, we adopted a new accounting
pronouncement for securitized financial instruments and recorded the cumulative effect of the adoption as a
charge to earnings. We describe both of these changes further in Note 5. '

Pro forma information on income (loss) from continuing operations for 2001 assuming retrogetis}e application of
the accounting change for goodwill and other intangibles assets follows ($ amounts in millions):

- 2001 2001
Pro forma Actual
Income (loss) from CONLINUING OPELALIONS ...cvevivieviverieviisi ettt srese ettt sesssere steneresenens § (1281 $ - (147.3)

Income (loss) from continuing operations per share (basic and diluted) ......c..ccoooccevvvrricennnnnn. $ (1.23) $ (1.41)

Effective January 1, 2004, we are required to adopt the AICPA’s Statement of Position 03-1, Accounting and
Reporting by Insurance Enterprises for Certain Nontraditional Long-Duration Contracts and for Separate
Accounts, or SOP 03-1. SOP 03-1 provides guidance related to the accounting, reporting and disclosure of certain
insurance contracts and separate accounts, including guidance for computing reserves for products with
guaranteed benefits, such as guaranteed minimum death benefits, and for products with annuitization benefits
such as guaranteed minimum income benefits. In addition, SOP 03-1 addresses the presentation and reporting of
separate accounts, as well as rules concerning the capitalization and amortization of sales inducements. This new
accounting standard largely codifies our current accounting and reserving practices related to our applicable non-
traditional long-duration contracts and separate accounts and thus, our adoption is not expected to have a material -
effect on our financial statements.
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We have restated certain 2002 and 2001 amounts on our Consolidated Statement of Income and Comprehensive
Income and our Consolidated Balance Sheet with respect to our method of consolidation for several of our
sponsored collateralized obligation trusts which we further describe in Note 8. Revised and originally reported
amounts for select financial statement components for the years 2002 and 2001 and as of 2002 are as follows

($ amounts in millions, except per share data):

2002 2001
As As As As
Restated Repeorted Restated Reported

Income statement data .
Insurance and investment product fees...........cc.cccven..e. $ 560.5 $ 562.3 $ 543.2 $ 545.7
Investment INCOME. ......cuuererereeorererecicerinenerireee e 947.7 916.7 892.8 847.5
Realized investment gains (10SS€8) .o.coveeveiircceiivceincns (133.9) (107.6) (84.9) (72.4)
Interest expense on non-recourse 3

collateralized obligations.........cecevveeceeecrirnneriieneecnene 30.5 -- 423 --
Net loss from continuing operations............c.coeceveecnnen. (140.7) (114.4) (147.3) (134.8)
NEEL0SS crerierireirirreseiriss st §  (2723) § (246.0) § (2152 $  (202.7)
Earnings per share data
Loss from continuing operations — basic and diluted ... $ (1.44) $ (1.17) 3 (1.41) $ (1.29)
Loss before cumulative effect of accounting change —

basic and diluted ............cocoviiieiie e (1.45) (1.18) (1.43) (13D
Net loss — basic and diluted .........ccocoverevnnncnncnc. 5 (2.78) $ (5D $ (2.06) 3 (1.94)
Balance sheet data
Available-for-sale equity securities ..........cocccovvererennnen 5 385.9 $ 390.9
Auvailable-for-sale debt and equity securities ,

pledged as collateral ............coouevervvverrerecreerereesienins 1,358.7 --
Cash and cash equivalents ............cocooenniienvniinnnnnennns 1,110.5 1,053.5
Other assetS......coorverrmrrnsrcerencnns ettt e neene 260.3 249.1
Separate aCCOUNE ASSELS... v vcrereecervrerereerereraereresnersesens 4,371.2 --
Separate account and investment trust assets................ -- 5,793.1
Non-recourse collateralized obligations ...........cccenenee 1,609.5 -
Separate account labilities .......c.cocvreveveciennineieiennn 4,371.2 -
Separate account and investment trust liabilities .......... -- 5,793.1
Minority interest in net assets of subsidiaries............... 28.1 10.8
Stockholders’ equity.......occovveveiineinniires e $ 1,826.8 $ 2,031.7

As reported 2002 and 2001 amounts reflect reclassifications related to discontinued operations and other
reclassifications to conform to 2003 presentation. Reduction of December 2001 stockholders’ equity due to the
change in method of consolidation of $87.9 million is reflected as a decrease to 2002 opening stockholders’

equity.
Business combinations

In 2003, we acquired the outstanding minority interests in PFG Holdings, Inc., or PFG, and Capital West Asset
Management, LLC, or Capital West. In 2002, we acquired a majority interest in Kayne Anderson Rudnick
Investment Management, LLC, or Kayne Anderson Rudnick; in 2001, we acquired the minority interest in
Phoenix Investment Partners and majority interests in two other asset management firms. Additional information
on PFG is included in Note 3 and on the other acquisitions in Note 4.

We have not presented pro forma information as if the minority and majority interests had been acquired at the
beginning of 2001, since such pro forma information does not differ materially from our financial statements.
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2. Business Segments

We are a manufacturer of insurance, annuity and asset management products for the accumulation, preservation
and transfer of wealth. We provide products and services to affluent and high-net-worth individuals through their
advisors and to institutions directly and through consultants. We offer a broad range of life insurance, annuity
and asset management products through a variety of distributors. These products are managed within two
operating segments — Life and Annuity and Asset Management. We report our remaining activities in two non-
operating segments — Venture Capital and Corporate and Other.

The Life and Annuity segment includes individual life insurance and annuity products including participating
whole life, universal life, variable life, term life and variable annuities. The Asset Management segment includes
private client and institutional investment management and distribution, including managed accounts, open-end
mutual funds and closed-end funds. We provide more information on the Life and Annuity and Asset
Management operating segments in Note 3 and Note 4, respectively.

The Venture Capital segment includes our equity share in the operating income and the realized and unrealized
investment gains of our venture capital partnership investments held in the general account of Phoenix Life, but
outside the closed block. We provide more information on this segment in Note 5. The Corporate and Other
segment includes all interest expense, as well as several smaller subsidiaries and investment activities which do
not meet the thresholds of reportable segments. These include international operations and the run-off of our
group pension and guaranteed investment contract businesses.

We evaluate segment performance on the basis of segment income. Realized investment gains and losses and
some non-recurring items are excluded because we do not consider them when evaluating the financial
performance of the segments. The size and timing of realized investment gains and losses are often subject to our
discretion. The non-recurring items are removed from segment after-tax operating income if, in our opinion, they
are not indicative of overall operating trends. While some of these items may be significant components of net
income, we believe that segment income is an appropriate measure that represents the earnings attributable to the
ongoing operations of the business.

The criteria used to identify an item that will be excluded from segment income include: whether the item is
infrequent and is material to the segment’s income; or whether it results from a business restructuring, or a change
in regulatory requirements, or relates to other unusual circumstances (e.g., non-routine litigation). We include
information on other items allocated to our segments in their respective notes for information only. Items
excluded from segment income may vary from period to period. Because these items are excluded based on our
discretion, inconsistencies in the application of our selection criteria may exist. Segment income is not a
substitute for net income determined in accordance with GAAP and may be different from similarly titled
measures of other companies.

We allocate indebtedness and related interest expense to our Corporate and Other segment. We allocate capital to
our Life and Annuity segment based on risk-based capital, or RBC, for our insurance products. We used 300% of
RBC levels for 2003 and 2002 and 250% of RBC for 2001. Capital within our life insurance companies that is
unallocated is included in our Corporate and Other segment. We allocate capital to our Asset Management
segment on the basis of the historical capital within that segment. We allocate net investment income based on
the assets allocated to the segments. We allocate certain costs and expenses to the segments based on a review of
the nature of the costs, time studies and other methodologies. Investment income on debt and equity securities
pledged as collateral as well as interest expense on non-recourse collateralized obligations, both related to three
consolidated collateralized obligation trusts we sponsor, are included in the Corporate and Other segment. Excess
investment income on debt and equity securities pledged as collateral represent investment advisory fees earned
by our asset management subsidiary and are allocated to the Asset Management segment as investment product
fees for segment reporting purposes only.




Segment information on assets as of December 31, 2003 and 2002 and revenues and income for 2003, 2002 and

2001 follow ($ amounts in millions):

: : . 2003 2002
Segment Assets ) :
Life and annuity SEZMENT.. . cvrieeevirererrerreririressiesesss et srssaeessansae e betssebsesesssessesseseesesesescseseees § 24,2195 $ 21,263.0
Asset Management SEZIMEN......c.ciirriiirie it eresie ettt sttt et st st se b sae b sabesneraesesbesans 851.2 844.3
Operating SEgMENt ASSELS ............ooocoiiiiviiiireiei e st bttt bt errr e 25,070.7 22,107.3
Venture capital SEBIMIENT .......cuiviiiiiiriiii i e bbb e 196.3 227.8
Corporate and other segment...................... et s 2,264.0 2,870.4
Total segment assets ... TP e s 27,531.0 ' 25,205.5
Net assets of discontinued operatlons (NOTE T4 ' 28.2 304
Total assets ............. e ettt eanene e et et bt an b renn $ 27,559.2 $ 25,2359
2003 2002 2001

Segment Revenues
Life and annuity SEZMENT........ccoveveveeeraereererrrseneresreresarsesstnssssssesssessesaseses $ 23684 § 23445 $ 23066
Asset management SEZMENL........c.cvveiieriniieencie et e e 2439 259.1 259.7
Elimination of inter-segment TeVENUES ... ...ccccvreerererririenriniieresenesereenens (14.0) (15.8) (19.3)
Operating segment TEVENUES..........c.c.ccceerirnarieronerierineness rrereererae e 2,598.3 2,587.8 2,547.0
Venture capital SEZIMENT .....c.ecovirerircirireerererrreeseeseeseeeresecereseseene SR - 36.2 (59.3) (84.5)
Corporate and other SEZMENt........c.covirerrienceini e 80.4 61.7 _ 86.2
Total SEEMENt FEVEIUES ......ccoivviriiiiiiieiere et et se e e e 2,714.9 2,590.2 2,548.7
Net realized INVESIMENt LOSSES.....covecveerriiiirireirre s (100.5) (133.9) (84.9)
TOtA] FEVEIMUES ........cooveieeeee ettt sasees bt saneeatesnas e $ 2,6144 $ 2,456.3 $ 2,463.8
Segment Income (Loss)
Life and annuity SEZMENL........cceoeeivererirrerereterisesersssssssssnsrsssesesesssesesans $ 99.4 $ 80.3  $ 82.9
Asset management SEEMENL.......c.c.orvriverirreesoeeerereanresrartereserbesesesesesasenane 8.7 (69.9) 8.7)
Operating segment pre-tax inCoOmMe ... 90.7 104 74.2
Venture capital SEEMENE ...c...ovevviriiriiieceeece s 36.2 (59.3) (84.5)
Corporate and other segment:

Interest expense on indebtedness.........ccccivveveriioenicricice e (39.6) (31.4) (27.3)

OHRET .ottt 8.2) _(8.6) (7.4
Total segment income (loss) before income taxes..........oooevvveveccenirnan. e 79.1 (88.9) (45.0)
Applicable income taxes (benefit) ............. s et 21.8 {28.5) (19.1)
Total segment income (1088) ..........cccoooneiriniii e 573 (60.4) (25.9)
Loss from discontinued Operations...........courevreerieeeinisiesereeeenneesiererennns 2.1 (1.3) (2.5)
Net realized investment losses, net of income taxes and other offsets ....... (54.2) (65.6) (55.5)
Restructuring and early retirement costs, net of income taxes............o.c.... (8.5) (28.5) (15.5)
Other income, net of INCOME TAXES ..oveviieveriiiieieer et 1.3 -- 24
Deferred acquisition cost adjustment, net of income taxes............ccocveenen. -- 15.1 --
Demutualization related items, net of income taxes ..........cccovvevvrncvinnns - (1.3 (23.9)
Expenses of purchase of Phoenix Investment Partners minority interest .. -- -- (52.8)
Mutual life SUPIUS tAX . ococveieirreieeieeeier e s e ee e -- -- 21.0
Pension adjustment, net 0f iNCOME tAXES .....covevrveerriereeeniererererceneicerieinnanns -- -- 2.9
Cumulative effect of accounting changes, net of income taxes................. -- (130.3) (65.4)
NELIOSS ..o $ (6.2) $  (272.3) $  (215.2)

While revenues derived from outside of the United States are not material to our financial statements, we have
international investments, the principal ones of which are located in the United Kingdom (Aberdeen Asset
Management PLC, or Aberdeen, 16.2% owned, Note 5) and Luxembourg (Lombard International Assurance, 12%
owned, Note 5) and Argentina. We have recorded pre-tax cumulative foreign currency translation gains of $10.3
million, related principally to the British pound and the Argentine peso, which are included as a component of

accumulated other comprehensive income at December 31, 2003 (Note 12).
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The pre-tax components of foreign currency exchange gains (losses) in accumulated other comprehensive income
by currency as of December 31, 2003 and 2002 follow ($ amounts in millions):

2003 _ 2002

British pound sterling ..................... seeereeeereens oo ekt sttt ettt bae $ 192 . § 9.1
Argentine peso.............. s s et s R (8.8) (10.8)
OHNET oot et ottt et 0.1) 0.1
Total accumulated unrealized foreign currency gain (10Ss) ..o $ 10.3 $ (1.6)

3.. Life and Annuity Segment

The Life and Annuity segment includes individual life insurance and annuity products of Phoenix Life and certain
of its subsidiaries and affiliates (together, our “Life Companies™), including universal life, variable universal life,
term life and fixed and variable annuities. It also includes the results of our closed block, which consists
prlmanly of participating whole life products.

Segment information on assets as of December 31, 2003 and 2002 and income for 2003, 2002 and 2001 follows
($ amounts in millions):

2003 2002

foe and Anmuty Segment Assets o . :
INVESIMENIS ..ot e et et $ 16,2033 $ 144751
Cash and cash eqUIVAIENLS ..o e 250.5 919.0
RECEIVADIES ....vv ettt et bbbttt b e e e 228.1 236.5
Deferred policy acquisition COStS..........covrevrerinnenssd e ettt et et e e 1,367.7 1,234.1
Deferred INCOME tAXES ......c.vrueririirreeristerieineteeeser st et st saeseseee e e s et seeseasasessosesasteebabenesssensenas 40.2 97.2
Goodwill and other Intangible @SSetS .........cccvverereeriverierireverrrere s reevenneneens vt e 153 7.1
Other general account assets...........coo.coeenns SRR Yeverennd e S SOTTUNURRN 204.1 162.3
SEPATALE ACCOUNLS ...eveutitiieiiieiiite et ae b eeae b seaeeaeeratreere st ee e reaseseebeereshasasesnennentanseseere 59103 4,131.7
Total segment assets ..........ccccovviviericnecere e e $ 24,2195 $ 21,2630

: L - 2003 2002 2001
Life and Annuity Segment Income . ‘
PrEemiumS . ......c.ovvvvevreireesiesienessssenneess ereen e et $ 1,042:2¢ $ 1,082.0 $ L1127
Insurance and investment product fEes...........ccoccvvennceiiininen e 333.0 - 3151 303.1
Net INVESIMENt INCOIME ......cevvrvereiererirrece et e e e e © 9932 947.4 890.8
Total SEZMENt TEVENIES ......eoivviiiieeiie e T 2,368.4 - 2,344.5 2,306.6
Policy benefits, including policyholder dividends...........cccccoviiiiivennnnn. 1,869.9 - . 1,867.6 1,812.6
Policy acquisition cost amOIrtization ... ....coeecnerernecrerennsd SRR 98.2 : 88.6 122.5
Other OPErating EXPEISES. ... cveveeriererirrirererearrerarereseerestsiesneseseesesessrsessencens 300.5 307.4 288.3
Total segment benefits and expenses.............c.cocococvinivinniinienninnnn, ‘ 2,268.6 2,263.6 2,223.4
Segment income before income taxes and mmorlty mterest ...................... - 99.8 .. 809 83.2
Allocated INCOME LAXES ...vvvvrerererererese st sre e s ese e sa e e es e vnone 31.1 28.0 28.8
Segment income before minority interest........cccooveeceirnicricncienneecns 687 529 544
Minority interest in segment income of consolidated subsidiaries............. 0.4 0.6 0.3
Segment iNCOME ........cooiiiiiiiiicic e 68.3 52.3 54.1
Net realized investment losses, net of income taxes and other offsets ....... 4.7 (15.0) (16.6)
Restructuring charges, net of inCOME taxes .......coocevrrenirceneennncnierencan. - (1.3 -- --
Deferred acquisition cost adjustment, net of income taxes..........cocooeveruene -- 15.1 --
Segment NEt MNCOIMIE ..........c.cveeeiiveririieree et eree s s essree e esesaseaees 3 62.3 $ 52.4 $ 37.5




Premium and fee revenue and related expenses

We recognize life insurance premiums, other than premiums for universal life and certain annuity contracts, as
premium revenue pro rata over the related contract periods. We match benefits, losses and related expenses with
premiums over the related contract periods. Revenues for universal life products consist of net investment income
and mortality, administration and surrender charges assessed against the fund values during the period. Related
benefit expenses include universal life benefit claims in excess of fund values and net investment income credited
to universal life fund values.

Reinsurance

We use reinsurance agreements to provide for greater diversification of business, allow us to control exposure to
potential losses arising from large risks and provide additional capacity for growth.

We recognize assets and liabilities related to reinsurance ceded contracts on a gross basis. The cost of
reinsurance related to long-duration contracts is accounted for over the life of the underlying reinsured policies
using assumptions consistent with those used to account for the underlying policies.

We remain liable to the extent that reinsuring companies may not be able to meet their obligations under
reinsurance agreements in effect. Failure of the reinsurers to honor their obligations could result in losses to us;
consequently, estimates are established for amounts deemed or estimated to be uncollectible. To minimize our
exposure to significant losses from reinsurance insolvencies, we evaluate the financial condition of our reinsurers
and monitor concentration of credit risk arising from similar geographlc regions, activities, or economic
characteristics of the reinsurers.

Our reinsurance program varies based on the type of risk, for example:

e  On direct policies, the maximum of individual life insurance retained by us on any one life is $10 million
for single life and joint first-to-die policies and $12 million for joint last-to-die policies, with excess
amounts ceded to reinsurers.

s  We reinsure 80% of the mortality risk on the inforce block of the Confederation Life business we
acquired in December 1997.

o We entered into two separate reinsurance agreements in 1998 and 1999 to reinsure 80% and 60%,
respectively, of the mortality rlsk on a substantial portion of our otherwise retained individual life
insurance business.

e We reinsure 80% to 90% of the mortality risk on certain new issues of term.

s  We reinsure 100% of guaranteed minimum death benefits on a block of variable deferred annuities issued
between January 1, 1996 through December 31, 1999, including subsequent deposits. We retain the
guaranteed minimum death benefits risks on the remaining variable deferred annuity inforce that is not
covered by this reinsurance arrangement.

e We assume and cede business related to the group accident and health block in run-off. While we are not
writing any new contracts, we are contractually obligated to assume and cede premiums related to
existing contracts.
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Additional information on direct business written and reinsurance assumed and ceded for continuing operations
for 2003, 2002 and 2001 follows ($ amounts in millions):

2003 2002 2001
DITECt PIEMIUINS ...ecvvivieieeeetreresenesere et s ess b seraeaesenas e - % 1,092.1 $ 1,104.2 $ 1,1455
Premiums assumed from 1einsureds ..o 15.5 16.9 0.6
Premiums ceded to TEINSUIETS ... .....vvverrverirreeeriiereiesssss e (65.4) (39.1) (33.4)
Premiums.........ccocoovvinincviinnnicninies ettt e $ 1,042.2 $ 1,082.0 $ 1,112.7
Percentage of amount assumed to net premiums.........coceevvvrierierirenenennn, 1.5% 1.6% 0.1%
Direct policy benefits incurred ...........cocovrevovriceinvnsienineenes e $ 404.1 $ 370.2 $ 366.5
Policy benefits assumed from reinsureds...........covceccvevrrevcecnrnnneeenns 348 27.6 17.2
Policy benefits ceded to reinsurers ............coeneee e (57.1) (4709 (53.0)
Policy benefits ............ocooeeiiiiiiiiic e $ 381.8 $ 350.8 $ 330.7
Direct life Insurance inforce ...........covcvvereerierieninieeieeee s $122,591.8 $112,842.8 $105,517.9
Life insurance inforce assumed from reinsureds ........c.cccevrvencrnicnnnnne 168.7 440.9 28.1
Life insurance inforce ceded t0 TeINSUTELS .....c.c.ovimrirvirrsieencsrreseneiennaes (77,214.9) (74,265.8) (69,127.0)
Life insurance inforce...............cccoovviinniicicc $ 45,545.6 $ 39,017.9 $ 36,419.0
Percentage of amount assumed to net insurance inforce .........cccocevvneeennne 0.4% 1.1% 0.1%

Irrevocable letters of credit aggregating $57.7 million at December 31, 2003 have been arranged with commercial
banks in favor of us to collateralize the ceded reserves.

Business combinations and major reinsurance assumed transaction

In May 2003, we acquired the remaining interest in PFG not already owned by us for initial consideration of
$16.7 million. Under the terms of the purchase agreement, we may be obligated to pay additional consideration
of up to $89.0 million to the selling shareholders, including $13.0 million during the years 2004 through 2007
based on certain financial performance targets being met, and the balance in 2008 based on the appraised value of
PFG as of December 31, 2007. We have accounted for our acquisition of the remaining interest in PFG as a step-
purchase. Accordingly, we recorded a definite-lived intangible asset of $9.8 million related to the present value of
future profits acquired and a related deferred income tax liability of $3.4 million. The present value of future
profits intangible asset will be amortized over the remaining estimated life of the underlying insurance inforce
acquired, estimated to be 40 years. The remammg acquisition price of $7.6 million has been assigned to

goodwill.

In July 2002, we acquired the variable life and variable annuity business of Valley Forge Life Insurance Company
(a subsidiary of CNA Financial Corporation), effective July 1, 2002. The business acquired had a total account
value of $557.0 million at June 30, 2002. This transaction was effected through a combmatlon of coinsurance and
modified coinsurance.

Deferred policy acquisition costs

The costs of acquiring new business, principally commissions, underwriting, distribution and policy issue
expenses, all of which vary with and are primarily related to production of new business, are deferred. In
connection with our acquisitions of the Confederation Life business (1997) and PFG (2003), we recognized an
asset for the present value of future profits, or PVFP, representing the present value of estimated net cash flows
embedded in the existing contracts acquired. This asset is included in deferred acquisition costs, or DAC.

We amortize DAC and PVFP based on the related policy s classification. For individual participating life
insurance policies, DAC and PVFP are amortized in proportion to estimated gross margins. For universal life,

variable universal life and accumulation annuities, DAC and PVFP are amortized in proportion to estimated
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gross profits. Policies may be surrendered for value or exchanged for a different one of our products (internal
replacement); the DAC balance associated with the replaced or surrendered policies is amortized to reflect these
surrenders.

The amortization process requires the use of various assumptions, estimates and judgments about the future. The
primary assumptions are expenses, investment performance, mortality and contract cancellations (i.e., lapses,
withdrawals and surrenders). These assumptions are reviewed on a regular basis and are generally based on our
past experience, industry studies, regulatory requirements and judgments about the future. Changes in estimated
gross margins and gross profits based on actual experiences are reflected as an adjustment to total amortization
to date resulting in.a charge or credit to earnings. Finally, analyses are performed periodically to assess whether
there are sufficient gross margins or gross profits to amortize the remaining DAC balances.

The activity in deferred policy acquisition costs for 2003, 2002 and 2001 follows ($ amounts in millions):

2003 2002 2001

Acquisition costs deferred .........cooivveeiicnreerr s b 205.5 $ 217.1 $ 206.1
Acquisition costs recognized in: }

PFG minority interest ACQUISTHON ............\uverrisieeeriseeeseiseesenressessreesseeneans 9.8 - ' -

Valley Forge Life reinsurance assumed transaction ...........c.ocevvreeureresins . 485 -
Costs amortized to expenses:

Recurring costs related to segment inCOME .......c..eeerveerreerercenienennenes (98.2) (88.6) (122.5)

(Cost) credit related to realized investment gains or losses (Note 5)...... 4.1 7.2 (10.5)

Change in actuarial assumMpPtion ..........occevreermrrircreieniinrereneraeeeresenernas -~ 22.1 -
Offsets to net unrealized investment gains or losses

included in other comprehensive income (Note 12) ......coveveevvceniinninnnns 12.4 (95.9) 28.5

Equity adjustment for policyholder dividend obligation ........c.cccceevecenanne. -- -~ 3.1
Change in deferred policy acquisition costs.................cccviiinnnnns 133.6 . 1104 104.7
Deferred policy acquisition costs, beginning of year...........c.coveivene. 1,234.1 1,123.7 1,019.0
Deferred policy acquisition costs, end of year..........c....occoocenrevnnnennnnns $ 1,367.7 $ 1,234.1 $ 1,123.7

In 2002, we revised the mortality assumptions used in the development of estimated gross margins for the
traditional participating block of business to reflect favorable experience. This revision resulted in a decrease in
deferred policy acquisition cost amortization of $22.1 million ($14.4 million after income taxes). Also in 2002,
we revised the long-term market return assumption for the variable annuity block of business from 8% to 7%. In
addition, we recorded an impairment charge related to the recoverability of our deferred acquisition cost asset
related to the variable annuity business. The revision in long-term market return assumption and the impairment
charge resulted in a $13.5 million pre-tax ($8.8 million after income taxes) increase in policy acquisition cost
amortization expense in the third quarter of 2002.

We have included.in deferred policy acquisition costs the PVFP from two major reinsurance assumed transactions
and the purchase of the minority interest in a subsidiary. The amounts included as of December 31, 2003 and
2002 follow: Confederation Life reinsurance assumed ($36.0 million and $45.7 million, respectively), Valley
Forge Life reinsurance assumed ($37.4 million and $43.5 million, respectively) and PFG minority interest
acquisition ($9.7 million and $0 million, respectively).

Policy liabilities and accruals

Future policy benefits are liabilities for life and annuity products. We establish liabilities in amounts adequate fo
meet the estimated future obligations of policies inforce. Future policy benefits for traditional life insurance are
computed using the net level premium method on the basis of actuarial assumptions as to contractual guaranteed
rates of interest, mortality rates guaranteed in calculating the cash surrender values described in such contracts
and morbidity. Future policy benefits for variable universal life, universal life and annuities in the accumulation
phase are computed using the deposit-method which is the sum of the account balance, unearned revenue liability
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and liability for minimum policy benefits. Future policy benefits for term and annuities in the payout phase that
have significant mortality risk are computed using the net premium method on the basis of actuarial assumptions
at the issue date of these contracts for rates of interest, contract administrative expenses, mortality and
surrenders. We establish liabilities for outstanding claims, losses and loss adjustment expenses based on
individual case estimates for reported losses and estimates of unreported losses based on past experience.

Policyholder liabilities are primarily for participating life insurance policies and universal life insurance policies.
For universal life, this includes deposits received from customers and investment earnings on their fund balances,
which range from 4.0% to 6.25% as of December 31, 2003 and 4.0% to 7.0% as of December 31, 2002, less
administrative and mortahty charges.

Policyholder deposit funds

Policyholder deposit funds primarily consist of annuity deposits received from customers, dividend accumulations
and investment earnings on their fund balances, which range from 1.0% to 12.3% as of December 31, 2003, less
administrative charges.

Fair value of investment contracts

For purposes of fair value disclosures (Note 9), we determine the fair value of guaranteed interest contracts by
assuming a discount rate equal to the appropriate U.S. Treasury rate plus 150 basis points to determine the
present value of projected contractual liability payments through final maturity. We valued the fair value of
deferred annuities and supplementary contracts without life contingencies with an interest guarantee of one year
or less at the amount of the policy reserve. In determining the fair value of deferred annuities and supplementary
contracts without life contingencies with interest guarantees greater than one year, we used a discount rate equal
1o the appropriate U.S. Treasury rate plus 150 basis points to determine the present value of the projected
account value of the policy at the end of the current guarantee perzod

Deposit type funds, including pension deposit administration contracts, dzvzdend accumulatzons and other funds
left on deposit not involving life contingencies, have interest guarantees of less than one year for which interest
credited is closely tied to rates earned on owned assets. For these liabilities, we assume fair value to be equal to
the stated liability balances.

Participating life insurance

Participating life insurance inforce was 38.8% and 45.5% of the face value of total individual life insurance
inforce at December 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively. The premiums on participating life insurance policies were
67.4%, 70.4% and 73.5% of total individual life insurance premiums in 2003, 2002, and 2001, respectively.
Funds under management

Activity in annuity funds under management for 2003, 2002 and 2001 ($ amounts in millions):-

2003 2002 2001

DEPOSIES covvvieeeeerciere ettt ss s et s seaeseans et ebes $ 14281 $ 2,2585 $ 1,4929
PerfOIMANCE. ... ...ocveeiiiii ettt st e e reer s beseaesrsenresraes 865.2 . (338.0) (363.1),
RS ittt et bbb et ene e (57.7) " (58.8) (67.3)
Benefits and SUITENAETS ........coovvivieiceieerererieerrresrae s ssrasere e snseseresnseeenes (925.3) (777.3) (516.6)
Change in funds under ManAgEMENt.........ccoceciviniiereciiniminnmniieisseinens 1,310.3 1,084.4 345.9
Funds under management, beginning of year.........coccverivnininincinen. 5,833.5 4,749.1 4,403.2
Annuity funds under management, end of year...........cccococonienneienn $ 7,143.8 $ 5,833.5 $ 4,749.1
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Demutualization and Closed Block

Phoenix Home Life Mutual Insurance Company demutualized on June 25, 2001 by converting from a mutual life
insurance company to a stock life insurance company, became a wholly-owned subsidiary of The Phoenix
Companies, Inc. and changed its name to Phoenix Life Insurance Company.

Effective June 30, 2001, we adopted a new accounting pronouncement, which provided guidance on accounting
by insurance enterprises for demutualization, including the emergence of earnings from and the financial
presentation of the closed block established in connection with the demutualization. The pronouncement specifies
that closed block assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses should be displayed with all other assets, liabilities,
revenues and expenses of the insurance enterprise based on the nature of the particular item, with appropriate
disclosures relating to the closed block. We recorded a charge on adoption of $30.3 million to equity representing
the establishment of the policyholder dividend obligation along with the correspondmg effect on deferred policy
acquisition costs and deferred income taxes.

As specified in the plan of reorganization, Phoenix Life established a closed block as of December 31, 1999 to
preserve over time the reasonable dividend expectations of individual life and annuity policyholders for which
dividends were currently being paid or were expected to be paid under the then-current dividend scale. The
closed block comprises a defined limited group of policies and a defined set of assets, is governed by a set of
operating rules and will continue in effect as long as any policy in the closed block remains in effect.

Phoenix Life allocated assets to the closed block in an amount we believed sufficient to produce cash flows
which, together with anticipated premiums and other revenues from the policies included in the closed block, we
expect to support payment of obligations relating to these policies. These obligations include the payment of
claims, certain expenses, taxes and policyholder dividends, which we estimated to continue at rates in effect for
2000.

We use the same accounting principles to account for the participating policies included in the closed block as we
used prior to the date of demutualization. The only accounting policy difference is the establishment of the
policyholder dividend obligation, described below.

The closed block assets, including future assets from cash flows generated by the assets and premiums and other
revenues from the policies in the closed block, will benefit only holders of the policies in the closed block. The
principal cash flow items that affect the amount of closed block assets and liabilities are premiums, net investment
income, investment purchases and sales, policyholder benefits, policyholder dividends, premium taxes and income
taxes. The principal income and expense items excluded from the closed block are management and maintenance
expenses, commissions, investment income and realized investment gains and losses on investments held outside
the closed block that support the closed block business. All of these excluded income and expense items enter into
the determination of total gross margins of closed block policies for the purpose of amortization of deferred
policy acquisition costs.

In our financial statements, we present closed block assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses together with all
other assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses. Within closed block liabilities, we have established a
policyholder dividend obligation to record an additional liability to closed block policyholders for cumulative
closed block earnings in excess of expected amounts calculated at the date of demutualization. These closed
block earnings will not inure to stockholders, but will result in additional future dividends to closed block
policyholders unless otherwise offset by future performance of the closed block that is less favorable than
expected.

As closed block liabilities exceed closed block assets, we have a net closed block liability at each period-end.
This net liability represents the maximum future earning contribution to be recognized from the closed block and
the change in this net liability each period is in the earnings contribution recognized from the closed block for the
period. To the extent that actual cash flows differ from amounts anticipated, we may adjust policyholder
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dividends. If thé bl:osed block has excess funds, those funds will be available only to the closed block
policyholders. However, if the closed block has insufficient funds to make policy benefit payments that are
guaranteed_, the payments will be made from assets outside of the closed block.

Summarized information on closed biock assets and liabilities as of December 31, 2003 and 2002 and inception
(December 31, 1999) follows ($ amounts in millions):

2003 2002 Inception
DD SECUTIES ..vvvvvvvvvvvosenessseesssssesss s sessse et ss s $ 69064 $ 64311 $ 4,773.1
EQUILY SECUTIILIES weovvvveririereereririiieess et e ttsinns et saene s eaaeeenas 82.9 -- --
MOTEEAZE I0ANS ..vvviiiiciiir et s 2285 373.2 399.0
Venture capital partnerships ........voucvveeceierirenserierse oo 38.6 0.8 -
Policy loans .......... et e b e et e e a b he e e ee bt e —a ettt e s be s e Earesere s bt atteare e rraentean 1,386.8 1,399.0 1,380.0
OLhET INVESIEA ASSELS v.veveeeieererreeeeeeeieeeesesseeeseesseesereseeersstssoresesereesenenerenene 46.7 - --
Total closed block INVESMENTS............covevvcvririeicriciin s 8,689.9 8,204.1 6,552.1
Cash and cash eqUIVALENTS .......cooviiieriiie s 40.5 187.1 --
Accrued INVESTMENT INCOIMIE ....veveereeierrrernecerresarertereseesascesereseresessesesasesses 120.2 1109 106.8
RECEIVABIES ....ovvvvoieeeeteiae st 43.0 42.1 352
Déferred income taxes............... et r st en et ettt n bt ner et en b s 377.0 402.7 389.4
Other closed DIOCK aS8E1S...uvviviiiiiieiciiie e 62.3 452 6.2
Total closed BIOCK SSets.............ooo it 9,332.9 8,992.1 7,089.7
Policy liabilities and aCCIUALS ...........cooeveveeviiviererecre st raeneea, 9,723.1 9,449.0 8,301.7
Policyholder dividends payable...........o..coeorumerrevrrnrinseisnsssiensinresereon. 369.8 363.4 325.1
Policyholder dividend obligation..............oc..oveeeivsivonseensisnsscesessesseeneas 519.2 5473 --
Other closed block liabilities .............. et ereeiheueerersasseteerarastetesa et e ataaraenertans 63.0 24.2 12.3
Total closed block liabilities ... 10,675.1 10,383.9 8,639.1
Excess of closed block liabilities over closed block assets.................. - 81,3422 $ 1,391.8 $ 1,5494

Closed block revenues and expenses and changes in the policyholder dividend obligation, all for the cumulative
period from inception through December 31, 2003, the years 2003 and 2002 follow ($ amounts in millions):

Cumulative
from
Inception 2003 2002
Premiums............ et eee e b e eet e et ete et eaease e ertatenbeebereebeeraeneebeeesberenees $ 42381 $ 1,000 § 1,0432
Net INVESHMENT INCOME ..ivviieiiiiiri it reierietascreasscrtasresers st essassessasssrssesensas 2,211.2 573.1 562.0
Net realized investment 10SSES.......ocvvecvrrnreriieieviennenien s s {89.1) 9.4) (49.3)
Total revenues ... 6,360.2 1,563.8 1,5585.9
Policy benefits, excluding dividends .....c...cccoenrcnnnnniinnn, SRR 4,360.5 1,058.0 1,079.4
Other Operating eXPenSes.......covorvrveverrreurrerererenenrnertrineeseeceeseseseseseresenssessenes 49.0 10.0 10.3
Total benefits and expenses, excluding policyholder dividends................. 4,409.5 1,068.0 1,089.7
Closed block contribution to income before dividends and income taxes.. 1,950.7 4958 466.2
Policyholder dividends ..........ccccoovveiiiecerniineceeniseee e 1,596.3 419.4 400.7
Closed block contribution to income before income taxes..........ccoevevvvennns 3544 76.4 65.5
Applicable INCOME tAXES....coiirrireerieeree et rcere e 124.5 26.8 22.6
Closed block contribution to income............c..ccoooeviivniinininciieeer $ 2299 3 49.6 3 42.9
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Cumulative

from _ :
Inception 2003 2002
Policyholder dividends provided through earnings ............cccveevvreeeenrenn. $ 11,6415 '$ 4194 S 400.7
Policyholder dividends provided through other comprehensive income.... 432.7 (455 369.4
Additions to policyholder dividend Habilities..............cccoceoereevnennennnn. 2,074.2 373.9 770.1
Policyholder dividends paid...............c..cooecr e (1,510.3) (395.6) (383.9)
Change in policyholder dividend liabilities......ccccocevereviiineiinceiiiieccriene, 563.9 21.7) 386.2
Policyholder dividend liabilities, beginning of period .......cc.coovceeiirnenns 3251 910.7 524.5
Policyholder dividend liabilities, end of period........coccvecvecniriinnisieenan, 889.0 889.0 - 910.7
Less: policyholder dividends payable, end of period ........cccoovevenvennnnann. 369.8 - 369.8 363.4
Policyholder dividend obligation, end of period ...................c.cvernnne $ 519.2 $ 519.2 $ 547.3

In addition to the closed block assets, we hold assets outside the closed block in support of closed block habllmes
We recognize investment earnings on these invested assets, less deferred policy acquisition cost amortization and
allocated expenses, as an additional source of earnings to our stockholders.

4. Asset Management Segment

We conduct activities in Asset Management with a focus on two customer groups — private client and -
institutional. Through our private client group, we provide asset management services principally on a
discretionary basis, with products consisting of open-end mutual funds and managed accounts. Managed
accounts include intermediary programs sponsored and distributed by non-affiliated broker-dealers and direct ‘
managed accounts which are sold and administered by us. Our private client business also provides transfer
agency, accounting and administrative services to most of our open-end mutual funds.

Through our institutional group, we provide discretionary and nonidiécretionary asset management services
primarily to corporations, multi-employer retirement funds and foundations, as well as to endowment and special
purpose funds. In addition, we manage closed-end funds and alternative financial products, including structured
finance products. Structured finance products include collateralized obligations backed by portfolios of public
high yield bonds, emerging markets bonds, commercial mortgage-backed and asset-backed securities or bank
loans (Note 8).

We offer asset management services through our affiliated asset managers. We provide our affiliated asset” -
managers with a consolidated platform of distribution and administrative support, thereby allowing each manager
to devote a high degree of focus to investment management activities. On an ongoing basis, we monitor the
quality of the affiliates” products by assessing their performance, style consistency and the discipline with which
they apply their investment process. Assets under management were $59,151 million, $53,956 million and
$52,090 million, of which $15,528 million, $14,497 million, and $13,823 million as of December 31, 2003, 2002
and 2001, respectively, were life company general account assets.
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Segment information on assets as of December 31, 2003 and 2002 and on income for 2003, 2002 and 2001
follows (§ amounts in millions):

2003 2002

Asset Management Segment Assets
TIIVESIMEIUS 1.ttt e e sttt sttt ettt sttt ebae s e resaene e $ 11.8 3 5.6
Cash and cash equivalents ..........c.ocooocccvvvonennnn ettt 39.6 44.2
RECEIVADIES . ....ouievcvirieisetetste ettt bbbt bbb bbb bbbt n s e n s tn e 36.0 31.6
Intangible assets with definite Hves ... 261.8 291.7
Goodwill and other indefinite-lived intangible assets..........cecvroriierireinierriee e e 481.4 448.9
OBRET BSSEIS......evereeeicriiiriene sttt sttt et e b et st se et es b b sa et st bas b se st be st st e s et et st ns 20.6 223
Total SeZMeENt SSELS ...........coooioiiiiiiiic e S 851.2 $ 844.3

2003 2002 2001
Asset Management Segment Income
Investment product FEeS........cveviivieiiiiiiie et e $ 2432 $ 258.1 § . 2581
Net investment income ................ ettt er e bttt bbbt b ae s 0.7 1.0 1.6
Total segment FreVemues ...............cocooviiiiiviiininc e e 243.9 259.1 259.7
Intangible asset AMOItIZAtION ....co.veveveeervererirers et 332 325 49.0
Intangible asset IMPAIMENTS ........c..coviureiiririeeerni e - 66.3 -
Other OPErating EXPENSES...c.vcvrriirerrrirerereareieetreresirsrestesrarsesesiasseseecsssrassens 2074 218.3 2125
Total SEZMENt EXPENSES ........ov.ovevvrirerrerinesirsseersnsenssesiensrienssressereens s 240.6 3171 261.5
Segment income (loss) before income taxes and minority interest............. 33 (58.0) (1.8)
Allocated income taxes (benefit) ..o ' 3.3) 6.0) .
Segment income (loss) before Minority interest.........ouivvvevvvieeinerirrcnnnnnen 6.6 (52.0) (4.4)
Minority interest in segment income of consolidated subsidiaries.............. 12.0 - 11.9 6.9
SEEMENTIOSS ......ooviviiviiiiciicec ettt ettt e (54) *(63.9) C(11.3)
Net realized investment gains (108S€8)....ocovvrereonnrerniniervinnnnnn, e (0.3) - 0.5
Restructuring charges, net of iNCOME taXES .......cccvvvevvrreerrenerieceneerr e S (4.0) (8.4) (50.4)
Cumulative effect of accounting change, net of income taxes.................... -- (119.9) --
Segment Nt 10SS ....c.c.ocovmiiiniieiicie e $ - 07 $ (1922 $ (61.2)

In 2003 and 2002, our Asset Management segment incurred restructuring charges primarily in connection with
organizational and employment-related costs of $6.2 million ($4.0 million after income taxes) and $12.9 million
(38.4 million after income taxes), respectively. In 2001, the segment recorded restructuring charges of $86.1
million ($52.8 million after income taxes) related to our purchase of the Phoenix Investment Partners minority
interest, including Phoenix Investment Partners’ accrual of non-recurring compensation expenses of $57.0 million
to cash out restricted stock, $5.5 million of related compensation costs, non-recurring retention costs of $19.7
million and non-recurring transaction costs of $3.9 million. These expenses were partially offset by non- recumng
income from partnership gains of $2.4 million after income taxes.

Fee Revenues

Investment management fees and mutual fund ancillary fees included in investment product fees are recorded as
income during the period in which services are performed. Investment management fees are generally computed
and earned based upon a percentage of assets under management and are paid pursuant to the terms of the
respective investment management contracts, which generally require monthly or quarterly payment. Investment
management fees related to the Life Companies general account are earned on a cost-recovery basis, effective
July 1, 2001. Management fees contingent upon achieving certain levels of performance are recorded when
earned.

Mutual fund ancillary fees consist of distribution fees, net of trailing commissions, administrative fees,
shareholder service agent fees, fund accounting fees, dealer concessions and underwriter fees. Dealer
concessions and underwriting fees earned (net of related expenses) from the distribution and sale of affiliated
mutual fund shares and other securities are recorded on a trade date basis.
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Business combinations

In 2001, we acquired a 65% interest in Capital West for $5.5 million. In June 2003, we acquired the remaining
interest in Capital West not already owned by us for $1.1 million. We have accounted for our acquisition of the
remaining interest as a step-purchase. We recorded $0.7 million for definite-lived investment management
contracts and assigned the remaining acquisition price of $1.0 million to goodwill.

In 2002, we acquired a 60% interest in Kayne Anderson Rudnick for $102.4 million; management of the company
retained the remaining ownership interest. In addition to the initial cost of the purchase, we will make a payment
of approximately $30.0 million in the first quarter of 2004 based upon growth in management fee revenue for the
purchased business through 2003. We have fully accrued for this estimated payment as of December 31, 2003
and have allocated it entirely to goodwill. In addition, we are obligated to purchase an additional 15% interest in
the company by 2007. Related to the initial purchase in 2001, we allocated $0.3 million of the initial purchase
price to tangible net assets acquired and $102.1 million to intangible assets ($58.3 million to investment
management contracts and $43.8 million to goodwill). We will allocate all of the additional purchase price to
goodwill. Kayne Anderson Rudnick’s results of operations for the period from January 30, 2002 through
December 31, 2002 are included in our results of operations for the year 2002.

Tn August 2003, certain members of Kayne Anderson Rudnick accelerated their put-call arrangement. The
purchase price for these units totaled $4.5 million, which was recorded as additional purchase price by Phoenix
Investment Partners and allocated to goodwill and definite-lived intangible assets.

In 2001, we acquired the 44.9% minority interest in Phoenix Investment Partners for $339.3 million. Prior to this
acquisition, Phoenix Investment Partners had been a publicly held company listed on the New York Stock
Exchange in which we held a 55.1% interest. In connection with this acquisition, Phoenix Investment Partners
redeemed all of its outstanding convertible subordinated debentures at a cost of $38.2 million and recorded non-
recurring costs of $86.1 million, consisting of $57.0 million to cash out employee stock options (Note 11), $5.5
million of related compensation costs (Note 11), $19.7 million for retention bonuses and $3.9 million in
transaction costs. Our purchase price totaled $361.3 million, which consisted of the purchase of the minority
interest for $339.3 million, the premium paid by Phoenix Investment Partners to redeem its debentures of $18.8
million and our transaction costs of $3.2 million. We allocated this price to the fair value of the tangible net
assets acquired ($137.2 million), investment management contracts ($179.1 million, before applicable deferred
income taxes of $73.4 million) and goodwill ($118.4 million). The weighted-average useful life assigned to the
investment management contracts was 13.4 years; the useful life assigned to the goodwill was 40 years. In 2001,
we also acquired a 75% interest in Walnut Asset Management, LLC for $7.5 million.

The minority interests in each of our less than wholly-owned asset management subsidiaries are subject to put/call
agreements pursuant to which either the minority interest holders or Phoenix Investment Partners may exercise
their respective rights to sell or buy the minority interests on specified future dates. Initial payments made under
these put/call agreements are recorded as additional purchase price. To the extent that any additional payments
are required, associated with the re-issuance and repurchase of the same interests, the increase in the underlying
value of the shares is recorded as compensation expense. We recorded $6.5 million and $34.8 million additional
purchase price in 2003 and 2002, respectively, related to put/call agreements that exist with certain of our
majority-owned subsidiaries.

Goodwill and other intangible assets

Effective January 1, 2002, we adopted the new accounting standard for goodwill and other intangible assets,
including amounts reflected in our carrying value of equity method investments. Under this new standard, we
discontinued recording amortization expense on goodwill and other intangible assets with indefinite lives, but we
continue recording amortization expense for those intangible assets with definite estimated lives. For goodwill
and indefinite-lived intangible assets, we perform impairment tests at the reporting-unit level at least annually.
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To test for impairments, we calculate the fair value of each reporting unit based on the sum of a multiple of
revenue and the fair value of the unit’s tangible net assets. We calculate the fair value of definite-lived intangible
assets based on their discounted cash flows. We compare the calculated fair value to the recorded values and
record an impairment, if warranted. Prior to 2002, we amortized gooadwill principally over 40 years and
investment management contracts and employment contracts over five to 16 years and three to seven years,
respectively. All amortization expense has been and continues, for definite-lived intangible assets, to be
calculated on a straight-line basis.

Upon adoption of the new accounting standard, we recorded a before tax cumulative effect charge of $141.7
million to reduce the carrying value of goodwill and other intangible assets with indefinite lives to fair value, of
which $131.3 million pertained to our Asset Management segment and $10.4 million pertained to an international
equity investment in our Corporate and Other segment (Note 5). After applicable income tax benefits, the charge
reduced earnings by $130.3 million or $1.33 per share. In the third quarter of 2002, we performed an impairment
test at the Asset Management segment reporting-unit level and recorded a charge of $66.3 million to further
reduce the carrying value of goodwill and other intangible assets.

Details of gross and net carrying amounts for definite-lived intangible assets and goodwill and other indefinite-
lived intangible assets as of December 31, 2003 and 2002 follow ($ amounts in millions):

2003 2002
Asset management contracts with definite lives ... $ 396.1 $ 392.8
Less: accumulated amOTHZAtION ......ccveevrvrereeriierieeseeresesesesese b sstssarssss st s sessnscsssesssenene 134.3 101.1°
Intangible assets with definite lives......... ettt bt be et ae et ettt E e b e b st at e e s ebeseneas 3 261.8 S 291.7
GOOAWILL ..ttt sttt s b ea e b ettt s st et e et ssnaensrennas $ 408.1 $ 375.6
Asset management contracts with indefinite lives...........c.oooeeieveinnnniin e, 73.3 733
Goodwill and other indefinite-lived intangible assets..............cc.coovevevniinncninnccinecnns $ 4814 8 448.9

The activity in intangible assets with definite lives and goodwill and other indefinite-lived intangible assets for the
years 2003 and 2002 follows ($ amounts in millions):

2003 2002
Intangible assets with definite lives
ASSEL PUTCHESES .vvvievicisiisie i ereseesesesesrsssrans bt satesre s e e sesssesrssesenssssres sesesssasssssssnsensnsessnens $ 33 $ 78.3
AsSet TECIASSHICAION .....ovviivveercieie vttt b et - 2.4
ASSEL BIMOTHZATION ...evrvvitiviieeieteeresiereestetesescrseaestensesaeseeseasesseseesaastosesbeesessessassesesssasesnsasseseens (33.2) (32.5)
Change in intangible assets with definite lives............c.ccocooiereiiiie e (29.9) 48.2
Balance, beginning of Period..........oeeiierrriiecniiie e 291.7 243.5
Balance, end of PEriod...............ccooioiiiiiiiiiie e s $ 261.8 8 291.7
Goodwill and other indefinite-lived intangible assets
ASSCE PUICHASES ...evveviitieietiieeteteeteesetei st et eastaetes s etessetesses et s sseesessseesatsaressbessasenssseasebennessasansnen $ 32.5 $ 60.0
ASSEt TECIASSITICALION L..ueviiieiieie et et er et a e st eae e e et e sas e ress e et st e rrne e e aneeas -- 24
ASSEE IMPAITTNEILS ..veveveeiereiceterietitee et etees et se st ese et saeb e s st b se st e seebe e se st s ne s benesennene -- (197.6)
Change in goodwill and other indefinite-lived intangible assets....................cc.occovverrenne. 325 (140.0)
Balance, beginning of PEriod.........cveivveeivriiieeiieiier et e 448.9 588.9
Balance, end of PEriod ... ..ottt s e et s s e e e S 481.4 $ 448.9

The estimated aggregate intangible asset amortization expense in future periods follows: 2004 — $33.0 million,
2005 — $32.2 million, 2006 — $27.2 million, 2007 — $26.1 million, 2008 — $25.6 million and thereafter — $117.7
million. At December 31, 2003, the weighted-average amortization period for definite-lived intangible assets is
nine years.
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5. Investing Activities
Debt and equity securities

We classify our debt and equity securities as-available-for-sale and report them in our balance sheet at fair value.
Fair value is based on quoted market price, where available. When quoted market prices are not available, we
estimate fair value by discounting debt security cash flows to reflect interest rates currently being offered on
similar terms to borrowers of similar credit quality (private placement debt securities), by quoted market prices of
comparable instruments (untraded public debt securities) and by independent pricing sources or internally
developed pricing models (equity securities). '

See Note 8 for information on available-for-sale debt and equity securities pledged as collateral.

Fair value and cost of our general account debt securities as of December 31, 2003 and 2002 follow ($ amounts in
millions):

2003 . 2002
Fair Value Cost Fair Value Cost
U.S. government and agency ........cecceervreerrerernarnnsnecnns $ 7570 $ 714.5 $ 4570 $ 4267
State and political Subdivision......cocoovvvrvricrncciienn - 5103 468.4 - 5347 481.9
FOreign goVEINIMENT. .......ccceveeeveiireereeeeieeareserereenesvesnenen 260.4 ‘ 239.0 183.9 168.4
COMPOTALE ... ettt e et ee ettt eb e e 6,765.8 - 6,412.4 5,485.2 5,138.7
Mortgage-backed......coovoiierireniieie e 3,097.5 2,963.4 3,099.9 2,901.9
Other asset-backed..........ccovevvvovvvvvivereserescirireecieans 1,882.0 1,863.6 2,128.8 2,094.1
Debt securities..................ccooeveiiiieiiiiineeennn, e $ 13,273.0 $ 12,661.3 $ 11,889.5 $ 11,2117
Amounts applicable to the closed block .......cccecevniins $ 69064 $ 64711 $ 6431.1 $ 59529

For mortgage-backed and other asset-backed debt securities, we recognize income using a constant effective yield
based on anticipated prepayments and the estimated economic lives of the securities. When actual prepayments
differ significantly from anticipated prepayments, the effective yield is recalculated to reflect actual payments to
date and any resulting adjustment is included in net investment income. For certain asset-backed securities,
changes in estimated yield are recorded on a prospective basis and specific valuation methods are applied to
these securities to determine if there has been an other-than-temporary decline in value.

For 2003 and 2002, net investment income was lower by $10.4 million and $6.2 million, respectively, due to non-
income producing debt securities. Of these amounts, $5.5 million and $5.2 million, respectively, related to the
closed block. :
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Fair value and cost of our general account equity securities as of December 31, 2003 and 2002 follow ($ amounts
in millions):

2003 2002
Fair Value - Cost Fair Value Cost

Hilb, Rogal and Hamilton (HRH) common stock ......... 8 116.2 A 422 $ 159.3 § 44.7
GE Life and Annuity Assurance and . : '

GE Group Life Assurance common stock ................... -- -- 60.5 50.4
Lombard International Assurance, S.A...........cocoveeverene 41.1 41.1 33.8 338
PXRE Group common StoCkK ........ccccverermrcenrencnrirnnnen. -- -- 27.7 94
Other equity SECUIILIES ...ccoveeeververireereriererenrraeeerenerenene 154.7 139.1 104.6 118.6
Equity securities...........coco.ovnnenvneron e $ 312.0 $ 2224 $ 385.9 $ 256.9
Amounts applicable to the closed block ........ccocrereennc. $ 82.9 $ 75.0 $ - $ --

Our holdings in HRH common stock as of December 31, 2003 are available to be used in November 2005 to settle
stock purchase contracts issued by us. Upon settlement of such stock purchase contracts, we will recognize a
gross investment gain of $91.8 million ($32.4 million, net of offsets for applicable deferred acquisition costs and
deferred income taxes). See Note 6 for additional information.

In the fourth quarter of 2003, we sold our 3.0% and 3.1% equity interests in two life insurance subsidiaries of
General Electric Company for $72.0 million and realized a gain of $21.6 million ($14.0 million after income
taxes). Also in that quarter, we sold our 9.3% equity interest in PXRE Group Ltd., a property catastrophe
reinsurer, for $23.1 million and realized a gain of $13.7 million ($8.9 million after income taxes).

Lombard International Assurance, S.A., or Lombard, is a pan-European life insurance compahy, based in
Luxembourg, which writes unit-linked life assurance policies for high-net-worth private investors. We own 12%
of Lombard’s ordinary shares and Aberdeen owns an additional 15% of Lombard’s ordinary shares.

Gross and net unrealized gains and losses from our general account’s debt and equity securities as of December
31, 2003 and 2002 follow ($ amounts in millions):

2003 2002
Gains Losses Gains Losses

U.S. government and agency ..........coevuerereverererererreenes $ 44.0 $ (1.5) $ 30.5 3 (0.2)
State and political SubdiviSiOn ........ocovvreeeiseernnirenens 435 (1.6) 53.1 (0.3)
Foreign gOVEINIMENL..........c.cvreirerinirirnccreernenenesnenes 23.2 (1.8) 20.2 (4.7)
COTPOTALE ...cvvvtecec ettt eaeeeb e benes - 4004 (47.0) 442.8 T (96.3)
Mortgage-backed..........cccoevnrecriiniienncn s 143.4 (9.3) 198.5 » 0.5)
Other asset-backed.......c.ccovvrienricrinie e 55.6. (37.2) 85.0 (50.3)
Debt securities gains and 10SS€S.........ccvevevvecvriererererinnins - $ 710.1 $ (98.4) $ 330.1 $  (152.3)
Debt securities net gains..............coccooveivieinniccninnns 3 611.7 3 677.8
Hilb, Rogal and Hamilton common Stock ...........c.c.c..... $ 740. % - 3 114.6 $ -
GE Life and Annuity Assurance and o

GE Group Life Assurance common stock ................... - - 10.1 -
PXRE Group common StOCK .......cc.cevevrvicreeernsrevcrareneas -- -- 18.3 --
Other equity SECUTIHES ....vrvrvreerircreeecieieeee e e 17.4 (1.8) 1.4 (15.9)
Equity securities gains and l0SSeS.........cocecvvererrreervnnneenns $ 914 $ (1.8) $ 144.4 $ (15.4)
Equity securities net gains................ccc.covveevcnerennnnn, 3 89.6 $ 129.0
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The aging of temporarily impaired general account debt and equity securities as of December 31, 2003 is as
follows ($ amounts in miilions):

Less than 12 months  Greater than 12 months Total
Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized
Value Losses Value Losses Value Losses

Debt Securities
U.S. government and agency .........coe.c..... $ 92 $§ (@15 $ - $ - $ 92 §$ (@15
State and political subdivision................... 63.8 (1.6) - - 63.8 (1.6)
Foreign government...........cccovevevcececnnnnn 14.6 (1.8) -- - 14.6 (1.8)
COPOTALE ..eovvesisresir st er et sre s 915.9 (31.5) 193.6 (15.5) 1,109.5 (47.0)
Mortgage-backed.........cocevriciicinininnnn 640.7 9.3) 1.5 -- 642.2 9.3)
Other asset-backed........coccovvrecvnnvecennnnniene, 240.4 {10.6) 135.4 (26.6) 375.8 _(37.2)
Debt securities.............ccocoveinenrinennnene $1956 $§ (563) §$§ 3305 §$ (42.1) $2,29.1 § (984)
Common Stock ..........ccooovvvveevnvercennnine, 21.1 (1.2) 37 (0.6) 24.8 (1.8)
Total temporarily impaired securities... $1,986.7 $ (575) 8§ 3342 § (42.7) §23209 § (100.2)
Amounts inside the closed block............. $ 9570 $ (31.2) $ 1500 §$ (A7) $1,1070 $ (489
Amounts outside the closed block........... $1,0297 8§ (263) § 1842 § (250) $1,2139 § (51.3)
Amounts outside the closed block

that are below investment grade........... $ 398 $ (B0 § 533 § @d1L9 $ 931 § (149
After offsets for deferred acquisition

cost adjustment and taxes .................... $ (1.3 3 4.9 $ (6.2)

Below investment grade debt securities outside the closed block with a fair value less than 80% of the security’s
amortized cost totals $5.3 million at December 31, 2003, $4.8 million ($2.0 million after offsets for taxes and
deferred policy acquisition cost amortization) of which has been in an unrealized loss for greater than 12 months.

Below investment grade debt securities held in the closed block with a fair value of less than 80% of the
securities’ amortized cost totals $10.2 million at December 31, 2003, $7.0 million ($0 after offsets for change in
policy dividend obligation) of which has been in an unrealized loss for greater than 12 months.

These securities are considered to be temporarily impaired at December 31, 2003 as each of these securities has
performed; and is expected to continue to perform, in accordance with their original contractual terms.

Mortgage loans

We report mortgage loans at unpaid principal balances, net of valuation reserves on impaired mortgages. We
consider a mortgage loan to be impaired if we believe it is probable that we will be unable to collect all amounts
of contractual interest and principal as scheduled in the loan agreement. We do not accrue interest income on
impaired mortgage loans when the likelihood of collection is doubtful.

For purpose of fair value disclosures (Note 9), we estimated the fair value of mortgage loans by discounting the
present value of scheduled loan payments. We based the discount rate on the comparable U.S. Treasury rates for
loan durations plus spreads of 130 to 800 basis points, depending on our internal quality ratings of the loans.
For in-process-of-foreclosure or defaulted loans, we estimated fair value as the lower of the underlying collateral
value or the loan balance.
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Our mortgage loans are diversified by property type, location and borrower. Mortgage loans are collateralized by
the related properties and are generally no greater than 75% of the properties’ value at the time the loans are
originated. The carrying value of our investments in mortgage loans by property type and their fair value at
December 31, 2003 and 2002 follow ($ amounts in millions):

2003 : 2002
Carrying Carrying

Value Fair Value . Value - Fair Value
Property type
Apartment buildings ......cccovevrveevcrenininicneeenne $ 105.1 $ 106.7 $ 159.0 $ 160.3
Office buildings .......coooveeveririeerencncrnerenes e 49.0 49.7 131.5 132.6
Retail SLOTES ....ovvveiriiiiiiir s 109.0 110.7 151.5 152.7
Industrial buildings........ ettt 337 342 422 425
OMher ..ot e 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1
SUBLOtAL...ce et e 296.9 3014 4843 488.2
Less: valuation allowances...........cccocenrrirccnncovcncnnn. 12.8 -- 15.5 --
Mortgage loans................ococoieiienincccinniic e $ 284.1 $§ 3014 $  468.8 $ 4882
Amounts applicable to the closed block .........cc..ccou..e.. $ 2285 $ 2424 $ . 3732 $ 3886

The carrying values of delinquent and in-process-of-foreclosure mortgage loans as of December 31, 2003 and
2002 were $0.0 million and $5.6 million, respectively. The carrying values of mortgage loans on which the
payment terms have been restructured or modified were $25.8 million and $29.5 million as of December 31, 2003
and 2002, respectively. We have provided valuation allowances for delinquent, in-process-of-foreclosure and
restructured or modified mortgage loans.

Activity in the valuation allowance, which has been deducted in arriving at mortgage loan carrying value, for
2003, 2002 and 2001 follows ($ amounts in millions):

2003 2002 2001
Valuation allowance, beginning of year ...........c.cc...... rere s 3 15.5 $ 15.0 h) 9.1
Additions charged 10 INCOME .........oeerveiririeeeireirner e 0.8 0.6 6.1
Deductions for write-offs and disposals ........cccecvevvrieecinivriveneceeee e, (3.5) - (0.1) (0.2)
Valuation allowance, end of year .................... et era e $ 12.8 $ 15.5 $ . 15.0

Interest income on restructured mortgage loans that would have been recorded in accordance with the original
terms of such loans amounted to $3.0 million, $3.5 million and $3.6 million in 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively.
Actual interest income on these loans included in net investment income was $2.3 million, $2.7 million and $2.4
million in 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively. The amount of interest foregone by non-income producing
mortgage loans was $0.0 million for 2003 and $0.6 million for 2002. There were no non-income producing
mortgage loans during 2001.

Venture capital partnerships

We invest as a limited partner in venture capital limited partnerships. Generally, these partnerships focus on
early-stage ventures, primarily in the information technology and life science industries and leveraged buyout
funds. We also have direct equity investments in leveraged buyouts and corporate acquisitions.

We record our equity in the earnings of venture capital partnerships in net investment income using the most
recent financial information received from the partnerships and estimating the earnings for any lag in reporting.
Effective January 1, 2001, we changed our accounting for venture capital partnership earnings to eliminate the
quarterly lag in information provided to us. We did this by estimating the change in our share of partnership
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earnings for the quarter. This change resulted in a $75.1 million charge ($48.8 million charge after income -
taxes), representing the cumulative effect of this accounting change on the fourth quarter.of 2000.

To estimate the net equity in earnings of the venture capital partnerships for each quarter, we developed a
methodology to estimate the change in value of the underlying investee companies in the venture capital
partnerships. For public investee companies, we used quoted market prices at the end of each quarter, applying
liguidity discounts to these prices in instances where such discounts were applied in the underlying partnerships’
financial statements. For private investee companies, we applied a public industry sector index to roll the value
Jorward each quarter. We apply this methodology consistently each quarter with subsequent adjustments to
reflect market events reported by the partnerships (e.g., new rounds of financing, initial public offerings and
writedowns by the general partners). Our methodology recognizes downward adjustments based on the indices,
but limits upward adjustments to the amounts previously reported by the partnerships. In addition, we annually
revise the valuations we have assigned to the investee companies to reflect the valuations in the audited financial
statements received from the venture capital partnerships.

Our venture capital earnings are subject to variability. -

The components of net investment income related to venture capital partnerships for 2003, 2002 and 2001 follow
(8 amounts in millions):

2003 2002 2001

Net realized gains (losses) on partnership cash and stock distributions ..... $ 174 $ @7 $ 17.8
Net unrealized gains (losses) on partnership investments ............... 38.2 47.2) (95.9)
Partnership operating eXpenses. .......o..vcverevecriireeerriereneeeenueesseesemsseenseses (6.6) (7.4) (6.4)
Net investment income (108S)..........ccooocuriniiiininicie $ 49.0 $ (59.3) $ (84.5)
Amounts applicable to the closed blOCK ........cccvmerivrerrrcniiiiiereneeee s $ 12.8 $ - $ --
Amounts applicable to the Venture Capital segment.........c.cccocevevvenacennnne $ 36.2 $ (59.3) § (84.5)

As indicated above, we record our equity in earnings of venture capital partnerships based on the most recent
financial information and by estimating the earnings for any lag in partnership reporting. As a result, the effect of
our adjusting our estimates to actual results reflected in partnership financial statements was to increase net -
investment income as follows ($ amounts in millions): ‘

2003 2002 2001
Closed BloCK .....coveriieirieieeee e et $ -, $. -- $ --
Venture Capital SEZMENt..........c.covveiriiiiiiniiircrne e 334 12.8 --

g K1) I e S $ 334 § 128 S -
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Investment activity in venture-capital partnerships for the years 2003, 2002 and 2001 and unfunded commitments.
as of December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001 follow ($ amounts in millions):

2003 2002 2001
Contributions .........cccvvvrriiniiericnienrnnns ettt ettt e s $ 41.3 $ 43.0 ) 47.0
Equity in earnings (losses) Of partnerships ...........coo..ovoeevrerrrreereueresennnons 49.0 (59.3) (84.5)
Cumulative effect of accounting change ........c.coeevervcnerencrenninrencnen. - - (75.1)
DISHIDULONS 11vvvvreevvve s sere s sesssssssssenssse e seoneesns . (43.6) (41.7) (63.0)
Proceeds from sale of partnership interests ........coovecevvreevceninnievcinenennns (26.1) -- -
Realized loss on sale of partnership interests ........cococerrrmreeernnerrcrerereeneces (14.3) (5.1) --
Change in venture capital partnerships........ccccocorrirceiecercncerenennereneecene 6.3 (63.1) (175.6)
Venture capital partnership investments, beginning of period ................... 228.6 . 2917 467.3
Venture capital partnership investments, end of period..................... $ 234.9 $ 228.6 S 291.7
Unfunded commitments, end of period ....... oeerasets st e $ 125.0 $ 154.7 $ 166.8
Amounts applicable to the closed block:
Venture capital parterships ...........covvvviviiernncini e $ 38.6 $ 0.8 $ --
Unfunded COMMItMENtS ......o.o.ovvrviiriirriniesiee s SR $ 48.3 $ 234 3 -
Amounts applicable to Venture Capital segment: . -
Venture capital partnerships ..........cooovoeirieenineiernn s eceenresnneeeeenens $ 196.3 3 227.8 $ 291.7
Unfunded COMMUMENTS ........o.ooviiriieriiieseiieeeisesesssteeseeotesssse st eeseneneens $ 76.7 $ 131.3 $ 166.8

In February 2003, we sold a 50% interest in certain of our venture capital partnerships to an outside party and
transferred the remaining 50% interest to our closed block. The carrying value of the partnerships sold and
transferred totaled $52.2 million after realizing a loss of $5.1 million in 2002 and $14.3 million in 2003 to reflect
the proceeds received. The unfunded commitments of the partnerships sold and transferred totaled $27.2 m11110n
the outside party and the closed block will each fund half of these commitments.

Affiliate equity securities

Our investments in affiliate equity securities represent investments in operating entities in which we own less than
a majority of the outstanding common stock and where we exercise significant influence over the operating and
financial policies of the companies. We use the equity method of accounting for our investments in common stock
of these affiliates. We evaluate our equity method investments for an other-than-temporary impairment at each
balance sheet date considering quantitative and qualitative factors including quoted market price of underlying
equity securities, the duration the carrymg value is in excess of fair value and hlstorzcal and projected earnings
and cash flow capacity.
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Carrying value and cost of affiliate equity securities and affiliate debt securities (which are included in the debt
securities caption) as of December 31, 2003 and 2002 follow ($ amounts in millions):

2003 2002
Carrying Carrying
Value Cost Value Cost
Aberdeen cCOmMmMON StOCK .....oviiviiiriieec it vresene $ 38.3 $ 20.0 3 119.3 $ 109.1
L0171 1=) TSSOSO RO SRROO 9.2 18.9 15.4 26.5
Affiliate equity securities.............c..ccooeveiiiiiinas $ 47.5 $ 38.9 S 134.7 $ 135.6
Aberdeen 7.5% convertible NOteS ......ovvevveviereiiieeveenenn, $ 27.5 $ 27.5 $ 37.5 $ 375
Aberdeen 5.875% convertible notes.........cocoeeviiveeienn. -- - 15.2 19.0
Affiliate debt securities...............cccccceeviviieiieie e $ 275 $ 27.5 S 52.7 $ 56.5

Sources of equity in earnings from affiliate equity securities and interest earned from affiliate debt securities
(included in the debt securities caption) for 2003, 2002 and 2001 follow ($ amounts in millions):

2003 2002 2001
Aberdeen common stock dividends...........occvcveevvvcvrcieiiieeiireieeceines b 2.7 $ 3.8 $ 6.3
Equity in Aberdeen undistributed income (10SS) ..c..covvveveciniiiiiniiiineiccennne -- 23 (0.5)
HRH common stock dividends ..........c..coovvveveveinrerniinnineieoeeiesirncnereesennens -- 0.5 0.6
Equity in HRH undistributed income .........c.ccccoveceveoveenrinnceineiene s -- 25 1.9
L0711 1= OO U OO USROS 2.7 (3.2) ) 0.1)
Affiliate equity securities investment income...........c.cooceeeevreevncoeecerens ) -~ S 59 $ 8.2
Aberdeen convertible notes and bonds ...........cccoevvvvivieviieciini e b 2.5 $ 3.8 $ 2.6
Aberdeen 5.875% convertible NOtES ........cvevvvecriericeeeciee e 0.1 1.3 1.7
Affiliate debt securities investment income...............c..cococvevevvivneine. $ 2.6 3 5.1 $ 4.3

Aberdeen. We own 38,100,000 shares of Aberdeen common stock, which represent 16.2% of its outstanding
shares as of December 31, 2003 (22% at December 31, 2002). We purchased these shares between 1996 and
2001 (at a total cost of $109.1 million). During the second quarter of 2003, we recorded a charge of $89.1 million
($55.0 million after income taxes) related to an other-than-temporary impairment of our equity investment in
Aberdeen. The fair value of our Aberdeen common stock, based on the London Stock Exchange closing market
prices, was $65.2 million, $54.4 million and $43.6 million as of March 11, 2004, December 31, 2003 and 2002,
respectively.

We also own $27.5 million in 7.5% Aberdeen convertible subordinated notes issued in 1996. The notes mature
on March 29, 2004, subject to two six-month extensions at Aberdeen’s option with an increase in the interest rate
to at least 8.0%. The conversion price for the notes is in excess of Aberdeen’s common stock price as of
December 31, 2003. During 2003, we received principal payments of $10.0 million on the notes. Also, during
the fourth quarter of 2003, we sold £13.0 million ($19.0 million) in Aberdeen 5.875% convertible bonds and
realized a gain of $0.7 million.

HRH. HRH is a Virginia-based property and casualty insurance and employee benefit products distributor traded
on the New York Stock Exchange. We owned 6.4% of its common shares, as well as convertible debt securities
which, if converted, would have represented 16.8% of HRH’s common stock outstanding. Prior to November
2002, we had a contractual right to designate two nominees for election to its board of directors.

In November 2002, we converted our HRH note into shares of HRH common stock, when our total HRH holdings
had a total fair value of $167.1 million. On the day following the conversion, we sold shares of HRH common
stock in a secondary public offering for $23.5 million and issued stock purchase contracts for $133.9 million,
which contracts require us to deliver shares of HRH common stock on November 13, 2005 (Note 6).
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As a result of these transactions, we recorded a gross realized investment gain of $15.3 million in 2002 and a
gross deferred investment gain of $91.8 million. Net of offsets for applicable deferred policy acquisition costs
and deferred income taxes, our realized gain was $6.4 million and our deferred gain was $32.4 million. We
calculated our gains using the specific identification of the securities sold. The deferred gain will be realized on
settlement of the stock purchase contracts in the fourth quarter of 2005. In addition, in 2003 we sold shares of
HRH common stock in the open market for $9.4 million and recorded a gross realized investment gain of $6.9
million ($4.5 million after income taxes). As a result of a transaction we completed in November 2002, it was no
longer appropriate to consider HRH as an affiliate for accounting and reporting purposes.

Other. In connection with the 2002 adoption of a new accounting standard for goodwill and other intangible
assets (Note 1), we recorded a change of $10.4 million ($10.4 million after income taxes) as the cumulative effect
adjustment to reduce the carrying value of goodwill to its fair value for our investment in an Argentine financial
services company in which we have a 50% interest; that company is included in the other category above.

Policy loans and other invested assets

Policy loans are carried at their unpaid principal balances and are collateralized by the cash values of the
related policies. For purposes of fair value disclosures (Note 9), we estimate the fair value of fixed rate policy
loans by discounting loan interest and loan repayments. We base the discount rate on the 10-year U.S. Treasury
rate. We assume that loan interest payments are made at the fixed rate less 17.5 basis points and that loan
repayments only occur as a result of anticipated policy lapses. For variable rate policy loans, we consider the
unpaid loan balance as fair value, as interest rates on these loans are reset annually based on market rates.

Other investments primarily include leveraged lease investments and other partnership and joint venture
interests. Leveraged lease investments represent the net amount of the estimated residual value of the lease
assets, rental receivables and unearned and deferred income tobe allocated over the lease term. Investment
income is calculated using the interest method and is recognized only in periods in which the net investment is
positive. Other partnership and joint venture interests in which we do not have control or a majority ownership
interest are recorded using the equity method of accounting. These investments include affordable housing,
mezzanine and other partnership interests.

Our derivative instruments primarily include interest rate swap agreements. We report these contracts at fair
values, which are based on current settlement values. These values are determined by brokerage quotes that
utilize pricing models or formulas based on current assumptions for the respective agreements.

Other invested assets as of December 31, 2003 and 2002 follow ($ amounts in millions):

2003 2002

Transportation and other eqUIPMENt IEASES.......cccvvrivrerirrerniereeicrrrere et e seanoeeinne 3 68.7 $ 66.0
Separate account eqUILY INVESIIMEINS ....c..cevvevverirreririreriiriretereeeetesseseseseeseseseesassssessesesenssesenes 49.2 36.0
MeZZanine PArtnErSRiPS .....c.cocveeeiiiriireeirer ettt st bera et e enane 50.9 454
Affordable housing pPartnerShiPS.....ccovieererei ittt sree e 248 25.7
Derivative instruments (NOLE 9) .....c.ooverieveiiinrriieieirre sttt eeeietae s re s rase s eaaeseebe st e e e aren e e nanes 40.3 52.7
Other affiliate INVESIMENTS. ...c..oeviiieieieeecsti et etre et et rr et b et e re e sa b et raasesre st eess et erseone 233 379
REAL ESEALE. ...ttt ettt et ekttt et st ra ettt eeteshenbane 64.0 69.6
Other parmership INTEIESES........cecvviirreri ettt ettt e ens 80.8 65.6
Other INVESTEd ASSEES ........oeiiieeeeiicerie ettt se st asr s teatsesaseesnaessnen s ebanes $ 402.0 $ 398.9
Amounts applicable to the closed BIOCK ..........ccoveceiiiiinriircien e $ 46.7 $ -~
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Net investment income and net realized investment gains (losses)

We recognize realized investment gains and losses on asset dispositions and when declines in fair value of debt
and equity securities are considered to be other-than-temporarily impaired. The cost basis of these written down
investments is adjusted to fair value at the date the determination of impairment is made and the new cost basis is
not changed for subsequent recoveries in value. The closed block policyholder dividend obligation, applicable
deferred policy acquisition costs and applicable income taxes, which offset realized investment gains and losses,
are each reported separately as components of net income.

Effective April 1, 2001, we adopted a new accounting pronouncement for securitized financial instruments. This
pronouncement requires investors in certain asset-backed securities to record changes in their estimated yield on
a prospective basis and to apply specific valuation methods to these securities to determine if there has been an
other-than-temporary decline in value. Upon adoption of this pronouncement, we recorded a $31.6 million
charge (820.5 million charge after income taxes) as the cumulative effect of an accounting change.

Sources of net investment income for the years 2003, 2002 and 2001 follow ($ amounts in millions):

2003 2002 - 2001
DEDE SECUIILES .vveveveriererirerereissiniriseecerereranesareserssssssestsssnsssnans s $ 765.3 h) 732.1 $ 677.0
EQUILY SECULIIES ..o rcnienmatsenssee e ssesesssssesserecisensessensces 4.6 42 5.2
MOTtZAZE TOAMNS .....cveceeeteeetrcs et e seb e raes 32,6 404 45.0
Venture capital partnerships . ‘ 49.0 (59.3) (84.5)
Affiliate equily SECUTTIES....ccvvverrrerirrrririiriere et e reereeeene e -- ‘ 59 8.2
POLICY JOANS .oviiiireeriee ettt 171.7 171.8 168.6
Other INVEStMENLS ....cvecveeeeeeeeeieeniierireeeeene rerereeae vt a bt e e e enearnenane 35.0 18.9 25.7
Cash and cash eqUIVAIENLS .......ccverircinierrivreen et ne s 7.0 ¥ 11.9 15.2
Total investment INCOME ......covevvviiviinni e 1,065.2 925.9 860.4
Less: inveStment €XPEnSES......o.ovruiiiiiiesinrinisisos ettt 10.0 9.2 10.4
Net investment income, general account investments.......................... 1,055.2 " 916.7 850.0
Debt and equity securities pledged as collateral (Note 8)......cccoverereerennnns 522 31.0 42.8
Net inveStment iNCOIME .............cccovvviiiiiieiieirereec e i et srse e e ennes $ 1,1074 $ 9477 - 8 892.8

Amounts applicable to the closed DIOCK ...ccovevveivreriicrnnciennrcrenecns 3 573.1 $ 562.0 $ 281.1
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Sources of realized investment gains (losses) for 2003, 2002 and 2001 follow ($ amounts in millions):.

2003 2002 2001

Debt security IMpPairmMeEnts........ccoervesleerererrecese e csresresaersesesreseessrssesesssnees $ (76.1) $ (1143) $ (46.1)
Equity security impairments .............cee.vns s et bbb eres 4.3) (9.8) --
Mortgage loan impairments......c.c...co.oerverrsennees , - (4.1) . (0.6) ) .1)
Venture capital partnership impairments (4.6) (5.1 --
Affiliate equity SeCUrity IMPAITMENS.......c..vvviverrceierireerenincere e seneseceseninens (96.9) -- --
Other invested asset impairments ................ it a e ettt (16.5) (22.0) (3.7
Debt and equity securities pledged as collateral impairments .................... 83 . 34.9) (39.0)
Impairment 1oSSes ... ..o e (210.8) (186.7) (94.9)
Debt security transaction gains............cceveerercnressrenerenensevenens s 93.7 . 943 53.2
Debt security transaction 10SSeS.......ccocovurivveeerveresrereniarenan, b e (29.0) . (45.9) ‘ (3L.5)
Equity security transaction aiNS ........c.ovoveevreennoernrinnseceensnerneseneen s 58.8 . 245 12.2
Equity security transaction l0SSes......c...cocvvverunne ettt e e (11.6) (22.4) (21.0)
Mortgage loan transaction gains (10SS€8).....c....ovewvrmereiimrnrisnrerressecnsneaninns o (13) 0.2 7.1
Venture capital partnership transaction 10sses......cccococevvverennn. creverererererns (CH -
Other invested asset transaction gains (10SSES) .........conuwevovcecrmmnsiirmmecenrincanes 9.4 2.1 (10.0)
Net transaction aiNS..........cccccoeiiriieriiireie e enaenes 110.3 52.8 10.0
Net realized investment 10SS€S ................cccccooo i $  (100.5 $ (1339 $ (84.9)
Net realized INVEStMENt I0SSES.....cveveviririvrieree et ccnererereisseesseresnnes §  (100.5) $ (1339 $ (84.9)
Applicable closed block policyholder

dividend obligation (TedUCHION).........cccerrieiiiceririie et aees (5.9) (40.3) (15.4)
Applicable deferred policy acquisition costs (benefit) ............cccoeevrievrienene 4.1) (7.2) 10.5
Applicable deferred income tax benefit...........coocrvievrorncinineniinennnns S (36.3) (20.8) - (24.5)
Offsets to realized iNvestment 10SSES...o.iviviiieniniececerene e (46.3) (68.3) (294)
Net realized investment losses included in net income..................cccn.... S (54.2) 3 (65.6) 8§ (55.5)

Included in realized impairment ldsses on debt and equity securities pledged as collateral above, are impairments
relating to our direct investments in the consolidated collateralized obligation trusts of $5.9 million, $8.6 million
and $26.5 million for 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively.

In February 2004, we announced the execution of an agreement to sell our Enfield, .Cdnneéticut 6fﬂce facility -
which sale is expected to close in the second quarter of 2004. We have recorded a $6.2 million ($4.0 million
after-tax) realized impairment loss in'the fourth quarter of 2003.

Unrealized investment gains (losses)
We recognize unrealized investment gains and losses on investments in debt and equity securities that we classify
as available-for-sale. These gains and losses are reported as a component of other comprehensive income, net of

the closed block policyholder dividend obligation, applicable deferred policy acquzsztzon costs and applzcable
deferred income taxes.
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Sources of net unrealized investment gains (losses) for 2003, 2002 and 2001 follow ($ amounts in millions):

2003 2002 2001

DEDE SECUIITIES 1uoviieviiieeietiieetitce ettt ettt evs et eraese e se s essss s b s sneaes $ (38.1) $ 404.2 3 200.3
EqQUItY SECUIIHIES ..oivveiiiiieieririet et eves e ea e (39.4) 108.5 (23.8)
Debt and equity securities pledged as collateral.........ccocecoverniinrcnrnenenn, 88.4 42.6 (44.6)
Other INVESIMENTS ...coveviiiicciicicete e e s e 7.0 2.4 3.6
Net unrealized investment gains (10SSeS)..........cccocoocvvveenrnvecrnneerennenne $ 17.9 $ 552.9 $ 135.5
Net unrealized investment gains (10SSE8)...c..ceevervrerieeiieiniireeisieirneenen $ 17.9 § - 5529 $ 135.5
Applicable policyholder dividend obligation............cccoveveericerererenens e (45.5) 369.4 108.8
Applicable deferred policy acquiSItion COSES ......ecevurrivirererirrerirreioneernenes (12.4) 95.9 (28.5)
Applicable deferred income taxes (benefit).........ccoeveivecceerenrncennninnans (9.8) 15.8 33.9
Offsets to net unrealized INVeStMENt GAINS ....ccvvveeriirierearereerneieniareererare e (67.7) 481.1 114.2
Net unrealized investment gains (losses)

included in other comprehensive income (Note 12) ...............coccvvennenee. $ 85.6 S 71.8 $ 21.3

Investing cash flows

Investment purchases, sales, repaymenfs and maturities for 2003, 2002 and 2001 follow ($ amounts in millions):

2003 2002 2001
Debt Security PUIChASeS ......coovevivruiiiieie ettt eee bt § (5.394.9) $ (4,742.4) $ (3,505.1)
Equity security purchases .......c.c.coccvvrererevcrnecenerr s (129.9) (59.8) (72.8)
Venture capital partnership investments...........c.covnreennieiiiincennncnenn (41.6) (43.0) (47.0)
Affiliate equity and debt security purchases.......c.ccccocverveveennmiieecirnerconn - (28.0) (46.8)
Other invested asset purchases ........coc.veveverciiinniecieie e (27.2) (73.0) (57.1)
Policy loan advances, Net.........cccocereieiiirn i e 31.9) (23.7) (67.0)
INVEStMENt PUICHASES .........c..veererienierie et coseisreses st sesarees $ (56255 $ (4,969.9) § (3,795.8)
Debt SECUrtIes SAIES......cvvuiereieriic ittt et $ 21247 $ 1,807.6 $ 12187
Debt securities maturities and repayments ..........ocecereerrerriresreeneerenrirenenes 1,792.0 1,305.6 824.6
Equity SECUTILY SAIES ...cvvviriiiiiiiiiien ittt s 2357 1393 114.6
Mortgage loan maturities and principal repayments..........coeccvervreerererninns 180.3 67.7 58.7
Venture capital partnership capital distributions ........c.covvveveevrvicncrnererenes 54.2 28.5 307
Real estate and other invested assets SaleS........coovveevrnecennoveneciinnnees 30.3 69.9 36.8
Investment sales, repayments and maturities ..................c..ccoc e $ 44172 $ 3.418.6 $ 2,284.1

The maturities of general account debt securities and mortgage loans, by contractual sinking fund payment and
maturity, as of December 31, 2003 are summarized in the following table ($ amounts in millions). Actual
maturities will differ from contractual maturities as certain borrowers have the right to call or prepay obligations
with or without call or prepayment penalties, we have the right to put or sell certain obligations back to the issuers
and we may refinance mortgage loans. Refinancing of mortgage loans was not significant during 2003 or 2002.

Mortgage
Loans Total

$ 15.7 $ 624.4

144.4 2,702.2
89.1 3,193.2
34.9 6,425.6

Debt
Securities
Due in 0ne Year O 1885 .....ov.vcirierieiiereirnreecreeee st e $ 608.7
Due after one year through five Years.......c.eceovvevecriaeroennneierennieens 2,557.8
Due after five years through ten years...........ccceorirmceiererereneeriene s 3,104.1
DU after toN YEATS ...ecevvereiririeiteetceeereeatisie e riee e sresresae e eres e ens s ebesresaenens 6,390.7
TOtAL.......ocoiiiiiciirci ettt eae e et esa bbb $ 12,661.3

$ 284.1 $ 12,9454
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6. Financing Activities
Stock purchase contracts and indebtedness

We have recorded our stock purchase contract obligation as a liability on our balance sheet at estimated
settlement amount. This liability includes a premium representing the fair value of a net purchased option
contained in the purchase contract. The premium is amortized over the life of the purchase contract. Contract
adjustment payments and premium amortization on the purchase contracts are recorded in other expenses in our
Statement of income.

We have recorded indebtedness at unpaid principal balances of each instrument. In connection with our senior
unsecured bond offering, we entered into an interest rate swap agreement on half of the offering amount to reduce
market risks from changes in interest rates. We have recorded the interest rate swap at fair value based on the
settlement value of the swap. For purposes of fair value disclosures (Note 9), we have determined the fair value
of indebtedness based on contractual cash flows discounted at market rates for surplus notes and on quoted
market prices for bonds and equity units.

Carrying value and fair value of our stock purchase and indebtedness as of December 31, 2003 and 2002 follow
($ amounts in millions):

2003 2002
Carrying Fair Carrying Fair

Value Value Value Value
Stock purchase contracts stated amount ............cccccevnenene $ 1442 $ 128.8 $ 147.2 $ 137.6
Settlement amount adjustment...........ocecvereeininieercsnenn (15.4) -= (9.6). --
Stock purchase CONtracts ..............c...ccoooreveerrueererniinsns -§ - 1288 $ 1288 $ 1376 $ 1376
SUIPIUS TMOTES +..vovoorereeevevere et $ 1750 $ 1888 $ 1750 $ 1825
EQUItY UNILS.....ooveieeveiiereeireeiseesesesesisse s s 153.7 232.1 153.7 156.5
Senior unsecured bonds ..o, 300.0 311.2 300.0 259.8
Interest rate swap.......... RSOOSR - 10.3 10.3 15.6 15.6

Indebtedness.............oooiii o8 639.0 $ 742.4 3 644.3 3 614.4

In November 2002 we issued 3,622,500 stock purchase contiacts in a public offering at $38.10 per contract
($138.0 million aggregate) and raised. net proceeds of $133.9 million. The stock purchase contracts are prepaid
forward contracts issued by us that will be settled in shares of HRH common stock. Under each purchase
contract, we will make quarterly contract adjustment payments at the annual rate of 7.00% of the stated contract
amount.

We are obligated to deliver shares of HRH common stock to.holders of the stock purchase contracts in November
2005. The number of HRH common shares that we are obligated to deliver is based on the volume weighted-
average daily trading price of HRH common stock over the 20-trading day period ending on the third trading day
prior to November 13, 2005. The maximum number of HRH common shares that we are obligated to deliver,
subject to anti-dilution adjustments, is 3,622,500, or one share of HRH common stock per purchase contract. The
minimum number is 2,969,363 shares, or 0.8197 share of HRH common stock per purchase contract. We have
pledged 3,622,500 shares of HRH common stock as collateral for our obligations under the purchase contracts

(Note 5).

Our surplus notes are an obligation of Phoenix Life and are due December 1, 2006. Interest payments are at an
annual rate of 6.95%, require the prior approval of the Superintendent of Insurance of the State of New York and
may be made only out of surplus funds which the Superinténdent determines to be available for such payments
under New York insurance law. The notes have no early redemption provisions. New York insurance law
provides that the notes are not part of the legal liabilities of Phoenix Life.
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In December 2002, we issued 6,147,500 of 7.25% equity units in a public offering at $25 per unit for gross
proceeds of $153.7 million (net proceeds of $149.1 million). Each equity unit is-composed of an unsecured,
subordinated note and a purchase contract (equity forward on our common stock collateralized by the note). The
notes bear interest at an annual rate of 6.6% and $25 principal amount per note is initially due in February 2008.
On or after November 2005 the notes will be remarketed as senior unsecured obligations and the interest rate will
be reset at that time. The holders of the purchase contracts will be paid a contract adjustment payment at a rate of
0.65% per year and have agreed to purchase a minimum 2.8343 shares (17,423,859 shares aggregate) and a
maximum of 3.4578 shares (21,256,826 shares aggregate) of our common stock, depending on its quoted market
price, in February 2006. The present value of the future contract adjustment payments of $2.8 million was
recorded as a charge to paid-in capital at inception. :

The senior unsecured bonds were issued in December 2001 for gross proceeds of $300.0 million (net proceeds of
$290.6 million) and mature in January 2032. We pay interest at an annual rate of 7.45%. We may redeem any or
all of the bonds from January 2007 at a redemption price equal to 100% of principal plus accrued and unpaid
interest to the redemption date. We also have the right to redeem the bonds in whole in certain circumstances if
we are unable to deduct interest paid on the bonds.

On December 22, 2003, we closed on a new $150.0 million unfunded, unsecured senior revolving credit facility to
replace our $100 million credit facility, which expired on that date. This new facility consists of two tranches: a
$112.5 million, 364-day revolving credit facility and a $37.5 million, three-year revolving credit facility. Under
the 364-day facility, we have the ability to extend the maturity date of any outstanding borrowings for one year
from the termination date. Potential borrowers on the new credit line are the holding company, Phoenix Life and
Phoenix Investment Partners. Financial covenants require the maintenance at all times of: consolidated
stockholders’ equity of $1,775.0 million, stepping up by 50% of quarterly positive net income and 100% of equity
issuances; a maximum consolidated debt-to-capital ratio of 30%; a minimum consolidated fixed charge coverage
ratio (as defined in the credit agreement) of 1.25:1; and, for Phoenix Life, a minimum risk-based capital ratio of
250% and a minimum A.M. Best Financial Strength Rating of A-. We were in compliance with all credit facility
covenants at December 31, 2003. There were no borrowings on any of the credit lines in 2003. We anticipate
that we will draw $25.0 million against this facility to fulfill an obligation related to the Kayne Anderson Rudnick
acquisition (Note 4).

Future minimum annual principal payments on indebtedness as of December 31, 2003 follow: 2006, $§175.0
million; 2008, $153.7 million; and 2032, $300.0 million.

As of December 31, 2003, we had $9.0 million of standby letters of credit primarily to cover any potential losses
on certain reinsurance.

Stock purchase contract adjustment payments (included in other operating expenses) and interest expense on our
indebtedness, including amortization of issuance costs, for the years 2003, 2002 and 2001 follow ($ amounts in
millions):

2003 2002 2001

Stock purchase contract adjustment payments ..................cccoe... R $ 82 8 1.0 $ --
SUIPIUS IOLES ....vvveoeeveeesveresesreeeaeeee e et $ 12.2 $ 122 $ 12.2
EQUILY UNIES .ivitivesiceiesice et reer e st ss et st see b enme e seant e 12.1 0.3 -
Senior unsecured BONdS ........ccocvveiiririi e 14.9 15.5 0.3
Bank credit facility and other ........c.cccooi i 0.4 34 14.8
Interest expense on indebtedness .............c.covvvirineciiieennnin e $ 39.6 $ 31.4 $ 27.3
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Common stock and stock repurchase program

We have authorization for the issuance of 1,000,000,000 shares of our common stock. In connection with our
demutualization and initial public offering, we issued 106,376,363 common shares (56,180,463 shares to our
policyholders in exchange for their interests in the mutual company and 50,195,900 shares in sales to the public).
As of December 31, 2003, we had 94,445,716 shares outstanding, net of 11,930,647 common shares of treasury
stock . We also had 28,993,669 common shares reserved for issuance at that date under the purchase contracts
included with our equity units (21,256,826 shares), our stock option plans (6,300,000 shares) and our restricted
stock units (1,436,843 shares).

We have authonzanon from our board of directors to repurchase an additional 670,000 shares of our common
stock. As of December 31, 2003, we had repurchased 12,330,000 shares of our common stock at an average price
of $15.87 per share, including zero, 7,871,500 and 4,458,500 shares in 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively. During
2003, we contributed 399,353 treasury shares to fund the employer match for our saving and investment benefit
plans. These shares had a cost basis of $6.3 million (weighted-average cost of $15.87 per share) and an aggregate
market value of $3.8 million. :

State Farm Mutual Automobile Insurance Company, or State Farm, currently owns of record more than five
percent of our outstanding common stock. In 2003 and 2002, our subsidiaries incurred $25.8 million and $10.7
million; respectively, as compensation costs for the sale of our insurance and annuity products by entities that
were either subsidiaries of State Farm or owned by State Farm employees. : :

Separate account products are those for which a separate investment and liability account is maintained on behalf
of the policyholder. 'Investment objectives for these separate accounts vary by fund account type, as outlined in
the applicable fund prospectus or separate account plan of operations. Our separate account products include
variable annuities and variable life insurance contracts. :

Separate account assets and liabilities related to policyholder funds-are carried at market value. Deposits, net
investment income and realized investment gains and losses for these accounts are excluded from revenues, and
the related liability increases are excluded from benefits and expenses. Fees assessed to the contractholders for
management services are included in revenues when services are rendered.

Separate account assets and 11ab111t1es by segment as of December 31, 2003 and 2002 follow ($ amounts in
millions). :

2003 2002
Life and Annuity segment SEparate aCCOUNTS........ccoererirercererererierirerecirrnereieeseststsseseerencaenes $ 59103 $ 41317
Corporate and Other segment SEPArate ACCOUNTS .........oeeverirreeeriereririrnseeereressetessesnsaeseesessns 172.9 239.5
Total separate account assets and Habilities...................ocooii $ 6,083.2 $ 4,371.2

8. Investments Pledged as Collateral and Non-recourse Collateralized Obligations

We are involved with various entities in the normal course of business that may be deemed to be variable interest
entities and, as a result, we may hold interests in those entities. We serve as the investment advisor to nine
collateralized obligation trusts that were organized to take advantage of bond market arbitrage opportunities,
including the three in the table below. The nine collateralized obligation trusts are investment trusts with
aggregate assets of $3.3 billion that are primarily invested in a variety of fixed income securities acquired from
third parties. The collateralized obligation trusts, in turn, issued tranched collateralized obligations and residual
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equity securities to third parties as well as to our life insurance subsidiary’s general account. Our asset
management affiliates earned advisory fees of $10.3 million, $7.9 million and $7.6 million in 2003, 2002 and
2001, respectively, which are recorded as either investment product fees for unconsolidated trusts or are reflected
as investment income on debt and equity securities pledged as collateral, net of interest expense on collateralized
obligations and applicable minority interest for consolidated trusts on our consolidated statement of income. The
collateralized obligation trusts reside in bankruptcy remote, special purpose entities, or SPEs, in which we neither
provide recourse nor guarantees. Accordingly, our financial exposure to these collateralized obligation trusts
stems from our life insurance subsidiary general account’s direct investment in certain debt or equity securities
issued by these collateralized obligation trusts. Our maximum exposure to loss with respect to our life insurance
subsidiary’s direct investment in the nine collateralized obligation trusts is $91.6 million at December 31, 2003,
$54.1 million of which relate to investment grade debt securities and loss of management fees.

In January 2003, a new accounting standard was issued, FIN 46, Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities, an
Interpretation of ARB No. 51, or FIN 46, that interprets the existing standards on consolidation. FIN 46 was
subsequently reissued as FIN 46-R in December 2003, with FIN 46-R providing additional interpretation as to
existing standards on consolidation. FIN 46-R clarifies the application of standards of consolidation to certain
entities in which equity investors do not have the characteristics of a controlling financial interest or do not have
sufficient equity at risk for the entity to finance its activities without additional subordinated financial support
from other parties (variable interest entities). Variable interest entities are required to be consolidated by their
primary beneficiaries if they do not effectively disperse risks among all parties involved. The primary beneficiary
of a variable interest entity is the party that absorbs a majority of the entity’s expected losses, receives a majority
of its expected residual returns, or both, as a result of holding variable interests. As required under the original
standard, on February 1, 2003, we adopted the new standard for variable interest entities created after January 31,
2003 and for variable interest entities in which we obtain an interest after January 31, 2003, In addition, as
required by the revised standard, on December 31, 2003 we have adopted FIN 46-R for SPEs in which we hold a
variable interest that we acquired prior to February 1, 2003. We continue to consolidate three collateralized
obligation trusts as of December 31, 2003 and 2002. Our direct investment in the three consolidated
collateralized obligation trusts is $27.8 million, $20.0 million of which is an investment grade debt security as of
December 31, 2003. We recognized investment income on debt and equity securities pledged as collateral, net of
interest expense on collateralized obligations and applicable minority interest of $2.9 million, $2.6 million and
$2.5 million in 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively, related to these three consolidated collateralized obligation
trusts.

Six variable interest entities not consolidated by us under FIN 46-R represent collateralized obligation trusts with
approximately $2.1 billion of investment assets pledged as collateral. Our general account’s direct investment in
these unconsolidated variable interest entities is $63.8 million, $34.1 million of which are investment grade debt
securities at December 31, 2003. We recognized investment advisory fee revenues related to the six
unconsolidated variable interest entities of $7.4 million, $5.3 million and $5.1 million in 2003, 2002 and 2001,
respectively.
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Variable interest entities consolidated as of December 31, 2003 and 2002 follow ($ amounts in millions):

2003 2002

Assets Pledged as Collateral, at Fair Value

PhoenixX CDO L ..ottt s bt bbb n bbb et be s $ 148.8 $ 1504
Phoenix CDO IL.....ooviiiciiiiericrinreree ittt et es st et ebe b 3326 377.2
Phoenix-Mistic 2002-1 CDO........cuceirirmieiierrinicir ettt cesseei s en b 963.4 899.3
TOLAL. ..o e e et $ 1,444.8 $ 1,426.9
Non-recourse Collateralized Obligations

Phoenix CDO I (March 2011 maturity)......... e ettt R e n e e $ 183.2 $ 214.6
Phoenix CDO II (December 2012 mandatorily redeemable)...........cccovevrvvricrvnnnrirerenvinnennn, 375.6 438.9
Phoenix-Mistic 2002-1 CDO (September 2014 maturity)......c.ccoooeverieicreneciiecceeeeeeseee, 913.2 956.0
TOLAL. ..ottt ettt e r et rebe st st b bt R et bR an bbb e bR ettt b st $ 14720 $ 1,609.5

Assets pledged as collateral are comprised of available-for-sale debt and equity securities at fair value of $1,350.0
million and $1,358.7 million at December 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively. In addition, cash and accrued
investment income of $94.8 million and $68.2 million are included in these amounts at December 31, 2003 and
2002, respectively.

Non-recourse collateralized obligations are comprised of callable collateralized obligations of $1,344.2 million
and $1,443.8 million at December 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively, and non-recourse derivative cash flow hedge
liabilities of $127.8 million (notional amount of $1,211.3 million with maturities of 2005-2013) and $165.7
million at December 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively. Minority interest liabilities related to third-party equity
investments in the consolidated variable interest entities is $22.3 million and $17.3 million at December 31, 2003
and 2002, respectively.

Collateralized obligations for which Phoenix Investment Partners is the sponsor and actively manages the assets,
where we are deemed to be a primary beneficiary as a result of our variable interests, and where there is not a
substantive amount of outside third-party equity investment in the trust, are consolidated in our financial
statements. Our financial exposure is limited to our share of equity and bond investments in these vehicles held in
our general account as available-for-sale debt and equity securities, as applicable, and there are no financial
guarantees from, or recourse, to us, for these collateralized obligation trusts.

Debt and equity securities pledged as collateral are recorded at fair value with any applicable unrealized
investment gains or losses reflected as a component of accumulated other comprehensive income, net of
applicable minority interest. We recognize realized investment losses on debt and equity securities in these
collateralized obligations when declines in fair values, in our judgment, are considered to be other-than-
temporarily impaired. Non-recourse obligations issued by the consolidated collateralized obligation trusts are
recorded at unpaid principal balance. Non-recourse derivative cash flow hedges are carried on our consolidated
balance sheet at fair value with an offsetting amount recorded in accumulated other comprehensive income.

In 2003, we revised our method of consolidation of the collateralized obligation trusts for 2003, 2002 and 2001.
Under the new method, the applicable assets, liabilities, revenues, expenses and minority interest are presented on
a disaggregated basis, and the non-recourse collateralized obligations are recorded at unpaid principal balance.
Prior to our revision of previously reported 2003, 2002 and 2001 amounts, investments pledged as collateral were
recorded at fair value with asset valuation changes directly offset by changes in the corresponding liabilities in a
manner similar to separate accounts.
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The effect of our change in the method of consolidation for the three consolidated collateralized obligation trusts
was to increase our net loss and to reduce stockholders’ equity for the years 2003, 2002 and 2001 as follows
($ amounts in millions):

2003 2002 2001
INCTEase IN NEL LOSS...cvvviriuriierrrrerrerererirece et bebereiesstebenr bbb sebebenas $ (2.4) $ (26.3) $ (12.5)
Reduction to stockholders’ equity .......cccccovvveeirinrnicncnnnsrereeesenirienenes 3 (717.3) $ (2049 $ (87.9)

The above non-cash charges to earnings and stockholders’ equity primarily relate to realized and unrealized
investment losses within the collateralized obligation trusts, that will ultimately be borne by third-party investors
in the non-recourse collateralized obligations. Accordingly, these losses and any future gains or losses under this-
method of consolidation will ultimately reverse upon the maturity or other liquidation of the non-recourse
collateralized obligations.

GAAP requires us to consolidate all the assets and liabilities of these collateralized obligation trusts which results
in the recognition of realized and unrealized losses even though we have no legal obligation to fund such losses in
the settlement of the collateralized obligations. The Financial Accounting Standards Board, or FASB, continues to
evaluate, through the issuance of FASB staff positions, the various technical implementation issues related to
consolidation accounting. We will continue to assess the impact of any new implementation guidance issued by
the FASB as well as evolving interpretations among accounting professionals. Additional guidance and
interpretations may affect our application of consolidation accounting in future periods.

Fair value and cost of the debt and equity securities pledged as collateral as of December 31, 2003 and 2002
follow (8 amounts in millions):

2003 2002
' Fair Value Cost Fair Value Cost

Debt Securities Pledged as Collateral by Type ' )
COTPOTALE ...vvviereve e tseeeeeves et eeseesae st eae st sa s s s $ 1,006.7 $ 909.4 $ 959.9 $ 942.9
Mortgage-backed............... [T 193.2 185.0 231.0 218.6
Other asset-backed........coovveereeccnenreiinnniieinieneee 148.9 153.0 162.7 167.6
SUBLOtAL...cecrcer e 1,348.8 1,247.4 1,353.6 1,329.1
Equity securities pledged as collateral...................... 1.2 0.7 5.1 6.0
Total debt and equity securities

pledged as collateral ..., $ 1,350.0 $ 12481  § 1,358 $ 13351

Gross and net unrealized gains and losses from debt and equity securities pledged as collateral as of December 31,
2003 and 2002 follow ($ amounts in millions):

2003 2002

Gains Losses Gains Losses
Debt Securities Pledged as Collateral by Type _
COTPOTALE ....overeveerieseee e ctessessas et iaevsissesasssserriressees $ 1041 - § (6.8) b 49.2 $ (32.2)
Mortgage-backed.........ccooeeiiirreniniiece e 21.8 (13.6) 25.9 (13.5)
Other asset-backed..........cocceovieivnnnreinin e, 3.8 (79 34 (8.3)
SUBLOLAL ...cvvvrreieeie et reve st anse s eae e enessesesen s 129.7 (28.3) 78.5 (54.0)
Equity securities pledged as collateral ...................... 0.7 (0.2) 0.1 1.0)
TOtAL....oviiiiiciec e e $ 1304 3 (28.5) S 78.6 $ (55.0)
Net unrealized gains ..., 3 101.9 : $ 23.6

F-38




The aging of temporarily impaired debt and equity securities pledged as collateral as of December 31, 2003
follows ($ amounts in millions): A

Less than 12 months Greater than 12 months Total

Fair Unrealized - Fair = Unrealized Fair - Unrealized
Value Losses Value Losses ._Value Losses
Debt Securities Pledged as Collateral
by Type ' '
COTPOTALE ....cvvrverveerririesns s ses s e $ 200 $ (09 $ 481 $ (59 % 681 $ (6.8
Mortgage-backed......... e e 6.2 (2.0) 252 (11.6) 314 (13.6)
Other asset-backed.........oooovriiirinniiininns 8.7 (0.3) 37.8 (7.6) 46.5 (7.9)
Debt securities........ et e $ 349 8§ (32 §$ 1111 $ (@251 S 1460 3% (28.3)
Equity securities pledged as collateral... 0.2 - == 0.2) 0.2 (0.2)
Total temporarily impaired securltles
pledged as collateral ............................. $ 351 § (32) §$ 1111 $ (253) '§ 1462 $ (28.5)

Gross unrealized losses related to debt securities pledged as collateral whose fair value is less than the security’s
amortized cost totals $25.3 million at December 31, 2003. Debt securities with a fair value less than 80% of the
security’s amortized totaled $17.9 million at December 31, 2003. The majority of these debt securities are
investment grade issues that continue to perform to their original contractual terms at December 31, 2003.

The maturity of the debt securities pledged as collateral as of December 31, 2003 follows ($ amounts in millions):

2003

Cost
Debt Securities ' .
DUE 10 ONE YEAT OF 1855 .oniiiiieeiriiicet et sttt et ettt b btk e et sseae s ssbs st eabe s e et e sbembeas e e anaebeans e $ 13.1
Due after one year through fIVe YEars......c.covveercrriirinierriern ettt et JPSP RO 198.0
Due after five years through ten Years.......ccc.ococevveeninnineccninnrnnns SO UPU USROS SRR 827.2
Due after ten Years.........ccovovevreoreeeeesloeeees e et s 209.1
Total debt securities.....................ccoouen... e ettt ettt i $ 12474

FIN 46-R requires our application of its provisions to non-SPE variable interest entities for periods ending after
March 15, 2004. We are currently evaluating non-SPE entities in which we may have a variable interest for the |
applicability of FIN 46-R and, accordmgly, have not determmed the additional impact, if any, FIN 46-R may have
on our financial position or results of operations.

9. Derivative Instruments and Fair Value of Financial Instruments

Derivative instruments

We maintain an overall interest rate risk-management strategy that prlmarlly incorporates the use of interest rate’
swaps as hedges of our exposure to changes in interest rates. Qur exposure to changes in interest rates prlmarlly
results from our commitments to fund interest-sensitive msurance liabilities, as well as from our significant
holdings of fixed rate ﬁnancxal instruments.

All derivative instruments are recognized on the balance sheet at fair value. Generally, each derivative is
designated according to the associated exposure as either a fair value or cash flow hedge at its inception as we

do not enter into derivative contracts for trading or speculative purposes.

Except for the foreign currency swaps discussed below, all fair value hedges are accounted for with changes in
the fair value of related'interest rate swaps recorded on the balance sheet with an offsetting amount recorded to
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the hedged item’s balance sheet carrying amount. Changes in the fair value of foreign currency swaps used as
hedges of the fair value of foreign currency denominated assets are reported in current period earnings with the
change in value of the hedged asset attributable to the hedged risk.

Cash flow hedges are generally accounted for with changes in the fair value of related interest rate swaps
recorded on the balance sheet with an offsetting amount recorded in accumulated other comprehensive income.
The effective portion of changes in fair values of derivatives hedging the variability of cash flows related to
forecasted transactions are reported in accumulated other comprehensive income and reclassified into earnings
in the periods during which earnings are affected by the variability of the cash flows of the hedged item.

Changes in the fair value of derivative instruments not designated as hedging instruments and ineffective portions
of hedges are recognized in net investment income in the period incurred.

Our general account held the following positions in derivative instruments as of December 31, 2003 and 2002 at
fair value ($ amounts in millions):

2003 2002

Notional
Amount  Maturity Asset Liability Asset Liability

Interest rate swaps

Fair value hedges........cccccooevnnnnnnncnnne $ 150 2032 $ 103 § - 3 156 % -
Cash flow hedges.......ccoceovivrineinienennne 30 2007 4.5 -- 5.6 --
Non-hedging derivative instruments........ 360 2007 25.1 21.7 30.7 26.5
OthEr .o e 90  2003-2008 0.4 -- 0.8 --
Total general account
derivative instrument positions .............. $ 630 $ 403 $ 21.7 § 527 § 26.5

Fair value hedges. We currently hold interest rate swaps that convert a portion of our fixed rate debt portfolio to
variable rate debt. These hedges are accounted for under the shortcut method and, therefore, no hedge
ineffectiveness is recorded in current period earnings associated with these interest rate swaps.

During a portion of 2002 and all of 2001, we held foreign currency swaps that hedged the fair value of foreign
currency denominated available-for-sale securities that backed U.S. dollar denominated liabilities. We recognized
1ineffectiveness of $0.5 million ($0.3 million after income taxes) and $1.2 million ($0.8 million after income
taxes) for the years 2002 and 2001, respectively. There were no foreign currency swaps held during 2003.

Cash flow hedges. We currently hold interest rates swaps that effectively convert variable rate bond cash flows to
fixed cash flows in order to better match the cash flows of associated liabilities. These hedges are accounted for
under the shortcut method and, therefore, no hedge ineffectiveness was recorded in earnings for 2003, 2002 and
2001. We do not expect to reclassify any amounts reported in accumulated other comprehensive income into
earnings over the next twelve months with respect to these hedges.

We recognized an after-tax gain of $0.0 million, $1.8 million and $3.0 million for the years 2003, 2002 and 2001
in accumulated other comprehensive income related to changes in fair value of interest rate forward swaps
designated as cash flow hedges of the forecasted purchase of assets. At December 31, 2003 we expect to
reclassify into earnings over the next twelve months $1.0 million of the deferred after-tax gains on these
derivative instruments. For the years 2003, 2002 and 2001, we reclassified after-tax gains of $0.6 million, $0.6
million and $0.3 million, respectively, into earnings related to these same derivatives.

Non-hedging derivative instruments. We also hold interest rate swaps that were initially entered into as hedges of
an anticipated purchase of assets associated with an acquisition of a block of insurance liabilities. Subsequently,
offsetting swap positions were taken to lock in a stream of income to supplement the income on the assets
purchased.
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On January 1, 2001, we recorded a net-of-tax cumulative effect adjustment of $1.3 million (gain) in earnings to
recognize at fair value all derivative instruments that are designated as fair-value hedging instruments. We
recorded an offsetting net-of-tax cumulative effect adjustment of $1.3 million (loss) in earnings to recognize the
difference attributable to the hedged risks between the carrying values and fair values of the related hedged assets
and liabilities.. We also recorded a net-of-tax cumulative effect adjustment of $1.1 million (gain) in accumulated
other comprehensive income to recognize, at fair value, all derivative instruments that are designated as cash-flow
hedging instruments. For derivative instruments that were not designated as hedges, we also recorded a
cumulative effect adjustment of $6.0 million in earnings, ($3.9 million after income taxes) in earnings to
recognize these instruments at fair value.

We are exposed to credit risk in the event of non-performance by counterparties to these derivative instruments.
We do not expect that counterparties will fail to meet their financial obligation as we only enter into derivative -
contracts with a number of highly rated financial institutions. The credit exposure of these instruments is the
positive fair value-at the reporting date, or $40.3 million as of December 31, 2003. We consider the likelihood of
any material loss on these instruments to be remote.

Fair value of financial instruments

The carrying amounts and estimated fair values of financial instruments as of December 31, 2003 and 2002
follow ($ amounts in millions):

2003 2002
Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
Value Value Value Value

Cash and cash equivalents ..........ccoeeveeverrrninencernn . $ 4479 $ 4479 $ 1,1105 $ 11,1105
Debt securities (NOE 5)..oeovviivereeirircreeeeie e 13,273.0. 13,273.0 11,889.5 11,889.5
Equity securities (NOte 5) ..ocoviveriinienicinnec e 312.0 3120 385.9 385.9
Mortgage 10ans (NOte 5).....ccceverrmrervevererncirrenerenieene 284.1 301.4 468.8 488.2
Debt and equity securities pledged as collateral

(INOLE B)-ecvierreee ettt sr sttt esreere s 1,350.0 1,350.0 1,358.7 1,358.7
Derivative financial instruments...........ccocooveeereeveeneenns 40.3 40.3 527 52.7
Policy 10ans (INOLE 5) ....vcvecrvveriererereninieserrrne e ser e rensd 2,227.8 2,356.4 2,195.9 2,367.9
Financial assets ...........ccooooovvieiiiiviiniiiceeec i $ 17,935.1 $ 18,081.0 $ 17,462.0 $ 17,653.4
Investment contracts (NOte 3)......cocoeriivienecinnireennen, $ 3,642.7 $ 3,680.8 $ 3,395.7 $ 3,481.9
Non-recourse collateralized obligations (Note 8).......... 1,472.0 1,444.8 1,609.5 1,426.9
Stock purchase contracts (NOte 6) ......cccocvvererercrienennee, 128.8 128.8 137.6 137.6
Indebtedness (NOtE 6) .....oivierimierrireciereieni e ereeneaeeas 639.0 742.4 6443 614.4
Derivative financial instruments...........coecoeevrveeveiernens 21.7 21.7 26.5 26.5
Financial liabilities..................cc.ocoev v, $ 5904.2 $ 60185 $ 58136 $ 5,687.3

10. Income Taxes

We recognize income tax expense or benefit based upon amounts reported in the financial statements and the
provisions of currently enacted tax laws. We allocate income taxes to income, other comprehensive income and
additional paid-in capital, as applicable.

We recognize current income tax assets and liabilities for estimated income taxes refundable or payable based on
the current year’s income tax returns. We recognize deferred income tax assets and liabilities for the estimated
Sfuture income tax effects of temporary differences and carryforwards. Temporary differences are the differences
between the financial statement carrying amounts of assets and liabilities and their tax bases, as well as the
timing of income or expense recognized for financial reporting and tax purposes of items not related to assets or
liabilities. If necessary, we establish valuation allowances to reduce the carrying amount of deferred income tax
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assets to amounts that are move likely than not to be realized. We periodically review the adequacy of these
valuation allowances and record any reduction in allowances through earnings. ‘

The allocation of income taxes to elements of comprehenswe income (loss) and between current and deferred for
2003, 2002 and 2001 follows ($ amounts in millions): :

2003 : 2002 2001

Income taxes (benefit) applicable to :

Continuing operations...............ccccooviviiieiiiiiereiierere e $ (18.5) $ (56.2) % (105.2)
Discontinued OPETAtIONS .........ccceviriererriereriervrienesraee et re e e e (1.2) (0.6) (0.9)
Cumulative effect of accounting changes.............cccocceeens e e 9 -- v (11.4) (352
Net1oss.......ccoocevrvevireennnnae e ienes e R .. $ 19.7) S. (68.2) $ (141.3)
Other cOMprehensive INCOME ..........ccveeerieerrriiresnree st e saeseereesrennens 42 14.2 31.2
COmPrehensive 1SS .............ovovrevoreeeessionsensinn, e T S (239 § (5400 § (110.1
CUITENE ...ttt et et e an oot $ (6.6) $ (14.4) $ (58.2)
DEfRrTed . .c.covieieeiereeeiitree et bbb (17.3) (39.6) (519
Income tax benefit applicable to comprehensive income....................... $ 239 8 (5400 8§ (110.1)

For 2003, 2002 and 2001, the effective income tax rates applicable to income from continuing operations differ
from the 35% federal statutory income tax rate. Items giving rise to the differences and the effects are as follow
($ amounts in millions):

2003 2002 2001

Income tax benefit at statutory rate........ e ire e etet e e et arbe e ae b et et earas b (3.6) $ (64.6) $ (85.9)
Tax advantaged INVeStMENt INCOME. .....cc.ocuiirerirreererorreeiereiereeeressesnsanesenes (6.8) (12.6) (7.2)
Intangible asset amortization and impairments...........ccoccvevrveereeenenesrenenns - 19:5 32
Realized losses on available-for-sale securities pledged ..... et nneans 09 9.2 - 4.4
Non-taxable minority interest iNCOME ........cvcvrvecrererieierereerecssieseereseesaerennes (4.2) ' (4. 1) ' (2.5)
DemutualiZation EXPENSES ........rvevvviveeereeieeeererisisere e sssseeeesseessessssesessessens -- , 7.1
Tax interest FeCOVETIES ... ovvrrerrrerrinnnes ettt ene (1.1) .-
OHNET, TEL..oveecieiiere ettt ee bbbt se s s s b eses e b senas (3 o (3 8)- . (3.3)
Differential earnings (mutual life insurance company equ1ty 17:5: IR (21.0)
Income tax benefit applicable to continuing operations........................ $ (18 5) $ (56 2) $ (1052
Effective income tax benefit 1ates ...........c..cooeveeemerneeeveseieenesesiseseseesneens (181.4)% (30.5)% (42.9)%
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Deferred income tax assets (liabilities) attnbutable to temporary differences as of December 31, 2003 and 2002
follow ($ amounts in mllhons) - .

2003 2002

Deferred income tax assets N : . : . :
Future policyholder benefits...........loveverenene. erie e e _ L -8 L2152 $ 1803. -
Uneamned premiums / deferred revenues - ‘ 125.1 o 1293
Pohcyholder dividend obhgatlon .............. g ’ . 111.8 . 113.3
Employee benefits ... o ey ‘ 91.1 100.6
Intangible assets.......... eerreecenirees bttt s ettt ’ 7.1 20.5
INIVESHINENLS ...c.eeeineriiereie ettt ettt et b e s b e et b s n e e et et st ene st a e e rnene 123.9 93.3
Net operating 108s carryover BENEfits ..........cocovecciiiiicee e e 74.0 63.7
Foreign tax credits carryover benefits ... 0.1 7.0
Low income housing tax credits .......coccvvrerevererereieenenenneenecinnen, PO OOUUTU 12.3 : 8.2
ORET ..ttt etttk bbb bbbttt bt 9.1 324
Valuation HOWANCE .........ccviiiirieee ettt sttt st b ettt ss ettt saeteabesee e seetens (24.3) (35.9)
Gross deferred income tax aSSELs ...........c..ccceiiiriiiniiiinenncci e e 745.4 722.7
Deferred tax liabilities . . . . ‘ : . :

Deferred policy ACqUISItION COSES.....orvseevvvrrepissinsscrrresssncennens R SOOI . (316.1) . (282.1)
INVESTMENTS...cvoovvoepeeriseeesepereeneerens s e e RO, (272.3) (283.4)
Investment management contracts ....... s e s s R . (93.1) (100.0)
Other............. et e et et et T (52 (15.8)
Gross deferred income tax‘hablhtles..;....’ ......... e e e (686.7) (681.3)

Deferred i mcome L T R RS s 3 58.7 $ 41.4

We have eletted tofile a consolidated federal income tax returri for 2003 and prior years. Within the consolidated
tax return, we are required by Internal Revenue Service regulations to segregate the entities into two groups: life
insurance companies and non-life insurance companies. We are limited as to the amount of any operating losses
from one group that can be offset agamst taxable income of the other group. These limitations affect the amount
of any operating loss carryforwards that we have now or in the future.

As of December 31, 2003, we had deferred tax assets related to net operating losses of $49.7 million for federal
income tax purposes and $24.3 million for state income tax purposes. The deferred tax assets related to the
federal net operating losses are scheduled to expire as follows: $7.7 million in 2015, $5.4 million in 2016, $19.8
million in 2017, $1.1 million in 2018 and $15.7 in 2023. The deferred tax assets related to the state net operating
losses relate to the non-life subgroup and are scheduled to expire as follows: $12.7 million in 2020 and $11.6
million in "2021':‘"Due to the'inability to combine the life insurance and non-life insurance subgroups for state
income tax purposes, a $24.3 million and a $29.0 million valuation allowance has been established at the end of
2003 and 2002, respectively, relative to the state net operating loss carryforwards.

As of December 31, 2003, the deferred income tax asset of $0.1 million related to foreign tax credit carryovers is
expected to expire between the 2006 and 2008 tax years. As of December 31,2002, $6.9 million of the $7.0
million deferred tax asset related to forexgn tax credit was scheduled to expire in 2003." As a result, a valuation
allowance of $6.9 million was established to reduce the carrymg amount of this deferred tax asset as of
December 31, 2002.

As of December 31, 2003, the deferred income tax assets of $12.3 million related to low income housing tax
credits are expected to expire as follows: $4.1 million in 2021, $4.1 million in 2022 and $4.1 million in 2023.

We have determined, based on our earnings and future income, that it is more likely than not that the deferred
income tax assets after valuation allowance already recorded as of December 31, 2003 and 2002 will be realized.
In determining the adequacy of future income, we have considered projected future income, reversal of existing
temporary differences and available tax planning strategies that could be implemented, if necessary.
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Our federal income tax returns are routinely audited by the Internal Revenue Service, or the IRS, and estimated
provisions are routinely provided in the financial statements in anticipation of the results of these audits. The IRS
has examined our consolidated group’s federal income tax returns through 1997. The IRS is currently examining
our federal income tax returns for 1998 through 2001. While it is often difficult to predict the outcome of these
audits, including the timing of any resolution of any particular tax matter, we believe that our reserves, as
recorded in other liabilities on the balance sheet, have been adequately provided for all open tax years.
Unfavorable resolution of any particular issue could result in additional use of cash to pay liabilities that would be
deemed owed to the IRS. Additionally, any unfavorable or favorable resolution of any particular issue could
result in an increase or decrease, respectively, to our effectwe income tax rate to the extent that our estimates
differ from the ultimate resolution.

11. Employee Benefit Plans and Employment Agreements
Stock options

We have stock option plans under which we grant options for a fixed number of common shares to employees,
non-employee directors and certain insurance agents. Qur options have an exercise price equal to the market
value of the shares at the date of grant. A new standard was issued which amends an existing standard on
accounting for stock-based compensation. Qur adoption of the new standard results in expense recognition for
stock options awarded after December 31, 2002 over the service period of the options equal to their fair value at
issuance. During 2002, a previous standard allowed for us to account for stock-based compensation using the
intrinsic value method which didnot result in expense recognition because at issuance date, the market price of
our common stock was equal to the exercise price of the options. As required under the new standard, we have
included pro forma net income and earnings per share as if we had applzed the fazr value method for all periods
presented

The new standard provides methods of transition for a voluntary change to fair value accounting for stock-based
compensation. It also requires annual and quarterly disclosures about the method of accounting for stock-based
compensation and tabular information about the effect of the method of accounting for stock-based compensation.
We adopted fair value accounting for stock-based compensation in 2003 using the prospective method of
transition provided by the new standard. .

During 2003 and 2002, we granted options to employees and non-employee directors and agents. The employee
and agent options vest over a three-year period while the directors’ options vested immediately. No options were
exercisable until June 25, 2003, the second anniversary of our initial public offering. All options terminate ten
years from date of grant. The Stock Incentive Plan authorized the issuance to officers, employees and insurance
agents of that number of options equal to 5% of the total number of common stock shares outstanding
immediately after the initial public offering in June 2001, or approximately 5,250,000 shares, plus an additional
1%, or approximately 1,050,000 shares, for Phoenix Investment Partners officers and employees, less the number
of share options issuable under the Directors’ Stock Plan. The Directors’ Stock Plan authorized the issuance to
non-employee directors of that number of options equal to 0.5%, or approximately 525,000 shares, of the total
number of common stock shares outstanding immediately after the initial public offermg in June 2001, plus
500,000 shares, bringing the total to approximately 1,025,000 shares.
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Stock option activity by number of common shares and weighted-average exercise price for the years 2003 and
2002 follows (amounts in millions, except per share price):

2003 2002
Number Price Number Price
Outstanding, beginning of year ..............cccco.ocerenn. 4,409,558 $ 16.20 - $ --
GIanted .....ovevivveireiiieeereere ettt e 572,504 9.00 4,456,906 16.20
Canceled ..o e (42,211) 15.63 -- --
Forfeited .........oee..... OSSR R RO (311,995) <1413 (47,348) 16.20
Outstanding, end of year.............c..cccoeirniii e, 4,627,856 . $ 1545 4,409,558 3 16.20

Prior to 2001, Phoenix Investment Partners, whose shares were then publicly traded, granted options to its
employees and directors to purchase shares of its common stock at an option price of not less than 85% of the fair
value of that company’s common stock at the time of grant. Options granted under the Phoenix Investment
Partners plan vested over a three-year period. In connection with our purchase of the minority interest in Phoenix
Investment Partners (Note 4), Phoenix Investment Partners recognized compensation expense of $57.0 million
related to Phoenix Investment Partners’ payment for the cancellation of all of its outstanding options (7,007,444
total); holders of the options were paid an amount equal to the difference between the converted value of the
options ($111.9 million) and their exercise price ($54.9 million).

Pro forma earnings and earnings per share as if we and Phoenix Investment Partners had applied the fair value
method of accounting for stock-based compensation for 2003 and 2002 (Phoenix) and 2001 (Phoenix Investment
Partners) ($ amounts in millions, except per share amounts):

2003 2002 2001
Net 1085, 85 FEPOTTE. .....cvevrirriieeieiier ettt s irrnans $ 6.2) $ (2723 $ (2152
Add: Employee stock option compensation expense included in net loss,
net of applicable INCOME TAXES.......c.orvverceerrreeriereneer e . 04 -- --
Deduct: Employee stock option compensation expense determined under '
fair value accounting for all awards, net of applicable income taxes ............ 5.0 6.5 2.6
Proforma met 1088 ..ot et $ (108 $ (2788 § (217.8)
Basic loss per share:
ASTEPOIEA ..ottt ettt et $ (0.07) % (2.78) § (2.06)
PIO fOTINA. ....veoeeeeeeeee et ss e en s en s eenanee $  (011) $ (285 $  (2.08
Diluted loss per share:
ASTEPOTIEA ..o een st r e $ (007 $ (278 $ (206
PO TOITNA. ...ttt ettt s et n et aa st e $ .11 $ (285 $  (2.08)

The weighted-average fair values of options granted during 2003 and 2002 were $4.07 and $8.18 per share,
respectively, using the Black-Scholes option valuation model with the parameters stated below. Of the 2002 pro
forma expense, $4.2 million relates to options that were fully earned at December 31 2002 there will be no
additional pro forma expense recognition for those options.

F-45




The pro forma adjustments relating to options granted are based on a fair value method using the Black-Scholes
option-pricing model. Valuation and related assumption information used for the options granted include these
key variables: weighted-average expected volatility, weighted-average risk-free interest rate and weighted-
average common share dividend yield. The key assumptions for years 2003 and 2002 follow:

2003 2002
Weighted-average expected VOIatility .......cccciriiiinicininriiie et 43.7% 34.9%
Weighted-average risK-free INtErest TAE.......covvveerrererireerricieeriie sttt beseeeaens 3.5% - 5.5%
Weighted-average common share dividend yield. ..., 1.8% 0.9%

The Black-Scholes option valuation model was developed for use in estimating the fair value of options that have
no vesting restrictioris and are fully transferable. In addition, option valuation models require the input of highly
subjective assumptions including the expected share price volatility. Because our share options have
characteristics significantly different from those of traded options, and because changes in the subjective input
assumptions can materially affect the fair value estimate, especially in a security traded for only a short time, in
our opinion the existing models do not necessarily provide a reliable measure of the fair value of our share
options. Despite these concerns, the Black-Scholes model was used to develop the pro forma amounts presented
above. - » ‘ '

Restricted stock units and restricted stock
We record deferred compensation for the fair value of restricted stock unit awards and present deferred
compensation as a separate, offsetting component of stockholders’ equity. We recognized compensation expense

over the vesting period of the restricted stock units.

Generally, shares underlying those awards which are or become vested will be issued on the later of June 26, 2006
or each employee’s and each director’s respective termination or retirement.

RSU activity by number of units and weighted-average exercise price for the years 2003 and 2002 follow:

2003 2002

Exercise Exercise
RSUs Price RSUs v Price
Outstanding, beginning of year ........................... 573,477 $ 13.95 -- b --
Awarded to officers and directors........oovvvvveveviereeennnn. 701,598 7.95 573,477 13.95
Issued to officers in satisfaction of
deferred compensation liabilities .............coevevrerveerennn. 161,768 9.07 -- --
Outstanding, end of year............c.cccocccoovevevennreenan.. 1,436,843 $ 10.47 573,477 §  13.95

In addition to the RSU activity above; 1,147,338 RSUs are subject to future issuance based on the achievement of
performance criteria established under the 2003-2005 cycle of our 2003 Restricted Stock, Restricted Stock Unit
and Long-Term Incentive Plan. : , ‘

See Securities Authorized for Issuance under Equity Compensation Plans in Item 12 in this Form 10-K for further
information about RSUs.

Pension and other post-employment benefits

We provide our employees with post-employment benefits that include retirement benefits, through pension and
savings plans, and other benefits, including health care and life insurance.
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The cost of post-employment benefits recognized and the underlying principal rates-and assumptions used for
2003, 2002 and 2001 follow ($ amounts in millions):

l 2003 2002 2001
Cost components ‘ S :
Recurring pension benefit cost (Credit)......covrrrriirereiiiniere e 3 22.8 $ 152 . % (2.1)
Recurring other post-retirement benefit CoSts. ........coovvveeicnnciiniencenen. 3.6 42 39
SaVINGS PlANS COSL. .. iveirteiriieiee ettt et et seerens 5.4 4.9 3.5
Other post-employment benefit Cost........ccoovviiiciniiiicnie, -- - 0.4
Total continuing operations reCUrTing COSt .......cvveveirierereirerenennererveneones . 31.8 243 5.7
Total non-recurring and discontinued Operations Cost.........cccvvvrcererenrennne 1.3 , 0.6 194
Total pension and other post-employment benefit cost..............cccocee.. 8 33.1 3 24.9 3 25.1
Principal Rates and Assumptions
Assumptions Used to Determine Benefit Obligations
Projected benefit obligation discount rate ..........ccocovveeierireeeeineiieeeens 6.0% 6.5% 7.0%
Future compensation iNCrease rate........ieuereerruereerseireneseeeseereneenesaenne 3.5% 3.5% - 4.0%
Pension plan assets long-term rate of refurn ... 8.5% 8.5% 9.0%
Deferred investment gain/loss amortization corridor .........coovevrccoinninnnes 5.0% 5.0% 5.0%
Future health care cost increase rate, age 64 and younger.........coceeeveeien 9.25% ~.10.0% 5.5%
Future health care cost increase rate, age 65 and older..........cccccenveeinene 11.25% 12.0% 5.5%
Assumptions Used to Determine Benefit Costs ‘ : :
Projected benefit obligation diSCOUNT TALE ......ecviveiiiiniiieeircrariaeesneraneens 6.5% 7.0% 7.5%
Future compensation iNCrease rate........cccvovierereirierercnreereenreereerenesesnens 3.5% 4.0% - 4.5%
Pension plan assets long-term rate of return.........cccoviiivnnnciiinninnns 8.5% 9.0% 8.0%
Deferred investment gain/loss amortization corridor .................... e o 5.0% 5.0% 10.0%
Future health care cost increase rate, age 64 and YOUNZeT.........ceeveveurnrene. 10.0% 5.5% 7.5%

Future health care cost increase rate, age 65 and older..........ccccvecenenenn. 12.0% 5.5% 7.5%

Ourinvestment policy and strategy employs a total return approach combining equities, fixed income, real estate
and other assets to maximize the long-term return of the plan assets for a prudent level of risk. Risk tolerance is
determined based on consideration of plan liabilities and plan-funded status. The investment portfolio contains a
diversified blend of equity, fixed income, real estate and alternative investments. The equity investments are
diversified across domestic and foreign markets, across market capitalizations (large, mid and small cap), as well
as growth, value and blend.” Derivative instruments ate not typically used for implementing asset allocation
decision, and never used in conjunction with leverage. Investment performance is measured-and monitored on an
on-going basis through quarterly investment portfolio reviews, annual liability measurement, and periodic
presentations by asset managers included in the plan.

We use a building block approach in estimating the long-term rate of return for plan assets. Historical returns are
determined by asset class. The historical relationships between equities, fixed income and other asset classes are
reviewed. We apply long-term asset return estimates to the plan’s target asset allocation to determine the
weighted-average long-term return. Our long-term asset allocation was determined through modeling long-term
returns and asset return volatilities. The allocation reflects proper diversification and was reviewed against other
corporate pension plans for reasonability and appropriateness. ' '
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The employee pension plan asset allocation as of December 31, 2003 and 2002 follows:

2003 2002
Asset Category
EQUILY SECUTILIES ....eveviiiiieieii ittt ettt ettt b s be e et ssen e s aasens 63% 52%
DDEDL SECUITHIES ..veiivviiriiiitie ettt cctte e crere ettt st e et e b e eae e e teeeatsesesseseansessrsessbeenss bt anseeenssnensennsnis 28% 31%
Real estate.........cooeveverrvreveennnns et e e bt eeeri L e e b ee et oot e et ab e e teebe et reeateetetheeaaeesabeean et eeresnsenes 6% 14%
[0 11 1T OO OO OO U OO TPV P RO 3% 3%
TOUAL......ooeieeicee ettt ettt et b st et e b e e et ea e a et et b et st et eaaa s b e e enenesensereebe s 100% 100%

We recognize pension and other post-retivement benefit costs and obligations over the employees’ expected
service periods by discounting an estimate of aggregate benefits. We estimate aggregate benefits by using
assumptions for employee turnover, future compensation increases, rates of return on pension plan assets and
Sfuture health care costs. We recognize an expense for differences between actual experience and estimates over
the average future service period of participants. We recognize an expense for our contributions to employee and
agent savings plans at the time employees and agents make contributions to the plans. We also recognize the
costs and obligations of severance, disability and related life insurance and health care benefits to be paid to
inactive or former employees after employment but before retirement.

We use a December 31 measurement date for our pension and post-employment benefits.

In 2003, as a result of staff reduction initiatives, there was a curtailment credit for the employee pension plan and
post-retirement plan in the aggregate amount of $0.8 million.

In 2002 and 2001, we offered special retirement programs under which qualified participants’ benefits under the
employee pension plan were enhanced by adding five years to both the participants’ age and years of service. As
a result of participants’ acceptance of the offers, we recognized non-recurring pension and other post-retirement
benefit costs of $0.6 million and $23.2 million for the years 2002 and 2001, respectively ($0.4 million and $15.1
million, respectively, after income taxes). In connection with the relocation of our annuity servicing operations in
2001, we recognized a non-recurring pension cost of $0.6 million ($0.4 million after income taxes). In 2001, we
changed the corridor used to amortize deferred actuarial gains and losses and recognized a non-recurring pension
benefit credit for the year 2001 of $4.4 million ($2.9 million after income taxes).

Pension plans. We have two defined benefit pension plans covering our employees. The employee pension plan,
covering substantially all of our employees, provides benefits up to the amount allowed under the Internal
Revenue Code. The supplemental plan provides benefits in excess of the primary plan. Retirement benefits under
both plans are a function of years of service and compensation.

Components of pension benefit cost for 2003, 2002 and 2001 follow ($ amounts in millions):

2003 2002 2001
SEIVICE COSLuviiiuiireririiitesietirteietestetetesaeete st eteesesesraaseteseebessasnebeseesasnsasanstens $ 124 $ 14.0 $ 12.1
INEETESE COSL. vttt ettt ettt sr e 33.0 ’ 345 324
Plan assets eXpected FetIIN ......cocuiviiiiiniiiicereniene e eeresar e (27.4) (34.5) {39.2)
Net (gain) 10SS amMOTtiZAtION........vevevireeeeeiee ettt erene 6.2 : 1.7 (7.5)
Prior service cOSt AMOtiZAtION ....veivveeevieiecrreiisesi e reenere e seeenee s sbe s eree 1.1 2.0 2.6
Net transition asset amMortiZation ...........c.oveveeierereerererereirreereneereeeeseenens (2.5) (2.5) (2.5
Recurring pension benefit cost (Credit).........cccccrenreirieenneecniienereneenenae 22.8 15.2 (2.1)
Special retirement Programs COSt..........ovecciiniiriiiinicine s 3.3 0.6 16.5
FaCility ClOSING COSL....oivirieriiireiitereertetrere et eere st aebesre e sr et et sabaeesesabeeens - -- 0.6
COTTIAOT BAIN «.veiviiirreterreete ettt er et be e es e senes -- == 44
Non-recurring and discontinued operations Cost .........ccceccveriivrrmiurirvecenns 33 0.6 12.7
Pension benefit oSt .............cooveeeiiiiiiii e $ 26.1 $ 15.8 $ 10.6




The employee pension plan is funded with assets held in a trust. The assets within the plan include corporate and
government debt securities, equity securities, real estate and venture capital partnerships. The supplemental plan
is unfunded.

Changes in the plans assets and projected benefit obllgatlons and the accumulated benefit obligation for 2003 and
2002 follow ($ amounts in millions): :

Employee Plan Supplemental Plan

2003 2002 2003 2002
Plans’ Assets e
Plan assets’ actual gain (1088) .....ccoeevevevennenn. ettt nar s $ 664 $§ (432 $ - &8 -
Employer contributions ..........ccccirmereireenronereniirnnre oo -- -- 5.1 42
Participant benefit payments.........ccccovveivierreennnn. reereeere e naes (25.2) (24.2) (5.1) (4.2)
~ Change in plan aSsets..........covevvvrererrnreereseriesinsesssinensnsresnssinenes 412 (67.4) - .-
Plan assets, beginning of year.........c.cccoceevnevenennnen. s 327.7 395.1 -~ -
Plans’ assets, end 0f YEar............c...co.coouiiiineemrinsenissssssssenssesesnesnns $ 3689 § 3277 $ - $ -~
Plans’ Projected Benefit Obligation
Service and interest cost accrual..........cceeeveeveerienenenn., et § (371 $ (36.5) $ 84) $ (12.0)
Actuarial gain (10SS)....coevrirrrenerreieniiseere i seere et s (39.9) (23.2) 7.6 (17.8)
Plan amendment gain (L0S8).....ccvorveverveerieriienienreesrevaereeneessereressaernes -- (11.8) -- 19.1
Curtailment gain (I0SS) «.c.ecvvvevvierirrerrierirrrirrenesrereretesereseseseesesenes 1.3 - 2.2) (0.6)
Participant benefit payments...........ccoovvvemeeerrrcrmreerneeeie e eeeeneenene 252 242 5.1 4.2
Change in projected benefit obligation..........c.ccccvvvviinna e (50.5) - 473) - 2.1 (7.1)
Projected benefit obligation, beginning of year......c.oveenvneeennn (410.1) (362.8) (126.9) (119.8)
Projected benefit obligation, end of year ..................cccccocni. $ (460.6) S (410.1) $ (1248) § (126.9)
Accumulated benefit obligation................cccoovvervenivniricieennnee § 4346 $ 3787 § 795 § 955

In addition to the liability for the excess of accrued pension cost of each plan over the amount contributed to the
plan, we also recognize an additional liability for any excess of the accumulated benefit obligation of each plan
over the fair value of plan assets. The offset to this additional liability is first recognized as an intangible asset,
which is limited to unrecognized prior service, including any unrecognized net transition obligation. Any
additional offsets are then recognized as an adjustment to accumulated other comprehensive income.

The funded status of the plans as of December 31, 2003 and 2002 follows ($ amounts in millions):

Employee Plan Supplemental Plan
2003 2002 2003 2002

Excess of accrued pension benefit cost .

over amount contributed to plan............. ettt ettt $ (383 $ (257 $ (820) $ (73.6)
Excess of accumulated benefit obllgatlon over plan assets ............. (27.4) (25.3) (30.9) 37.9)
Accrued benefit obligation in other liabilities ..........coocevvvvencrennee (65.7) (51.0) (112.9) (111.5)
Intangible @SSEt......c.eveviueeiiririierreeree et 11.0 14.2 -- --
Minimum pension 11ab111ty adjustment in

accumulated other comprehensive inCome ..........occccvrvcencsnrennnne 16.4 11.1 30.9 379
Funding status recognized in balance sheet............cccccoevvnireennn. (38.3) (25.7) (82.0) (73.6)
Net unamortized 1085 .......ccevevenee. RO (44.8) (47.4) (47.6) (54.4)
Unamortized prior service (cost) CTedit.....cc.occveerererrrrerererirenerenene (11.0) (14.2) 4.8 1.1
Net unamortized transition ASSEL..........cvvvureerereeneereecersseemssrnssnessens 24 4.9 -- -
Funding status unrecognized in balance sheet..............cccccoo.rvernen. (53.49 (56.7) (42.8) (53.3)

Plan assets less than projected benefit obligations, end of year.. $§ (91.7) $§ (82.4) $ (124.8) $§ (126.9)
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We expect to contribute $107.8 million to the employee pension plan through 2008, including $7.2 million during
2004. :

On December 8, 2003, the Medicare Prescription Drug, Improvement and Modernization Act, or the Act, of 2003
was signed into law by President Bush. The Act introduces a prescription drug benefit under Medicare and, under
certain circumstances, provides a non-taxable federal subsidy to be paid to sponsors of post-retirement benefit
plans that provide retirees with a drug benefit. On January 12, 2004, the FASB issued FASB Staff Position No.
FAS 106-1, Accounting and Disclosure Requirements Related to the Medicare Prescription Drug, Improvement
and Modernization Act of 2003, or the FSP. The FSP permits employers that sponsor post-retirement benefit
plans, or plan sponsors, that provide prescription drug benefits to retirees to make a one-time election to defer
accounting for any effects of the Act. Without the FSP, plan sponsors would be required under Statement of
Financial Accounting Standards No. 106, Employers’ Accounting for Post-Retirement Benefits Other Than
Pensions, to account for the effects of the Act as of December 31, 2003. If deferral is elected, the deferral must
remain in effect until the earlier of: (a) the issuance of guidance by the FASB on how to account for the federal
subsidy to be provided to plan sponsors under the Act or (b) the remeasurement of plan assets and obligations
subsequent to January 31, 2004.

We are currently evaluating the Act and its effect on post-retirement benefits provided by us to our retirees.
Accordingly, accumulated post-retirement benefit obligation and net periodic post-retirement benefit cost
reflected in our financial statements and accompanying notes do not reflect the effects of the Act on-our post-
retirement benefit plan as we have elected to defer accounting for the effects of the Act until the earlier of: (a)
issuance of guidance by the FASB on how to account for the federal subsidy to be provided to us under the Act or
(b) a remeasurement of plan obligations subsequent to January 31, 2004. Specific authoritative guidance on the
accounting for the federal subsidy is pending and that guidance, when issued, could requlre us to change amounts
reported herein as of December 31, 2003 and for the periods then ended.

Other post-employment benefits. The components of post-retirement health care benefit cost for 2003, 2002
and 2001 follow ($ amounts in millions):

© 2003 2002 2001 -

SEIVICE COSL..curreriiiiirieiiterest it eeeerrbe et eab s e st r s e seraresass e beba et st ataneresaess $ 1.7 $ 2.0 $ 1.9
TNEEIEST COSL. vttt e e et b e e e 4.8 49 4.5
Net gain amOTHIZAION ...c.oovveeieiiieieieree e reeiaeeeesre e seeerereeveerenbe e ssevesaeseasas 0.1) (2.5) 2.7
Prior service cost 8MOTtiZation ..........ccovcerreiiivrnisenrice sl seens (2.8) ()] 0.2
Recurring other post-retirement benefit COSt .........ccovvrmrinerenrenirenncinenee 3.6 4.2 3.9
CUTAIIMENLS .oeivviiiiiiiieccireeetce e ee s reeera e srerere e s raaeseaesetessrtarareeerbaessesers 2.0 --

Special retirement program COSt.....oecvrrermreresracrnnss e e - - 6.7

Other post-retirement benefit cost.............cc.coccovvrrererrrirmreineinrnnens $ 1.6 $ 4.2 $ 10.6
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Our other post-retirement plans are unfunded and participant benefit payments are represented by employer-
contributions. Changes in the plans prOJected benefit oblxgatlon for 2003 and 2002 follow ($ amounts in
millions): .

- 2003 2002

Service and interest cost ACCTUC ... e b e $ (6.5) $ . (69
Actuarial ain (1088).....ecuvriiririirriiieeritctre ettt ettt sttt rereeenan (5.9) (21.3)
Plan amMeNAMENtS .........cocuuieuiirecieneiirerreeeecseere s eseisressesss e ssesrees JEOO - 16.2
Curtailments ............... BSOSO e, et e 0.5 -
Participant benefit PAYMENts. ..........co.ovvreeeecrsiereeveesroneeeeenn. 7.4 6.6
Change in projected benefit obligation..................... et rere e aa e a et s era bt s ee e n b e s akeetnesreanans (4.5) (5.4)
Projected benefit obligations, beginning of year ...........c..c..ccceeuu.ee. e, e, : (74.2) ' (68.8)
Projected benefit obligations, end of year..................... ISUR ORI e SR i 8 (78.7) 3 (74.2)

The funded status of the other post-retirement plans as of December 31, 2003 and 2002 follows ($ amounts in
millions):

2003 2002
Accrued benefit obligation mcluded in other liabilities............oce.ee e bt § (1005 $ (1064
Net UNAMOTHIZEA ZAIMN....c.ioiiririre ittt sttt st e s seasbaseseas 6.3 18.3
Unamortized prior Service (COSLS) CLEAILS ...vvvrrruerririrrireiiiierinriiesrnsessreresesssae e eseeseseressesenas 15.5 13.9
Funding status unrecognized in balance sheet................ e FOTSUTOU ORI ;. 21.8 $ 322
Plan assets less than projected benefit obligations, end of year.................cccoooccninnc $ (78.7) $ (74.2)

The health care cost trend rate has a significant effect on the amounts reported. For example increasing the
assumed health care cost trend rates by one percentage point in each year would increase the accumulated post-
retirement benefit obligation by $0.8 million and the annual service and interest cost by $0.1 million. Decreasing
the assumed health care cost trend rates by one percentage point in each year would decrease the accumulated
post-retirement benefit obligation by $0.8 million and the annual service and interest cost by $0.1 million.

Savings plans. We also sponsor savings plans for our qualified employees and agents. Employees and agents
may contribute a portion of their compensation, subject to certain.limitations, to the plans. We contribute an
additional amount, subject to limitation, based on the employee or agent contribution. Our contributions may be
in the form of e1ther our common stock or cash.

Management restructuring expense and employment agreements

We have entered into agreements with certain key executives of the Company that will, in certain circumstances,
provide separation beriefits upon the termination of the executive’s employment by the company for reasons other
than death, disability, cause or retirement, or by the executive for “good reason,” as defined in the agreements.

For most of these executives, the agreements provide this protection only if the termination occurs following (or
is effectively connected with) the occurrence of a change of control, as defined in the agreements,

We recorded a non-recurring expense of $11.4 million ($7.2 million after income taxes) and $43.4 million ($28.5
million after income taxes) in 2003 and 2002, respectively, primarily in connection with organizational and
employment-related costs. Of these amounts, $6.2 million ($4.0 million after income taxes) and $12.9 million
($8.4 million after income taxes) related to our Asset Management segment for 2003 and 2002, respectively.
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12. Other Comprehensive Income

We record unrealized gains and losses on available-for-sale securities, minimum pension liability adjustments in
excess of unrecognized prior service cost, foreign currency translation gains and losses and effective portions of
the gains or losses on derivative instruments designated as cash flow hedges in accumulated other comprehensive
income. Unrealized gains and losses on available-for-sale securities are recorded in other comprehensive
income until the related securities are sold, reclassified or deemed to be impaired. Minimum pension liability
adjustments in excess of unrecognized prior service cost are adjusted or eliminated in subsequent periods to the
extent that plan assets exceed accumulated benefits. Foreign currency translation gains and losses are recorded
in accumulated other comprehensive income until the foreign entity is sold or liquidated or the functional
currency of that entity is deemed to be highly inflationary. The effective portions of the gains or losses on
derivative instruments designated as cash flow hedges are reclassified into earnings in the same period in which
the hedged transaction affects earnings. If it is probable that a hedged forecasted transaction will no longer
occur, the effective portions of the gains or losses on derivative instruments designated as cash flow hedges are
reclassified into earnings immediately.

Sources of other comprehensive income for 2003, 2002 and 2001 follow ($ amounts in millions):
2002 2001

2003 Restated Restated
Gross Net Gross Net Gross Net

Unrealized gains (losses) on investments... $§ 1298 § 1583 § 6034 ”$ 1046 § 1525 $§ 342

Net realized investment losses on
available-for-sale securities

included in net income.........ooevvvrerernernnn (111.9) (72.7) (50.5) (32.8) (17.0) (12.9)
Net unrealized investment gains.................. 17.9 - 856 552.9 718 ~135.5 21.3
Minimum pension liability adjustment........ 1.7 1.1 (26.8) (17.4) (12.8) (8.3)
Net unrealized foreign currency

translation adjustment .............cceeeeiecernnne 11.9 8.2 7.1 1.2 (2.6) 1.7
Net unrealized derivative instruments

2I08S (10SSES) cveevvveereeeeeertc e 41.6 40.3 (128.0) (129.9) (23.1) (25.8)
Other comprehensive income (10ss) ............ 73.1 § 1352 4052 §  (74.3) 97.0 § (14.5)
Applicable policyholder

dividend obligation........cccccvevrerrrnieennnn (45.5) 369.4 108.8
Applicable deferred policy acquisition .

COSt AMOTHIZALION. .....ccvvevcericrreecerenccnne (12.4) 95.9 ’ (28.5)

Applicable deferred income taxes (benefit). 4.2) 14.2 31.2

Offsets to other comprehensive income....... (62.1) 479.5 111.5

Other comprehensive income (loss).......... $ 135.2 § (743) $ (14.5)
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Components of accumulated other comprehensive income as of December 31, 2003 and 2002 follows ($ amounts
in millions):

2002
2003 Restated
Gross Net Gross Net
Unrealized gaing on iNVESHMENLS .......cooveerivmiiineieivereseesinecennennnnenee $ 7934 $§ 2073 § 7755 § 1220
Minimum pension liability adjustment (Note 11)....c.ccccovveinccicnencnnnnn. 47.3) (30.7) (49.0) (31.8)
Unrealized foreign currency translation adjustment.........cooceeevvnnnnee 10.3 4.1 (1.6) (4.4)
Unrealized losses on derivative inStruments........c...ccvvecvecerirercnincnnnnes (111.1) (117.0) (152.7) (157.3)
Accumulated other comprehensive inCome ........c.oovvvvrnrncriinncens 6453 $ 637 5722 §  (7L%)
Applicable policyholder dividend obligation........c..occcoeenennceiennncnnnn, 432.7 478.2
Applicable deferred policy acquisition cOStS........cc.coecniinnniiiicnnnn, 94.1 106.5
Applicable deferred INCOME tAXES.......ccvvirereiirercereinieen e 54.8 59.0
Offsets to accumulated other comprehensive income.........ocveecvvecnnne 581.6 : 643.7
Accumulated other comprehensive income...............ccccccooenneenie $ 63.7 $ (L5

13. Earnings Per Share

We calculate earnings per share, EPS, on two bases: basic and diluted. We calculate basic EPS by dividing
earnings available to common stockholders by the weighted-average number of common shares outstanding
during the period. We calculate diluted EPS similarly except that, if applicable, we adjust earnings to reflect
earnings had the dilutive potential common shares been issued during the period, and we increase the weighted-
average number of shares to include the issuance of the dilutive potential common shares.

The following table presents the shares used in the calculation of basic and diluted earnings per share for the years
2003, 2002, and 2001 (shares in thousands):

2003 2002 2001
Weighted-average common shares outstanding..................c.cccccoeninen 94,218 97,854 104,578
Weighted-average effect of dilutive potential common shares:
Restricted stock units (1,437 and 573).ccveirieiieiiee et 1,236 143 -
Employee stock options assumed issued (476).......ccocvvrecirererreiinnens 12 -- --
Equity units assumed issued (17,424).........c..ccc.... rereeet et 1,096 -- --
Potential common Shares ......cccocveviiiiireriiiiireee e 2,344 143 --
Less: Potential common shares excluded from calculation
due to Operating lOSSES.....ccvivereriereieirie ettt sttt 2,344 143 --
Dilutive potential common Shares .........ccoovevrvirireniniinniereene s, -~ -- --
Weighted-average common shares outstanding, including
dilutive potential common shares...................ccccooceiniciniice 94,218 97,854 104,578
Employee stock options and equity units excluded from calculation
due to anti-dilutive exercise prices (i.e., in excess of average
common share market prices)
Stock options............ U RO RSO U PRSI 4,187 4410 -
EQUILY UIIES...veitieeecerriciee st st s et st enesesnene st esaone sancenen -- 17,424 --

The 2001 weighted-average shares outstanding is pro forma and is based on the weighted-average shares
outstanding for the period from the initial public offering to December 31, 2001. '

There are no adjustments to net income (loss) for the years 2003, 2002 and 2001 for purposes of calculating
earnings per share.
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14. Discontinued Operations

During the fourth quarter of 2003, we entered into a purchase and sale agreement to sell 100% of common stock
held by us in Phoenix National Trust Company. This sale is expected to close in the first quarter of 2004. The
financial statement effect of this transaction is immaterial to our consolidated financial statements. The net after-
tax loss included in discontinued operations for the years ended 2003, 2002 and 2001 was $2.1 million, $1.3
million and $2.5 million, respectively. "

During 1999, we discontinued the operations of three of our business segments which in prior years had been
reflected as reportable business segments: reinsurance operations, group life and health operations and real estate
management operations. We sold several operations, had a signed agreement to sell one of the operations and we
implemented plans to withdraw from the remaining businesses.

Total reserves related to our discontinued reinsurance operations, including coverage available from our finite
reinsurance and reserves for amounts recoverable from retrocessionaires, were $185.0 million and $155.0 million
as of December 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively. Our total amounts recoverable from retrocessionaires related to
paid losses were $165.0 million and $65.0 million as of December 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively. We did not
recognize any gains or losses during the years 2003, 2002 and 2001. See Note 17 for additional information on
the discontinued reinsurance business.

We have excluded assets and liabilities of the discontinued operations from the assets and liabilities of continuing
operations and on a net basis included them in other general account assets on our balance sheet.-

15. Phoenix Life Statutory Financial Information and Regulatory Matters

Our insurance subsidiaries are required to file annual statements with state regulatory authorities prepared on an
accounting basis prescribed or permitted by such authorities.

As of January 1, 2001 the New York Insurance Department adopted the National Association of Insurance
Commissioners, or the NAIC, Codification of Statutory Accounting Principles guidance, with the exception for
accounting for deferred income taxes. Codification guidance replaced the accounting practices and procedures
manual as the NAIC’s primary guidance on statutory accounting; it also provides guidance for areas where
statutory accounting has been silent and changed current statutory accounting in other areas. The effect of
adoption decreased the statutory surplus of our insurance subsidiaries by $66.4 million, primarily as a result of
non-admitting certain assets and recording increased investment reserves. As of December 31, 2002, the New
York Insurance Department adopted the NAIC codification guidance for accounting for deferred income taxes.

As of December 31, 2003, statutory surplus differs from equity reported in accordance with GAAP for life
insurance companies primarily as follows:

policy acquisition costs are expensed when incurred;

investment reserves are based on different assumptions;

surplus notes are included in surplus rather than debt;

post-retirement benefit expense allocated to Phoenix Life relate only to vested participants and expense is
based on different assumptions and reflect a different method of adoption;

life insurance reserves are based on different assumptions; and

e net deferred income tax assets i excess of 10% of previously filed statutory capital and surplus are not
recorded. '
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Statutory financial data for Phoenix Life as of December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001 and for the years 2003, 2002
and 2001 are as follows ($ amounts in m11110ns)

2003 2002 2001
Statutory capital, surplus, surplus notes and asset valuation reserve...‘ ....... $ 961.5 $ 10080 & 13713
Statutory gain from OPErations .............cocveeveviereeerrrrisisereseesssnecssresesesnsnes . § 69.7 $ 44.5 $ 119.9
Statutory net inCome (L0S8) ....cocreririrrreriieciiinirnseneree oo $ 21.5 5 7.5 $ (13.4)

New York Insurance Law requires that New York life insurers report their RBC. RBC is based on a formula
calculated by applying factors to various assets, premium and statutory reserve items. The formula takes into
account the risk characteristics of the insurer, including asset risk, insurance risk, interest rate risk and business
risk. New York insurance law gives the New York Superintendent of Insurance explicit regulatory authority to
require various actions by, or take various actions against, insurers whose total adjusted capital does not exceed
certain RBC levels. Each of the U.S. insurance subsidiaries of Phoenix Life is also subject to these same RBC
requirements. Phoenix Life and each of its insurance subsidiaries’ RBC was in excess of 300% of Company
Action Level (the level where a life insurance enterprise must submit a comprehensive plan to state insurance
regulators) as of December 31, 2003 and 2002.

Under New York Insurance Law, Phoenix Life can pay stockholder dividends to us in any calendar year without
prior approval from the New York Insurance Department in the amount of the lesser of 10% of Phoenix Life’s
surplus to policyholders as of the immediately preceding calendar year or Phoenix Life’s statutory net gain from
operations for the immediately preceding calendar year, not including realized capital gains. Phoenix Life paid
dividends of $44.5 million in 2003 and is able to pay $69.7 million in dividends in 2004 without prior approval
from the New York Insurance Department. Any additional dividend payments, in excess of $69.7 million in
2004 would be subject to the dlscretlon of the New York Superintendent of Insurance.

16. Premises and Equipment

Premises and equipment, consisting primarily of office buildings occupied by us, are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and amortization. We depreciate buzldzngs on the stralght line method over 10 to- 45
years and equipment primarily on a modified accelerated method over 310 10 years. We amortize leasehold
improvements over the terms of the related leases.

Premises and equipment are 1nc1uded in other general account assets in our balance sheet. Cost and carrymg
value as of December 31, 2003 and 2002 follow ($ amounts in mllllons)

2003 o 2002

Carrying Carrying
Cost Value Cost Value

Real estate............ st e e - - $ 71488 3§ 635 - $§ 1555 $ 721
EQUIPINENE.....ooooeeveeeaeesvssseeesseeessssese s - 1883 . 318 S VA W 30.6
Leasehold improvements .......occeciierereiiinnncnsineccineisennes . 10.5 ' 68 10.5 ) 7.3
Premises and equipment cost and carrying value ............c.cc.e... 347.6 $ 1021 337.7 $ 110.0-
Accumulated depreciation and amortization ................. SR (245.5) ‘ . (227.7) -
Premises and equipment ..., § 1021 $ 110.0

Depreciation and amortization expense for premises and equipment for 2003, 2002 and 2001 totaled $19.3
million, $21.4 million and $20.7 million, respectively. ,

In February 2004 we announced the execution of an agreement to sell our Enfield, Connectlcut ofﬁce fac111ty,
which sale is expected to close in the second quarter of 2004.
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Rental expenses for operating leases for continuing operations, principally with respect to buildings, amounted to
$11.4 million, $12.1 million and $13.4 million in 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively. Future minimum rental
payments under non-cancelable operating leases for continuing operations were $41.5 million as of December 31,
2003, payable as follows: 2004, $11.4 million; 2005, $9.1 million; 2006, $7.6 million; 2007, $6.0 million; 2008,
$4.2 million; and $3.2 million thereafter.

17. Contingent Liabilities

In 1999, we discontinued our reinsurance operations through a combination of sale, reinsurance and placement of
certain retained group accident and health reinsurance business into run-off. We adopted a formal plan.to stop
writing new contracts covering these risks and to end the existing contracts as soon as those contracts would
permit. However, we remain liable for claims under those contracts. We also purchased finite aggregate excess-
of-loss reinsurance, or finite reinsurance, to further protect us from unfavorable results from this dlscontlnued
business.

We have established reserves for claims and related expenses that we expect to pay on our discontinued group
accident and health reinsurance business. These reserves are a net present value amount that is based on currently
known facts and estimates about, among other things, the amount of insured losses and expenses that we believe
we will pay, the period over which they will be paid, the amount of reinsurance we believe we will collect under
our finite reinsurance, the amounts we believe we will collect from our retrocessionaires and the likely legal and
administrative costs of winding down the business.

Our total reserves, including coverage available from our finite reinsurance and reserves for amounts recoverable
from retrocessionaires, were $185.0 million and $155.0 million as of December 31, 2003 and 2002 respectively.
Our total amounts recoverable from retrocessionaires related to paid losses were $165.0 million and $65.0 million
as of December 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively. We did not recognize any gains or losses during the years 2003,
2002 and 2001.

We expect our reserves and reinsurance to cover the run-off of the business; however, the nature of the underlying
risks is such that the claims may take years to reach the reinsurers involved. Therefore, we expect to pay claims
out of existing estimated reserves for up to ten years as the level of business diminishes. In addition, unfavorable
claims experience is possible and could result in additional future losses. Given the uncertainty associated with
litigation and other dispute resolution proceedings, as described below, our estimated amount of the loss on
disposal of reinsurance discontinued operations may differ from actual results. However, it is our opinion, based
on current information and after consideration of the provisions made in these financial statements, as described
above, that future developments will not have a material effect on our financial position.

Unicover Managers, Inc.

A significant portion of the claims arising from our discontinued group accident and health reinsurance business
arises from the activities of Unicover Managers, Inc., or Unicover. Unicover organized and managed a group, or
pool, of insurance companies, or Unicover pool, and two other facilities, or Unicover facilities, which reinsured
the life and health insurance components of workers’ compensation insurance policies issued by various property
and casualty insurance companies. We were a member of the Unicover pool but terminated our partlclpatlon in
the pool effective March 1, 1999.

We are involved in disputes relating to the activities of Unicover. Under Unicover’s underwriting authority, the
Unicover pool and Unicover facilities wrote a dollar amount of reinsurance coverage that was many times greater
than originally estimated. As a member of the Unicover pool, we were involved in several proceedings in which
the pool members asserted that they could deny coverage to certain insurers that claimed that they purchased
reinsurance coverage from the pool. Those matters were settled. Also, the pool members are currently involved
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in proceedings arising from business ceded to the London market. Those proceedings are in the preliminary
stages. - - o

Further, we were, along with Sun Life Assurance of Canada (“Sun Life”") and Cologne Life Reinsurance
Company (“Cologne Life”), a retrocessionaire (meaning a reinsurer of other reinsurers) of the Unicover pool and
two other Unicover facilities, providing the pool and facility members with reinsurance of the risks that the pool .
and facility members had assumed. In September 1999, we joined an arbitration proceeding that Sun Life had
begun against the members of the Unicover pool and the Unicover facilities. In this arbitration, we and Sun Life
sought to cancel our retrocession agreements on the grounds that material misstatements and nondisclosures were
made to us about, among other things, the amount of risks we would be reinsuring. The arbitration proceeded
only with respect to the Unicover pool because we, Sun Life and Cologne Life reached settlement with the two
Unicover facilities in the first quarter of 2000. In October 2002, the arbitration panel issued its decision that the -
agreement by which we provided retrocessional reinsurance to the pool was valid only to the extent of business
bound or renewed to that agreement on or before August 31, 1998. This decision had the effect of granting us a
substantial discount on our potential liabilities, because most of the business was bound or renewed to the
agreement after August 31, 1998. In a clarification dated January 4, 2003, the arbitration panel confirmed its
decision. A significant portion of our remaining potential liabilities as a retrocessionaire of the pool may be.
recovered from our retrocessionaires.

In one of the Unicover facilities’ settlements, the Reliance facility settlement of January 2000, we paid a
settlement amount of $97.9 miilion and were released from all of our obligations as a retrocessionaire of the
facility. Subsequently, we were reimbursed by one of our retrocessionaires for $38.8 million of the amount we
paid under the settlement. A significant portion of the remainder of the settlement payment may be recovered
from certain of our other retrocessionaires.

In the other Unicover facilities’ settlement, the Lincoln facility settlement of March 2000, we paid a settlement
amount of $11.6 million and were released from all of our obligations as a retrocessionaire of the facility. A
significant portion of the settlement payment may be récovered from certain of our retrocessionaires.

The likelihood of obtaining the additional recoveries from our retrocessionaires cannot be estimated with a
reliable degree of certainty at this stage of our recovery efforts. This is due in part to the lack of sufficient claims
information (which has resulted from disputes among ceding reinsurers leading to delayed processing, reporting
blockages and standstill agreements among reinsurers) and in part to the matters discussed below under “Related
Proceedings.” : : :

The amounts paid and the results achieved in the above settlements and arbitration decision are reflected in our
consolidated financial statements. As the amounts previously reserved for these matters were sufficient, we
established no additional reserves with respect to these settlements and arbitration decision.

Related Proceedings

In our capacity as a retrocessionaire of the Unicover business, we had an extensive program of our own
reinsurance in place to protect us from financial exposure to the risks we had assumed. Currently, we are
involved in separate arbitration proceedings with three of our own retrocessionaires, which are seeking on various
grounds to avoid paying any amounts to us or have reserved rights. Because the same retrocession program that
covers our Unicover business covers a significant portion of our other remaining group accident and health
reinsurance business, we could have additional material losses if one or more of our retrocessionaires successfully
avoids its obligations.

With one of those retrocessionaires, we have three disputes. One concerns an agreement under which the
retrocessionaire reinsures us for up to $45 thousand per loss in excess of a $5 thousand retention. In June 2003,
the arbitration panel issued its decision, which upheld in all material respects the retrocessional obligations to us.
The decision is the subject of a pending appeal only with respect to the Unicover business. The other two
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disputes will not have a material effect on.our reinsurance recoverable balances. As of December 31, 2003, the -
reinsurance recoverable balance from this retrocessionaire related to paid losses was $57.0 million, subject to
further development

The dispute with another retrocessionaire, which sought to av01d an excess-of- loss retrocession agreement, a -
surplus share retrocession agreement and a quota share retrocession agreement, was the subject of an arb1trat1on in
November, 2003. In December 2003, the arbitration panel issued its interim decision which is conﬁdential The
financial implications of the interim decision are consistent with .our current financial provisions. As of - .
December 31, 2003, the reinsurance recoverable balance from th1s retrocessionaire related to paid losses was $7 0
million, subJect to further development : : : :

The‘dispute with the third retrocessionaire is the subject of arbitration proceedings that we initiated in December
2003. The purpose of the arbitration proceedings-is to confirm:the validity and enforce the terms of the
retrocessional contracts. We.had previously entered intd a standstill agreement with this retrocessionaire under -
which both parties had agreed not to-commence any proceedings against the other without providing written
notice within a specified period.. The purpose of the agreement was to allow the parties to investigate the
existence and éxtent of their contractual obligations to.each other. As of December 31, 2003, the reinsurance
recoverable balance from this retrocessionaire related to paid losses was $86.0 million, subject to furthér
development. :

At this stage, we cannot predict the outcome of the above matters, nor can we .estimate the amount at risk with a
reliable degree of certainty. This is due in part to. our lack.of sufficient claims information (which has resulted
from disputes among ceding reinsurers that have led to delayed processing, reporting blockages, and standstill
agreements among reinsurers). This applies with regard both to business related to Unicover and not related to
Un1cover '

Other Proce‘edings .

Another set of disputes involves personal accident business that was reinsured in the mid-1990s in the London
reinsurance market in which we participated. These disputes involve multiple layers of reinsurance and
allegations that the reinsurance program created by the brokers involved in placing those layers was interrelated
and devised to disproportionately pass losses to a top layer of reinsurers. Many companies who participated in -
this business are involved in litigation or arbitration in attempts to avoid their obligations on the basis of
misrepresentation. Because of the complexity of the disputes and the reinsurance arrangements, many of these
companies are currently participating in negotiations of the disputes for certain contract years, and we believe that
similar discussions will follow for the remaining-years. Although we are vigorously defending our contractual :
rights, we are actively involved in the attempt to reach negotiated business solutions. At this stage, we cannot
predict the outcome, nor can we estimate the amount at risk with a reliable degree of certainty. This is due in part
to our lack of sufficient claims information (which has resulted from disputes among ceding reinsurers that have
led to delayed processing, reporting blockages, and standstill agreements among reinsurers).
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18. Condensed Financial Information of The Phoenix Companies, Inc.

A summary of The Phoenix Companiés, Inc. (parent company only) financial information as of December 31,
2003 and 2002 and for the years 2003, 2002 and the period from inception (June 25, 2001) through December 31

2001 follows ($ amounts in millions):

) o 12002
- R 2003 Restated
Parent Company Financial Position ,
Investment in Phoenix Life............... ORI s $ 16376 = $ 1511.7
Investment in Phoenix Investment Partners. ... 2310 . 2395,
Investments in other subsidiaries.................. s SOOI 123.5 107.2
Loans to Phoenix INVEStMENt PAMIETS. ... . ivoiiivevieceniirenseereserieeeiessnssetiassssses s sesessessasenans 377.0 385.0
Advances to subsidiaries ...........c........... et e, s 230.8 217.0
Hilb, Rogal and Hamilton common stock, at fair value (NOLE 5) et et 116.2 148.2
Cash and cash €QUIVAIENES ...............coooevvervrreieree e ee e eee e sn s rsenin 22.8 304
Intangible asSets (INOE 11) ...ovuiviuiveiisiieiieieieseese e ees et ee sttt ss sttt ss s ssetseeas 11.0 142
T @SSEES. . iiuviiiiieietceieie et e evree et es s eeeetree s et eeeattesesenressanreeastenesenanesneeessnbesennne 106.6 78.0
Total‘ assets ............. s TR ... $ 28565 $ 27312
Stock purchase contracts (Note ) ettt sttt ST % 1288 . .8 1376
Indebtedness (NOLE 6)...........rrrvveniivniis OO OO O O OO OO SUTURROOTT S 4640 T 4693
Accrued pension and post- employment benefits (Note 11)......... OSSO UUOUPTOT e 281.1 270.9
Other HADIIITIES ....vcvevivreieree sttt trenie sttt st skttt tane st s e saasebeneas 34.8 26.6
Total HADIHEIES ......ccooiiiiiiiieie ettt e ee e bt esb et e st eeeens 908.7 904.4
Total stockhOlders’ EqUILY .....ovevoveveveeevrereeeeeteee e e e T e b 1,947.8 - 1,826.8
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity.............c.occccoiiininiiiiii e $ 2,856.5 $ 2,731.2
2002 - 2001
2003 Restated Restated
Parent Company Results of Operations
Dividends received from subsidiary, Phoenix Life ...........cccoovevencviininnnnn 44.5 $ 113.8 $ 1323
Investment income, principally from subsidiary,

Phoenix Investment Partners..........ooveveieineennceisesies e seveene 23.0 15.2 1.8
Net realized investment gains.......... e e e st er et ere b b ares rrevenens (0.1) 1.7 - .
TOtAl FEVEMUES.....o..ocoiiiiiiiiieiee ettt e e e , 67.4 130.7 134.1°
IDMETESE BXPENSE ...evvrieeroteiete st ettt st sttt st . 26.9 158 . 03
Demutualization EXPENSE w.......covverieesiiveriieerieerniaesiessesesesseaseosassnessnseives -- 1.8 .. 426
Other OPerating EXPEISES .ovevvveereeririerrierieertirrereeteieseesere st esernsreseereseseeseas 18.8 72 . 2.0
Total expenses...........c.cccevvvnreencriinnen ettt et bee 45.7 24.8 44.9
Income before income taxes and equlty in und1str1buted losses .

OF SUDSIAIATIES. ...vevvve vt ettt b eenen 21 7. 105.9 89.2
Income tax benefit.......cccvevrervinreennnnn et e e e oot renraenies (8.5) (2.2) (8.0)
Income before equity in undistributed earnings of subsidiaries ................. - 302 108.1 97.2
Equity in undlstrlbuted losses of sub51d1ar1es ............................................ (36.4) (380.4) (138.4)
Net1oss ......ccccoverrertonenrenennns O OO U USRI (6.2) $ (272.3) 3 (41.2)
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2002 . 2001

: 2003 - Restated Restated
Parent Company Cash Flows. _ : : ‘
Cash dividends received from subsidiary ........cc.cococvvicmnniieienernnicieenens 3 44.5 $ 67.0 $ 1323
Investment iNCOME TECEIVEA ... ..covrrereirieeieireneeeeie s eaee e et 9.7 11.7 0.1
Interest, income taxes and other expenses paid, net ........coecvevvrrcvcrreenee (21.0) (174 (42.1)
Cash from operating activities.....................ccoeeiv i 33.2 61.3 90.3
. Advancés to subsidiaries and capital contributed to subsidiaries ............... (7.8) (287.4) (240.6)
Purchase of subSIAIATIEs......ccvcvireiirieiniieece et s ee e (17.9) -- (659.8)
Equity Security pUurchases .......cccccuieonive s lonmnerenescreennns e crne et sesesnsseees -- (157.4) --
Debt and equity SECUTILY SALES .......cccciivieciiriecieie e -- 72.8 --
Cash for investing activities.............c.cococviiininn e (25.7) (372.0) (900.4)
Stock purchase contract and indebtedness proceeds......c.oeveeriiievrenrecnenes -- 283.0 ‘ 290.1
Common StOCK ISSUANCE ......ovvevervireriirieneereeen s en e e e seeresaens -- -- 831.0
Common Stock rEPUIChASsE. ........covereveriiir e e e -- (131.1) (64.6)
Common stock dividend paid ...........ccoveevieviniiieveniiiee e (15.1) (15.8) --
Payments to subsidiary to reimburse policyholder
credits and payments in lieu of StOCK.........coveviienciiisnccinie, -- -- (41.4)
Cash (for) from financing activities ............c.cccoveevniinncinnnneneee (15.1) 1361 1,015.1
Change in cash and cash equivalents..............cccccoviiivnniiinnnncecnnnen (7.6) (174.6) 205.0
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year.............c.ccococociininnnn, 30.4 205.0 -~
Cash and cash equivalents, enid of year ...........c..ccceevvvvivcvcccsceccceee. 8 228 S 30.4 § 2050

19. Additional Operating Cash Flow Information

Operating activities are presented in the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows on a direct basis. The indirect
basis reconciles net income (loss) to cash from (for) operating activities. This reconciliation follows ($ amounts
in millions):

2002 2001

2003 Restated Restated
OPERATING ACTIVITIES _
Loss from continUing Operations..........ceeeveeveerieieeresesereecernesesseressasseressenens § @& $ (140.7) $ (147.3)
Net realized INVESIMENT IOSSES ....vveveveereerenirectiirisiereeteeneereecese et seeseesesaesnas 100.5 133.9 - 84.9
Amortization and depreCiation ........c.cucvecereeicrienereeriies et ase s 52.5 122.4 70.2
INVESIMENT [0SS....oeiciiiiiciciereii bt 78.5 67.2 97.4
Securitized financial instruments and derivatives..........ccccoeerevereeiveniiniereninens S - -- 16.6
Deferred income tax benefit.........c..cceivivrnnnnnnneciciecene e s (11.9) (42.4) (39.3)
Increase In 1eCeIVabIES .........covveveiiiiiicee e e .7 (8.3) . 5.3)
Deferred policy acquisition COSES INCIEASE .........ccevverrereririrererenentrereeeeeerenenes (111.4) (206.4) (76.2)
Decrease in policy liabilities and accruals........cooerererirernennnrevecc e 454.1 473.4 322.1
Other assets and other liabilities net change...........cccovveiincnciniceiiienennnes (157.4) (83.0) (71.9)
Cash from continuing OPErations ............cccoveeeeoivircnnvenrs s 393.1 316.1 251.2
Discontinued Operations, NEL..........cceciimieeiiiinceniiniriicrs et (36.5) {59.1) (76.8)

Cash from operating activities ............. R e e e e $ 356.6 $ 257.0 $ 1744
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20. Supplemental Unaudited Financial Information

We have restated certain 2002 and 2001 amounts on our Consolidated Statement of Income and Comprehensive
Income and our Consolidated Balance Sheet with respect to our method of consolidation for several of our
sponsored collateralized obligation trusts which we further describe in Note 8. Summarized selected, revised and
originally reported quarterly financial data for 2003 and 2002 follows ($ amounts in millions, except per share

amounts):

Revenues.......coevvvviciiiiinivencininnn,

Income (loss) from continuing
OPETALIONS ...veevevererniecrerieeeeeens

Income (loss) before cumulative
effect of accounting changes .....

Net income (1088)....cverrvirireecenen
Earnings (loss) per share:

BasiC oo
Diluted ..o

Revenues.........coovvovvvevevevinvinnnnen,

Income (loss) from
continuing operations ................

Income (loss) before cumulative
effect of accounting changes .....

Net income (1088)......cocovrcreerencnn.

Earnings (loss) per share:
BaSiC .ot

For the Quarter Ended
2003
Mar 31, Mar 31, June30, June30, Sept30, Sept30, Dec31, Dec3l,
As As As As As As As As
Restated Reported Restated Reported Restated Reported Restated Reported
$ 6554 $ 643.1 $ 5546 §$ 5412 $ 6937 $ 6818 § 7107 $ 698.5
$§ 17 $ 35 $ (492 $ 491) $ 136 $ 144 § 298 $ 295
$§ 13 $ 31 3 (496) $ (495 $ 132 $ 140 $ 289 $ 286
$ 13 $ 31 $ (496) S (495) $ 132 § 140 $ 289 § (3.0
$§ 001 $ 003 $ (053) $ (053) $ 014 § 015 $ 031 $ (0.03)
$ 001 $ 003 $ (053) $ (053) $ 013 $ 014 $ 029 $ (0.03)
For the Quarter Ended
2002
Mar 31, Mar 31, June30, June30, Sept30, Sept30, Dec31, Dec3l,
As As As As As As As As
Restated Reported Restated Reported Restated Reported Restated Reported
$ 5996 § 5936 $59.8 § 5921 §$ 6615 $ 6545 §$ 5984 § 6114
$ 263 $ 292 $ (40.7) $ (36.8) $ (92.6) $ (92.6) $ (33.7) § (14.2)
$§ 260 $ 289 $ (41.1) § (37.2) $ (93.0) $ (93.0) $ (339 § (1449
$(104.3) $(101.4) $ (41.1) $ (37.2) % (93.0) $ (93.0) $ (339 $ (144
$ (1.03) § (1.00) $ (041) $ (037) $ (096) $ (0.96) $ (0.36) $ (0.15)
$ (1.03) $ (1.00) $§ (041) $ (037) $ (0.96) $ (0.96) § (0.36) § (0.15)
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EXHIBIT INDEX

Exhibit

2.1 Plan of Reorganization '

3.1 Form'of Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation of The Phoenix Companies, Inc. 4
(incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to The Phoenix Companies, Inc. Registration Statement
on Form S-1 (Reglstratlon No. 333-73896), filed on November 21, 2001, as amended)

32 Form of By-Laws of The Phoenix Compames Inc, (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to
The Phoenix Companies, Inc. Registration Statement on Form S-1 (Registration No. 333-73896), filed on
November 21, 2001, as amended)

4.1 Indenture dated as of December 27, 2001, between The Phoenix Companies, Inc. and SunTrust Bank, as

Trustee (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to The Phoenix Companies, Inc. annual report
on Form 10-K filed March 27, 2001

42 - . Specimen of global bond dated as of December 27, 2001, issued by The Phoenix Companies, Inc.
(incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 4.2 to The Phoenix Companies, Inc. annual report on Form
10-K filed March 27, 2001

43 Fiscal Agency Agreement dated as of November 25, 1996, between Phoenix Home Life Mutual
Insurance Company, as Issuer and The Bank of New York as Fiscal Agent (incorporated herein by
reference to Exhibit 10.24 to The Phoenix Companies, Inc. Registration Statement on Form S-1
(Registration No. 333-55268), filed-on February 9, 2001, as amended)

4.4 Global Note dated as of November 25, 1996, between Phoenix Home Life Mutual Insurance Company,
Bear, Stearns & Co, Inc., Chase Securities Inc., Merrill Lynch & Co. and The Bank of New York
{incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.25 to The Phoenix Companies, Inc. Registration |
Statement on Form S-1 (Registration No. 333-55268), filed on February 9, 2001, as amended)

4.5 Underwriting Agreement General Terms and Conditions dated December 16, 2002, including the Pricing
’ Agreement, dated December 16, 2002 (Equity Units of the Company (incorporated herein by reference
to Exhibit 1.1 to The Phoenix Companies, Inc. current report on Form 8-K dated December 16, 2002)

4.6 Subordinated Indenture dated as of December 20, 2002 between the Company and SunTrust Bank as
' Trustee (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to The Phoenix Companies, Inc. current report
" *'on Form 8-K dated December 16, 2002)

4.7 Supplemental Indenture No. 1 dated as of December 20, 2002, to the Subordinated Indenture _
: -~ incorporated by reference as Exhibit 4.6 hereto, between the Company and SunTrust Bank as Trustee

“(incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 4.2 to The Phoenix Companies, Inc. current report on Form
8-K dated December 16, 2002)

4.8 ' Purchase Contract Agreement dated as of December 20, 2002, between the Company and SunTrust Bank
T “as Purchase Contract Agent (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 4.3 to The Phoenix Companies,
" Inc. current report on Form 8-K dated December 16, 2002)

' 4.9 - -Pledge Agreement dated as of December 20, 2002, between the Company and SunTrust Bank as
Collateral Agent, Custodial Agent, Securities Intermediary and Purchase Contract Agent (incorporated
herein by reference to Exhibit 4.4 to The Phoenix Companies; Inc. current report on Form 8-K dated
December 16, 2002)

4.10 Remarketing Agreement dated December 20, 2002, by and among the Company, Morgan Stanley & Co.
. Incorporated as Remarketing Agent, and SunTrust Bank as Purchase Contract Agent (incorporated
herein by reference to Exhibit 4.5 to The Phoenix Companies, Inc. current report on Form 8-K dated
December 16, 2002) '

101 Phoenix Home Life Mutual Insurance COmpany Long-term Incentive Plan (incorporated herein by
reference to Exhibit 10.1 to The Phoenix Companies, Inc. Registration Statement on Form S-1
(Registration No. 333- 55268), filed on February 9, 2001, as amended)
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10.2

10.3

10.4

10.5

10.6

10.7

10.8

10.9

10.10

10.11

10.12

10.13

10.14

10.15

10.16

10.17

10.18

The Phoenix Companies, Inc. Stock Incentive Plan (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to
The Phoenix Companies, Inc. Registration Statement on Form S-1 (Registration No. 333-55268), filed on
February 9, 2001, as amended)

Phoenix Home Life Mutual Insurance Company Mutual Incentive Plan (incorporated herein by reference
to Exhibit 10.3 to The Phoenix Companies, Inc. Registration Statement on Form S-1 (Registration No.
333- 55268), filed on February 9, 2001, as amended)

The Phoenix Companies, Inc. Directors Stock Plan (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to
The Phoenix Companies, Inc. Registration Statement on Form S-1 (Registration No. 333-55268), filed on
February 9, 2001, as amended)

Phoenix Home Life Mutual Insurance Company Excess Benefit Plan (incorporated herein by reference
to Exhibit 10.5 to The Phoenix Companies, Inc. Registration Statement on Form S-1 (Registration No.
333- 55268), filed on February 9, 2001, as amended)

Amendment to Phoenix Home Life Mutual Insurance Company Excess Benefit Plan (incorporated
herein by reference to Exhibit 10.6 to The Phoenix Companies, Inc. Registration Statement on Form §-1
(Registration No. 333-55268), filed on February 9, 2001, as amended)

Second Amendment to Phoenix Home Life Mutual Insurance Company Excess Benefit Plan
(incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to The Phoenix Companies, Inc. Registration Statement
on Form S-1 (Registration No. 333-55268), filed on February 9, 2001, as amended)

Third Amendment to The Phoenix Companies, Inc. Excess Benefit Plan, as amended and restated
effective January 1, 1988 (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.8 to The Phoenix Companies,
Inc. annual report of Form 10-K filed March 27, 2001)-

Fourth Amendment to The Phoenix Companies, Inc. Excess Benefit Plan, as amended and restated
effective January 1994 (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.9 to The Phoenix Companies, Inc.
annual report of Form 10-K filed March 27, 2001)

Phoenix Home Life Mutual Insurance Company Excess Investment Plan (incorporated herein by
reference to Exhibit 10.8 to The Phoenix Companies, Inc. Registration Statement on Form S-1
(Registration No. 333- 55268), filed on February 9, 2001, as amended)

Amendment to Phoenix Home Life Mutual Insurance Company Excess Investment Plan (incorporated
herein by reference to Exhibit 10.9 to The Phoenix Companies, Inc. Registration Statement on Form S-1
(Registration No. 333-55268), filed on February 9, 2001, as amended)

Second Amendment to Phoenix Home Life Mutual Insurance Company Excess Investment Plan
(incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.10 to The Phoenix Companies, Inc. Registration
Statement on Form S-1 (Registration No. 333-55268), filed on February 9, 2001, as amended)

Third Amendment to Phoenix Home Life Mutual Insurance Company Excess Investment Plan
(incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.11 to The Phoenix Companies, Inc. Registration
Statement on Form S-1 (Registration No. 333-55268), filed on February 9, 2001, as amended)

The Phoenix Companies, Inc. Nonqualified Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan, as amended and
restated effective January 1, 2003 (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.14 to The Phoenix
Companies, Inc. annual report in Form 10-K filed March 21, 2003)

Phoenix Investment Partners 2001 Phantom Option Plan (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit
10.15 to The Phoenix Companies, Inc. annual report in Form 10-K filed March 21, 2003)

Phoenix Investment Partners 2002 Phantom Option Plan (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit
10.16 to The Phoenix Companies, Inc. annual report in Form 10-K filed March 21, 2003)

Phoenix Investment Partners, Ltd 2002 Management Incentive Plan - Corporate (incorporated herein by
reference to Exhibit 10.17 to The Phoenix Companies, Inc. annual report in Form 10-K filed March 21,
2003)

Phoenix Investment Partners, Ltd 2002 - Associate Incentive Plan (incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 10.18 to The Phoenix Companies, Inc. annual report in Form 10-K filed March 21, 2003)
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10.19

10.20

10.21

10.22

10.23

10.24

10.25

10.26

10.27

10.28

10.29

10.30

10.31

Phoenix Investment Partners, Ltd 2002 Investment Incentive Plan - DPIM Fixed Income (incorporated
herein by reference to Exhibit 10.19 to The Phoenix Companies, Inc. annual report in Form 10-K filed
March 21, 2003)

The Phoenix Companies, Inc. 2003 Restricted Stock, Restricted Stock Unit and Long-Term Incentive
Plan (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit B to The Phoemx Companies, Inc. 2003 Proxy
Statement, filed on March 21, 2003) :

Stockholder Rights Agreement dated as of June 19, 2001 .(incorpora'ted herein by reference to Exhibit
10.24 to The Phoenix Companies, Inc. Registration Statement on Form S-1 (Registration No. 333
73896), filed on November 21, 2001, as amended)

Binder of Reinsurance dated as of September 30, 1999, between Phoenix Home Life Mutual Insurance
Company, American Phoenix Life & Reassurance Company and European Reinsurance Company of
Zurich (Bermuda Branch)(+) (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.36 to The Phoenix
Companies, Inc. Registration Statement on Form S-1 (Registration No. 333-55268), filed on February 9,
2001, as amended) ‘

Amendment No. 1 dated as of February 1, 2000, to the Binder of Reinsurance, dated as of September 30,
1999, between Phoenix Home Life Mutual Insurance Company, American Phoenix Life & Reassurance
Company and European Reinsurance Company of Zurich (Bermuda Branch)( +) (incorporated herein by
reference to Exhibit 10.37 to The Phoenix Companies, Inc. Registration Statement on Form S-1
(Reg1strat10n No 333-55268), filed on February 9, 2001, as amended)

Stock Purchase Agreement dated as of June 23, 1999, between Banco Suquia S.A. and PM Holdings,
Inc. (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.41 to The Phoenix Companies, Inc. Registration

Statement on Form S-1 (Registration No. 333-55268), filed on February 9, 2001, as amended)

Acquisition Agreement dated as November 10, 1999, between Selling Management Shareholders,
Aberdeen Asset Management PLC, The Standard Life Assurance Co., The Non-Selling Management
Shareholders, Lombard International Assurance SA and PM Holdings, Inc. (incorporated herein by
reference to Exhibit 10.43 to The Phoenix Companies, Inc. Registration Statement on Form S-1
(Registration No. 333-55268), filed on February 9, 2001, as amended)

Stock Purchase Agreement dated as of November 12, 1999, by and between TCW/EMCO Holding LLC
and PM Holdings, Inc. (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.44 to The Phoenix Companies,
Inc. Registration Statement on Form S- l(Reglstratlon No. 333-55268), filed on February 9, 2001, as
amended)

Subordination Agreement dated as of June 11, 2001 between Phoenix Home Life Mutual Insurance
Company and Phoenix Investment Partners, Ltd. (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.64 to
The Phoenix Companies, Inc. Registration Statement on Form S-1 (Registration No. 333-55268), filed on
February 9, 2001, as amended)

Standstill Agreement dated May 18, 2001, between The Phoenix Companies, Inc. and State Farm Mutual
Insurance Company (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 4.2 to The Phoenix Companices, Inc.
Registration Statement on Form S-1 (Registration No. 333-55268), filed on February 9, 2001, as
amended)

Shareholder’s Agreement dated as of June 19, 2001, between The Phoenix Companies, Inc. and State
Farm Mutual Insurance Company (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.56 to The Phoenix
Companies, Inc. Registration Statement on Form S-1 (Registration No. 333-73896), filed on November
21,2001, as amended) '

Acquisition Agreement, dated as of November 12, 2001, by and among Kayne Anderson Rudnick
Investment Management, LLC, the equity holders named therein and Phoenix Investment Partners, Ltd.
(incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.57 to The Phoenix Companies, Inc. Registration
Statement on Form S-1 (Registration No. 333-73896), filed on November 21, 2001, as amended)

Subordination Agreement dated as of December 27, 2001 between The Phoenix Companies, Inc. and
Phoenix Investment Partners, Ltd. (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.64 to The Phoenix
Companies, Inc. annual report on Form 10-K filed March 27, 2001)
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10.32

10.33

10.34

10.35

10.36 .

10.37
10.38

10.39

10.40

10.41

10.42

1043

- 10.44

10.45

10.46
1047

1048 -

Subordination Agreement dated as of January 29, 2002 between The Phoenix Companies, Inc. and
Phoenix Investment Partners, Ltd. (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.65 to The Phoenix
Companies, Inc. annual report on Form 10-K filed March 27, 2001) ‘

Credit Agreement dated as of December 22, 2003 between The Phoenix Companies, Inc., Phoenix Life
Insurance Company, Phoenix Investment Partners, Ltd. and various financial institutions *

Executive Employment Agreement dated as of I anuary 1, 2003, between The Phoenix Companies, Inc.
and Dona D. Young (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 99.1 to The Phoenix Companies, Inc.

_current report on Form 8-K-dated January 1, 2003)

Employment Continuation Agreement dated January 1, 2003, between The Phoemx Companies, Inc. and
Dona D. Young (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 99.2 to The Phoemx Companies, Inc

N current report on Form'8-K dated January 1,2003)

Restructured Stock Units Agreement dated as of January 25 2003, between The Phoemx Companies,
Inc. and Dona D. Young (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to The Phoenix companies,
Inc. quarterly report on Form 10-Q filed August 14, 2003)

Retirement and Transition Agreement dated September 27, 2002, between Robert W. Fiondella and The

Phoenix Companies, Inc. (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 99.2 to The Phoenix Companies,

Inc. current report on Form 8-K dated September 30, 2002)

Amendment dated February 10, 2003 to Retirement and Transition Agreement between The Phoenix
Companies, Inc. and Robert W. Fiondella (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.49 to The
Phoenix Companies, Inc. annual report on Form 10-K filed March 21, 2003)

Change in Control Agreement dated as of November 6, 2000, between' Phoenix Home Life Mutual
Insurance Company and Michael J. Gilotti (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.50 to The

: Phoenlx Companies, Inc. annual report on Form IO K filed March 21, 2003)

' Severance Agreement dated Decenber 20, 2000, between Phoenix Home Life Mutual Insurance

Company and Michael J. Gilotti (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.51 to The Phoenix

" Companies, Inc. annual report on Form 10-K. ﬁled March 21, 2003)

Change in Control Agreement dated as of January 1, 2003, between The Phoenix Companies, Inc. and
Michael J. Gilotti (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.52 to The Phoemx Companies, Inc.
annual report on Form 10-K filed March 21, 2003)

2002 Incentive Plan for Michael J. Gilotti (incorporated herem by reference to Exhibit 10.53 to The

Phoenix Companies, Inc. annual report on Form 10-K filed March 21, 2003)

Change in Control Agreement ddted as of February 1, 2001, between Phoenix Investment Partners, Ltd.
and Michael E. Haylon (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10 54 to The Phoenix Companies,
Inc. annual report on Form 10-K filed March 21, 2003)

Severance Agreement dated as of February 1, 2001, between Phoenix Investment Partners, Ltd. and
Michael E. Haylon (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.55 to The Phoemx Companies, Inc.
annual report on Form 10-K filed March 21, 2003) -

Change in Control Agreement dated as of January 1, 2003, between The Phoenix Companies, Inc. and
Michael E. Haylon (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.56 to The Phoemx Compames Inc.
annual report on Form 10-K ﬁled March 21, 2003)-

Offer Letter dated April 14, 2003 by The Phoenix Compames Inc. to Dan1e1 T. Geraci (incorporated
herein by reference to Exhibit 10. 2 to The Phoemx Compames Inc. quarterly report on Form 10-Q filed
August 14 2003) : :

Change i in Control Agreement dated as of May 12, 2003 between The Phoemx Compames Inc. and

Daniel T. Geraci (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to The Phoenix Companies, Inc.

quarterly report on Form 10 Q filed August 14 2003)

. ;Restrlcted Stock Units Agreement dated as of May 12, 2003 between The Phoemx Companles Inc and

Daniel T. Geraci (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to The Phoenix Companies, Inc.
quarterly report on Form 10-Q filed August 14, 2003)
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10.49

10.50
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23
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31.2
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Change in Control Agreement dated as of January 1, 2003, between The Phoenix Companies, Inc. and
Coleman D. Ross *

Offer Letter dated February 9, 2004, by The Phoenix Companies, Inc. to Philip K. Polkinghorn *
Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges*

Subsidiaries of the Registrant *

Consent of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP*

Certification of Dona D. Young, Chief Executive Officer, pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley
Act 0f 2002 *

Certification of Michael E. Haylon, Chief Financial
Officer, pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 *

Certification by Dona D. Young, Chief Executive Officer and Michael E. Haylon, Chief Financial
Officer, pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 *

&)

Filed herewith

Portions subject to confidential treatment request

Phoenix will furnish any exhibit upon the payr'neﬁt'o'f a reasonable 'fee,‘ which fee shall be limited to Phoenix’s reasonable
expenses in furnishing such exhibit.
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Annual Meeting

The annual meeting of shareholders of The Phoenix Companies, inc. will be
held on April 29,2004 at 10:00 a.m. Eastern time at 10 Krey Boulevard, East
Greenbush, New York.

Security Listings

The common stock of The Phoenix Companies, Inc. is traded on the New
York Stock Exchange (NYSE) under the symbol “PNX.” Our 7.25 percent
equity units are traded on the NYSE under the symbol “PNX PrA.” Our
7.45 percent bond is traded on the NYSE under the symbol “PFX.

Transfer Agent and Registrar
For information or assistance regarding your account, please contact our
transfer agent and registrar:

EquiServe Trust Company, N.A. at: Phoenix Shareholder Services, C/O
EquiServe Trust Company, N.A., PO. Box 43076, Providence, Rl 02940-3076

Toll-free: 1-800-490-4258, TTY: [-800-336-9449
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To see our Code of Conduct, Board of Directors Corporate Governance
Principles, director independence standards, shareholder communication
procedures, and the charters of certain of our Board committees, please
go to our Web site at PhoenixVWealthManagement.com, in the Investor
Relations section. i

To receive additional information, including financial supplements and
Securities and Exchange Commission filings along with access to other
shareholder services, visit the Investor Relations Section on our Web site
at PhoenixWealthManagement.com or contact our Investor Relations
Department at:

Investor Relations, The Phoenix Companies, Inc., One American Row,
PO. Box 5056, Hartford, CT 06102-5056

Phone: 1-860-403-7100
Fax: 1-860-403-7880
e-mail: pnx.ir@phoenixwm.com

For more information on our products and services, call your Phoenix
representative or visit our Web site at PhoenixVWealthManagement.com.
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